
 

 
 

Call-In Sub-Committee  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Monday 5 August 2013 

 

TIME: 

 

6.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2,  

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 
 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chairman: 

 

Councillor Paul Osborn  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Tony Ferrari 
 

Sue Anderson 
Jerry Miles 
 

Mano Dharmarajah 
 

 
 

 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Stephen Wright 
2. Chris Mote 
3. Kam Chana 
 

1. Ann Gate 
2. Graham Henson 
 

1. (Vacancy) 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Contact:  Una Sullivan, Democratic & Electoral Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1785    E-mail:  una.sullivan@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Call-In Sub-Committee - 5 August 2013 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Sub-Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN    
 
 To consider the appointment of a Vice-Chairman to the Sub-Committee for the 

Municipal Year 2013/14 
 

4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2013 be taken as read and signed 

as a correct record. 
 

5. PROTOCOL FOR THE OPERATION OF THE CALL-IN SUB-COMMITTEE   
(Pages 9 - 10) 

 
6. CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION (18 JULY 2013) - TRANSFORMATION OF 

DAY OPPORTUNITIES IN HARROW   (Pages 11 - 212) 
 
 The following documents are attached:- 

 
a) Notice invoking the Call-in 
 
b) Draft Minute Extract of the Cabinet meeting held on 18 July 2013 

 
c) Report submitted to Cabinet on 18 July 2013 

 
7. CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION (18 JULY 2013) - CONCESSIONARY TRAVEL 

- CHANGES TO THE TAXICARD SCHEME   (Pages 213 - 302) 
 
 The following documents are attached:- 

 



 

Call-In Sub-Committee - 5 August 2013 

d) Notice invoking the Call-in 
 
e) Draft Minute Extract of the Cabinet meeting held on 18 July 2013 

 
f) Report submitted to Cabinet on 18 July 2013 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985   
 In accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, this 

meeting is being called with less than 5 clear working days’ notice by virtue of the 
special circumstances and grounds for urgency stated below:- 
 
Under Committee Procedure Rule 46.6 a meeting of the Call-In Sub-Committee 
must be held within 7 clear working days of the receipt of a request for call-in. This 
meeting therefore had to be arranged at very short notice and it was not possible for 
the agenda to be published 5 clear working days prior to the meeting. 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ���������	
������������������������� �������

�
�
�

���������	
�����������

���	���

�

��������������
�
�
��������	� �� ��	������������������
� � �
�
����
��	� �� �	�����������

��  ��������������	�������!�"��
�

�� �#������	�!�"�
�� $�	��%�
����
�

���
����������	�
��
����
����
�

�� ����&���'�(&��
�

��	������

�� )����������
�����������
!�"�����!�"�)����������(�����*�+����,�����
����
�
�

���� ��������������������������������
�
��� !"�#	��-��������&��������������*��&��*����.�(��	������������+����,��
���
���/�
��
%����������
����
��

+����,�����
����

��	�����������0���� ��	��������#������	�
��	��������	����1���� ��	������� ��������������	�������
�

�$�� #�������
���
%������������
�
��� !"�#	��-��������&����&��*����.�(����������.������������/�
�
�(����������2�3����������*���
����)������!������������"�3��������4�����
-����������&��(��$��(��������!�4-��"�
�
��	��������	�����������������������������	����������������&���
�,������
���&����&��.��������
����*����**������
����&��*�5������������&���&	�
����

Agenda Item 4
Pages 1 to 8

1



�

���2��� � ���������	
�������������������������

.����&����*�0�,����������6�(�
	�����&���7���&��.�	������������&�������

.&�����&���������.�����������������,�����	���7�
�
��	������� ��������������	�������������������������	����� �������� �� �&��
�
�,�� ���� �� �&��� &�� ������.����� ����&������1���&�8���1(&���&���7� �1��
.�	������������&�������.&�����&���������.�����������������,�����	���7�
�
��	��������#������	�������������������	����� �������� �� �&���
�,�� ���� ��
�&���&��.*��.���������&�(���������������
�������&���7��1��.�	�����������
�&�������.&�����&���������.�����������������,�����	���7�
�
��	������������������������������������	����� �����������&���
�,��������
�&���&��.��������
����*����**������
����&��*�5����7� �1��.�	��� ������ ��
�&�������.&�����&���������.�����������������,�����	���7�
�
��	�������$�	��%�
����������������������	����������������&���
�,��������
�&��� &�� .��� �&�� $���*���� 1������ .&�� &��� �(���� �&�� ������� ��� �������
4�����-�����������!�4-�"7� �1��.�	��� ���,�� �&�������*� �&���	
����������
���	������&���4-��������7�
�

�&�� ����������
�
��� !"�#	��-&����&����	�����*��&�������(�&������������������9�
����:���
�������������(�����������������������7�
�

�'�� (�
�
�
�%
������ )�����
��
%�������*������*�
����������
�
-&�� �&������ �	������ �&�� ������	��� ��� 
�� *����.��� ��� �&�� �����(� ����
��,���� �&�� �	
���������� �&��� �&��� .�	��� ���� 
�� �
��� ��� ������ �&��� �&��
�������.������������ ��� �&�������� *����.��:������������� ����������.&����� ��
�����������.�&��&��
	�(���*����.��:�����&���������&�������
�������������
����&��(��	��7��
�
��� !"�#	� � -&��� �&�� �������� .�	��� 
�� ���������� ��� �&�� 
���� �*� �&��
*����.�(�(��	���/�
�
!�"� ����;	��������	�������.�&����:�&����������������&��������<�
�
!
"� �&���
�������*����;	�����,���������.&�&����
������������<�

�
!*"� ��	**������������������*���(�������*���������,��7��
�

��� !"�#��+������
�

���� ��*��� 
%� �������� #�����
�� �$$� �)��� &�$'�� *� �)����� ,����� +����)
���
����-��(�
-������'���,+�'����
�
-&���	
���������� ����,���������� �� ���������*�����������������	
������

���,����2�����
�����*��&���	
��7�
�

2



�

���������	
������������������������� ���=���

-&�� �&������ �,���� �&�� �����������,�� �*� �&�� �(�������9� ��� )������
 	����*�����*�5����9�������������&����������*��� �&����������*� �&������������
�&���	
���������7�
�
-&�� �����������,���*� �&���(���������������������&��*� �&��(��	���� *��� �&��
�����������������7�
�
0��	�����3������;	��������	�������.�&����:�&����������������&���������
�
-&�� �����������,�� �*� �&�� �(�������� �>������� �&��� ��� �&�� �&������ ����
?������ )������������ ����� ��������� !)��"� ��� ��� ����&� ����� �&��
�*�������� ���������� &��� 
���� ����;	���� ���� &��� *����� ��� ���	��� �&��
��
���� ������9� �&��8;	����� ������������������!8;��"������&��*	���
	������
����7�����������&���
���������
���&��5����� ����&���������������&��@�������*�
�&����	������;	����(��&����&���������
���	��������
	�������������&�������

��������,��7� ������(��.�&����**�&��� ��:�������������A�����&���������9�
�	������&�����(��*��&���������9�������������4�����-���������!�4-"����**�
&���
����	��
������������7��-&������	������������������*����������2��*��&��
+���(����� �(�������� ���� ����	������� �*���� �&�� ������� .��� ����
�����(*	�7��-&����&�������
������������	�������.�&��&��2�2����,���	�����

	�� �&���� .���� ��������� ������� ��� 	����� ���	��(� &����&� ���� ��*����
��������� ���� ���� *	�	��� �&��(��� ��� �&�� ��(
���� ������7� � -&���� ��� ����
����������&�,��
������������(	��.�&��**��������&������	���9�1����&�����
'���
��(�)�������������.�&���&������
�����
�	���&����
����������������&��
8;��7��-.��,��������*��&��8;���.�����,���
�������&����	���B��.�
���9�����
�*�.&�&�.���	��(��������	������9�.&����&����&���&���
�����(����
���&��
),������ )������� 8����� �����,������ ���,���7� � ��� .��� ���� ������ .&��&��� ��
����(����� ��	���� (��	�9� �	�&� ��� �&�� C	����� ���	������  ����� ��� �&��
����������8;	�����0��	��&�������������������&��8;��7��-&����&�������
����
����	�������.�&�1����-���&��������&��8;��7�
�
0��	�����3�-&���
�������*����;	�����,���������.&�&����
�������������
�
-&�������������,���*��&���(����������,�����&����&���,���������,����.���
����;	���������������&�� �������*��&�����������������&��8;������	�������
������ ��� �.�� �*� �&�� ���������� �&�����������9� ����� ���� (�����7� � -&��
��������������������	����*�����������.&����&����.���(
�����������.�	���

��*����&�����,��7�
�
0��	�����3����	**������������������*���(�������*���������,���
�
-&�� �����������,�� �*� �&�� �(�������� ����� ��*������� ��� �&�� �	
��� �������
�;	������	���	�����������������*��&��8;	�����������������������������&���
*	�����(�����,���&�������
����(,��7��1���>��������&���*�*	�����,���&���
����
���,�����&����&���*�����������:�(�*�����&��8;���������������(������.�	���
&�,��
��������*��7�
�
-&�� �&������ �&��� �,���� �&�� $���*���� 1������ *��� �&�����9� ��&����� ����
?������ ����������� �&���	
���������7� ��&�� �&��:��� �&�� �����������,���*�
�&�� �(�������� *��� &�� ������������ ���� �����	���� ��	������� $&����9� &���
$���*����1���������������.&��&���
���� �,��,���.�&��4-��7� �-&��$���*����

3



�

���D��� � ���������	
�������������������������

1������*����&�����9���&���������?��������;	�������**��������������������&��
�������9�����������������������7�
�
-&�� ���������� )������9� �&������ ���� ?������ ���� �&�� ),������ )������9�
������� 4����� ���,���9� ����� �&�� *����.�(� ��������� �� ��������� ��� �&��
�������������*��&��(��	�����*��&��������/�
�

•� �&����&���
��������	�������.�&��&��������B�	���������.�&����**������
����&��������7������&��)������������������������!)��"������(����
�������&�����9��&��	�����&���
����������������������&������������
&��� 
���� �>������� �� �����7� � �����(�� .�&� ���**� &��� 
���� &���� ���
�A�����&����������.���**�����������
	����.����������&�����&���
����
�**�	��� ��� ��&��	��� �� ����� *��������(��.�&� ���**� ����� ��� �&��8������
&������7�������>���������E��*��4-����**�&�������������������������
��������.�	���
��&�������**���������������*����&�����**�.&��&���
����
	��
��� ���������7� �'����������	���������
�	�� �&������������.�	���

������<�

�

•� �&������������*��&�����#����&���
�����	����������&����.�����������*��
�������������
���>��������	��(��&����������	������<�

�

•� ��&���
����*�������
��	����������������(�(��.�&���&������:�&����������
���,��� 	����� 
���	��� �	�������� ��E� �*� �&�� ���,��� .��� �	���	�����
���� ���,��� 	����� ��	��� 
�� ���������� 
�� ��&��� ��	���� ���**� ��� ���
�>����������,���<�

�

•� �&����.�	���
������	�������.�&���&������:�&��������������,���	�����
*��&����.�������#����&��(������&����(
����������7������������9���.���
��������� ��� ��*���&� �&�� ������� ���� �� .��� ���� �>������� �&��� �&����
.�	��� 
�� �� �(�*����� �&��(�� �� ��(
���7� � ��� .��� ����
��� �&��� ����
�	�������*� �&����(
���� ��*���&�.�	���
����� �������� �� �����������
���,��������(<�

�

•� �&���� &��� 
���� ����	������� ��� �&�� ��(
���� ������ .&��� �� .��� �����
�(����� �� ���=� ���� �&�� ��������� ��*���&� .�	��� �������� ����	�����
�&��(��<�

�

•� �&��8;���.�	���
�� ��,���� �&��	(&�	�� �&�� �&������������(����������
�&�� ,������ �	
������ .�&� �&�� ��
���� ������� .��� ��� ����� ,�����7��
-&�� 8;��� &��� 
���� ���������� ���� ��,������� 
�� ,���	�� ��	����
�**����������(��&�����&�������,����	**��������	���<�

�

•� �&���������&���
���������,���
���**�����*����@�(�������0�,��������
���,�����������������
��&���(�������*���������,��7�

�
-&�� �&������ �,���� �&�� �����������,��� �*� �&�� �(�������9� ��� )������
 	����*���� ���� ��� 0���� ������ �*� 5����� ��� ��:� ;	������� �*� �&�� $���*����
1������*����&�����9���&���������?�����7��-&��;	�������.�����������������

���&��$���*����1�����������**��������	��(��&������������)������9��&������
����?�����9����*����.�/�
�

4



�

���������	
������������������������� ���A���

•� �&��:�������������*��&��
	�����������&���
�����&�����.�&�
��&����**�
�����&��������B�	����<�

�

•� ��� ���� �������� ��� �&�� )��������(� &��� ��;	������ �&�� *	��� 
	������
����� ���&�	(&� �&�� ���	����� .��� �,���
��7� � -&���� .�	��� 
�� *	��&���
����	������� ��� �&�� �������� ���������7� � -&�� :��� �������� �>�������
�	��(� �&�� ���(�&�� ���	������ ��� �&�� )��� �����(� .��� ���(����,��
�	���	���(<�

�

•� �&�� ������� ����� ��� �&�� @������ �*� �&�� ��	���� 
�� �&�� 5�����  ����&�
���������� ��� �������&� ����� &��� ���� 
���� ����*������ ������ ��� �&��
$���*����1������*����&�����9���&���������?�����7���*���&���
�����&���
�����������.�	���&�,��
�����	��	��7� � ���.�����������
��� ������.���
���
�&��*��*��&��@������������.&�������������&�������
��������<�

�

•� �&�� ��	���� &��� �� ����	����� �	��� ��� ���,��� ���������� ���������� 
	��
�&�����������&�,�����
������	����������&�.���.������,����7����������
�*��&����
����������9���.����(������&����&����.�	���
������	�������
.�&� ���:�&������� ��(����(� �&�� ��(
���� ������� ���� �&�� ����������
��(
������������*���&7��-&����.��������������������������&��(���&��
��(
��������������������&��(���.���9����&�����9��:�������
�������
�����������������,��������(<�

�

•� ���� ,������ �*� �&�� 8;��� ��� �&�� .�
���� .��� ���*�� ���� �&���� .����
�**�������� 
��.���� �&�� �.�� ,������� 
���	����4-��.��� �� �������
���#���7��-&��8;���.�	���
����,������	��(��&���&������������(�����7��
-&���� &��� 
���� ����	������� .�&� ���
���9� ���������� ���,���
����(���9� &	���� ����	����� ���� ��(��� �**����9� �&�� $����� %**���9�
8;	����������),�����9� �&�����,�������(��9�$���������$�������&��
���� �&��),������)������9�������(�����������(���� �&��8;��7� � ���
&��� 
���� ���������� �&��� �&�� 8;��� ��� ���� ���	��� ���	(&� �*� �&��
����,�� �����������*� �&�����#���7� �-&����.��������;	�������*����&��
8;��� ��� 
�� ���������� ��� �&�� )������������ �&������ 8;	����� 0��	��
�����&����.����������������&����&��8;���
������������
���&��C	�����
���	������0��	����������&�����������
���7���������������,��*����&��
�(�������� ���������� �&��� �&�� 8;���� ��� ���� ���	��� ���� ���*��(�
�*�����������(�������������<�

�

•� �����(��	������*�����������������,��������(�
	��,���
����������.&���
�� .��� 	���� &��� 
���� �>�������� �	��(� �&�� �4-�� ���#���7� � ��� .���
.����� ����(����� �&��� �� .��� (���� �������� ��� ���	������ �������� �*�
��������������,��������(��������.��&������������,��������&��������&���
�.�������&�	���
���������&����4-�.���*���,	�����
�����	�(������������
�&��� *������ ���� �	�� ��� �&�� ������� ���	��� �*� �&��� �����9� �� .���
�**�	���������,���;	������,���,�����7�������(��&���
����&����.�&�
�&�� &���� ����&��9� ���**9� ���,��� 	����� ���� �������� *���� �&�*���
	���
��&���������&���&����>���������	������*�����������������,��������(<�

�

•� �&����������,��(����**������������&�������(������A�����&������&�������
�>��������������*�����������	���	���(�
	��&��� �*���������**� �&������
�&�����������&���.�	���
���
�������������
�	���&�����#���<�

5



�

������� � ���������	
�������������������������

�

•� �&�� ��������,�� ������� &��� 
���� ���������� ��� �&�� �����(�� ���
�A�����&������
	�� ��&���
�����>������� �&��� �������� �����&�,�� �&��
��,�(���&����.�	���&�,�����
�����(����,���>�����������<�

�

•� ��� %**���� ��	����� �*� �&�� 8	������� 5���� !%�85"� ������ .�	��� 
��
��	���.&��� �� ������� &��� 
��������� ���.&��� .�	��� 
�� ����	����
����*��&��*����������	�����;	�����������7�

�
-&���&�������&����,�������
�����*��&���	
���������������:�;	�������
�*� �&�� �����������,��� �*� �&�� �(�������9� �&�� $���*���� 1������ *��� �&�����9�
��&���������?�����������**����7�
�
�����
�����:����
�	�� �&���>������*� �&������	�����������4-��������4-���
.&��� ��E� �*� �&�� ���,��� &��� 
���� �	���	����7� � ��� ��������9� �� 5�����
�����������,�� ��,���� �&��� �&�� 
	������ ������ &��� 
���� ���,���� ��� �&��
	����������&����&���
������(	���������(�7������**������������&����&����E�
�*��&�����,����	���	�����.���������������	����*��4-���.&�&�*��	���������	���
������(������&��,�&����*���������4-���.&�&��������������,��������7��-�>��
&���
����	����������,�����E��*��&�����,���*��������(����7�
�
-&�� �	
���������� ���������� �&�� ����	������� .&�&� &��� ��:��� ������ ���
�4-� �� ���� ;	�������� .&��&��� �**����� *���� �� .��� ���;	���7� � -&�� �**�����
���������� �&��� �&�� ��
���� ������� ��� ��� ����� ����� .��� ��� ����.� �&��
���#���� ��� ���(����� ���� �&��� *	��&��� �������� .�	��� 
�� �	
������ ��� �&��
��(
����������7���
�
�� ���
��� �&��� ;	����� .&��&��� ��� �	����� 
	������ ����� &��� 
����
����	���9����&���
���������
��������*����4-�������������*��&������
��&���
��������� �*� ����	���(� �&��	����� �
�	�� �&���	����� 
	������ �����&���
����
*����.��7� �-&���**������>������� �&��� �&���4-������(������&��� *����.�����
�**������ ������	��7� � ������ &��� ����	���� ��� �	����� 
	������ ����� .&���
�4-���&���
���������(�����������
	���&��.��������	��	������������&�	���
�������&�.���*����.������	���(����&���	������*	���
	����������7��-&���	�����

	������ ����� *��� �4-� �� &��� �,��,��� ������������ �*� �� ������ �*� �������
.&�&�.������,����������&��*	���
	����������������&����	��
��������������
���,���	�������(�7� �-&����������.����� ����.�&�&	��������	�������,��7��
-&����&���
���������������������(��&������	��������	������&����������

��(� ��;	���� ��� �&�� �������� �*� �	���	���(� ���� �&���� &��� 
���� ����
�����	������������
���&�����	��-����?�������������(��!�-?�"7�
�
'&�����������(��&��8;��������&�������,����������9��	�&����.&�&�(��	���
�(����� �&�� ���	����9� �&�� �	
���������� ��;	������ ����*������ ��� ���.&��
&��� �����,��� �&�� 8;��� ���� .&�� :��� *���	��� �*�������� .��� �
����7� � -&��
�**����� �>������� �&��� �&��8;���&���
���� ����������
�� ��������
���� �*�
�&�� �&�����B�� ���,���� 8C��� C	����� ���	������ (��	�� 
	�� ���� ��� �� *������
�����(7� � -&�� ���	����� &��� 
���� �&����� .�&� �,������ ��������� �� �&��
�&������ ���� ?������ )���������� ���� 
�� �&�� ����,���� �**����� �	�&� ��� �&��
$����� %**���9� 8;	������ ���� ),�����9� �&�� ���,��� ����(��9� $����� ����
$�������&�������&��),������)�������8����������,���������,���7��-&�������
�**����.����&��$��(����������(��7�
�

6



�

���������	
������������������������� ��2����

�����
��� �&��� ���������� ��� �&�� ��	��� ������ 
�� �**����� ��(����(� �&��
�����
��� ���� ������� �&��� �����(�� .�&� �&�� 	����� �&�	��� &�,�� 
����
��&��	���7� � -&�� �**����� ��:��.���(��� �&��� �&�� ������� ��	��� &�,�� 
����
�	
������ ����� ��������
���������(�
	�� �*���������
���� �&��� �&����,���
*���� &	���� ����	����� .��� �&��� �&�� ��;	�������� *��� ��������	������� &���

�������7��-&��	�����&���
�����.�����*��&���-?�������&����,�(��*����&��
��������������������,��������)����
�������7�
�
-&���	
����������.�������������&�����.���	�	�����������*����&�������
��
������ 	���� ��(�(������ ����� ��� �������� 
��(� ����� 
�� ���
���7� � -&��
�	
�����������	((������ �&��� ��.�	���
��	��*	�� *�������**���� *����&	����
����	��������
��������������&�������(���������**������,�����&����&��������
 	������$�������.����
��������������&�������(7�
�
-&���&������.���������&�������� 	������$�����������&�������(7���
�
���������������;	�������*�����&���	
��������������&����,����*�����	�������
.�&� �&�� 	����9� �&�� ���(� �*� �&�� ����	������� ���� �&�� �������� �*� �&�� )���
�����(� ��� �������&� ����9� �&��������  	������$������� ���� ��&��� �**�����
��������� �&��� �� �����
��� �*� *	�	��� ����	������� &���
������������� ��������
�&����;	���������*��&���&��(������(������$�������7��-&��)��������(����
�������&������.����&������������������� �������	���.�&� �&��	����7� � ���&���

���� ����� ������ ��� �&�� �����(� �&��� �	���	���(� .��� �&�� ������ 
��(�
�	��	��� ���� �&�� .��� ��:��.���(��� �� �&�� ��������� �*� �&�� 	����
�����������,���������������7��1����.�.��������*�������.��@������ ���	(&��
.&�&�&��������	���	����������(�������������*��&���4-����,��7���
�
-&�� �	
���������� ;	����� .&��� �&�� 	����� ���� ���**� &��� 
���� ���,����
.�&� ���	������ ������(� ��� �&�� ���#���7� � �����
��� ;	�������� .&��&��� �&��
=�E� �*� ���**� .&�� &��� ���� ��������� �&�� �������� ��� �A� ����&� ����� &���
����,��������**��������	�������������(�����&�����#���������&�����������7�
-&�� �**����� ���*����� �&��� ���**� &��� ����,��� �&�� ������� �*� �,������ ��
��,������*��&�������(������A�����&�����7������&��������(����**�&���
����
(,��� ������ �*� �&�� �����������7� � ������������ .��� 
��(� (,��� ��� �&��
�,���
����������*���������������**������(�7��-&����������&���
�����&�������
���**� .�	��� 
�� .������ ��� *����.�(� �&�� ��
���� ������� 
	�� �&�� &��� 
����
���������	������&����������*��&��������7�������.������&������������#���9��&��
����������*�����,�	������**�.��������:��.�������������
	�����**�&���
����
�*������ �&��� �&�� �����*����*�	������:�(�� !-5$8"�.�	��������7� �5�����&���
���� ����,��� ������� �� ��,����� �*� �&�� )��� ��� ��� ����&� ����� ���� &���
����,��� �� ������������ ��� �&��������(7� � -&����.���� ;	������� ��� �&�� ���**�
�����(�� ����A�����&������
	�� �&����.���� ������������� *���� �&�� ������B�
	����B������������,��7���
�
�����
��������������&�����.�������������������������(�������������9��	�&�
��� ������ 	���� ����	������� 
���	��� �*� �&���-?�� ���� �&�� �	������ *�������
�&�����(��7� � -&�� ���
��� ��;	������ ����*������ ��� .&��&��� �&�� �	�����

	�����������&���
�����&����7��-&���**����������������&�����&�������
����
��������������� �&����,�(��&�������
������������ �&������������ �&���*����
�&�����	�����&�������
�����&����7�
�

7



�

��2���� � ���������	
�������������������������

!-&���	
�����������&�����#�	�����*����272A����3�=7�������������,����(���
��,��"7�
�
-&���&����������	������&����������*��&���	
����������������.���
�
��� !"�#	�!	�����	���"��-&���
�
!�"� �&�� ������� ��� (��	��� !�"� 3� ����;	���� ����	�������.�&� ���:�&�������

����� ��� �&�� ������� 
�� 	�&���� ���� ��*������ 
��:� ��� ��
���� *���
��������������������&���	
������������;	�������&����&�����,�	����
�(����� ������ ������ �������� �*� ������ ������ 	���� ��(�(������ 
��
*����.���������.���*�����&�����.���
�����������������(�(��.�&����,���
	�����.&�����&����.�������#����&��(�����&�.������,���.������,����<�

�
!�"� �&������������(��	���!*"����	**������������������*���(�������*�������

��,�������
��	�&�����	�������	**�����(��	���<�
�
!�"� ��
���� ��� �������� ��;	����(� �� ������� �&��� �	������ �&�� �������� �*�

���.�(� 	�� ���� �����,�(� 8;	����� ������� ������������ !8;���"� *���
��
������,����������7�

�
����!
������#�����������"��&���
�
!�"� �&������������(��	���!
"�3��&���
�������*����;	�����,���������.&�&�

���
�������������������
��	�&�����	�������	**�����(��	���7���
�
!4���/��-&�������(9�&�,�(���������������7�=���9�����������=7�=���"7�
�
�
�
�
�
!�(���"��%54��@@%+��8++F���@8��
�&������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

8



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\1\7\AI00083711\$mpljliri.doc 

PROTOCOL FOR THE OPERATION OF THE CALL-IN SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
 
1. Call-in is the process whereby a decision of the Executive, Portfolio Holder or Officer (where the 

latter is taking a Key Decision) taken but not implemented, may be examined by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee prior to implementation.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has 
established the Call-in Sub-Committee to carry out this role.  Committee Procedure Rule 46 sets 
out the rules governing the call-in process. 

 
 The Process for Call-in 

 
2. Six of the Members of the Council can call in a decision of the Executive which has been taken 

but not implemented.  In relation to Executive decisions on education matters only, the number 
of Members required to call in a decision which has been made but not implemented shall be six 
Councillors or, in the alternative, six persons comprising representatives of the voting co-opted 
members and at least one political group on Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Only decisions 
relating to Executive functions, whether delegated or not, may be called in. 

 
 150 members of the public (defined as anyone registered on the electoral roll of the Borough) 

can call in a decision of the Executive, which has been taken but not implemented. 
 
3. Decisions of the Executive will not be implemented for 5 clear working days following the 

publication of the decision and a decision can only be called in within this period (this does not 
apply to urgent decisions - Committee Procedure Rule 47 refers).  The notice of the decision will 
state the date on which the decisions may be implemented if not called in. 

 
4. Call-in must be by notification to the Monitoring Officer in writing or by fax: 
 

i) signed by all six Members and voting co-optees requesting the call-in.  A request for 
call-in by e-mail will require a separate e-mail from each of the six Members concerned.   
 
ii)  signed by all 150 members of the public registered on the electoral roll, and stating 
their names and addresses. 

 
5. In accordance with Committee Procedure Rule 46.5, a notice seeking to invoke the call-in 

procedure must state at least one of the following grounds in support of the request for a call-in 
of the decision:- 

 
(a) inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision; 
(b) the absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision; 
(c) the decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or not wholly in 

accordance with the budget framework; 
(d) the action is not proportionate to the desired outcome; 
(e) a potential human rights challenge; 
(f) insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice. 
 
 

 Referral to the Call-in Sub-Committee 

 
6. Once a notice invoking the call-in procedure has been received, the decision may not be 

implemented until the Chair and nominated member have considered the guidance outlined in 
Appendix 1 to the Committee Procedure Rules and, if required, the Call-in Sub-Committee has 
considered the decision. The Monitoring Officer shall in consultation with the Chair arrange a 
meeting of the Call-in Sub-Committee to be held within seven clear working days of the receipt 
of the request for call-in.   

 
7. The Call-in Sub-Committee will consider the decision and the reasons for call-in. The Sub-

Committee may invite the Executive decision-taker and a representative of those calling in the 
decision to provide information at the meeting. 

Agenda Item 5
Pages 9 to 10

9



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\1\7\AI00083711\$mpljliri.doc 

 
8. The Sub-Committee may come to one of the following conclusions:- 
 

(i) that the challenge to the decision should be taken no further and the decision be 
implemented; 

 
(ii) that the decision is contrary to the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in 

accordance with the budget framework, and should not therefore be referred to the 
Council. In such a case the Call-in sub-committee must set out the nature of its concerns 
for Council; or  

 
(iii) that the matter should be referred back to the decision taker (i.e the Portfolio Holder or 

Executive, whichever took the decision) for reconsideration. In such a case the Call-in 
sub-committee must set out the nature of its concerns for the decision taker/Executive. 

 

10



Agenda Item 6
Pages 11 to 212

11



12



 

 Cabinet - 18 July 2013 - 1 - 

 
 
 

CABINET   

DRAFT MINUTES 

 

18 JULY 2013 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor Thaya Idaikkadar 
   
Councillors: * Nizam Ismail 

* Krishna James 
* Zarina Khalid  
 

* Asad Omar 
* William Stoodley 
 

Non Executive 
Non Voting 
Councillors: 
 

* Susan Hall 
 

* Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

  Kam Chana 
  Paul Osborn 
  David Perry 
  Simon Williams 
 

Minute 667 
Minute 667 
Minute 667 
Minute 667 

* Denotes Member present 
 
 

674. Transformation of Day Opportunities in Harrow   
 
The Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing introduced 
the report, which set out the conclusions of the consultation, including further 
work that had taken place, on a new Model of Day Opportunities in Harrow 
following Cabinet’s decision in January 2013. The report sought approval for 
transforming Day Opportunities in Harrow.  
 
The Portfolio Holder added that the consultation had engaged with 
approximately 650 people and it was important to make the changes for the 
following reasons: 
 

• to ensure that the services provided were used effectively and levels of 
underuse addressed; 

 

13



 

- 2 -  Cabinet - 18 July 2013 

• that the Council was responding appropriately to the demographic 
changes; 

 

• the need to respond to the personalisation agenda which gives people 
a choice of services to use; 

 

• the need to support those most in need by ensuring they can access 
the services provided by the Council. 

 
The Portfolio Holder appreciated that the proposals would entail change which 
would concern some users and she was sad about this but felt that service 
provision would improve as a result of the proposals. She added that the 
situation would continue to be handled with the utmost sensitivity and trust, as 
there was a great deal of work to be done to bring the proposals to fruition. 
The Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) was thorough and explained how the 
Council would mitigate adverse impacts.  
 
The Portfolio Holder added that the process had been put in train by her 
predecessor and that she had seen some of the benefits that would ensue as 
a result of the proposals. However, the process was not complete and 
discussions would continue and she empathised with the disabled movement, 
with whom the ongoing work would continue. 
 
The Corporate Director of Community, Health and Wellbeing referred to the 
report, which set out many benefits of the proposals alongside some 
challenges. He added that the proposals would also allow some disabled 
people to return to Harrow and use services near their families.  
 
An officer detailed the feedback received from various organisations and 
users and explained that the recommendations set out in the report allowed 
for the same level of service to be provided to users. The officer added that 
the Council was committed to working with users to identify their 
requirements, such as friendship groups which many users wanted retained. 
He added that it was essential that there was choice but where there were 
preferences, the Council would aim to support them. In addition, service users 
would help design facilities, such as the provision of gym(s) within the 
buildings. 
 
The Non-voting non-Executive Cabinet Members asked why the original 
proposals to Cabinet were not being revisited by the new administration. 
 
In response to some comments about the use of Bentley Day Centre, the 
Corporate Director of Community, Health and Wellbeing stated that whilst he 
could not comment on individual cases, the process culminating into the 
report before Cabinet had commenced in January 2013 when Cabinet 
authorised consultations, and he confirmed that substantial changes had been 
made to the original suggestions. There was a need to balance choice with 
financial considerations. The Corporate Director added that the report was 
silent on the future of some of the Day Centre buildings and further 
opportunities to learn and share would be available through the Steering 
Group which would continue to exist as part of this process. In responding to 

14



 

Cabinet - 18 July 2013 - 3 - 

questions, the Leader of the Council confirmed that an interest in a site had 
been received; however the Council had continued to focus on the needs of 
service users which had ‘driven’ the proposals before Cabinet.  
 
The Chief Executive referred to the extensive consultations carried out, 
including the outcomes which had been shared widely and detailed in the 
report. He added that the Council was under immense financial pressure and 
all service areas were being asked to identify savings. It was essential that the 
Council focussed on the most vulnerable and he confirmed that existing 
service users would not have a reduction in their service. The proposals were 
underpinned by the issue of personalised budgets thereby giving choice to 
users and there was a need to integrate health and social care budgets. The 
proposals were intended to provide a better service in an adverse financial 
climate. 
 
The Portfolio Holder said that she was aware it was a transitional period and 
was disappointed with the number of processes that had arrived at the same 
time. She was of the view that it was an opportune time for all sections of the 
community to come together to ensure successful outcomes. She was 
confident that the EqIAs had been undertaken and were thorough but further 
discussions would be required on the overall implementation of the proposals. 
 
In response to additional questions from the non-voting non-Executive 
Cabinet Members about the utilisation of the Bentley Neighbourhood 
Resource Centre and its capacity which ought to be exploited, an officer 
replied that there was a need to manage within available resources and the 
building was not sustainable in its present form.  The officer added that the 
matching of staff to jobs as part of the proposals would be carried out and he 
expected a much lower level of redundancies than the 11 identified, due to 
redeployment opportunities that would be made available to staff affected by 
the proposals and people choosing retirement. 
 
In conclusion, the Corporate Director of Community, Health and Wellbeing 
explained the implications of not going ahead with the proposals as they 
would impact on the young people arriving through the transition process and 
those who were using services outside the borough as they would not be able 
to receive services in Harrow near their families. He added that the EqIA had 
been vigorous and thorough, extensive consultations had taken place on the 
proposals and there were opportunities for mitigation measures to be put in 
place. 
 
RESOLVED:  That  
 
(1) a new service model, which incorporated a focus on internal services 

for those with the highest needs, provided in specialist environments 
and in which people with lower needs would be supported by 
alternative providers in the community, be agreed; 

 
Phase One: Reducing & Rationalising Buildings 

 
During Phase One, the Council would make operational changes to 
services to tackle the current over provision of spaces and offer best 

15



 

- 4 -  Cabinet - 18 July 2013 

value for money.  This would deliver required Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) savings during 2013/14 whilst moving towards the 
proposed service model.  

 
During this phase the Council would reduce the number of Council 
buildings used by in-house services from seven to four.  Capacity at 
Sancroft Hall would also be utilised as the Council moved to this 
approach.  Current vacancy levels in all five facilities would ensure that 
the Council could continue to offer high quality day opportunities as it 
transitioned to the new model.  

 
The Council would support service users to maintain friendship and 
peer groups, which consultation had demonstrated to be important to 
them.  Services provided would be at the current level, and of a similar 
type.  The Council would commence planning for comprehensive 
reviews of individual needs to take place in Phase Two. 

 
Phase Two:  Longer Term Changes to Delivery in NRCs 

 
During Phase Two we would implement changes to deliver the new 
day opportunities model.  This will include the development of 
specialised services to meet the needs of the most vulnerable in the 
community.  
 
Phase Two would involve changes over a period of time, including 
individual assessment and support planning to help people to identify 
the most appropriate service for their needs. 

 
(2) the transformation of individual services during Phase Two of 

implementation, as described below, be approved:  
 

A: Byron Neighbourhood Resource Centre -  A specialised service 
would be provided for people with a learning disability including 
challenging behaviour and Autism;  
 
B: Kenmore Neighbourhood Resource Centre - A specialised 
service would be provided for people with Complex Physical and/or 
Sensory Disabilities; 
 
C: Vaughan Neighbourhood Resource Centre - A specialised 
service would be provided for people with a learning disability and 
complex needs;  
 
D: Milmans Neighbourhood Resource Centre - A specialised service 
would be provided for older people including people with dementia; 

 
(3) the Council cease to use the following buildings for day opportunities 

for vulnerable people: 
 

Bentley Neighbourhood Resource Centre – the Council would 
consider alternative use or potential disposal of this property.  
 

16



 

Cabinet - 18 July 2013 - 5 - 

Gordon Avenue – Officers would negotiate with the owner of the 
property in relation to changing/ending use.  
 
Bedford House – The building would continue to be used as a 
permanent residential care home for ten people with a learning 
disability as approved by Cabinet in March 2013.  The Council would 
consider the future use of this building; 

 
(4) the Capital Programme be amended so that this resource could be 

made available for capital works which arise from this review, and the 
recent review of Residential Care services.  This would rename the 
capital project for "Bentley Day Centre Remodelling and 
Refurbishment" to "Remodelling and Refurbishment of Adult Services 
Residential Care and Day Care Services"; 

 
(5) the further development of a marketplace of community-based services 

for people with personal budgets delivered through the Council’s 
on-line market place – My Community ePurse – be noted; 

 
(6) the further development of integrated services, offering a greater range 

of health related services and therapies within the four designated 
Neighbourhood Centres and other community facilities, as part of the 
new responsive model of day opportunities, be noted. 

 
Reason for Decision:  The development of this new model of day 
opportunities for vulnerable people in Harrow would  
 

• deliver a model in which services were strategically aligned and 
financially affordable for the future; 

 

• ensure that the London Borough of Harrow was using its resources to 
support those most in need in safe and high quality services; 

 

• deliver revenue savings of £300,000 in 2013/14 and £300,000 in 
2014/15; 

 

• ensure that we use the buildings available to us in the most effective 
and efficient ways; 

 

• support greater integration of health and social care services in order to 
develop improved seamless, preventative services, for example, using 
centres for physiotherapy and health education; 

 

• respond to the changing demographic profile of people who use day 
opportunities, for example, by providing services that were able to 
respond to young people with severe autism and challenging behaviour 
support staff. 

 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  As set out in the report. 
 

17



 

- 6 -  Cabinet - 18 July 2013 

Conflict of Interest relating to the matter declared by Cabinet Member / 
Dispensation Granted:  None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

18 July 2013 

Subject: 

 

Transformation of Day Opportunities in 
Harrow 
 

Key Decision: Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Paul Najsarek, Corporate Director of 
Community, Health and Wellbeing 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Krishna James, Portfolio Holder 
for Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 
 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix A – January 2013 Cabinet Paper 
on Transformation of Day Services 
Appendix B – Consultation Summary Report 
Appendix C - Table of building/capital 
considerations 
Appendix D – Equalities Impact Assessment 
Appendix E – Map Showing Day Service 
Locations in Harrow 
 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 

 

This report follows a Cabinet decision in January 2013 to consult on a new model 
of day opportunities in Harrow.  It sets out the conclusions of this consultation and 
further work that has taken place. It makes recommendations for transforming day 
opportunities in Harrow.  
 
 

 
 

19



 

 

 
 

The report proposes a new model of services that focuses on supporting those with 
highest needs in the council’s high quality day services. This will ensure that we are 
able to support the most vulnerable, locally, allowing them to benefit from specialist 
care and support within the borough. Alongside this we will further develop 
personalisation and choice to provide a range of innovative support options in the 
community for people with personal budgets.  
 
 
The review includes all day opportunities used by the borough, including a 
particular focus on seven day centres provided by Harrow Council, and a long-term 
block funded day service at Sancroft Hall. Extensive consultation has taken place 
with service users, families, advocates and staff working in the services. 
Consultation was focused on what a potential service model would look like 
including a number of key aspects which were outlined in the January’s Cabinet 
paper.  
 
Supporting the most vulnerable people in the community is central to the work of 
Harrow council. The council will continue to ensure that people receive the care 
and support they need to be as independent as possible and to be treated with 
dignity and respect. Through this report we are seeking to ensure that we continue 
to safeguard the needs of vulnerable people by ensuring that services are as high 
quality, efficient, and as effective as possible. In addition services should represent 
value for money, sustainability, and be able to respond to both current and future 
needs.   
 
The recommendations in this report aim to deliver a modernised service that offers 
improved outcomes, delivers the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) savings 
of £600k over 2013/14 and 2014/15, whilst delivering the vision of enhancing our 
residents’ quality of life and offering excellent service.  
  

Recommendations:  
 
Cabinet is requested to agree a two phase approach to transforming day 
opportunities in Harrow which will facilitate the transition to a new service model. 
This model will offer specialist services to those with greatest needs, whilst building 
on personalisation and choice and developing a greater range of day opportunities 
in the community. 
 
Recommendation 1: Cabinet is requested to agree a new service model, 
which incorporates a focus on internal services for those with the highest 
needs, provided in specialist environments and in which people with lower 
needs will be supported by alternative providers in the community 
 
Phase One: Reducing & Rationalising Buildings 
 

During Phase One, we will make operational changes to services to tackle the 
current over provision of spaces and offer best value for money. This will deliver 
required MTFS savings during 2013/14 whilst moving towards the proposed service 
model.  
 
During this phase we will reduce the number of council’s buildings used by in-

20



 

 

house services from seven to four. Capacity at Sancroft Hall will also be utilised as 
we move to this approach. Current vacancy levels in all five facilities will ensure 
that we can continue to offer high quality day opportunities as we transition to the 
new model.  
 
We will support service users to maintain friendship and peer groups, which 
consultation has demonstrated to be important to them. Services provided will be at 
the current level, and of a similar type. We will commence planning for 
comprehensive reviews of individual needs to take place in Phase Two. 
 
Phase Two: Longer Term Changes to Delivery in NRCs 
 

During Phase Two we will implement changes to deliver the new day opportunities 
model. This will include the development of specialised services to meet the needs 
of the most vulnerable in the community.  
 
Phase two will involve changes over a period of time, including individual 
assessment and support planning to help people to identify the most appropriate 
service for their needs.  
 
 
Recommendation 2: Cabinet is requested to approve the transformation of 
individual services during Phase Two of implementation, as described below:  
 

A: Byron Neighbourhood Resource Centre -  A specialised service will be 
provided for people with a learning disability including challenging behaviour 
and Autism  
 

B: Kenmore Neighbourhood Resource Centre - A specialised service will be 
provided for people with Complex Physical and/or Sensory  Disabilities 
 

C: Vaughan Neighbourhood Resource Centre - A specialised service will be 
provided for people with a learning disability and complex needs.  
 

D: Milmans Neighbourhood Resource Centre - A specialised service will be 
provided for older people including people with dementia 

 
Recommendation 3: Cabinet is requested to approve that the council ceases 
to use the following buildings for day opportunities for vulnerable people:  
 

Bentley Neighbourhood Resource Centre – the council will consider 
alternative use or potential disposal of this property. (Officers are not asking 
for permission to dispose of this property in this recommendation – this 
would require a separate decision by cabinet) 
 

Gordon Avenue – Officers would negotiate with the owner of the property in 
relation to changing/ending use.  
 

Bedford House – The building will continue to be used as a permanent 
residential care home for ten people with a learning disability as approved by 
Cabinet in March 2013. The council will consider the future use of this building. 
(Officers are not asking for permission to dispose of this property in this 
recommendation – this would require a separate decision by cabinet) 

 
Recommendation 4: Cabinet is requested to amend the capital programme so 
that this resource can be made available for capital works which arise from 
this review, and the recent review of Residential Care services. This would 

21



 

 

rename the capital project for "Bentley Day Centre Remodelling and 
Refurbishment" to "Remodelling and Refurbishment of Adult Services 
Residential Care and Day Care Services". 
 
Cabinet are asked to note the following: 
      

1. The further development of a marketplace of community-based services for 
people with personal budgets delivered through the council’s on-line market 
place – My Community ePurse. 

2. The further development of integrated services, offering a greater range of 
health related services and therapies within the four designated Neighbourhood 
centres and other community facilities as part of the new responsive model of 
day opportunities. 

 

 

Reason for recommendations 
 
The development of this new model of day opportunities for vulnerable people in 
Harrow will: 

• Deliver a model in which services are strategically aligned and financially 
affordable for the future 

• Ensure that the London Borough of Harrow is using its resources to support 
those most in need in safe and high quality services 

• Deliver revenue savings of £300k in 2013/14 and £300k in 2014/15 

• Ensure that we use the buildings available to us in the most effective and 
efficient ways 

• Support greater integration of health and social care services in order to 
develop improved seamless, preventative services e.g. using centres for 
physiotherapy and health education 

• Respond to the changing demographic profile of people who use day 
opportunities e.g. by providing services that are able to respond to young 
people with severe autism and challenging behaviour 

• Support staff delivering services and avoid staff redundancies where 
possible 

 

Implications of recommendations 
 
The report outlines detailed information about the implications of the changes set 
out in recommendations. These are summarised in brief in this section. 
 
Equality considerations / mitigations 
Section 5.7 of this report considers equality impacts of the recommendations made, 
both positive and negative, and outlines potential mitigations. Amongst the key 
considerations are: 

• A fear or perception that current day service provision may be partially or 
fully withdrawn. To mitigate all service users with an assessed need for 
support will continue to access a service to meet their needs 

• A loss of friendships, routines and support from staff if service users have to 
move to an alternative service. To mitigate this potential impact Phase One 
of the recommended proposals would ensure service users are moved 
together in groups, appropriate support is provided in implementation, and 
staff would move to alternative services where vacancies exist  

• Currently in-house day service activities do not match all the needs of young 

22



 

 

people coming through transition who have expressed a need for activities 
that will help with gaining employment.  Harrow as pioneers of 
Personalisation have piloted and are now in the implementation phase of a 
new solution called My Community ePurse which will dramatically improve 
accessibility to personal budgets and lead to greater choice of services and 
activities for service users 

 
Capital considerations 
Section 5.2 of this report outlines capital considerations of implementing the 
recommendations. The following are key points: 

• Approval to implement recommendations would create an opportunity for 
potential disposals of Bentley Day Centre and Gordon Avenue Day Centre. 
There is potential for further consideration of the long-term use of Bedford 
House 

• Three of the buildings that we propose to use in the recommendations are 
PFI funded projects. These buildings are subject to long-term commercial 
arrangements and require negotiation and agreement prior to any change of 
use  

• Any capital works to buildings that are retained in the new service model 
would require Portfolio Holder, Corporate Director and Capital Forum 
approval based on a clear business case 

• A gym facility would need to be provided within Kenmore to replace the one 
that is currently in Bentley 

• A number of voluntary sector groups use the buildings in this review. Where 
changes would impact upon these, Officers will work with groups to 
understand their requirements and to support them to identify alternative 
premises  

 
Staff implications 
Section 5.3 of the report considers impacts on staff working in the services 
affected. Key points are: 

• There are currently 86 people working within the internal services that are 
the focus of this report. A number of these staff work part-time hours, such 
that in total there are 62.1 full time equivalent staff in the service  

• The council currently uses a number of agency staff in the delivery of these 
services alongside permanent full and part-time staff 

• Based on recommendations in the report there are currently 11 full time 
equivalent staff that would be at risk 

• The council is committed to avoiding redundancies through redeployment 
where possible. An aspect of the implementation of recommendations would 
be formal consultation with staff and Unions 

 

23



 

 

Section 2  
 
2.1 Introduction 
Harrow Council is committed to supporting the most vulnerable people in the 
community as one of our key priorities. This report is just one part of the 
modernisation of Adult Social Care services in the Borough. This includes 
refocusing in-house residential services for people with learning disabilities 
and modernising mental health day opportunities.   
 
Through this report, and implementation of the proposed recommendations, 
we aim to deliver efficient and effective services that are sustainable, provide 
excellent support and increase choice for vulnerable adults. The council’s 
strategic review of day opportunities will support the achievement of £300k in 
2013/14 and £300k in 2014/15 as set out in the council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS).  
 
In January 2013 Cabinet approved a report in relation to a review of day 
opportunities in Harrow.  Following this report the council undertook detailed 
consultation with service users, carer’s, external day service providers, staff, 
Unions and the voluntary sector. Cabinet approved engagement with partners 
to develop a model of day opportunities focused on ensuring adults have the 
personalised support that will help them to achieve positive outcomes and 
fulfilled lives.  
 
Cabinet approved a number of key aspects of a proposed model for 
consultation, in which: 
 

1. We identify whether there are opportunities to integrate with the health 
service to develop an offer which helps people to develop their own 
skills in managing their long term conditions or disabilities.   

2. The services directly provided by the council focus on supporting those 
with the highest needs for example those with complex learning 
disabilities and people with advanced dementia 

3. We rationalise the number of building based council run day 
opportunities in order to deliver efficiencies and reduce the current 
over-capacity of services 

4. We explore options to continue to support people with lower level 
needs, potentially through models such as open access services, or 
through working with the voluntary sector in new ways  

5. We encourage community engagement in the delivery of services to 
vulnerable adults. In particular increasing opportunities for 
volunteering, peer support and supported employment 

6. We develop the market of day opportunities to ensure people have a 
choice of services 

 
We have now completed a 12-week statutory consultation on day care. In 
total we talked face to face with 477 people and we received 164 completed 
questionnaires. A breakdown of consultees is presented below: 
 
 
 
 

24



 

 

Consultation participants No. 

Consultation meetings:   Seven Harrow Council provided day service users 183 

Consultation meetings:   Sancroft, Welldon and Shaw Trust 60 

Consultation meetings:   Carers 63 

Consultation meetings:   Tanglewood, sheltered accommodation, special schools  93 

Consultation meetings:   Staff, union and day service providers 78 

Questionnaire respondents 164 

Additional written submissions and telephone feedback 8 

Total Number of consultation participants 649 

 
This report considers the responses to the consultation and potential impacts 
on vulnerable people.  A summary of responses is found in Section 3 of this 
report. 
 
The options set out in this report have been developed following consultation 
and engagement with service users, their families, advocates, staff working in 
the internal day opportunities under review and external day service 
providers.  The feedback received during consultation has contributed to the 
final recommendations set out in the report.  
 
Officers have sought to set out all relevant information in this report in order to 
enable Cabinet to make a fully informed decision, and to be compliant in all 
areas of procedure and legislation/duties. In doing so we have learnt from 
previous reports, including a recent report on Residential Care services which 
was subject to a Call-In hearing that unanimously identified that the process 
had been thorough and robust. As a result of this additional scrutiny we have 
improved this report with the addition of “Implications of Recommendations” to 
Section 1, we have sought to ensure that recommendations, including capital 
considerations, are very clearly articulated and Legal Implications are clear 
both in terms of legal duties and processes for making a decision.  
 
It is relevant to note that the council is currently conducting a Special Needs 
Transport service review. This is looking at transport, for a range of vulnerable 
groups including users of day services.  The main aims of the review are to 
introduce more independent travel and increase the use of personal 
budgets. The group working on this project includes representation from adult 
services and has been kept fully informed of progress with this review.   
 

 
2.2 Services in the Review 
The January Cabinet Paper considered the services in the review in detail. 
This report is attached at Appendix A.  
 
In summary: 

• The council currently spends £6.180m per year on supporting 626 
people to attend a range of day opportunities provided in both internal 
and externally provided settings  

• Services support people who are older and frail, have a learning 
disability or who have a physical or sensory disability 

• Services are provided through a mix of internal and external services. 
47% of people use internal services, 34% use block contracted 
services and 19% use spot purchased services or use a personal 
budget 

25



 

 

 
Internal Services: 

• Harrow Council directly provides seven day services including the three 
PFI neighbourhood resource centres - the current net cost of these 
services is £4.134m inclusive of transport, internal overheads and 
borrowing costs 

• The council provided services are Bentley, Milmans, Byron, Vaughan, 
Kenmore, Gordon Avenue and Bedford House  

 
External Services: 

• The council currently uses a wide range of externally provided services 
that are used by around 400 people, costing £2.046m (including 
Sancroft Hall) 

• A long-term block contract provides the equivalent of 250 days of day 
care at Sancroft Hall for £491,463. Residential care and respite care 
are also provided at the service 

• A range of other day services are purchased through personal budgets  
 

2.3 Why a change is needed 
The paper presented in January contained a detailed analysis of the case for 
changing services. This included evidence of a number of different drivers for 
change. Below is a summarised version of key messages: 

 
Current use of services: 
During a Continuous Improvement Exercise in 2012 we identified that the 
number of people using some of the internal day opportunities is significantly 
below capacity. In particular, Milmans and Bentley are supporting around 40% 
of the people that they have capacity for. As services continue to need similar 
levels of staffing to run, this makes them less efficient.   
 
In April 2012 a new Fairer Contributions Policy introduced charging for day 
care. This has led to a reduction in service user attendance. A number of 
service users stopped attending rather than pay towards the cost of the 
service. All who stopped were subsequently contacted to ensure that there 
were no safeguarding issues as a result of non attendance. 

 
Analysis of those attending the internal day services highlighted that young 
people with disabilities are not accessing them. This appears to be due to a 
range of factors – for example that they are choosing to use their personal 
budgets for other activities;  their needs cannot be successfully met and they 
are attending specialist services; or families are keen for young people to 
maximise their learning potential at a service with an educational focus.   
 
Information about the current use of services points clearly to a need to 
reduce the overall capacity of services we provide, and to ensure they 
are able to meet the needs of people with complex needs and young 
people.  
 
 
 
 
 

26



 

 

Finance & Efficiency: 
The January Cabinet Paper considered the financial and efficiency aspects of 
current services in the review in detail. This report is attached at Appendix A.  
 
Financial benchmarking data indicates the council spends relatively more on 
day opportunities for those with complex needs (learning and physically 
disabled service users) than when compared with the London average1.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Further analysis demonstrates that this is caused by a high number of people 
using services, and the higher than average costs of supporting people aged 
below 65. Harrow is in the top quartile in terms of numbers of people 
accessing services.  
 
The cost per service user with learning and physical disabilities of using day 
services is in the top half. The relatively higher cost per person reflects both 
the complexity of support needed by many people with disabilities and the fact 
that a high proportion of service users attend the internal services for five 
days each week.  
 
These averages can be mis-leading however, services meet a variety of 
needs and so they do not have standard costs. For example the cost of 
providing external support to people with learning disabilities varies from £17 
to £240 per day.   
 
As Harrow moves towards every eligible user having a personal budget the 
cost of services needs to be seen in terms of affordability for service users 
rather than for the council as a whole. In the future individuals will be given a 
financial allocation from which they need to purchase services to meet their 
assessed needs.  
 
In this context it becomes clear that the council needs to ensure the provision 
of affordable and high quality services, whether directly provided or in the 
market place. This has very important potential implications for the provision 
of internal services as they will no longer have a guarantee that people will 
choose to use them.  
 
The conclusion from analysis is that in the future only services that are cost 
effective and able to meet people’s needs within their personal budget 
entitlement will be sustainable. Internal services will inevitably have high 
fixed costs due to their specialist facilities and therefore will be more 
sustainable if they focus support to people with higher needs requiring 
complex support packages.  
 

                                            
1
 PSSEX 2011/12 Social Care Benchmarking Tool 

Average Gross Exp 
per Day of Care 

Harrow London 
Average 

Older People £74 £144 

Learning Disabled £467 £354 

Physically Disabled £278 £229 

27



 

 

The PFI-NRCs (Vaughan, Byron & Kenmore) are best placed to support 
people with the most complex needs efficiently as they were designed 
for this purpose.  
 
Demography: 
Demographic projections suggest an increasing number of people are likely to 
need services in the future, with increasingly complex needs.  
 
Available data indicates increasing numbers of older people with dementia 
and people with complex disabilities who will require specialist support to 
maintain their independence and wellbeing.   
 
Advances in medical treatment mean more young people with very complex 
needs are surviving into adulthood; services need to be available to support 
them. 
 
Demographic information indicates that we will need more capacity in 
services for older people, particularly those with dementia, and for 
people with complex needs in the future. 

 
Statutory and Policy Framework: 
The council has a statutory duty to provide facilities for occupational, social, 
cultural and recreational activities to those who are assessed as eligible. 
 
The personalisation agenda continues to provide the driving strategic force for 
adult social care in England. A key role of adult services is to ensure that 
people are supported to be as independent as possible.  
 
Guidance points to the need for high quality and personalised services. Day 
opportunities in the future will need to be very different from services provided 
in the past. There is an expectation they will be user led, through personal 
budgets rather than block contracts and that they will be flexible and able to 
meet individual’s aspirations.  
 
As a result of Personalisation the council needs to ensure the provision of 
affordable and high quality services, whether directly provided or in the market 
place. In addition, the Government's 2012 draft Care and Support Bill 
proposes placing a duty on councils to ensure service users can access a 
diverse market of providers.  
 
The introduction of Personal Budgets has led to several delivery challenges 
including accessibility and ensuring real choice and control. Harrow as 
pioneers of Personalisation have piloted and are now in the implementation 
phase of a new solution called My Community ePurse. This will dramatically 
improve accessibility of personal budgets and lead to greater choice of 
services and activities for service users.   
 
Through My Community ePurse service users will be able to receive funding 
and purchase services all in one place, without the need to setup a separate 
bank account or keep paper records.  Harrow will be able to provide each 
service user or their representative with an electronic purse, which will allow 
them to choose and purchase services through Harrow’s Online Market Place.  

28



 

 

Harrow is the first Local Authority in the country to be able to offer this 
solution. 
 
Utilising mobile technology the Personalisation Teams will be able to assist 
anyone without access to the Internet. This will support service users and 
their families through the entire process to develop and maintain their own 
online support plan to meet their identified outcomes.   
 
Harrow Council is working closely with the voluntary sector and other 
organisations to develop the local marketplace to be able to offer more 
services and activities through My Community ePurse.  We have been greatly 
encouraged by their interest in developing this into a real Community Hub. 
 
Since the January Cabinet report was written the Government’s review into 
failings at Winterbourne View has been published. The review into shocking 
failures of care to people with challenging behaviour found that they have too 
often received poor quality and inappropriate care. The report found that 
many people are admitted to hospital unnecessarily and once in hospital they 
stay too long.   

 
Some of the key findings are relevant to this review. These include: 

• People have a right to be offered the support and care they need in a 
community-based setting, as near as possible to family and other 
connections 

• Commissioners must design, commission and provide services which 
give people the support they need, in line with well established best 
practice 

 
These findings further suggest a need for the council to ensure the 
provision of safe, high quality, local services to ensure those with the 
highest and most complex needs are able to receive the support they 
need in Harrow.  
 
Integrating Health and Social Care: 
The number of people in England who have health problems requiring both 
health and social care is increasing. For example, in the next 20 years, the 
percentage of people over 85 will double. This means there are likely to be 
more people with ‘complex health needs’ (more than one health problem) who 
require a combination of health and social care services. These people are 
likely to require a range of services to maintain their independence including 
day opportunities.  
 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 sets out specific obligations for the 
health system and its relationship with care and support services. This gives a 
duty to NHS England, Clinical Commissioning Groups, Monitor and Health 
and Wellbeing Boards to make it easier for health and social care services to 
work together to deliver integrated support systems to meet local needs.  
 
Proposed Legislation: 
The Government has proposed a Care Bill which is currently being considered 
by the House of Lords. This will reform the social care system and will have a 
range of implications for councils, notably a number of additional duties and 
requirements. It is expected that impacts will start from 2015 onwards.  

29



 

 

 
Of particular relevance to this paper is consideration of the impacts of Dilnot 
proposals. These will lead to a cap on individual contributions to care, which 
will ultimately mean that the council funds eligible care for all in the 
community, rather than just those who cannot afford it. This will lead to a 
substantial increase in the number of people supported by the council as at 
present “self-funders” often do not become known to us. There is potential 
that this will identify un-met needs in the community and could lead to an 
increase in the numbers of people needing to access day opportunities in the 
future.  
 
In addition the care cap there will be extra duties on local authorities to 
provide information and advice, ensure provision of preventive services, and 
to provide services to carers. These all have potential to create additional 
pressures on adult social care.  

 

Section 3:  Section 3:  Section 3:  Section 3:  Consultation & AnalysisConsultation & AnalysisConsultation & AnalysisConsultation & Analysis    
This section of the report provides information on capacity and service use 
within the current seven day services and the external contract at Sancroft for 
day care. Sancroft, although not council-owned or provided, is included here 
alongside internal services, as unlike personal budget funded services, the 
council pays for services directly and has a role in defining the type of service 
that is provided. The second part of this section provides analysis of the 
formal consultation on day opportunities.  

 
3.1 Data Analysis 

 
3.1.1 Internal day services 
In considering the future model of day opportunities it is necessary to assess 
capacity and current regular up-take of these services. The council has a duty 
to meet assessed needs, day opportunities are one of the options that people 
are able to choose to meet their needs. The challenge to the council is to 
ensure that internal services are able to respond to current and future demand 
for services including the ability to respond to local demographic changes. 
 
Table 1 below shows the capacity, planned and actual service use in each of 
the council provided day centres during the sample month of February 2013. 
This reflects actual attendance for planned day care and raises issues of take 
up of places allocated.  

30



 

 

Table 1 - Actual, planned and capacity statistics February 20132 
 

Day Service 
Capacity 
per day 

Capacity 
(i.e. no. of 
day places 
available 

each week) 

Current 
planned 

day 
places* 

(i.e.: no of day 
places 

allocated each 
week) 

Utilisation 
(planned) 

Average 
actual 

places taken 
up each 

week 

 
Utilisation 

(Actual) 
 

Byron NRC 40 200 150 75% 122 61% 

Vaughan NRC 30 150 151 100% 131 87% 

Kenmore NRC 30 150 137 91% 99 66% 

Gordon Avenue 
Day Service 

9 45 30 67% 29 64% 

Bentley NRC 64 320 105 33% 86 27% 

Bedford House 
Day Service 

9 45 41 91% 41 91% 

Milmans Day 
Centre 

50 250 124 49% 79 31% 

Sancroft Day 
Centre 

50 250 153 61% 121 48% 

 

Some of the day centres show a significant percentage of planned use which 
does not take place, in Milmans for example only 63% actually attended. As 
many of the service users are frail, sporadic attendance may be due to 
periods of ill health.  
 
The percentage of service take up compared to capacity identifies significant 
issues: 

• Only Bedford House and Vaughan are operating at more than 85% of 
capacity actually being taken up, which is a figure we would consider 
an acceptable level; 

• In Bentley day centre planned attendance is only 33% and actual 
attendance only 27% of capacity; 

• The five remaining centres are showing actual attendance between 
31% and 66% of capacity. 

 
The lack of take up may be caused by a number of factors. The January 
Cabinet report highlighted the impact on uptake of day care following the 
introduction of the Fairer Charging Policy in 2012.  This policy has meant 
people who can afford to are expected to make a contribution towards the 
cost of their services. This has led to some people to decide they no longer 
wish to attend. In addition, it may in part be due to people spending their 
personal budget in a different way, or that activities are not attractive to 
potential service users. Work continues to increase the range of services on 
offer to attract service users (e.g. a Reablement programme has been 
introduced at Bentley NRC which has proved very popular). Services have 
also made attempts to market services to people in other boroughs.   
 
The difference between capacity and planned service take up provides a clear 
indication of the level of change needed.  

 

                                            
2
 Actual attendance figures are based on the average over the month of February 2013 

31



 

 

3.1.2 External Day Centre Contract 
The council currently spends £491,463 a year on a contract for day care for 
older people at Sancroft Hall. This is part of a 25 year PFI project, which 
includes residential provision for older people. The PFI contract still has 12 
years to run (ends 2024).  
 
Table 2 below highlights an issue in that the number of people attending this 
service range between 38.2% and 54.7% as a percentage of capacity. 
Officers are working with the provider to maximise the opportunities at the 
centre.  
 
Identifying how Sancroft will become part of the future service model, and how 
issues of take up will be tackled, represents a key challenge for the review. 
 

Table 2 - Actual attendance and capacity during February 2013 
 

February 2013 
Actual attendance 

- February 2013 

Capacity 
(25 block contract 

places) 

Attendance as a % 
of capacity 

Anjali – Asian older 
people 

260 
525 

(21 days x 25 places) 
49.5% 

Byron – dementia 
service 

164 
300 

(12 days x 25 places) 
54.7% 

Maya – Asian older 
people 

86 
225 

(9 days x 25 places) 
38.2% 

As with internal services Sancroft staff have indicated that the numbers of 
people attending have fallen since the Fairer Charging Policy has been 
introduced.  
 
3.1.3 Conclusion: 
A clear conclusion from these figures is there is a need to reduce the 
number of units available. The current level of service take up causes 
services to be inefficient and increases the cost of supporting each service 
user.  
 
Despite the low level of take up, services continue to be staffed at similar 
levels to their full capacity. This is because safety must be maintained and 
building need to adequately staffed.  
 

3.2 Consultation Process 
 
3.2.1 About the Consultation  
The Council has carried out statutory consultation over a twelve-week period 
from February 2013 to May 2013. This review focuses on the future shape of 
day opportunities in Harrow and specifically the seven services directly 
provided by the London Borough of Harrow. The services under review are:  
 

• Byron Neighbourhood Resource Centre (NRC) for people with learning 
disabilities  

• Kenmore NRC for people with learning disabilities  

• Vaughan NRC for people with learning disabilities  

• Gordon Avenue Day Centre for people with learning disabilities  

• Bedford House Day Centre for people with learning disabilities. 

• Milmans NRC for older people 

32



 

 

• Bentley Day Centre for disabled people 
 
In addition the service provided under contract by The Freemantle Trust at 
Sancroft Hall is operating under capacity and is also being considered. This 
service is provided to older people and has a particular focus on supporting 
Asian elders.  
 
There is a wider market place of day opportunities in Harrow. These provide 
services to people who are self-funders and people who have a personal 
budget and choose to purchase them. These services are not commissioned 
by the council and Cabinet do not have authority to change the way they 
deliver. However, we have engaged with these services, and those that use 
them, and identified the role we see them having in the future within 
recommendations. See Section 3.2.7 in relation to external provider 
consultation.  
 
3.2.2 Who was consulted? 
We have learnt lessons from previous consultation exercises and ensured the 
following aspects of a robust consultation: 
 

• Service users – to ensure users were effectively engaged we posted a 
personal copy of the easy read questionnaire to every service user 
from each of the NRCs and held more than 20 events; 

• Carers – we worked closely with our Lead Officer for Carers and with 
Harrow Carers to encourage them to give us their views on the 
proposed changes to services; 

• Voluntary Sector Organisations – we invited local organisations to a 
separate consultation event, and wrote to them inviting them to submit 
a response to consultation; 

• Councillors – we wrote to all Ward Councillors with a service in their 
Ward and invited them to the consultation events; 

• Advocates – we invited advocacy groups to all events, invited 
advocacy organisations to respond formally to consultation, and 
identified people who have individual advocates through working with 
day centre staff.  

 

The council went to great lengths to ensure the consultation was thorough 
and gave people the opportunity to make their views known. The consultation 
was delivered in accordance with the Corporate Consultation Standards, 
which are focused on ensuring it is accessible and involves the communities 
affected by the proposals.  
 
Consultation sessions were well attended and engaged service users in 
discussions about options. The support of family members, advocates and in 
some cases key workers assisted with this process.  
 

In total we talked face to face with 477 people. In addition we received 164 
completed questionnaires. A breakdown of consultees is presented below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



 

 

Consultation participants No. % 

Consultation meetings - day service user   

Adults with learning disabilities (Bedford House Day Service, 
Byron NRC, Gordon Avenue Day Service, Kenmore NRC, 
Vaughan NRC) 

95 14.5 

Adults with physical disabilities (Bentley Day Service) 54 8 

Older people (Milmans NRC) 34 5 

Sancroft (Contracted Day Service for older people) 39 6 

Welldon Activity Group 18 3 

Shaw Trust (Independently provided day service for adults with 
learning disabilities) 

3 0.5 

Sub total 243 37 

Consultation meetings - other   

Carers (of users of Harrow Council provided day services) 63 9.8 

Tanglewood (A weekly club for people with learning disabilities, 
some members may use a day service) 

50 8 

Young people in transition (Shaftesbury High School and 
Kingsley High School) 

26 4 

Sheltered accommodation residents (older people) 17 2.5 

Members of staff (attended the seven Harrow Council Day 
Service staff consultation meetings) 

60 9 

Unions (One union member attending three different Harrow 
Council Day Service staff consultation meetings)  

1 0.2 

Day Service providers (17 representatives from 14 provider orgs) 17 2.5 

Sub total 234 36 

Questionnaire respondents 164 25 

Additional written submissions and telephone feedback 8 2 

 
There were three written submissions from voluntary sector organisations and 
one from the NHS Harrow Clinical Commissioning Group. We received two 
letters from carers, one carer phone call and an email from the Bentley Day 
Service Users Committee. 
 
In summary: 
 

• Of the total 164 questionnaires completed and returned: 107 (65%) were 
completed by service users; 21 (13%) by carers; 17 (10%) by family 
members (who were in most cases also carers); and 10 (6%) by pupils 
from special schools. Other respondents included volunteers and 
advocates; 

• Of the 32 consultation meetings, 22 were for users and carers. Three of 
these meetings were focussed specifically on Gujarati, Punjabi and Hindi 
speaking users and carers, facilitated by Harrow Council staff, whilst 
Gujarati speaking staff were available at the other events. We also 
translated the questionnaire, on request, to Gujarati. One of these 22 
meetings took place at Harrow Civic Centre in the evening to enable 
people who could not attend a meeting during the day to engage in the 
consultation process. Additionally, there were a total of eight meetings with 
day centre staff whose views inform the consultation. There were also two 
meetings with young people in transition attending sixth form of  special 
schools and a meeting with current and potential day opportunity 
providers; 

34



 

 

• Events were publicised at centres, the council’s website and via local 
voluntary sector organisations; 

• Voluntary sector organisations were involved in the design of the easy 
read questionnaire and the face-to-face meetings; 

• We posted easy read questionnaires to every person who uses the Harrow 
provided day services. In addition, to making these available at every 
consultation event  and via voluntary sector organisations; 

• In addition to the easy read questionnaire, opportunities to respond were 
offered via face-to-face consultation meetings; a dedicated email address; 
and opportunities to speak to staff within the centres. 

 
Unions and Ward councillors were invited to attend meetings. A Union 
member was present at three of the eight staff meetings. Voluntary sector 
organisations (Harrow MENCAP, Harrow Age UK, Harrow Association of 
Disabled People, and Harrow Carers) were invited to be members of a 
Consultation Project Group, together with Council officers.   
 
In addition, key stakeholders, including advocacy groups, voluntary sector 
organisations and providers, were encouraged to respond formally in writing, 
via letter or email using a dedicated consultation email address, or by phoning 
officers coordinating the consultation. 
 
Participating voluntary organisations encouraged users and carers to take 
part in consultation, through displaying the information at their venues, and 
including this information in their regular newsletters. Age UK and Harrow 
Mencap were sent copies of the questionnaires, which they helped service 
users to complete. 
 
We have also received consultation responses from Harrow Clinical 
Commissioning Group, Harrow Association of Disabled People (HAD), Age 
(UK) Harrow and Harrow Mencap. These can be found in the consultation 
document in Appendix B of this report. 
 
A full report of the consultation results is attached at Appendix B. This report 
contains a detailed summary of all consultation activity and responses.  For 
the purposes of this report we have focussed on the following aspects of the 
consultation: 
 

• The proposed future model for day opportunities in Harrow; 

• The reduction in the number of buildings in use; and 

• The aspects of day opportunities that are important to people. 
 
A number of service users, carers and providers commented that they 
enjoyed their consultation event and found it informative and supportive. 
People also stated they had an opportunity to have their say and understood 
more about the options and reasons for the review of day services in Harrow.  
 

3.3 Feedback Relating to Key Aspects of Consultation 
 
This section of the report focuses on key areas of discussion in the 
consultation. There is a particular focus on areas relating to the future model 
of day opportunities in the borough.  
 

35



 

 

More detailed analysis of the feedback to the consultation is included in the 
Consultation report in Appendix B. 
 
3.3.1 Proposed future model for day opportunities in Harrow  
Questions 3, 4, 5, 13, 15 and 16 of the consultation questionnaire:  
 
The consultation focussed on two service options: one in which the council 
would focus more on supporting those with more complex needs, for 
example people with advanced dementia or people with severe autism and 
behaviour described as challenging. This proposed model also suggested 
people with lower level needs could be supported to access a wide range of 
services/day opportunities with their personal budgets.  
 
Day opportunities may not necessarily be in a building and may include 
places that the general public use, such as libraries and leisure services.  The 
central focus was on providing more choice and control to service users.  
 
The second model was for the NRCs to be focussed in a different way in 
which lots of different people could access them as community hubs.  
 
What people told us during the consultation  
Service users and carers generally described the centres as a lifeline, 
enabling users to continue living in their own homes, and enabling carers to 
continue providing the necessary support.  
 
When asked about whether a model focussed on moving people to personal 
budgets and the development of a wider range of day facilities the majority 
(100 people/61%) of people said the model might meet their needs but they 
would need some support.  
 
Respondents were asked what support would be needed if the proposed 
model was chosen. People identified the following areas of support: 
 

• To understand the implications of the model for each service user, one 
respondent stated, ‘to understand how the change will effect me’; 

• Support with financial and administrative management of a personal 
budget; 

• Information and advice about the availability and quality of 
new/alternative day services; and 

• The availability of advocacy support to make informed decisions. 
 
Many other respondents did not answer the question directly but stated they 
wanted to continue to receive a good day service, preferably without a change 
to current provision. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 

 

 
 
 
People were asked about whether in future NRCs should focus on providing 
day opportunities to people with a higher level of need (e.g. people with 
advanced dementia or people with a severe learning disability whose 
behaviour is described as challenging) and people with a lower level of need 
could purchase their support in the community via their personal budget.  
 
In total 64 people (39%) responded to this question. There were almost equal 
numbers of people agreeing to or disagreeing with the proposed model.  This 
response was anticipated and understandable. Many people would identify 
themselves as someone who either has a higher level of need so may 
experience a lesser change, or as someone who has a lower level of need 
and may experience more change if the NRCs were refocused. People 
identified a range of concerns about accessing the community via a personal 
budget. These included: 
 

• People not wanting any change to their current service; 

• A feeling that people with a lower level of need were considered to be 
less important; 

• People are concerned about losing touch with friends or possible 
loneliness of accessing community facilities without a familiar group.  

 
In the consultation events there was active discussion on the focus of this 
potential future model. At these events service users, carers and staff 
indicated support for a change in focus for the NRCs to meeting the needs of 
those with a higher level or complex needs. People highlighted the need for 
further development of activities in the community and more information on 
the impact for individual service users. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Question 15 of the consultation questionnaire focused on service users who 
travel outside of the borough in order to access services. Sometimes service 
users access out of borough services to meet a particularly complex need.  
 
The majority of respondents agreed that encouraging people to access 
services locally would be a good idea. Other comments included: 
 

• The need for specialist autism services in Harrow; 

• People felt that even if they have a higher level of need they should be 
able to have their needs met in Harrow; 

37



 

 

• Some people said they had made friendships in the services they 
attend and would want to maintain those friendships; 

• One respondent stated that people with complex needs should be able 
to access the community like anyone else and not spend all their time 
in a building.   

 
Question 16 of the consultation questionnaire asked for views about day 
centres being used in a different way. This would include mixed hubs for 
people with a range of needs rather than services specialising in meeting the 
needs of people with a high level or complex needs. We had a mixed 
response to the option with some respondents agreeing that as long as the 
environment was appropriate a mixed ‘hub’ may work well. There were, 
however, concerns raised that people with behaviour described as 
challenging or people who are very confused may need specialist support in 
services specifically focused on meeting these needs.  
 
Just under four out of ten respondents (39%), either strongly agreed or 
agreed with the proposed model that Harrow Council day centres could be 
used by lots of different people in the community. A further third (34%) 
strongly disagreed or disagreed whilst the remaining 27% said they did not 
know or did not provide an answer. 
 
Additional comments included: 
 

• This model may not suit people with very complex needs who may 
require specialist support and staffing; 

• Staff would need to be sufficiently trained to work with a broader range 
of needs; 

• The model may provide opportunities  for greater integration; 

• Any potential safety issues would need to be mitigated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our response to what people told us 
The feedback suggested those who had reservations about the model 
believed it would mean a cessation of the day service for them and that they 
will be left isolated. It is recognised that any change can cause anxiety for 
people. Where anxieties were raised at consultation sessions staff offered 
reassurance people would not lose the support they needed as they had 
been assessed as needing support; however services may look different 
and be provided in a different way.  
 
Staff at consultation sessions confirmed that if changes do take place they 
would be well managed, may involve a period of transition and would be 

38



 

 

delivered in a person-centred way. Opportunities would be provided to enable 
service users and carers to visit centres in advance if an individual was 
going to attend a different location. Additionally, this may help to address 
possible concerns where individuals may not have the capacity to consider 
changes they have not yet experienced.  
 
Discussion took place in consultation sessions about implementation of any 
proposed change. Service users and carers said changes had to be well 
planned with individual needs of service users continuing to be met. Many 
asked for peers within centres and staff to transfer together if changes 
were being made.  
 
The council needs to make the best use of the resources available to it, and to 
ensure those with the highest needs are safeguarded from harm and abuse. 
In a situation with reducing budgets and increasing needs, the council must 
prioritise the use of specially designed buildings.  
 
However, it is essential people with lower needs are supported to access 
services as well, and have a choice of high quality, safe activities in the 
local area. All changes must be as a result of individual needs assessment 
and person centred support planning. The council will need to ensure people 
are as effectively safeguarded when using external services as they are 
when using those provided by the council. Through our quality assurance, 
safeguarding and complaints processes, Harrow is proactive and committed 
to ensuring everyone who uses social care services is protected from harm 
and abuse.  
 
At present 43 (7%) service users are currently accessing day opportunities 
outside of the Borough. Many people access these services to meet a high 
level of need that requires a particular specialist service provision. We are 
proposing to transform the NRCs to meet the needs of people with a higher 
level of need and therefore reducing the need for people to travel outside of 
the borough to have their needs met. We recognise people will have 
friendships they would want to maintain and if a decision is made to transform 
services in Harrow any changes to people’s services will be done in a person-
centred way that will identify where people will need support to maintain 
existing social networks.  
 
Whilst the idea of a mixed model/hub was favoured by some people, this is 
likely to be a more expensive option, offering a wider range of services than at 
present, whilst facing substantial funding constraints. Co-locating some 
services would be difficult because of the nature of complex needs, meaning 
that the council is likely to need to provide services in a number of buildings. 
We have not proposed a mixed model/hub in the final recommendations to 
Cabinet. See Section 4.1 on the options considered.   
 
3.3.2 Day Centre Buildings 
Questions 13 and 14 the consultation questionnaire: 
 
In consultation we made people aware we are not utilising the day service 
buildings effectively and many are operating without being used to capacity. 
We asked people’s views on closing some of the centres to enable the council 
to use resources more effectively.  

39



 

 

 
What people told us during the consultation  
There were 40 (24%) comments on this question; the majority of people did 
not agree that we should close some buildings in order to maximise the 
efficiency of resources fearing the building they currently use might close. 
They indicated in their view there is no suitable alternative to meet their 
needs, service users need familiarity, and a change in location may not suit 
some people.   
 
However, during consultation sessions it was evident that people were not 
familiar with other day centres as they had not visited them. This may have 
influenced in part their reluctance to consider the efficiency argument of 
utilising buildings more effectively.  Some respondents indicated that buildings 
should be used fully, and said if centres and transport were more affordable 
greater numbers of people would attend.  
 
A number of voluntary organisations and groups, including the Harrow Asian 
Deaf Club use the day centres for meetings and activities. These impacts will 
need to be considered if there is any reduction in the number of day centre 
buildings.   
 
Other comments from consultation sessions held at each centre included: 
 

• The importance of planning any building closure was emphasised 
including helping service users to maintain existing relationships with 
other service users and staff; 

• Family carers of service users at Bedford House Day Centre stated 
that the centre provided a sense of community for users and carers 
alike, providing a safe environment; 

• Some service users at Bentley said that they would not mind going to a 
different building if it had the appropriate equipment and trained staff; 

• The majority of service users at Milmans stated that they would not 
mind sharing the centre with other user groups as long as enough 
trained staff and facilities were available; 

• At Byron NRC service users and carers said they wanted to be 
involved in decisions about the future of their day care provision. 

 
Our response to what people told us 
The council recognises change is worrying for people and people often value 
a familiar environment or a particular place.  
 
However buildings are currently under-utilised and there appears to be a clear 
case for considering how best to use the centres more effectively. This is a 
relatively recent phenomenon as when the NRCs were first opened they were 
well used.  
 
There are a number of reasons why this is no longer the case; many people 
now access a range of opportunities with a personal budget instead of 
attending a centre. Most importantly, the impact of the Fairer Charging Policy 
has led to some people taking the decision not to attend a day centre. They 
are now being asked to financially contribute to it.  
 

40



 

 

In implementing recommendations it will be very important to ensure that 
people are given choices about the services they have available, and that 
the council continues to make provision to meet assessed needs. The 
council will ensure that people with eligible assessed needs will 
continue to have their needs met. 
 
The first phase of the transformation of day opportunities in Harrow would be 
focused on reducing the number of buildings in use and would not result in a 
change in the level or type of services provided to individuals.  Changes to the 
level or type of service provision to meet assessed need would involve a 
review of support plans to ensure needs are met.  Day services are only one 
way to meet an individual’s assessed need.  If approved by Cabinet, transfer 
of service users to other centres would be carefully planned in 
coordination with service users and carers.  

 
3.3.3 What is important about day opportunities 
Questions 7 and 8 the consultation questionnaire 
 
In order to effectively plan future day opportunities, we asked about the 
importance of different aspects of a day activity. Analysis of the responses is 
included below:  
 
Diagram to illustrate how people rate various aspects of day care 
provision 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41



 

 

Having somewhere safe to be looked after was considered the most important 
aspect of day opportunities. Day Centre staff received considerable praise 
throughout the consultation, which is reflected by the second highest ranking. 
 
All of the day services/activities were clearly considered to be important, 
however only 60% of respondents stated work related skills as being  
 
essential, very important or important, which may be a reflection of the 
number of older people who returned a questionnaire.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Questions 9 and 10 of the consultation questionnaire asked respondents to 
tick which activities and services they (or the person they cared for) would like 
to do instead (question 9) and in addition (question 10) to attending a day 
centre. 
 
In question 9 we asked people to identify the activities they would want to do 
instead of attending the day centre. Analysis of the responses shows that the 
most popular activities identified would be going to parks and gardens, 
shopping trips, day trips, exercise, and cinema. 
 

The activities and services chosen by respondents who answered the 
questions were relatively similar for both questions. Outings and activities 
including visiting parks and gardens, shopping and day trips and exercise 
were the most popular activities chosen by over half of the respondents. 
Going to places of worship, activities in the pub and alternative therapies were 
selected by between a quarter and a third of respondents. Some 47% of 
respondents would like to go to the theatre instead of attending a day centre, 
whilst 27% of respondents said they would like to go to the theatre in addition 
to attending a day centre. 
 

Learning and education were important to respondents: 48% would like adult 
education classes if they did not attend a day centre and 38% would like this 
in addition to attending a day service. Whilst 47% of respondents wanted to 
learn new skills if they did not attend a day centre, 50% would like this in 
addition to attending a day service. 
 

The majority of responses reiterated the important aspects of day 
opportunities included in the questionnaire. Other comments related to 
communication with family; carers being part of decision making; affordability; 
routine; feeling respected; getting help from staff with practical problems like 
paying bills and learning skills. 
  

A resounding view across all consultation sessions was that service users 
wanted to get out more and experience different activities. Many people 
wanted to use the day centre as a central hub or base in order to access a 
greater range of activities and outings. 

42



 

 

 
Our response to what people told us 
These responses help us to identify what is really important to people and 
what should be considered when transforming day opportunities for them. 
Additionally, they also help to identify ways of meeting needs in a more 
creative way rather than in a building-based day service. An example could be 
where people have rated the importance of having a good meal (73%) - for 
these people there may be opportunities to identify luncheon clubs in their 
locality that could provide this element of their support. 
 
3.3.4 Access to Advice and Information 
We asked people to tell us how they preferred to a receive information and 
advice: 
 

• The most popular ways for respondents to receive information were 
through leaflets and flyers; from voluntary organisations; and through 
the centres; 

• A number of respondents suggested information should be sent by 
post. 

 
Our response to what people told us 
As we develop the market of day opportunities, we will work with voluntary 
sector partners to ensure information is available on day care activities in the 
community. Additionally, Neighbourhood Resource Centres provide regularly 
updated information.  
 
The recent Department of Health User Survey (2012-13) reported a high 
percentage (71%) of Learning Disability clients and 71% of people with a 
Physical Disability who found it very or fairly easy to find information. This 
demonstrates that, in general, people have good access to information and 
advice. 
 
3.3.5 Views from Voluntary Organisations 
 

Harrow association for Disabled people (HAD) 
HAD commented on personal budgets and said giving personal budgets is 
definitely the ‘way to go’. This may encourage people to ‘gradually replace 
some of their day service time’. The organisation highlighted that many people 
rely on their day centres for socialising and do not necessarily want to 
change.  
 
They felt spending budgets on support into work/voluntary work are positive 
for many people, as there is currently very limited support available. It is often 
in the preparation time before work that support is really needed, as it may be 
provided by Access to Work afterwards if someone finds work.  
 
Moreover, HAD stated personal budgets are a better option to meet the needs 
of the many people who do not fit into a recognised service model (e.g. 
people with Asperger’s or Autism), but as with commissioned care, personal 
budgets may need to be a different and better offer for people who have 
additional needs. For example people whose behaviour is described as 
challenging.  
 

43



 

 

HAD cautioned against the suggestion people with complex or a higher level 
of need cannot access the community and should therefore be in a building 
based service.   
 
Additionally, they said transport is an important factor for many disabled and 
older people.   
 
HAD continued to say people may embrace more flexibility regarding their 
chosen activities “if they weren’t called ‘day activities’ or ‘day opportunities’”. 
Other people have social lives, lifestyles, etc, and it may not help to develop 
non-institutional thinking about what’s on offer, if the terms used relate to 
something which has only ever been offered to people who use services.   
 
Our response 
Harrow as pioneers of Personalisation have piloted and are now in the 
implementation phase of a new solution called My Community ePurse. This 
will dramatically improve accessibility of personal budgets and lead to a 
greater choice of services and activities for service users.   
 
We are recommending an option that focuses on NRCs supporting people 
with the highest level of need. NRCs are staffed by highly skilled staff who are 
able to support people both in the centre and to access the local community.  
 
Harrow Mencap 
In their response to the consultation, Harrow Mencap welcomed the move 
towards a more personalised approach to the Council’s day service provision. 
They went on to say ‘where personal budgets are implemented well people 
have an opportunity for greater choice and control in all aspects of their lives’.  
 
They highlighted the importance of good planning and coordination, 
particularly where people are experiencing changes to more than one aspect 
of their support.   
 
They went on to recommend a number of key aspects when considering 
transforming day opportunities. These included: 
 

• A balance between risks and choice and control; 

• Greater access and active participation in the local community; 

• A well developed market place; 

• Access to information, advice and advocacy; 

• A need for more services for older people with dementia, people on the 
autistic spectrum; 

• A need for services to meet Harrow’s ethnically diverse population. 
 
Our response 
We welcome Harrow Mencap’s response to the consultation and their support 
in designing and developing accessible information; and providing their 
knowledge and expertise to consider the possible impacts of proposed 
changes to day opportunities.  
 
Age UK Harrow 

44



 

 

In their response, Age UK welcomed the opportunity to review the way the 
day services in Harrow operate. They went on to identify some key aspects to 
day opportunities for older people including: 
 

• People should have choice regardless of whether they have low level 
or higher level or complex needs; 

• There are still many older people who do not use the internet and need 
support in this area; 

• In the short term closing buildings that are not being utilised makes 
sense, but be aware of the growing population of older people; 

• Many people with a lower level of need do not want to use a day 
centre; 

• Services need to be flexible and be able to respond to people’s 
changing needs; 

• Older people should design their own activities; 

• There are not enough activities for older men; 

• The model sounds good but people with all needs should have access; 

• It would be good to pilot some community hubs. 
 

Our response 
We welcome Age UK Harrow’s response to the consultation and their support 
in designing and developing accessible information.  
 
Their points regarding demographic changes and a potential increase in 
demand for services are consistent with our recommendations. We recognise 
the need to retain buildings but must balance this with a vibrant market of 
community-based activities.  
 
3.3.6 Summary of views from the Provider consultation session 
A consultation event was held with a range of provider organisations. The 
following key points were raised: 
 

• There was recognition that buildings had their place in any new model 
particularly for people with a high level of need. However support to 
take an active role in the community is also important; 

• There is an increasing need for services for older people with 
dementia, people on the Autism spectrum and the ethnically diverse 
population.  

 
Providers’ suggestions for what the market could look like and what they 
could provide were: 
 

1. A larger number of small providers offering services to individuals or 
small groups; 

2. A pool of people with skills in a particular activity, like horse-riding, who 
could work with vulnerable adults on an individual basis, or offer 
sessions at the day centres; 

3. Supported breaks; 
4. Community based support groups for a few hours each week, offering 

leisure, social skills, independent living skills, sports; 
5. Flexible transport; 
6. A job brokerage service, which the service providers and user groups 

could link into. 
 

45



 

 

Providers suggested ways in which they can contribute to a market of flexible 
day opportunities. Additionally, they indicated how the Council could support 
market development through the provision of information, marketing, funding 
and support with developing models of service. 
 
Our response 
Harrow have piloted the implementation of a new solution called My 
Community ePurse, which will dramatically improve accessibility to personal 
budgets and lead to greater choice of services and activities for service users.   
 
We are recommending an option that focuses NRCs on supporting people 
with the highest level of need. NRCs are staffed by highly skilled people who 
are able to support people both in the centre and to take an active role in their 
local community.   
 
3.3.7 Staff Views 
Staff meetings were held at each of the NRCs and internal day services 
during the consultation period. Staff identified the following key points: 
 

• Specialist training where necessary;  

• To have up to date information so that they are able to support service 
users effectively if they have any questions; 

• More information about the recommended option and what it means for 
individual staff. 

 
Unions were invited to attend all staff meetings. A Union representative has 
been present at staff meetings and their views have been incorporated into 
the staff feedback. Their specific comments and questions included: the 
breakdown of the efficiency target; confidence the changes would achieve the 
target; risks to jobs and working conditions; importance of considering role 
profiles; covenants which restrict sale of buildings; and having sufficient time 
to respond to the cabinet report before a decision is made. 
 
Our response 
Staff were informed that the aim of the meetings was for informal staff 
engagement to enable their views to be fed into the consultation process. If a 
decision is made necessitating changes to staff roles and responsibilities a 
formal consultation will be carried out in accordance with the Council’s 
Protocol for Managing Change. 
 
We appreciated the Union’s attendance at the staff meetings both for the 
support they provided staff and the additional questions they asked.  A written 
response has been sent to the Union on the points they raised. The Unions 
will be provided a copy of the Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA). 
 
3.3.8 Feedback from Harrow Clinical Commissioning Group 
Harrow Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) submitted the following 
response to the consultation: 
 
Harrow CCG wishes to work with the Harrow Local Authority in the 
development of the proposed model for Adult Day Services. This will 
maximise the shared opportunity to support greater integration of health and 

46



 

 

social care services in order to develop improved, seamless, preventative 
services.  

There are significant opportunities for alignment and collaboration between 
health and social care in the development of Adult Day Services. 

This is reflected in a number of strategic Harrow CCG priorities and specific 
areas of work underway, which would be relevant to the Adult Day Service 
Review, including: The Out of Hospital Strategy: ‘Shaping a Healthier Future’; 
the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013 – 2016; and the: local Quality, 
Innovation, Productivity, and Prevention (QIPP) Programme. 

Other areas of synergy between Harrow CCG and Harrow Council with 
regards to Adult Day Services include: 

• Harrow Council and CCG Joint Commissioning Intentions for 2013/14, i.e. 
winter planning, dementia, and Children’s Services (particularly where we 
can support alignment of the health and social care services supporting 
service users as they transition from children’s to adult services). 

• Winterbourne View: ensuring that adult safeguarding is strengthened in 

line with national recommendations. 

• Joint NHS Harrow and Harrow Council Autism Strategy: including 

improving the support offered to the known population of people with 

autism, including people who have autism with additional learning 

disabilities or mental health issues. 

Harrow CCG welcomes the consultation and review of Adult Day Services in 
Harrow, and hopes to work closely with the Council to develop proposed 
models in order to: 

• Maximise opportunities for integration between health and social care 
services; and 

• Ensure alignment with existing health and social care strategies. 

 
Our response 
The council welcomes this helpful and constructive response from the CCG, 
which is in line with feedback from users of day services who wished to see 
the integrated service delivery.  
 
Section 4.3 of this report sets out the different phases of implementation of 
recommendations, should they be accepted. We will seek to work closely with 
the CCG lead up to, and during implementation of Phase Two, to identify 
opportunities to provide integrated support within the future service model. 
This will include potential for capital works to support this integration as 
outlined in Section 5.2.1. A representative of Harrow CCG will be invited to be 
part of the Implementation Group for this review.  
 
 

3.4 Key conclusions & messages from consultation  
 
This section includes a summary of the key messages we have taken from 
the consultation. These have been reflected in our considerations in relation 
to options: 

47



 

 

 

• Service users and carers emphasised the importance of day care/day 
opportunities; 

• Service users and carers understood the need to rationalise the use 
of buildings; 

• Service users identify with a particular building and service and whilst 
there was a recognition some buildings may need to close, people did 
not want the service they attended to close; 

• Respite was seen as an important element of independent living 
enabling carers to continue to support service users within their own 
homes; 

• Integration with Health and access to health services such as 
physiotherapy were seen as positive; 

• Personal budgets are key to choice and control and people need 
support to understand the process; 

• Personal budgets, are considered a better option to meet the 
needs of the many people who do not fit into a recognised service 
model; 

• The introduction of the Fairer Charging Policy has affected attendance 
at the day centres; 

• There is a need for services able to support people with dementia, 
autism and behaviour described as challenging; 

• Buildings are important but so is taking an active role in the 
community; 

• People will need good information and support if a decision is made 
that leads to change. 

 
Section 3.5 Capital/building considerations 
 
Alongside the consultation, research and analysis of data, the availability and 
use of suitable buildings is a key consideration in determining a future model 
of day opportunities. We have identified both in the January report to Cabinet, 
and earlier in this report that we expect to use fewer buildings in the future 
than at present.  
  
The table below (and a more detailed table in Appendix C) sets out 
information about the seven buildings that provide Harrow run day 
opportunities and the block contract delivered at Sancroft Hall. The table 
includes details of capacity, accessibility, ownership and Pros and Cons in 
relation to the continued use of the building. This information will be used to 
help to identify services we should use in our future service model.  
 
In this section, we are considering how suitable each building is for the 
delivery of services in this review. In doing so, we need to consider the 
ownership and contractual arrangements of the buildings, and whether the 
council is able to make alternative use or dispose of them. A key 
consideration in this is, for example, where PFI arrangements are involved the 
council would need to enter into detailed and potentially expensive 
arrangements for alternative use or cessation of the agreement.  
 
We will discuss capital considerations again in a later section (Section 5.2.1) 
of the report in which we consider the impacts of recommendations. This 

48



 

 

section will consider changes, which would be needed to buildings we are 
recommending to use in the new model.     
 
As outlined in the table below, the Council owns Bentley and Bedford House 
with no restrictions on use. In addition, Milmans is council owned. However, 
this has a covenant on it limiting the types of activities it can be used for. This 
covenant is likely to reduce the commercial value of the land and its 
attractiveness to investors. 
 
 

Name 
Current 

Use 
Capa
city 

Access
ible? 

Owned 
by 

Pros  
(for future use) 

Cons  
(for future use) 

Bentley 
Harrow 
Weald 

People with 
Physical 
Disabilities 

64 Yes 

London 
Borough 
Harrow  

- Large site 
- Large capacity 
- Gym on site 
- Large number of 
voluntary sector 
groups use 
building 

- Run-down 
building 
- In need of 
modernisation 
- Prime location 
for sale 

Bedford 
Pinner 

People with 
Learning 
Disabilities 

9 Yes 
London 
Borough 
Harrow 

- Good facilities on 
site 

- Small capacity 
- On site of 
residential home 

Milmans 
Pinner 

Older 
People 
including 
Dementia 

50 Yes 

London 
Borough 
Harrow 

- Covenant on 
building use 
- Good location in 
desirable area 
 

- Some 
improvements 
needed  

Sancroft Older 
people, 
focus on 
BME 
groups. 1 
Learning 
Disability 
session 

50 Yes 

Catalyst 
Housing 

- Long-term 
contract for use 
- Modern, high 
spec building 

- Need to 
negotiate model 
  

Gordon 
Avenue 
Stanmore 

People with 
learning 
disabilities 

9 Yes 
Genesis - Good location 

 
- Small capacity 

Byron 
Weald-
stone 

People with 
learning 
disabilities 

40 Yes 
London 
Borough 
Harrow 

- Modern, high 
spec building 
- Tied in to PFI 

- Need to 
negotiate 
changes 

Vaughan 
West 
Harrow 

People with 
learning 
disabilities 

30 Yes 

London 
Borough 
Harrow 

- Modern, high 
spec building 
- Tied in to PFI 
- Has a multi-
sensory 
environment 

- Need to 
negotiate 
changes 

Kenmore 
Kenton 

People with 
learning 
disabilities 

30 Yes 
London 
Borough 
Harrow 

- Modern, high 
spec building 
- Tied in to PFI 

- Need to 
negotiate 
changes 

 
 
Byron, Kenmore and Vaughan are council owned but subject to a PFI 
agreement. There is a financial commitment from the council to continue to 
pay for these buildings until 2024. The council could potentially negotiate 
alternative uses for these buildings, however they are purpose built for 
delivering services to adults with disabilities, and physical changes would 
incur additional capital costs.  

49



 

 

 
We have not considered factors relating to the secondary uses of buildings, 
such as use by Voluntary Sector groups in this part of the report. These are 
referred to in Section 5.2 where we consider capital implications of 
recommendations.  
 
These capital considerations are factored into the proposed models and 
recommendations in Section 5.2. 

 

Section 4: Service Models & Recommendations 

 
4.1 Service Model Options 
 
This report has considered a wide range of information, which supports 
decision making in relation to the future model of day opportunities. This 
includes the Why a change is needed, feedback from Consultation, Capital 
considerations and the needs that the council must meet.  
 
The report identifies the need for a new and coherent model of services with 
the aim of transforming “day services” to “day opportunities”. In the 
consultation we asked a range of questions about the way we use the day 
centre buildings and how we might change the way the services are provided 
in the future. Officers have sought to identify the options, which would meet 
the objectives of the review and achieve the outcomes identified as most 
important by users and carers. This would be through the provision of high 
quality services within the available budget. 
 
The drivers for change identified through consultation and analysis include: 

 

• A number of the internal services are operating significantly under 
capacity, identifying a need to reduce capacity in some areas 

• Benchmarking data shows that a high number of people use day 
services and that some of these are relatively expensive compared to 
other areas 

• In future an increasing number of people who have complex needs, 
including dementia, will need services 

• The council is committed to continued use of a number of buildings, 
through contractual arrangements, but has more flexibility in others 

• The council needs to achieve savings, as set out in the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy, and so there is a need to make changes to the way 
services are delivered 

• Over time the impact of Personalisation will be that more people need 
to be more able to make choices about how they wish to meet their 
needs – the services we provide need to reflect this 

• Consultation identified a need for services able to support people with 
dementia and autism and behaviour described as challenging 

• Service users and carers understood the need to rationalise the use of 
buildings  

 
Following the consultation officers have identified there to be three broad 
options relating to council provided services for Cabinet to consider: 

 

50



 

 

1. Retain all seven internal day services and buildings (no change); 
2. To change the NRC service provision to focus on meeting the needs of 

people with high level or complex needs. In doing this deliver services 
from Byron, Kenmore, Vaughan and Milmans NRC’s, but close Bentley 
NRC, Gordon Avenue Day Service and Bedford House Day Service;   

3. Provide a mix of Community Hubs and Specialist Services, either co-
located or provided in different buildings in the borough. 

 
In all options we will need to work with the owners and providers of Sancroft 
Hall to maximise the contract we have with them. This work has already 
started. The council does not own or run this service but has a PFI contract 
with them, which still has 12 years to run. The day services at Sancroft Hall 
are currently running significantly under capacity.  
 
The options have not included details of how Personal Budget funded external 
services will operate in the future. This is because these services are 
commissioned by individuals, rather than the council. Cabinet does not have 
authority over the way they operate. However, through our market 
development work, officers will work closely with service users and providers 
of services ensuring there is an effective market place of services to meet 
needs. This will be facilitated through My Community ePurse.  
 
Evaluation of the options considered has been outlined below: 
 
 
Option 1: Retain all seven internal day services and buildings (no 
change) 
 
Description 
Services would continue as they are now. They would provide support to the 
current service users who access them.  
 
Retain all services and buildings - Bentley NRC, Byron NRC, Kenmore NRC, 
Vaughan NRC, Milmans NRC, Gordon Avenue Day Service and Bedford 
House Day Service. 
 
Analysis 

• Maintaining all the services without change would mean continuing to 
provide services to a reducing number of service users. This is whilst 
other people use their personal budget to access activities outside of 
the council provided services. This would effectively result in additional 
costs; 

• Day centre buildings would continue to operate well below their 
available capacity; 

• The consultation suggests this would be the most favoured option by 
the majority of service users and their carers. This may be because 
change can be difficult for some people to consider. However, a 
number of consultees welcomed the opportunity that change may 
bring;  

• People with very complex/high level needs may still have to travel 
outside the Borough to access their services; 

• The council will not be able to respond to the changing demographic 
demand in the borough. This includes the increase in number of older 

51



 

 

people with dementia who require support and young people with 
autism and severe behavioural challenges; 

• The council will continue to provide services to focus on both those 
with the highest needs and a wider range of vulnerable people. 
However, carers indicated in consultation that many service users with 
complex needs would not be able to receive day care alongside other 
client groups. This is due to specific types of support needed and 
possible challenging behaviour of service users;  

• Maintaining the services as they are now would not achieve the MTFS 
efficiency saving of £300k in 2013-14 and £300k in 2014-15;  

• The council would need to purchase services elsewhere to meet the 
needs of those people with the highest support needs, resulting in 
additional costs in providing support. 

 
Option 2: To change the NRC service provision to focus on meeting the 
needs of people with high level or complex needs. In doing this deliver 
services from Byron, Kenmore, Vaughan and Milmans NRC’s, but close 
Bentley NRC, Gordon Avenue Day Service and Bedford House Day 
Service 
 
Description 
Bentley NRC, Gordon Avenue Day Service and Bedford House Day Service 
would close. Service users would transfer to other day centres including 
Kenmore, Byron, Vaughan, Milmans and Sancroft Hall. 
 
The level (number of days attendance) and type of activities would be 
maintained, therefore the initial change for service users will be the 
building/location. 
 
Running costs would be saved and posts including, vacant posts, 
restructured. This will deliver efficiency savings assuming wider redeployment 
opportunities across the council. 
 
Once the three buildings have closed and service users have moved, work 
will begin to review people to identify those who could be supported to access 
services in the community via a personal budget. This would be by using My 
Community ePurse - a tool which would dramatically improve the accessibility 
of personal budgets and lead to greater choice of services and activities for 
service users. 
 
The buildings continuing to deliver services would be refocused to deliver 
specialisms in the following ways: 
 

(a) Specialist day activities for older people, including dementia; 
(b) Specialist day activities for people with physical disabilities;  
(c) Specialist day activities for people with a learning disability 

autism/challenging behaviour;  
(d) Specialist day activities for people with a profound and 

multiple learning disabilities including sensory. 
 

Analysis 

52



 

 

• Buildings are currently under utilised. Efficiencies would be achieved 
through reducing the number of buildings from seven to four in respect 
of running costs and the deletion of a number of posts; 

• People with the highest level of need would be able to access 
specialist services in the borough. Staff would be trained to work with 
people with complex needs who would be supported to achieve 
improved outcomes and be able to access services locally; 

• People with lower level needs would be supported to exercise choice, 
control and achieve better outcomes by using personal budgets to 
purchase activities they enjoy from a market place of opportunities;  

• This option would achieve the MTFS efficiency saving of £300k in 
2013-14 and £300k in £2014-15; 

• This would support achievement of efficiencies through rationalising 
the services to focus on those with highest needs. Council buildings 
have been purposely designed to support people with complex needs – 
facilities not needed by other groups; 

• This option would support demographic challenges, for example by 
ensuring capacity for people with complex needs transitioning to adult 
services; 

• Supports the localism agenda by encouraging the use of third sector, 
and alternative local providers; 

• Many consultation responses positively welcomed the provision of 
specialist services and development of a market of alternative 
providers for people with lower level needs; 

• A number of people with lower levels needs who use the NRCs and 
building-based day services would need support to identify alternative 
options to meet their assessed needs. 

 
Option 3: Provide a mix of Community Hubs and Specialist Services, 
either co-located or provided in different buildings in the Borough 
 
Description  
This model would provide a service offering open access regardless of FACS 
eligibility. There would be a drop-in type service alongside specialist and 
intensive models of support for those with complex needs.  
 
This would enable a larger number of people to access services, advice and 
information without the need for a formal assessment. This is likely to 
increase the costs of running the service as staffing levels would need to 
match those in Option 2, but with the addition of support to a large number of 
additional people.  
 
These services could be co-located in the same building, or in separate 
buildings, dependent upon capacity and location.  
 
Analysis 

• This would enable council services to focus on both those with highest 
needs, and a wider range of vulnerable people. The Council would 
need to consider safety issues for providing services in this way; 

• During consultation, clients from all groups said they would like to mix 
with other client groups and previous experiences had been positive; 

53



 

 

• This is likely to be an expensive option, due to the need to provide 
staff, offering a wider range of services than at present, whilst facing 
substantial funding constraints; 

• Co-locating some services would be difficult because of the nature of 
specialist support for complex needs. This means the council is unlikely 
to be able to rationalise the number of buildings that services are 
provided from; 

• Carers indicated in consultation many service users with complex 
needs would not be able to receive day care alongside other client 
groups due to particular needs and possible challenging behaviour of 
service users; 

• It is very likely this option would result in a loss of income as people 
would opt for open access, free-of-charge services, rather than those 
for which they are financially assessed and need to contribute. 

 

4.2 Recommended Option 
 
After careful consideration of the options, it is suggested that Option 2 will be 
the most effective way to meet the objectives of this review. This option is 
for Harrow Council’s internal service to focus on those with the highest level of 
needs.  
 
In summary, the option is to retain the following for use as day opportunities: 
 

• Byron NRC 

• Kenmore NRC 

• Vaughan NRC 

• Milmans NRC  
 

But to cease to use the following: 
 

• Bentley NRC 

• Gordon Avenue Day Service  

• Bedford House Day Service.  
 

The recommendation is through a phased period of transition. Officers would 
work to change the delivery within Neighbourhood Resource Centres so they 
have a greater focus on meeting the needs of people with high level or 
complex needs. 
 
In accepting this proposed service model, Cabinet would be agreeing to 
confirm the nature of internal day services to meet the needs of those with 
highest needs in Harrow.  
 
The bases for this recommendation are:  
 

• The council needs to ensure we are able to support those most at risk, 
despite the challenging financial climate we are in. This option ensures 
we are focusing on the group most in need; 

• This model provides the best use of limited funds to ensure we meet 
assessed needs. This will support the delivery of efficiency savings; 

• The council’s NRC buildings have been purpose built to support those 
with the highest needs. This includes equipment and specialist design, 
which is not needed by the more able; 

54



 

 

• Further development of the market of activities and services for people 
with lower level needs will facilitate and support local community and 
voluntary sector developments; 

• The council has a duty to support people to be as independent as 
possible. Supporting people more able to access services in the 
community is part of achieving this aspiration. 

 
 
 
 
4.3 What this means in practice  
 
Implementing these recommendations would involve a substantial amount of 
change in day opportunities in the Borough and will impact upon the people 
who use them.  
 
A key aspect the council must consider is in ensuring the assessed social 
care needs of those receiving services can be met in the new arrangement. 
This section outlines how we will ensure we can do this.  
 
A priority will be meeting the needs of people attending Bentley, Gordon 
Avenue Day Service and Bedford House Day Service, as these services will 
be the most affected. Their needs can still be met in the remaining four NRCs 
and Sancroft Hall.  
 
In delivering the changes recommended in this report, the council will adopt a 
two phase approach: 
 
The first phase of the implementation will be supporting service users of 
Bentley, Gordon Avenue Day Service and Bedford House Day Service to 
access services within the four remaining NRCs and Sancroft Hall. This will 
mean at this stage, services continue to support the same group of people to 
those supported at present, but in fewer buildings. 
 
This approach will ensure affected service users continue to have their needs 
met, and are able to be supported within the buildings we continue to utilise. 
These changes would deliver the £300k MTFS saving in 2013-14 and would 
address the under-utilisation of the day centre buildings.  
 
The second phase involves changes over a longer period of time. Through 
individual needs assessment and support planning, a number of more able 
people using services would be supported to access community based 
support options with through personal budgets. These moves would in turn 
create capacity within day services to respond to demographic changes and 
support people with complex needs coming through transition, or currently 
supported away from the borough.  
 
4.3.1 Phase One - Reducing & Rationalising Buildings  
In this phase we would support the service users at the following services to 
move to one of the other day centre buildings: 
 

• Bedford House Day Service; 

55



 

 

• Gordon Avenue Day Service; and 

• Bentley Neighbourhood Resource Centre 
 
Following these supported moves we will cease to deliver day opportunities 
from these buildings. See section 5.2.1 for information about capital 
implication of these moves.  

 
The information below demonstrates there is enough capacity across the 
remaining building/services to enable service users to be accommodated. All 
of the retained buildings are of a high standard; Disability Discrimination Act 
compliant; and fully accessible. Service users moving from one building to 
another would continue to receive the same level of support as they currently 
do.  
 
It is important to note that changes to the retained services, notably a change 
of client group in Kenmore, would mean some service users in the retained 
NRCs may also need to move between services.  
 
All moves would be carried out sensitively. Officers will seek to support people 
to move in friendship groups to support transition. Wherever possible, staff will 
move with service users in order to ensure continued support and a smooth 
transition. In this way the council will ensure staff are able to continue to 
provide the appropriate level and type of support.  
  
Capacity within Council Day Care Centres  
The table below shows the capacity and the planned day places at each of 
the three day centres recommended for closure and transfer. For example, at 
Gordon Avenue there is a daily capacity for 9 places which, over a working 
week, is a capacity of 45 day places. The column ‘current planned day 
places’, is based on the actual planned figures for all service users who were 
expected to use the services during February 2013. 
 
The table shows the need to transfer 170 day care places per week. 
 

Day Service 
Capacity 
per day 

Capacity 
per week 

Current Planned 
day places 

(i.e.: no of day 
places allocated 

each week) 

Utili-
sation 

Recommendation 

Gordon Avenue Day 
Service 

9 45 30 67% Close & Transfer 

Bentley NRC 64 320 99 31% Close & Transfer 

Bedford Day Service 9 45 41 91% Close & Transfer 

Number of weekly 
day care places to 
transfer 

 410 170   

 

The table below shows the available weekly capacity in the remaining five day 
centres (4 NRCS and Sancroft). The table shows the available capacity is 285 
day care places per week. 
 

56



 

 

Day Service 

 
Capacity 
per day 

Capacity 
(i.e. no. of day 

places available 
each week) 

Current planned 
day places* 

(i.e.: no of day 
places allocated 

each week) 

Available Capacity 
(capacity minus 

current planned day 
services) 

Byron NRC 40 200 150 50 

Vaughan NRC 30 150 151 -1 

Kenmore NRC 30 150 137 13 

Milmans Day Centre 50 250 124 126 

Sancroft Day Centre 50 250 153 97 

Total  1,000 715 285 

 

The table below sets out the number of weekly places that need to be 
transferred against the available capacity in the remaining five day centres. 
 

Number of weekly day care places to transfer as a result of the 
closure of three Day Centre Buildings  

170 

Available capacity in the remaining five Day Service in the new 
proposed model 

285 

 

The table demonstrates there is considerable capacity across the Council’s 
current day care facilities. The proposed closure of three centre buildings and 
transfer of these services in a phased plan can be accommodated within the 
remaining centres and the Sancroft contract. This will ensure that we can 
provide value for money and continue to meet assessed day care needs for 
clients currently attending our centres.  
 
As can be seen in the table, there will continue to be some capacity once the 
three buildings have closed. This capacity is both helpful and necessary, in 
order to facilitate the transition of changes in Phases One and Two, and to 
help to deal with demographic change and increasing complexity of needs.  
 
The potential impacts of these changes and how we will work to mitigate 
these are explored in Equalities Considerations later in the report.  
 
4.3.2 Phase Two – Longer Term Changes to Delivery in NRCs 
In this phase, Officers would seek to implement changes to the way NRCs 
operate so they can support more people with complex needs, whilst 
supporting more people to access services in the community. 
 
Phase Two will involve market development work, and working with other 
community services to increase choice. We will seek to support more people 
to access activities in the community by working with voluntary and 
independent sector organisations.  
 
As part of this, we will ensure high quality information and advice is available 
ensuring service users know about community services, including information 
about the range of clubs and activities available.  
  
In addition, work in partnership with the Council’s Community and Culture 
department will facilitate access to a diverse range of opportunities, which 
could include: 

• Sports Development and West London Sports Alliance: Greater use of 
sports facilities and accessing grants to offer programmes to people 
with disabilities; 

57



 

 

• Arts Centre: tailoring sessions and activities to meet the needs of older 
people and people with disabilities; 

• Libraries: Reading groups, regular tea/coffee mornings, on-going 
gardening projects;  

• Allotments: dedicated gardening programmes. 
 
Developments through Public Health programmes will also contribute 
significantly to the Prevention agenda.  
 
The next section of the report explores these changes and the way services 
would operate in the future.  
 

 
4.4 Future Service Delivery 
 
In this section, we identify the model of delivery in the buildings we are 
recommending to deliver day opportunities from in the future.  
 
What services do we need? 
Based on the recommended option and information about needs and current 
usage of services earlier in this report, we have identified a need for the 
services below.  
 
The numbers of units are estimations based on existing use, demography and 
strategic direction. Due to individual choice and the impact of personalisation, 
we are not able to determine an exact figure for the number of units we will 
need. However, we can be sure the provision of the following will ensure 
Harrow Council is able to continue to meet assessed needs:  
 
A. Specialist day activities for older people, including dementia - 
Equivalent to 250 days per week = 50 places each day 
 
B. Specialist day activities for people with physical disabilities - 
Equivalent to 150 days per week = 30 places each day 
 
C. Specialist day activities for people with a learning disability - 
Equivalent to 300 days per week = 60 places each day. This includes 
approximately 150 days (30 places each day) specialising in supporting 
people autism/challenging behaviour, and 150 days (30 places each day) 
specialising in support to people with health and physical disabilities. 

 
Building Options for delivering these services 
 
A. Specialist day activities for older people, including dementia – 
approximate need identified is equivalent to 250 units/50 units per day. 
 

• There are two buildings currently supporting older people and which 
have sufficient capacity to host this service. They are Milmans and 
Sancroft; 

• Milmans currently supports vulnerable older people and has a 
covenant restricting the way the building can be used;  

• Sancroft Hall is a PFI contract, which still has 12 years to run (ends 
2024). This already supports older people with a range of complexities. 

58



 

 

 
Proposal: Milmans and Sancroft will both play a role in meeting the needs of 
the growing population of older people with complex needs. They are both 
currently supporting older people and the environment is suitable at both 
centres. In the short-term, there will continue to be capacity within both 
services. Phase 2 of the implementation of recommendations will include 
development of options to increase use of facilities by partners, such as the 
health service to target interventions that support health and wellbeing. 
 
B. Options for specialist day activities for people with a learning 
disability autism/challenging behaviour - approximate need identified is 
equivalent to 150 units/30 units per day. 
 

• Byron, Vaughan & Kenmore are agreements under PFI contract, and 
need to be used in the new model as the council has continuing 
payments for them. They are purpose built and fully accessible; 

• Byron has outdoor space, which is essential for supporting people with 
challenging behaviour; 

• Byron is next door to Harrow Leisure Centre, which is helpful in 
providing exercise-based activities for some service users with autism 
who have with high levels of energy. 

  
Proposal: Byron is recommended due its outside space and its proximity to 
Harrow Leisure Centre. 
 
 C. Options for specialist day activities for people with a profound and 
multiple learning disabilities including sensory - approximate need 
identified is equivalent to 150units/30 units per day. 
 

• Vaughan has a multi-sensory room on site. People already travel from 
Kenmore NRC to use it; 

• Vaughan and Kenmore are agreements under PFI contract, and need 
to be used in the new model as the council has continuing payments 
for them. They are purpose built and fully accessible. 

 
Proposal: Vaughan is recommended as, in common with all other NRCs, it is 
fully accessible. Additionally, Vaughan has a multi-sensory room, which will 
be essential for people with sensory needs.  
 
D. Options for Specialist day activities for people with physical 
disabilities - approximate need identified is equivalent to 150 units/30 units 
per day. 
  

• This service needs an accessible building with capacity to support up 
to 30 people per day; 

• The building has space and is able to accommodate a gym – an 
aspect which has been identified as essential by service users at 
Bentley Day Centre. 

 
Proposal: Kenmore is recommended as it is modern, has a high 
specification, is fully accessible and has space for a gym.  
 
 

Section 5: Implication of RecommendationSection 5: Implication of RecommendationSection 5: Implication of RecommendationSection 5: Implication of Recommendation 

59



 

 

 
5.1 Legal implications 
 
The proposals being made to the Council’s Cabinet are ones governed by a 
range of statutory requirements, which set out the services the council must 
provide. When changing service provision, as well as complying with statutory 
requirements, the Council must make its decision in a fair way to ensure it 
complies with its public law duties.    
 
5.1.1 Provision of services 
The council has a legal duty to continue providing support to people using the 
services in this review, based on an assessment of their needs. Within 
recommendations for changes to services, the council will continue to ensure 
high quality care and support is available to all users, based on an up to date 
assessment of needs and the development of a support plan .The council will 
work closely with carers to ensure that their needs continue to be met, as a 
result of any change to service. 

 

Under s.29 of the National Assistance Act 1948, eligible persons are entitled 
to prescribed non-residential welfare services. At paragraph 29 2(1)(c), local 
authorities are directed to provide, whether at centres or elsewhere, facilities 
for occupational, social, cultural and recreational activities. This can include 
day centres, workshops, recreational and educational activities, as well as 
facilities for art, sport and drama.  
 
Additionally, there is a duty under s.2 of the Chronically Sick and Disabled 
Persons Act 1970 to provide some non-residential services to those who are 
assessed as eligible. These include recreational services and educational 
facilities.   
 
The eligibility for both s.29 National Assistance Act 1948 and s.2 Chronically 
Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970 services are the same: persons aged 18 
or over; who are blind, deaf or dumb; or who suffer from mental disorder of 
any description; and other persons aged 18 or over who are substantially and 
permanently handicapped by illness, injury or congenital deformity. 
 
In addition to the above, the council should have regard to the European 
Convention on Human Rights when making changes to services. In particular, 
the council must ensure proposed changes do not infringe Article 3, which 
relates to “inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment”. In addition, Article 
8 relates to the need for people to have the “right to respect for private and 
family life”. The Human Rights Act requires an authority to consider whether 
its action could interfere with an individual’s rights as set out in the European 
Convention on Human Rights and in certain cases where the right is qualified, 
consider what legitimate interest it is seeking to achieve and whether the 
interference is proportionate to this legitimate aim.  It is not envisaged that this 
decision will infringe Article 3 or Article 8.   
 
The Equality Impact Assessment has identified potential impacts on 
vulnerable groups. However, it is clear that none of these impacts could be 
considered to infringe either Article of the Human Right Act.  
 
5.1.2 Process for arriving at a decision 

60



 

 

When deciding to change the way a service is provided, the Council must take 
account of all relevant information, including financial resources; consultation 
responses; and potential equality impact in order to reach a decision. Cabinet 
are obliged to consider the Council’s overarching statutory duties, for example 
its equality duties, when taking decisions to change the way a service is 
provided.     
 
The Council has carried out a consultation process to seek the views of 
stakeholders and users of the services. Members must feel confident this 
there has been an appropriate level of consultation and reasonable efforts 
have been made to involve relevant parties. Summary details of the 
consultation responses have been set out in the main report and in more 
detail in Appendix B.  Full details of the consultation responses are available 
as background papers.  Case law has confirmed when determining whether to 
change service provision, the Council must be receptive to reasonable 
arguments against the proposals. However, this does not simply involve a 
head count of those for and against the proposals. The Council must take all 
views into account, as well as other relevant information.  Even if the 
respondents to the consultation have strong views against the proposals, 
Cabinet may decide to introduce the proposals if justified for proper policy and 
operational reasons.    
 
In relation to questions of capacity of individuals to make decisions, the 
consultation was not asking consultees to make a firm decision about their 
services. It was seeking their views on potential changes to the way in which 
services are provided. In this paper, no decision is being made in respect of 
any individual's care package or provision. The Mental Capacity Act 2005 
presumes that a person has capacity unless that presumption is rebutted. 
 The Act provides for best interests decisions to be made where a person 
lacks capacity to make a specific decision and sets out the process for making 
such a decision, which will include the involvement of relevant family friends 
and carers.  In this consultation, no specific decision is being proposed for 
service users. 
 
Case law has confirmed that when consulting with people who may lack 
capacity the Local Authority has to make all reasonable efforts to engage 
service users, but this is likely to be a challenging and less than perfect 
exercise. However, if done responsibly it will be unlikely to invalidate the 
consultation. In this consultation various methods of engagement have been 
used, involving skilled workers, and those who knew service users (including 
family, friends and carers) and were involved in trying to elicit views. 
 
The Public Sector Equality duty created by s149 of The Equality Act 2010 
requires a public authority to have due regard to the need to: 
 

a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Act; 

b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

d) Protected characteristics include age, disability, race, religion or 
belief and sexual orientation. 

  

61



 

 

The Public Sector Equality Duty is a continuing duty and must be taken into 
account when the Council is making decisions about service provisions, which 
may potentially impact upon service users with protected characteristics under 
the Act. 
 
The Mental Capacity Act 2005 presumes people have capacity to make their 
own decisions unless the presumption is rebutted. Where there are reasons to 
believe a service user may lack capacity in respect of a particular matter, an 
assessment should be undertaken in accordance with the Mental Capacity 
Act 2005. If an individual is assessed as not having capacity to make a 
specific decision, then it may be necessary for a best interests decision to be 
made in accordance with the Mental Capacity Act 2005 requirements. 
 
When making changes, the Council must take account of the equality duty 
and in particular, any potential impact on protected groups. This report 
outlines the potential impacts on vulnerable people of the recommendations 
included – these are set out in Section 5.7 and in the Equality Impact 
Assessment (Appendix D).  
 
The recommendations in this report take account of the feedback received 
from service users, family members, advocates, staff and unions. The equality 
duty requires the council to have “due regard” to impacts, and to consider 
mitigations where impacts are expected. This does not mean changes cannot 
take place where there will be an impact.  
 
This report presents options and a recommended option. However, this does 
not preclude Cabinet from determining another option being the most 
appropriate way forward. In an extreme case, if Cabinet felt the severity of 
impact of the proposed options on particular groups of individuals, was such 
that none of the options are appropriate, and additional resources are 
required to fund these services, then it should refer the matter up to full 
Council with a recommendation that further spending resources be allocated 
to the Directorate (either from Council reserves or from other budgets). 

 
5.2 Financial Implications 
 
5.2.1 Capital  
Capital considerations have been an important factor in developing final 
recommendations. Approval to implement recommendations would mean that 
Bentley Day Centre, Gordon Avenue Day Centre and Bedford House Day 
Centre would not be used leading to options including potential disposal for 
the council.  
 
Bentley Day Centre – this asset would no longer be needed and could be 
considered for disposal by the council. As part of the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy it was assumed £2m capital receipts would be achieved for 
non-specific sites. The disposal of this property would support the delivery of 
these assumptions. The Council has been approached by a commercial 
developer interested in this site. A further Cabinet decision would be 
needed if the council wished to dispose of the site.  
 
Gordon Avenue – this is not owned by the council. Officers would need to 
agree arrangements for ceasing lease terms with the owners. Further work is 

62



 

 

required to establish whether there will be any costs associated with the 
cessation of the use of this property (i.e.; security, dilapidations etc), though 
these would be incurred at some stage when the property is finally handed 
back. 
 
Bedford House – we have outlined in a separate Cabinet paper we would 
consider identifying an alternative site for the permanent residential care 
facilities at Bedford House. Subject to approval to the recommendation (cease 
using Bedford House as a site for day opportunities), officers would consider 
potential alternative sites for permanent residential care for the residents of 
Bedford House. A further Cabinet decision would be needed if the council 
wished to dispose of the site. 
  
As referred to earlier in this report, three of the buildings we propose to use in 
the recommendations are PFI funded projects. These buildings are subject to 
long-term commercial arrangements and require negotiation and agreement 
prior to any change of use. Officers do not anticipate difficulties in agreeing 
the proposed changes to Vaughan, Byron and Kenmore; however we would 
need formal agreement to changes, such as minor capital works to facilitate 
amendments to the service model.  
 
The recommendations in the report would lead to the need for some use of 
capital funding to make a number of relatively minor changes to facilities. 
Harrow’s Capital Programme has a provision of £503k set aside in 2013/14 
for development works to Bentley Day Centre. This was committed in the 
2012/13 capital programme and has been rolled forward into the current year 
pending the outcome of this review. Cabinet are asked to amend the capital 
programme so this resource can be made available for capital changes arisen 
from this review, and the recent review of Residential Care services provided 
by the council. 
 
A schedule of works for these changes would be developed subject to 
Cabinet approval of the recommendations. This would be subject to Capital 
Forum processes for approval. This includes the need for Business Case 
approval and finance, Corporate Director and Portfolio Holder clearance. The 
changes, which would aim to ensure facilities are able to provide the best 
possible experience for service users, would include: 
 

• Establishing a gym facility within Kenmore NRC as a replacement for 
the facilities currently on offer within Bentley. This gym would be 
designed with involvement from users of the centre and would be of a 
higher quality than those currently available; 

• Improvements to Milmans in order to create a high spec dementia 
friendly environment suitable for people with complex needs; 

• Improvements to the facilities within Byron NRC in order to create an 
autism friendly environment and sensory room; 

• Ensuring sufficient space for wheel chair storage at Kenmore; 

• Updated facilities to enable partner organisations and services to 
access and deliver support sessions. 

 
At present a number of secondary uses, particularly from voluntary sector 
organisations, employ the buildings in this review. For example, a number of 
charitable organisations meet regularly at the Bentley Centre. Officers have 

63



 

 

informed these organisations of potential changes, and involved them as 
appropriate in the consultation exercise. Subject to approval of 
recommendations, Officers will work with these groups to understand their 
requirements and to support them to identify alternative premises to meet 
their needs as appropriate.  
 
5.2.2 Revenue 
The MTFS approved savings associated with the review of day care of £300k 
in 2013/14 and a further £300k in 2014/15. These savings are expected to be 
taken from the Adults budget. However, there is a Corporate Contingency in 
place for MTFS savings requiring consultation.  
 
The recommendations proposed in this report enable these savings to be 
delivered, however in the event alternative proposals are agreed, which 
means savings cannot be fully achieved as planned, it would require the 
council to use this contingency.  
 
The table below shows the staffing costs of the three services which are 
proposed to close. If the recommendations are approved, the MTFS savings 
of £300k in 2013-14 can be delivered by the reduction in staffing 
requirements, assuming closure of the buildings, and redeployment of 
permanent staff by the end of October 2013. The full year effect of these 
changes enables the further £300k in 2014-15 to be achieved.   
 

Service Annual Staff Cost 

Bedford House Day Service £106,500 

Bentley Day Service £411,500 

Gordon Avenue Day Service £128,000 

Total £646,000 

 
Impacts on staffing are considered in the next section. However, it is relevant 
to this section of the report a redundancy reserve of £835k across a number 
of Adults projects has been set as part of the Council’s accounts for 2012-13. 
This would mitigate any redundancy costs in the event redeployment 
opportunities are not sufficient to absorb staffing changes.   
 
The changes will have some impact central overheads; however is not clear 
at this stage whether there will be direct impacts, or savings that could be 
achieved in this respect.  
 
The council receives income from client contributions under the Council’s 
Fairer Contributions Policy. Day opportunities became subject to charging 
from 1st April 2012. Client contributions relate to the level individuals are able 
to pay and not to the overall cost of services, therefore changes to the cost of 
services will not impact on income from the majority. For a minority of people 
who are full-payers for services, there may be some small reduction in 
income. However, this would be offset by the reduced cost of services.  
 
It is anticipated the proposed changes will maintain the longer term 
sustainability of the internally provided day care services.  
 

 

64



 

 

5.3 Staffing Implications 
 
There are currently 86 people working within the internal services which are 
the focus of this report. A number of these staff work part-time hours, so in 
total there are 62.1 full time equivalent staff in the service.  
 
The three services being recommended for closure include 23.2 full time 
equivalent posts. Of these, 5.45 are either vacant, or are covered by 
temporary staff. There are a further 6.75 posts within the other day services in 
the review which are vacant or covered by agency staff. This means at 
present there are 11 full time equivalent posts which would be at risk. This 
figure does not account for natural turn-over of staff between now and final 
implementation, which would reduce the number at risk.  
 
The council is committed to avoiding redundancies where possible, and would 
seek to redeploy affected staff to other posts within Provider Services and 
across the council. A key aspect of the implementation of recommendations 
would be formal consultation with staff and Unions on staff impacts and staff 
changes.  
 
We have outlined the expectation that staff who have built up positive support 
relationships with groups of service users to move between services wherever 
possible. This means there would be an expectation, following formal 
consultation for some staff moving to take up roles in different services. One 
impact of this is that affected staff would be from across all of the services in 
the review, rather than just those closing.  
 
The changes to the proposed model would over time lead to changes to the 
nature of support being delivered, and changes to the level and types of 
needs of those who use services. To reflect this, there would be a Training 
Needs Analysis undertaken as part of implementation, leading to a training 
plan outlining any areas in which the staff team would benefit from further 
training.   

 

5.4 Performance Issues 
 
5.4.1 National Measures 
National performance measures were discussed in the January 2013 report. 
In summary: 
 

• Government policy direction is for all social care needs to be assessed 
and provided through the personalisation process. At least 70% of 
people requiring social care support should receive support through a 
personal budget by April 2013 – Harrow successfully achieved this with 
a final figure of 74.5%; 

• In implementing the recommendations in this report, we will build upon 
current arrangements to develop a quality assurance model based on 
the borough’s highly commended ‘QAQ’ model; 

• Performance targets will be set for services against the outcomes we 
are trying to achieve and they will be monitored as individual services 
and as a group. Individual clients will have their outcomes reviewed to 
ensure services are meeting individual needs.   

65



 

 

 
As in January’s paper it is important to note the implementation of 
recommendation could potentially have an impact on levels of service user 
satisfaction. If Cabinet approve the recommendations, we will be 
implementing some of the changes shortly before the annual National Social 
Care User survey. The council acknowledges service users and their carers 
are likely to feel a considerable level of concern about changes to the services 
they value highly. 
 

5.5 Environmental Impact 
 
The environmental impacts arising from the recommended options are as 
follows:  

• Rationalising the number of buildings in use reduces energy utilised in 
the delivery of these services and will contribute towards delivering the 
council’s climate change target of reducing carbon emissions by 4% a 
year. 

• Capital previously allocated to improve the energy efficiency of Bedford 
House and Bentley NRC will be reallocated. 

 

5.6 Risk Management Implications 
 
Risk included on Directorate risk register?  No  
  
Separate risk register in place?  Yes 
 
The key risks for the project are listed below. These relate both to the work 
taken place to shape recommendations and to risks of implementation. For 
each of the risks identified we have included mitigations:  
 
1. Implementing recommendations would require a significant number 

of people needing to move to a new service. There is a risk this 
could lead to reduced outcomes and loss of independence. 

 
Mitigation: Officers will work with services to ensure changes are 
handled sensitively, with the needs of individuals and groups of 
individuals at the forefront throughout. This will include working with 
friendship groups to support them to move to services together, and for 
staff who have built up positive relationships to move between services 
with them. People will be supported on an ongoing basis both through the 
delivery of the service, and through care management reviews and 
assessments.  

 
2. There is a risk staff may lack the skills or ability to adapt to the new 

model in order to deliver consistent, high quality services, to those 
with highest needs. 

 
Mitigation: Implementation of recommendations would involve the need 
to undertake a detailed change to staffing arrangements and structures. 
This reorganisation would involve a training needs analysis and the 
development of a detailed training plan. This will build upon the high 
levels of skills and experience of the staff delivering these services.  

66



 

 

 
3. That people with assessed needs may not be able to access a 

support service to meet with need following implementation of the 
new model. 

 
Mitigation: The council will ensure services are available to meet the 
needs of every adult with eligible assessed needs; ensuring sufficient 
provision is a key part of the recommendations. Through the provision of 
directly provided, contracted and a wider market of services, the council 
will ensure services are available to meet needs.  

 
4. The consultation is not adequate – it fails to fully explain the 

consequences or fails to include all necessary parties. 
 

Mitigation: The consultation questionnaire and events clearly outlined 
the anticipated changes to services and these are likely to include a 
reduction in the number of buildings used.  
 
The consultation exercise was extensive. It included more than 20 
separate events with service users. In addition, officers wrote to a wide 
range of voluntary and advocacy groups to share the consultation 
questionnaire and invite a formal response.  

 
5. Consultation will not be representative and reflect the views of only 

a selection of affected people. 
 

Mitigation: The consultation exercise was extensive: in total more than 
300 people had the opportunity to give their views. The council tried to 
ensure everyone who wished to would be given the opportunity to have a 
say.  

 
6. Consultation will fail to fully explain the need for change and result 

in NRC service users and their carers publicly opposing options for 
change. 

 
Mitigation: Detailed engagement took place with service users to ensure 
their views were represented in potential proposals and 
recommendations for change. 

 
7. Users, carers and families will be opposed to any changes, due to 

concerns about future services, and possible closure of the service 
they use, and hence may not engage with the detail of how to make 
the change. 

 
Mitigation: This report has been designed to be as clear as possible 
about changes, and about the rationale for the recommendations made. 
Officers have sought to ensure a clear process has been followed and 
that requirements have been adhered to. Where changes are 
recommended, which may have impacts upon individuals and groups, 
these have been explained and mitigations have been outlined. 

 
8. The service model identified through consultation will fail to meet 

efficiency target.  

67



 

 

 
Mitigation: The recommendations set out in this report clearly identify 
how it will support the delivery of efficiency targets. This model is based 
on responses to consultation along with analysis of data, best practice 
and strategic priorities.  

 
9. Changes to day opportunities are sensitive in nature as they 

support a number of people and are highly valued by service users 
and carers. There is a risk implementation will lead to considerable 
negative publicity and campaigning. 

 
Mitigation: The recommendations set out in this report clearly identify 
how it will support the delivery of efficiency targets. This model is based 
on responses to consultation along with analysis of data, best practice 
and strategic priorities.  
 

10. A number of voluntary groups use buildings in the review, 
particularly Bentley, and may be disadvantaged by changes. This 
could lead to loss of service and/or campaigning. 

 
Mitigation: The groups involved have been informed about consultation 
on the future model of day opportunities. Subject to agreement to 
recommendations, Officers will work with these groups to identify whether 
there is space available in alternative buildings for their activities to 
continue and to help them to identify alternatives.   
 

11. There is a risk user satisfaction will be affected by implementing 
changes in this review. 
 
Mitigation: Officers will make changes sensitively and will involve 
service users and carers in decisions affecting them. Communications 
with users of services, the voluntary sector and other stakeholders will 
ensure people understand the changes and the new arrangements which 
have the potential to deliver improved services and improved outcomes.  
 

12. There may be additional risks of safeguarding incidents as changes 
are made and a number of service users are in transition between 
different arrangements. 

 
Mitigation: As outlined in the mitigating actions, Officers will make 
changes carefully; ensuring that people maintain social networks; and 
support arrangements. A Project Implementation Group will be in place to 
oversee the changes. This will feedback regularly to the Head of Service 
responsible for Safeguarding to ensure involvement and oversight of the 
changes.  

 

5.7 Equalities implications 
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty.  
Section 149 states:- 
 

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 
 

68



 

 

(a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any 
other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

 
(b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share 
it; 

 
(c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 
When making decisions in relation to service provisions, in particular changing 
policies and the way services are provided, the Council must take account of 
the equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups.   

A project group has developed a full Equalities Impact Assessment. This 
included representatives from Harrow Age UK, Harrow Mencap, Harrow 
Association for Disabled People, Unison and GMB. The following key impacts 
were identified through a full Equalities Impact Assessment: 
 
5.7.1 Age 
There are a significant number of older service users within two of the seven 
day centres: in Milmans all clients (100) are aged 65 and over, whilst at 
Bentley 37% (27 of the 70 clients) are aged 65 and over.  

 
Potential adverse impacts for older people identified include accessing 
suitable transport to attend a day service; some older people may be less able 
or willing to travel to a range of different centres/day service providers.  
 
To mitigate this potential impact, Officers will continue to work on developing 
flexible transport.   
 
The potential loss of existing friendship groups and specialist staff expertise 
enjoyed in the current day service were also cited as a potential adverse 
impact.  
 
To mitigate this potential impact, Phase 1 of the recommended proposal 
would ensure service users are moved together in groups and appropriate 
support is provided during implementation. Staff would move to alternative 
services where vacancies exist. These measures will allow service users to 
maintain networks and support groups.  
 
There was some concern from a relatively small proportion of service users 
regarding the proposal involving the integration of different service users, 
such as people with dementia, challenging behaviour or very complex needs 
along with people with a lower level of need. The proposed recommendation 
to provide specialist services will continue to protect the most vulnerable 
groups with day service provisions through specialist services. 
 
Additionally, limited availability of alternative services in the short term, and a 
lack of specialist services for people with dementia, were identified as 
potential adverse impacts.  
 

69



 

 

To mitigate this potential impact, market development initiatives will be 
undertaken to ensure individuals have an improved range of choice to access 
alternative services to those currently provided in the day centres.    
 
Many users and carers were unclear about how personal budgets worked, 
had fears and concerns around managing personal budgets, and felt personal 
budgets could be a source of anxiety.  
 

To mitigate this potential impact, detailed information will continue to be 
provided by staff and care managers to service users and carers who do not 
currently receive a personal budget. However, it should be noted at present, 
389 clients are in receipt of a personal budget to purchase day care, of which 
62% (242) have a managed account. Managed accounts are managed by the 
Council when it has been identified a service user requires this assistance. 
Remaining service users who will move on to a personal budget and are 
anxious about managing the budget can be offered alternative options, on an 
individual basis, when determining how best to support the client in managing 
their account. 
 
A potential positive impact for young people coming through transition has 
been identified. At present in-house day service activities are sometimes 
unable to meet the needs of young people, particularly those with complex 
needs. Services focussed on supporting people with the most complex needs 
are likely to be able to support younger people closer to home. In addition, 
young people identified a need for help in gaining employment as well as 
more sports and social activities. As part of market development, appropriate 
services will be considered and the travel training work, having commenced in 
Kenmore, will be rolled out to other service users. 
 
5.7.2 Disability 
The potential adverse impacts and actions for mitigation stated above also 
apply to clients with a disability. Framework-i records show all 10 clients at 
Bedford House, 35 at Byron NRC, 8 at Gordon Avenue, 34 at Kenmore NRC 
and 38 at Vaughan NRC had a learning disability as their primary disability. Of 
the 70 clients at Bentley, the primary disability was a physical disability for 61 
clients, learning disability for 8 clients and mental health for 1 client.  

 
Some service users with a physical disability stated any change of day 
service buildings could impact on wheelchair users and people with mobility 
issues. However, in mitigation all current buildings are DDA compliant. 
 
The benefit of respite whilst a service user attends a day service was seen as 
an important element of independent living, enabling carers to continue to 
support service users within their own homes. During consultation meetings 
all attendees were reassured: all service users with an assessed need for a 
day service will continue to receive a service, although this may be in an 
alternative building/hub or more community based. All service users and 
carers will receive regular and timely communication outlining Cabinet 
decisions and if there are changes to services, how and when these changes 
will be implemented. 
  
At present in-house day service activities are sometimes not able to meet the 
needs of disabled people who have complex needs, necessitating travel 

70



 

 

outside the Borough to access specialist services. Services focussed on 
supporting people with the most complex needs are likely to be able to 
support disabled people closer to home. This is likely to result in a potential 
positive impact for disabled people.  
 
The equality implications for each of the Council’s day services are set out 
below: 
 
5.7.3 Bedford House Day Service 
As part of the recommended option, Bedford House Day Service would close 
and the service users and staff would move to alternative services where 
vacancies exist. If approved by Cabinet, the first phase of the transformation 
of day opportunities in Harrow would be focused on reducing the number of 
buildings in use. This would not result in a change in the level or type of 
services provided to individuals. Changes to the level or type of service 
provision to meet assessed need would involve a review of support plans to 
ensure needs are met. Day services are only one way to meet an individual’s 
assessed needs. If approved by Cabinet, transfer of service users to other 
centres will be carefully planned in coordination with service users and carers.  
 
There are 10 service users at Bedford House Day Service. Service users 
would all fall within the following protected characteristics of the Equalities Act 
2010: 
 
Age: There were no service users over the age of 65. 
Disability: All 10 service users have a learning disability or difficulty.  
 
There are four men and six women.  
 
In terms of ethnicity, four service users are White British, five are Asian British 
(Indian), and one person is Asian or Asian British (other). 
 
Four service users speak English as a first language, five speak Gujarati. 
Social Care records did not record this information for the remaining service 
users.  
Considerations of any possible adverse impacts are included in full in the 
Equalities Impact Assessment in Appendix D and in summary in sections 
5.7.1 and 5.7.2 of this report. We compared this information to what we know 
about the people using the day service at Bedford House.   
 
In order to meet its equality duty the Council will need to take measures to 
eliminate or reduce adverse impacts. All service users with an assessed need 
for a day service will continue to receive a service, although this may be in a 
different location. A review of the assessed needs of each service user would 
take place, once the new model has been established as part of Phase 2 of 
the implementation plan. This will ensure the most appropriate day services 
and opportunities are provided to meet identified individual needs. 
 
6.7.4 Gordon Avenue Day Service 
As part of the recommended option, Gordon Avenue Day Service would close 
and the service users and staff would move to alternative services where 
vacancies exist.   
 

71



 

 

If approved by Cabinet, the first phase of the transformation of day 
opportunities in Harrow would be focused on reducing the number of buildings 
in use. This would not result in a change in the level or type of services 
provided to individuals. Changes to the level or type of service provision to 
meet assessed needs would involve a review of support plans to ensure 
needs are met. Day services are only one way to meet an individual’s 
assessed need. If approved by Cabinet, the transfer of service users to other 
centres will be carefully planned in coordination with service users and carers.  
 
There are eight service users at Gordon Avenue Day Service. Service users 
would all fall within the following protected characteristics of the Equalities Act 
2010: 
 
Age: There are no service users over the age of 65 
Disability: All eight service users a learning disability or difficulty  
 
There are four men and four women.  
 
In terms of ethnicity four service users are White British, two are Asian British 
(Indian), one is Asian British (Pakistani) and one is Asian British (other). 
 
Some five service users speak English as a first language, two speak Gujarati 
and one uses British Sign Language.  
 
We have used consultation feedback, best practice and research to assess 
the possible impacts of each option. Considerations of any possible adverse 
impacts are included in full in the Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix D) 
and in summary in section 5.7.2 of this report. We compared this information 
to what we know about the people living in each home.   
 
In order to meet its equality duty, the Council will need to take measures to 
eliminate or reduce these adverse impacts. All service users with an assessed 
need for a day service will continue to receive a service, although this may be 
in an alternative building/hub or more community based. A review of the 
assessed needs of each service user will take place, once the new model has 
been established, to ensure the most appropriate day services and 
opportunities are provided to meet identified individual needs. 
 
 
5.7.5 Bentley Day Service 
As part of the recommended option, Bentley Day Service would close and the 
service users and staff would move to alternative services where vacancies 
exist. If approved by Cabinet, the first phase of transformation of day 
opportunities in Harrow would be focused on reducing the number of buildings 
in use. This would not result in a change in the level or type of services 
provided to individuals.   
 
Changes to the level or type of service provision to meet assessed needs 
would involve a review of support plans to ensure needs are met. Day 
services are only one way to meet an individual’s assessed need.  If approved 
by Cabinet, transfer of service users to other centres will be carefully planned 
in coordination with service users and carers.  
 

72



 

 

There are 70 service users at Bentley Day Service. Service users all fall within 
the following protected characteristics of the Equalities Act 2010: 
 
Age: There are 26 service users over the age of 65. 
Disability: 61 service users have a physical disability, frailty or sensory 
disability, 8 have a learning disability or difficulty and one service user has 
mental health needs. 
 
There are 32 men and 38 women.  
 
In terms of ethnicity 29 service users are White British, two are White Irish, 20 
are Asian British (Indian), four are Asian British (Pakistani), four are Asian 
British (other), one is Black African, one is Black (other), five are Black 
Caribbean and one is from Other Ethnic background.  Social care records did 
not record this information for the remaining three service users.  
 
Some 48 service users speak English as a first language, 13 speak Gujarati. 
Social care records do not record this information for five service users. One 
service user each speaks Arabic, Punjabi, Urdu and Kurdish. 
 
We have used consultation feedback, best practice and research to assess 
the possible impacts of each option. Considerations of any possible adverse 
impacts are included in full in the Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix D) 
and in summary in Section 5.7.1 and 5.7.2 of this report. We compared this 
information to what we know about the people living in each home.   
 
In order to meet its equality duty, the Council will need to take measures to 
eliminate or reduce these adverse impacts. All service users with an assessed 
need for a day service will continue to receive a service, although this may be 
in an alternative building/hub or more community based. A review of the 
assessed needs of each service user will take place, once the new model has 
been established, to ensure the most appropriate day opportunities and 
opportunities are provided to meet identified individual needs. 
 
Some service users with a physical disability stated any change of day service 
building, could impact on wheelchair users and people with mobility issues. All 
of the councils NRCs have excellent facilities and are DDA compliant.  
 
Service users also stated the gym at Bentley was an essential aspect of the 
service for some people. This would need to be replaced in Kenmore if a 
decision is approved to close Bentley.  
 
5.7.6 Byron NRC 
There were 35 service users at Byron NRC. Service users would all fall within 
the following protected characteristics of the Equalities Act 2010: 
 
Age: There were four service users over the age of 65 
Disability: All 35 service users a learning disability or difficulty  
 
There were 21 men and 14 women.  
 
In terms of ethnicity 17 service users were White British, one was White Irish, 
one was White (other), eight were Asian British (Indian), two were Asian 

73



 

 

British (Pakistani), three were Asian British (other), one was Black African, 
one was mixed White and Black Caribbean Black and one was mixed (other). 
 
Some 28 service users spoke English as a first language, five spoke Gujarati, 
one service user each spoke Punjabi and one used British Sign Language.  
 
We have used consultation feedback, best practice and research to assess 
the possible impacts of each option. Considerations of any possible adverse 
impacts are included in full in the Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix D) 
and in summary in Section 5.7.1 and 5.7.2 of this report. We compared this 
information to what we know about the people living in each home.   
 
In order to meet its equality duty the Council will need to take measures to 
eliminate or reduce these adverse impacts. All service users with an assessed 
need for a day service will continue to receive a service, although this may be 
in an alternative building/hub or more community based. A review of the 
assessed needs of each service user will take place, once the new model has 
been established, to ensure the most appropriate day opportunities and are 
provided to meet identified individual needs. 
 
5.7.7 Kenmore NRC 
There were 34 service users at Kenmore NRC. Service users would all fall 
within the following protected characteristics of the Equalities Act 2010: 
 
Age: There were two service users over the age of 65 
Disability: All 34 service users a learning disability or difficulty  
 
There were 18 men and 16 women.  
 
In terms of ethnicity 11 service users were White British, 15 were Asian British 
(Indian), two were Asian British (Pakistani), two were Asian British (other), 
and four were Black British Caribbean. 
 
Some 22 service users spoke English as a first language, nine spoke Gujarati. 
Social care records did not record the data for the remaining 3 service users. 
 
We have used consultation feedback, best practice and research to assess 
the possible impacts of each option. Considerations of any possible adverse 
impacts are included in full in the Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix D) 
and in summary in Section 5.7.1 and 5.7.2 of this report. We compared this 
information to what we know about the people living in each home.   
 
In order to meet its equality duty the Council will need to take measures to 
eliminate or reduce these adverse impacts. All service users with an assessed 
need for a day service will continue to receive a service, although this may be 
in an alternative building/hub or more community based. A review of the 
assessed needs of each service user will take place, once the new model has 
been established, to ensure the most appropriate day opportunities are 
provided to meet identified individual needs. 
 
6.7.8 Milmans Day Centre 
There were 100 service users at Milmans Day Centre. Service users would all 
fall within the following protected characteristics of the Equalities Act 2010: 

74



 

 

 
Age: There were 100 service users over the age of 65 
Disability: 84 service users had a physical disability, frailty or sensory 
disability, five had a learning disability or difficulty and 11 service users had 
mental health 
 
There were 29 men and 71 women. 
 
In terms of ethnicity 60 service users were White British, eight were White 
Irish, two were White (other), nine were Asian British (Indian), one was Asian 
British (Pakistani), two were Asian British (other), one was Black African,  12 
were Mixed Background (White and Black Caribbean), one was Black (other), 
two were Mixed background (other) and two were Other Ethnic background.   
 
Some 82 service users spoke English as a first language, 3 spoke Gujarati. 
Social care records did not record this information for 10 service users and 
one service user each spoke Punjabi, Urdu, Greek, Polish and German. 
 
We have used consultation feedback, best practice and research to assess 
the possible impacts of each option. Considerations of any possible adverse 
impacts are included in full in the Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix D) 
and in summary in Section 5.7.1 and 5.7.2 of this report. We compared this 
information to what we know about the people living in each home.   
 
In order to meet its equality duty, the Council will need to take measures to 
eliminate or reduce these adverse impacts. All service users with an assessed 
need for a day service will continue to receive a service, although this may be 
in an alternative building/hub or more community based. A review of the 
assessed needs of each service user will take place, once the new model has 
been established, to ensure the most appropriate day opportunities are 
provided to meet identified individual needs. 
 
6.7.9 Vaughan NRC 
There were 38 service users at Vaughan NRC. Service users would all fall 
within the following protected characteristics of the Equalities Act 2010: 
 
Age: There were two service users over the age of 65 
Disability: All 38 service users a learning disability or difficulty  
 
There were 16 men and 22 women.  
 
In terms of ethnicity, 11 service users were White British, two were White 
Irish, one was White (other), 14 were Asian British (Indian), two were Asian 
British (Pakistani), five were Asian British (other), one was Black African and 
two were Other Ethnic Background. 
 
Some 21 service users spoke English as a first language, 10 spoke Gujarati, 
two spoke Punjabi, three spoke Tamil and one spoke Farsi/Persian. Social 
care records did not record the data for the remaining one service users. 
 
We have used consultation feedback, best practice and research to assess 
the possible impacts of each option. Considerations of any possible adverse 
impacts are included in full in the Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix D) 

75



 

 

and in summary in Section 5.7.1 and 5.7.2 of this report. We compared this 
information to what we know about the people living in each home.   
 
In order to meet its equality duty the Council will need to take measures to 
eliminate or reduce these adverse impacts. All service users with an assessed 
need for a day service will continue to receive a service, although this may be 
in an alternative building/hub or more community based. A review of the 
assessed needs of each service users will take place, once the new model 
has been established, to ensure the most appropriate day opportunities are 
provided to meet identified individual needs. 
 
 
 
 
6.7.10 Summary of equality impacts and mitigations  
 

• A fear or perception current day service provisions may be partially or 
fully withdrawn. To mitigate all service users with an assessed need 
for support will continue to access a service to meet their needs. Needs 
may be met in a variety of ways and may in an alternative building or 
via a community based activity. 

• Access to suitable transport to attend a day service, some older people 
may be less able or willing to travel to a range of different centres/day 
service providers. To mitigate this potential impact, Officers will 
continue to work on developing flexible transport. 

• A loss of friendships, routines and support from staff if service users 
have to move to an alternative service. To mitigate this potential 
impact, Phase One of the recommended proposal would ensure 
service users are moved together in groups and appropriate support is 
provided in implementation. Staff would move to alternative services 
where vacancies exist. These measures will allow service users to 
maintain networks and support groups.  

• Limited availability of alternative services to day centres in the short 
term and a current lack of specialist services for people with dementia. 
In mitigation of this potential impact, market development initiatives 
set out within this report will be undertaken to ensure individuals have 
an improved range of choice to access alternative services to those 
currently provided in the day centres. 

• Currently in-house day service activities do not match all of the needs 
of young people coming through transition who have expressed a need 
for activities, which will help with gaining employment. Harrow, as 
pioneers of Personalisation, have piloted and are now in the 
implementation phase of a new solution called MyCommunityPurse. 
This will dramatically improve accessibility to personal budgets and 
lead to greater choice of services and activities for service users.  

• Fears and concerns around managing personal budgets, many users 
and carers were unclear about how personal budgets worked, and felt 
personal budgets could be a source of anxiety, needing time and 
support. To mitigate this potential impact, detailed information will 
continue to be provided by staff and care managers to service users 
and carers who do not currently receive a personal budget. However, it 
should be noted that at present, 220 clients are in receipt of a day care 
personal budget, of which 59% (129) have a managed account. 

76



 

 

Managed accounts are managed by the Council when it has been 
identified a service user requires this assistance. 

• Some service users with a physical disability stated any change of day 
service building, could impact on wheelchair users and people with 
mobility issues. In mitigation, all of the council NRCs have excellent 
facilities and are DDA compliant.  

• At present in-house day service activities are sometimes not able to 
meet the needs of disabled people who have complex needs, 
necessitating travel outside the Borough to access specialist services. 
Services focussed on supporting people with the most complex needs 
are likely to be able to support disabled people closer to home and is 
likely to result in a potential positive impact for disabled people.  

 

6.9 Corporate Priorities 
 
This review relates to the following Corporate Priorities set out in the 2012/13 
Corporate Plan: 

• United and involved communities: a Council that listens and leads 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 
 
The Community, Health and Wellbeing Directorate’s vision is: 
“Enhancing our resident’s quality of life, and offering excellent service” 
 

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of  

Name: Roger Hampson x  Chief Financial Officer 

 
Date: 13 June 2013 

   

   on behalf of 

Name: Sarah Wilson x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date:  13 June 2013 

   

 

Section 8 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of  

Name: Alex Dewsnap x  Divisional Director 

 
Date: 18 June 2013 

  Strategic Commissioning 

 

Section 9 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of  

Name: Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director of  
 
Date: 18 June 2013 

  Environment & Enterprise 

77



 

 

Section 10 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:  Thom Wilson, Head of Commissioning & Partnerships 
Tel:  020 8736 6022  
 
Background Papers:   
 
1. Putting people first: a shared vision and commitment to the transformation 
of adult social care - 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPo
licyAndGuidance/DH_081118  
 
2. Valuing people now: a new three-year strategy for people with learning 
disabilities –  
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPo
licyAndGuidance/DH_093377   
 
3. Think Local Act Personal – A-wide commitment to moving forward with 
personalisation and community-based support January 2011 
http://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/_library/Resources/Personalisation/TL
AP/THINK_LOCAL_ACT_PERSONAL_5_4_11.pdf  
 
 
 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

 NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
 

[Call-in applies] 
 
 
 

 

78



 1

 
 
 
 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 
 

Date of Meeting: 

 

22 January 2013 

Subject: 

 

Transformation of Day Services in Harrow 
 

Key Decision: No  
 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Paul Najsarek, Corporate Director of 
Community, Health and Wellbeing 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Margaret Davine,  
Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

Yes 
 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 - Details about the in-house 
centres 
Appendix 2 – External Day Service Provision 
Appendix 3 - Other Local Authorities carrying 
out reviews of day centres 
Initial Equality Impact Assessment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79



 2

 
 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

• This report sets out the vision for the transformation of day services in Harrow. 
The review concentrates on all services used by the borough, including seven 
day centres provided by Harrow council, each focussing on a particular client 
group. 
  

• Supporting the most vulnerable people in the community is central to the work 
of Harrow council. The council will continue to ensure that people receive the 
care and support they need to be as independent as possible and to be treated 
with dignity and respect. Through this report we are seeking to ensure that we 
continue to safeguard the needs of vulnerable people by ensuring that services 
are as high quality, efficient and effective as possible.  

 

• In order to make services fit for the future, relevant to strategic priorities and 
legislation and a highly efficient use of resources, the report makes a number of 
recommendations for change.  

 

• The aim is to deliver a modernised service that offers improved outcomes, 
delivers the MTFS savings of £600k over 2013/14 and 2014/15 and delivers the 
vision of enhancing our residents’ quality of life and offering excellent service.  

 

Recommendations:  
 
Cabinet is requested to approve the following:  
 

• Consultation to include steps to rationalise internal day service provision in line 
with spare capacity identified and in order to deliver the MTFS target of £600k in 
a year. 

 

• To develop through consultation with relevant stakeholders, including service 
users, carers, staff and unions, a long-term vision for a transformed model for 
day opportunities for people with learning disabilities, physical disability and 
sensory impairment and older people in Harrow.  
 

• Consider alternative models for day opportunities and develop a range of 
options that: increase opportunities for social inclusion, maximise choice and 
control, improve health and well-being, increase employability and deliver 
efficiencies. 

 

• Authorise the Corporate Director for Community Health and Wellbeing, in 
consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder(s), to: 

o Design and implement the consultation plan for service users, carers and 
families, staff, Unions and other key stakeholders. 

o Prepare a final report with the results of the consultation and detailed 
recommendations for consideration by Cabinet in July 2013. 

 

80



 3

Reason:  (For recommendation) 
The recommendations are proposed in recognition of a need to further develop 
the way that day services work in the borough. Involving key stakeholders is a 
central aspect of this review which will aim to ensure that services are 
strategically aligned and financially affordable for the future.  
 
The aim is that the review will:   
 

• Establish a service model that supports the Government’s ambition to offer 
personal budgets to at least 70% of service users, with a strong focus on Direct 
Payments by 2013.  

• Deliver £600k revenue savings over 2013/14 and 2014/15. 

• To support greater integration of health and social care services in order to 
develop improved, seamless, preventative services. 

• Develop a continuum of services that service users will want to buy, which 
responds to the prevention agenda and support independence and inclusion. 

• Enabling people to purchase these through the council’s on-line social care 
portal.  

• In line with the Care and Support Bill to “promote diversity and quality in the 
provision or services”, including increasing culturally specific services. 

• Respond to the changing demographic profile of people who use Day Services. 

• Encourage communities to take an increasingly prominent role in supporting 
vulnerable groups through the development of community capacity and social 
capital – breaking down barriers and moving towards greater social inclusion. 

• Ensure that we use the buildings available to us in the most effective and 
efficient ways. 

• Support staff delivering services and offer greater job satisfaction and job 
security. 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

2.1 Introduction 

 
Supporting the most vulnerable people in the community is central to the work 
of Harrow council.  
 
Day opportunities can be a vital element of an individual’s package of care 
focussed on supporting people to remain at home. The council has a statutory 
duty to provide “facilities for occupational, social, cultural and recreational 
activities”. Day opportunities support people to learn new skills and to be more 
independent. They prevent social isolation and help people to socialise.  
 
Social care outcomes underpin the need for provision and access to day 
opportunities. These relate to the ability to maintain: 

• Personal hygiene 

• A safe environment 

• Social interaction 

• Nutritional needs 

• Independence 
 

81



 4

The transformation of day services will focus on opportunities to improve 
efficiency and support more people to be independent through provision of a 
range of community based day activities. 
 
The transformation of day services will support the achievement of £300k 
savings from day services in 2013/14 and a further £300k in 2014/15 as set 
out in the council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The strategic 
review of day services is one of the Council’s key transformation projects.  
 
The review will need to address a number of aims: 
1. Develop a new model for day services that is fit for purpose, focused on 

outcomes for service users and delivers the necessary efficiencies. 
2. Ensure that services are available to meet all of the needs of older people, 

people with disabilities and young people transitioning from children’s 
social care into adult services.  

3. Consider the whole market for day opportunities, not just those provided 
by the council, including links to neighbouring areas. 

4. To explore opportunities to rationalise and consolidate the use of buildings 
in order to deliver efficiencies and ensure services are sustainable.  

5. Greater integration to enable health and social care services to work jointly 
to meet the needs of Harrow residents. 

6. Increase the number of people who are supported to purchase day 
services of their choice through personal budgets and using an electronic 
purse. 

 
Through this transformation we will ensure that we are able to provide high 
quality care and support to those most in need. We believe that by improving 
the way services work and making them more efficient we can enhance the 
outcomes that they are able to achieve and make them more financially 
efficient.  
 
The council recognises that changes to services can cause considerable 
concern, and change needs to be managed carefully and sensitively. We will 
ensure that we take this into consideration when developing final 
recommendations and implementation plans. Managing the transition to new 
ways of working will be considered within consultation.  
 
This review is one of a number of strategic reviews undertaken by Adult 
Services in order to ensure that services are as efficient, effective and 
outcome focused as possible. It sits alongside, and has inter-dependencies 
with reviews of Mental Health Day Services and Learning Disability 
Residential services which have come to Cabinet in previous months. The 
provision of transport to these services is another area which has direct 
implications for these services.  
 
 

2.2 Services in review  
 
The council currently spends £5.247m per year on supporting 626 people to 
attend a range of day services (these figures, and this review, exclude Mental 
Health Day Services). These services support people who are older and frail, 
have a learning disability or who have a physical or sensory disability.  

82



 5

 
The services are provided through a mix of internal and external services. The 
pie chart below shows the proportion of service users between these. .  
 

Number of users in internal and external services

19%

47%

34%

Internal

Block

Spot purchased

 
Figure 1 – Pie Chart showing proportion of service users using internal, block purchased and 
spot purchased services 

 
2.2.1 Internal day services 
Harrow Council directly provides seven day services. Appendix 1 includes a 
breakdown of these services including the activities that take place.  
 
The day services provided by the council are generally very highly thought of 
by the people who use them and their carers. Through quality assurance 
processes and through individual reviews services consistently have a high 
level of satisfaction.  
 
Five of the council’s seven day services are Neighbourhood Resource 
Centres (NRCs). Three of these services Vaughan, Kenmore and Byron 
NRCs; they were built using a PFI arrangement and are currently delivered 
specifically to people with learning disabilities.  
 
Each of these centres was designed to fit in with its local surroundings and 
provide a contemporary and spacious environment. The aim was for adults 
with learning disabilities and their carers to learn new skills prevent social 
isolation and access resources within the borough. They replaced older 
buildings in South Harrow (Brember) and on the Vaughan site. 
 
The need for modern community based centres to support people with 
complex and challenging needs had been identified consistently over a 
number of years. In order to respond to this need and offer the best possible 
quality of service to vulnerable adults, the Council considered all options 
available. Five years ago, the opportunity for PFI partnerships was accepted 
as an innovative approach to building and providing high quality facilities in 
the public sector. The Council carried out a detailed business case analysis, 

83



 6

looking at all available options and choose the PFI option in a very different 
financial environment to today. 
 
The NRCs were specially designed to support people with severe learning 
disabilities and high support needs. For example, they each have ceiling track 
hoists installed in order to support people with severe physical disabilities to 
access activities. The focus on people with high support needs was an 
important element behind the planning for the centres for strategic as well as 
financial reasons which are set out later in this paper. Since the start of the 
Personalisation agenda in 2007 there has been a clear anticipation that 
people with lower level needs would be supported in the community through 
their networks of support and personal budgets, rather than in building based 
day services.  
 
The three PFI NRCs were built in 2009, in partnership with BHH LIFT enabling 
the council to provide the highest quality environment in which to meet service 
users’ needs. The PFI contract has been established for a 25 year period, and 
will not end until 2034. This is the expected length of time for this type of 
contract, due to the nature of investment and expected return on investment 
for the private company involved in the project. 
 
There are a number of restrictions on the established use of these PFI 
buildings. However there is scope for changes which would need to be agreed 
with our development partners. The government are currently focused on PFI 
arrangements, and are bringing challenge to existing arrangements to help 
the public to be able to achieve more value from them.  Any changes may 
have a cost implication, which would need to be evaluated alongside the 
benefit of the service change.  

 
There are two further centres for people with learning disabilities - Bedford 
House and Gordon Avenue. Each of these centres has a capacity for nine 
people. On average seven service users attend each day - the majority of 
users attending five days per week. It was always intended that these services 
would be incorporated into the three larger centres once they were in place. 
However this has not taken place to date as services were previously full to 
capacity. This is now a consideration for this review.  
 
Bedford House is also a residential establishment. The dual use of this facility 
as a day centre is reported to create disruption for the residential residents 
and can be confusing for both day centre and residential clients. The 
residential service is subject to a separate review. Gordon Avenue is also 
linked to a residential service. However this service has a separate entrance 
and therefore disruption is not considered an issue.  
 
Bentley NRC caters for people with physical and complex disabilities, with a 
capacity for 64 places per day, and Milmans NRC caters for older people, 
with a capacity 50 places per day. Bentley has 74 registered users and 
Milmans has 106. They are not tied into contracts in the same way as the 
NRCs.  
 
The current net cost of the seven in-house services is £3,393,441 inclusive 
of support costs. 

84



 7

 
Continuous Improvement Exercise 
Day services are not regulated by the Care Quality Commission (CQC), 
however the council conducted a Continuous Improvement Exercise in 2012. 
This is part of the council’s robust quality assurance programme which is 
designed to ensure that services are safe, high quality and focused on 
supporting people to achieve outcomes.  
 
This programme focused on client information systems, day centre usage, day 
centre staffing and the relationship with care management. The exercise 
found a mixed picture. It identified that the council services generally offer a 
high standard of support to those that use them but that there are a number of 
areas for improvement. These include the need for an increased 
understanding of personal budgets and choice, including our online social 
care portal; exploring opportunities for income generation; reducing the 
restraints posed by transport; and updating support plans and risk 
assessments.  
 
As part of our quality assurance programme we have employed a number of 
service users and carers acting as Local Account Representatives (LARs) to 
help us to identify what ‘Excellent’ quality looked like from their perspective.  
The LARs developed their own day service questionnaire and collected the 
feedback themselves in the day centres and collated the results.   
 
During the exercise an analysis was undertaken to identify the extent to which 
the capacity of the services is used. The following table shows the number of 
units and the average capacity of each: 
 
 
 
 
Day Centre Client 

capacity per 
day 

Av. no of 
clients per day  

% of capacity 
used  

Total no of 
service users 

Vaughan PFI 30 27 90% 35 
Kenmore PFI  30 28 93% 31 
Byron PFI  40 24 60% 25 
Bedford 9 7 78% 10 
Gordon Av 9 7 78% 9 
Bentley 64 27 42% 74 
Milmans 50 22 44% 106 

 
Capacity is based on standard Monday to Friday opening times, and does not 
consider potential for weekend or evening use. The level of capacity used 
demonstrates that services are not currently supporting the number of people 
expected. The reasons for this are discussed in the next section. This leads to 
services which are inefficient as service costs and staffing levels need to 
remain largely the same in order to ensure safety, but we are supporting fewer 
people.  
 
 
 
 

85



 8

2.2.2 Analysis of people using internal services 
Everyone who uses these in-house day service has been assessed as having 
substantial or critical needs in accordance with eligibility under the prioritising 
needs guidance.  
 
In April 2012 the Fairer Contributions Policy introduced charging for day care. 
This has led to a reduction in service user attendance. As previously 
referenced the impact of this policy is particularly evident at Milmans and 
Bentley as they have seen overall reductions in client numbers of 29 and 10 
respectively. There has been less impact upon the learning disability services 
as people with a learning disability are less likely to be affected by means 
tested charges. In addition to reduced numbers, day services have found that 
some service users continue to attend but for fewer days each week.  
 
 
 
 
 
There is a clear need to ensure that the services we provide are efficient and 
meeting needs effectively. Byron, Bentley and Milmans are all operating at 
less than 60% occupancy, whilst the services provided at Gordon Avenue and 
Bedford House are very small. When taken alongside information for the 
number of people accessing services in Section 2.3.1 of this report, the 
information on services and service usage shows a need to rationalise and 
reduce the number of buildings we use as internal day services. 
 
 
 
 
 
At present there is evidence that young people with disabilities are either not 
able to, or do not want to, access in-house day services. Of 30 people aged 
18-25 accessing day services (external and internal), only five (16.5%) are 
attending the NRCs. The remaining 25 are accessing externally provided 
provision at a cost of £382,044 per year.   
 
We have effective protocols in place between adult and children’s services to 
identify young people who we expect to transition from children’s to adult 
social care. Once we have identified them we work with them and their carer’s 
to identify their needs and the services that will best meet them. Through this 
process we have been able to identify that a number of young people would 
be happy to use internal services assuming age appropriate activities can be 
provided.  
 
Ensuring that in-house services are meeting the needs of young people with 
high needs will be an important outcome from this review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As part of the development of the service model we will need to 
ensure that services are attractive to, and able to meet the needs of 
young people with disabilities.  
 

As part of the development of the service model we will need to 
identify options to tackle the fact that some internal day services are 
substantially below capacity and therefore currently inefficient. 
 

As part of the consultation process we expect to develop 
recommendations to reduce the number of buildings in use as part of 
the development of the longer-term vision of a new model.  
 

86



 9

 
2.2.3 External day services 
In addition to the in-house day services the council currently uses a wide 
range of externally provided services. At present some 400 people attend 
these services. We use these services due to particular specialist needs (such 
as severe challenging behaviour) that NRCs are not currently able to meet, 
and to provide service user choice. Use of a range of services will continue to 
be important as service users take more choices about the services they wish 
to receive. 
 
Block contracts 
A block contract is in place for services provided at the Sancroft Hall Project. 
This is also a PFI project established in 1999 and is under contract for a 
period of 25 years. As referred to above this is the standard length of 
contracts related to a PFI arrangement, as it allows the private sector partners 
to re-coup their costs. Residential care and respite care are also provided 
through this contract. This PFI project is a partnership with Catalyst, who 
owns the building, and Fremantle Trust, who provide care. 
 
Three day care services are provided at Sancroft Hall. These include: Byron 
(for older people with dementia – not the same as the Harrow provided one for 
people with learning disabilities), Anjali and Maya (for older Asian people, and 
Asian people with dementia). Each of these services are run on different days 
of the week. These services help to ensure that we are able to meet culturally 
specific needs of older people from the Asian community within the day 
services available in the borough.  
 
The contract covers block provision of 250 day care places in total, per week 
at an annual cost of £489,580. Any changes to this service in terms of 
provision, costs or other arrangements require negotiation with the partners.  
 
Sancroft’s Byron supports 70 older people including many with dementia; 
Anjali supports 105 older people from the Asian community; whilst Maya 
supports a further 39 older Asian people. The daily rate for these services is 
£37.66.  
 
Personal Budgets 
The remainder of the services are commissioned by individuals via personal 
budgets. The total spend on externally-provided day care is £1,853,831 per 
year (out of £5.247m overall). The daily cost of day services varies from the 
lowest at £17 per day to the highest at £240 per day.  
 
The three highest cost services are focussed on supporting people with 
learning disability with additional needs (profound disabilities or autism and 
challenging behaviour). Choice for these client groups is limited as there are a 
small number of services able to meet their needs.  
 
A detailed breakdown of external day services can be found in Appendix 2. 
 
These services undergo robust quality assurance processes. These include 
service user surveys, face to face meetings with families and carers and 
audits to ensure continuous improvement. In the future people who use 

87



 10

services will also be able to comment or rate services via the council’s on-line 
social care market portal.  
 
Community Engagement - Musical Theatre Experience 
Increasingly there is a role for the community to support people with care and 
support needs within the community. This is an area that the voluntary sector 
contributes to in particular. 
 
One example of this was in August 2012 when a new pilot community project 
for vulnerable people took place in Edgware. Twenty service users with 
learning disabilities signed up alongside a group of young people, for the 
musical theatre experience. It included experience of behind the scenes 
theatre work such as lighting and costume design as well as performing skills. 
Those who took part said they “liked the dancing; going onto stage; playing 
instruments; and proud to have taken part.” One participant said it was the 
best thing they had done in their whole life.  
 
The idea behind the project came from feedback from users of the Council’s 
on-line social care market portal and users of the borough’s resource day 
centres.  
 

As part of the consultation process we expect to develop 
recommendations for increasing the role of the community in 
supporting vulnerable adults  
 

88



 11

 
 
 
2.3 Why a change is needed 
 
The Case for Change 
This section briefly outlines the case for changing the way that we provide day 
opportunities. These are then outlined further in the rest of this section of the 
report.  
 

• In Section 2.3.1 we outline the need for financial savings and improved 
efficiency.  This section sets out benchmarking data that indicates the 
council spends relatively more on day services than on other adult social 
care services. It suggests that a high number of people use these services 
and that some of these are expensive to deliver. In the current financial 
climate this underlines the need to make sure we meet needs as efficiently 
as possible.   

 

• Section 2.3.2 deals with demographic change. It shows an increasing 
number of people likely to need services in the future, with increasingly 
complex needs. Despite reducing resources the council will need to 
continue to meet statutory requirements for support and will need to find 
new ways of doing so. Increasing numbers of older people with dementia 
and people with complex disabilities will bring particular challenges. 

 

• Section 2.3.3 sets out the statutory and policy framework including the 
importance of ensuring that people are supported to be as independent as 
possible. This means reducing the need for costly residential and hospital 
care, and providing preventative day opportunities for those with lower 
level needs, including opportunities for meaningful employment for adults. 
The framework stresses the importance of choice and control, in the 
context of the Government’s personalisation agenda.  

 
 
2.3.1 Financial & Efficiency Need 
Spending on public services across the whole of the public sector, and local 
government in particular, is in a period of decline. The London Borough of 
Harrow is required to save substantial amounts in order to balance its budget 
up until at least 2017, the earliest at which the current period of austerity is 
anticipated to end.  
 
The total budgeted cost of the current day service activities is £5.247m per 
year. This represents approximately 7% of adult social care spending in 
Harrow, and is a service area that needs to demonstrate excellent value for 
money and outcomes.   
 
Benchmarking 
In all areas other than day services Adult Social Care in Harrow is considered 
high performing and low spending when compared to other local authorities. 
As Harrow is a low funded council, in general we aim for our services to be in 
the lower quartile on spend.  

89



 12

 
Benchmarking from NASCIS, the national social care data service, using 
2011/12 information shows that Harrow has a significantly higher than 
average number of people using day services and that the overall cost of 
these services is above average. The benchmarking used in this report 
compares Harrow against all London Boroughs. It is important to note that this 
is one of a number of comparator groups, and others may show different 
comparisons.  
 
As we have stated earlier in this report since April 2012 there have been 
changes to the usage of services in the borough following the implementation 
of fairer charging – however this benchmarking information still gives us 
important information about the pattern and cost of services.  
 
The table below shows the cost per head of the population of day services in 
the borough. This is an indication of the total amount spent on day services 
and a comparison of how much this is compared to other London Boroughs.  
 
Figure 2 (below) shows that Harrow’s overall spend on day services for adults 
is  above the average level for a London borough. Given the council’s 
relatively low spend on adult social care this shows that a disproportionate 
amount is used for day services. One reason for this is likely to be that we 
continue to provide a number of day services in house, with related support 
costs. The chart shows that spending on both learning disabilities and 
physical disabilities is in the top quartile, whilst spending on older people is in 
the lowest.  
 

Total cost of day service per head of population

£0

£50

£100

£150

£200

£250

£300

£350

£400

£450

Harrow Lower Quartile London Average Upper Quartile

Physical disability

Older people

Learning disability

 
Figure 2 – bar chart showing total costs of day services per head of population 

 
 
Further analysis demonstrates that this is caused by a high number of people 
using services. Figure 3 below shows that Harrow is in the top quartile in 
terms of numbers of people accessing services.  

90



 13

 

Number of service users per 100,000 population

285260

220
295

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Harrow Lower Quartile London Average Upper Quartile

 
Figure 3 – bar chart the numbers of adults with social care needs accessing day services per head of the population 

 
Figure 4 (below) shows the costs per service user for older people and then 
for people of working age. Consistent with the other charts this shows that 
services to older people appear to be very cost effective, whilst those for 
young adults are more expensive in comparison to other London boroughs.  
 

Cost per service user for day services for people 

over 65

£2,848
£3,490

£6,336

£8,336

£0

£1,000

£2,000

£3,000

£4,000

£5,000

£6,000

£7,000

£8,000

£9,000

Harrow Lower Quartile London Average Upper Quartile

 
Figure 4 – bar chart showing annual cost per service user for day services for people over 65 

 
The cost per service user for Harrow is comfortably within the lowest quartile. 
This is a reflection of the fact that the majority of older people access Milman’s 
Day service for only one day per week, thereby enabling the service to 
support a larger number of people.  

91



 14

Cost per service user for day services to adults 

under 65 years old

£15,962

£9,446

£13,327

£17,511

£0

£2,000

£4,000

£6,000

£8,000

£10,000

£12,000

£14,000

£16,000

£18,000

£20,000

Harrow Lower Quartile London Average Upper Quartile

 
Figure 5 – bar chart showing annual annual cost per service user for day services for people under 65 years old 

 
Figure 5 shows that the cost per service users with learning and physical 
disabilities of using day services is in the top half, but not the top quartile. The 
relatively higher cost per person reflects both the complexity of support 
needed by many people with learning disabilities and the fact that many 
service users attend the internal services for five days each week.  
 
The analysis above shows that Harrow is paying relatively more for people to 
attend day services than would be expected. The charts show that the high 
number of people attending services is likely to be the main cause of this, but 
that higher than average costs of supporting in people aged below 65 is also a 
factor.  
 
Benchmarking and Personalisation 
The information set out above must be taken in the context of personalisation. 
As Harrow are moving towards every eligible user having a personal budget 
by the end of 2012/13 the cost of services needs to be seen in terms of 
affordability for service users rather than for the council as a whole. In the 
future individuals will be given a financial allocation from which they need to 
purchase services to meet their assessed needs.  
 
In this context it becomes clear that the council needs to ensure the provision 
of affordable and high quality services, whether directly provided or in the 
market place. This has very important potential implications for the provision 
of internal services as they will no longer have a guarantee that people will 
choose to use them.  
 
Figure 6 below shows the average cost per week of council provided, spot 
purchased and block contracted day services used by service users in the 
borough.  

92



 15

Average Cost per Unit by Service Type

£47.75
£37.66

£86.76

£0.00

£10.00

£20.00

£30.00

£40.00

£50.00

£60.00

£70.00

£80.00

£90.00

£100.00

Internal Block Spot

 
Figure 6 – bar chart showing weekly cost per service user in different contract models 

 
The table shows that whilst block contracted services are least expensive, the 
internal services are relatively cost effective compared to spot purchased 
services.  
 
These averages can be mis-leading however. Firstly as services meet a 
variety of needs they do not have standard costs. This explains why the cost 
of providing support to people with learning disabilities varies from £17 to 
£240 per day. When day services that provide specialist support to adults with 
learning disabilities and challenging behaviour are excluded the average cost 
of spot purchased services reduces to £61.33.  
 
The conclusion from this analysis is that in the future only services that are 
cost effective and able to meet people’s needs within their personal budget 
entitlement will be sustainable. Internal services may well be more sustainable 
if they specialise and support people with higher support needs requiring 
complex support packages, where these needs cannot be effectively met 
within the wider community.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
All of the analysis set out demonstrates the need for a clear and strategic 
approach to the market of day opportunities in the borough. The council has a 
number of internal day services but currently uses a wide range of additional 
services from external suppliers.  
 
An important aspect of the efficiency of day services is in terms of the 
outcomes that service users are able to achieve. Highly effective day services 

It will be important to ensure that internal services are sustainable in 
the future, by offering services that are competitively priced within 
the market. This will mean therefore that they will need to focus on 
supporting people with more complex needs.  
 

93



 16

which support people to access employment, or support people to remain 
independent can contribute significantly to savings targets by preventing a 
need for on-going services, or higher cost packages of services for 
individuals.  
 
2.3.2 Demographic Change  
There are a number of demographic and social factors affecting the 
population of Harrow which will require more effective use of resources to 
meet growing and changing needs and aspirations.  
 
We have used a range of data sources including local and the national PANSI 
(Projecting Adult Needs and Service Information) dataset to understand 
demographic and demand changes. This section provides a short summary of 
the key factors relevant to this review. 
 
All of the demographic information points to changing needs and increasing 
levels of demand for services. These call for different ways of delivering 
services which are more flexible to people’s needs and able to change over 
time with the community.  
 
Key Statistics from the 2011 Census are being released throughout 2012 and 
2013. This data will be used to inform final recommendations made following 
consultation on this review. The latest available data, released on December 
11th has identified that Harrow has become increasingly ethnically diverse 
over the past ten years, and suggests users of social care services will need 
to be increasingly culturally sensitive and flexible to community needs in the 
future.  
 
2.3.2.1 Older People 
Older people make up the largest group of people using health and social 
care services. We have seen a significant growth in the number of older 
people in the borough in the past 10 years. Projecting forward we expect to 
see this continue with a further 9% increase in the population over 65 by 
2016. The same time period will see an 18% increase in the number of people 
over 90.  
 
In addition to these increases in population we expect to see continued trends 
in a number of areas which affect social care demand. This includes 
increased numbers of older people; living alone, living with a long term limiting 
illness, with dementia, providing unpaid care despite having poor health 
themselves.  
 
Last year more than 4000 older people received a service from adult services 
in the borough. Of these 85% were supported to live independently through a 
range of community services including 11% receiving a day care service.  
 
The number of people with dementia is a particular issue for older people’s 
services. This is particularly true in relation to people aged over 90 (the group 
growing most quickly) in which approximately 1 in 3 have dementia.  
 
Key Issues for Services for Older People: 

94



 17

• People are living longer, but with more complex conditions such as 
dementia and chronic illnesses. Older people often have multiple health 
problems and are more likely to be admitted to hospital  

• Dementia in particular is going to be an increasing challenge over time.  
As the population ages this will have significant impacts on social care 
demand.   

• Services need to focus on promoting and maintaining older people’s 
independence and so reduce the need for residential and acute 
hospital care 

• Older people’s expectations have increased and older years are 
anticipated as a period of fulfilment and independence 

• The vast majority of older people want to live in their own homes for as 
long as possible. This means giving older people as much choice and 
control as possible so that they can live the life they want with services 
tailored to their needs 

 
 
2.3.2.2 Learning Disabilities (adults aged 18-64) 
We expect to see further increases in the number of adults in Harrow with a 
learning disability in the coming years. The number is expected to increase by 
2% to 3,772 by 2015, an increase of approximately 30 people in each year.   
 
Last year there were 430 adults with a learning disability who received a 
service from adult services. Of these, 71% received services in the 
community, including 35% who received a day care service. 
 
Those expected to have a severe learning disability and therefore most likely 
to require day opportunities is set to increase by 10 people in the next three 
years.  
 
Autism among adults is an area of particular concern. The number of people 
with an autistic spectrum disorder in Harrow is expected to increase by 96 
between 2011 and 2020. In addition improved diagnosis, identification and 
understanding will mean that more people with conditions become known to 
adult services. 
 
Transition from child to adulthood is another major area of concern. We 
already know of 45 young people who will be entering adult services in the 
next two years who may require access to day opportunities, education, 
training or employment. Many of these are children with very complex needs 
who will need specialist care and support.  
 
This trend will continue in the future as advances in medical treatment mean 
more young people with very complex, multiple needs are surviving into 
adulthood. More young people are being assessed with more complex and 
dual disabilities such as learning disability and mental health, autism, 
challenging behaviour or severe physical disabilities. 
 
Key Issues for Services for People with Learning Disabilities: 

• Services need to be able to support people with more challenging and 
higher needs. These will increasingly be the people who access 
building based services 

95



 18

• Supporting people to achieve and maintain independence will be of 
central importance to learning disabilities in the future. In particular 
supporting people to access meaningful employment is the key to 
supporting people to have a higher standard of living and greater 
choice and control 

 
2.3.2.3 Physical and/or Sensory Disabilities (adults aged 18-65) 
The number of adults of working age with a moderate or severe physical 
disability is projected to grow by 5% by 2016 to 15,362. The numbers of 
people who have a sensory disability are expected to increase in the next 4 
years by 3.9% for people who have a serious visual impairment and 6.2% 
people who have a profound hearing impairment.  
 
Last year there were 717 adults with a physical disability or sensory 
impairment who received a service from adult services. Two thirds of these 
people reported a physical disability, whilst others had a hearing or visual 
impairment. The majority (95%) accessed community based services, which 
included 8% using a day care service. 
 
Key Issues for Services for People with Physical of Sensory Disabilities: 

• Through day opportunities to support more disabled people into paid 
employment by working with the Jobcentre plus service 

• Improve our understanding of the needs of disabled people in Harrow 
particularly the needs of people with neurological conditions that 
require specialist care and support  

 
2.3.2.4 Conclusion 
All of the evidence outlined above points to a need to support a larger number 
of people at the same time as we are faced with diminishing resources. New 
models and methods of support will be needed to support a broader range of 
people with increasingly complex needs.  
 
There will be a particular challenge to be able to support preventative services 
for a number of people with lower level needs alongside targeted specialised 
provision for those with profound and complex learning disabilities, those 
young people transitioning into adulthood with challenging behaviour and 
people with dementia.  
 
2.3.3 Statutory Framework and Guidance 
Under s.29 of the National Assistance Act 1948 disabled people are entitled to 
non residential, community services. Local authorities are directed to provide, 
whether at centres or elsewhere, facilities for occupational, social, cultural and 
recreational activities. This can includes day centres, workshops, recreational 
and educational activities, as well as art, sport and drama. Under s.2 of the 
Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970 the local authority has a duty 
to provide services to those who are assessed as eligible. These include 
recreational services and educational facilities. These statutes determine that 
the council needs to continue to support adults to have access to a range of 
activities to support their social inclusion and their development, however the 
way services are provided and needs are met is not specified..   
 

96



 19

The personalisation agenda as outlined in Putting People First in 2007 
continues to provide the driving strategic force for adult social care in England. 
One of the key expectations of this agenda is that people will be supported to 
live as independently as possible, providing them maximum choice and 
control. Services should be as “personalised” as possible with the assumption 
that people should be provided with choice and control over how their needs 
are met.  

In January 2011 the Think Local, Act Personal (TLAP) Partnership built 
upon Putting People First with an updated framework for delivering more 
personalised social care. This framework expressed the need for a cross 
sector partnership focused on driving forward work on personalised, 
community based social care.  

The recent Care and Support Bill indicates that local councils will be given a 

legal responsibility to promote a range of high quality services that meet the 

needs of the community with a focus on prevention and the needs and goals 

of people requiring care. The Department of Health launched a new 

programme to help provide more choice and higher quality of care and 

support services across the country. 

The Developing Care Markets for Quality and Choice (DCMQC) programme 

will help local authorities build their capacity to shape a diverse, vibrant and 

high quality market for social care services. The programme will improve 

choice, provide tailored care and focus care on the outcomes that matter to 

people. 

This reinforces the Government’s commitment in the Caring for our Future 

White Paper. In the draft Care and Support Bill local councils will be given a 

legal responsibility to promote a range of high quality services that meet the 

needs of the community.  

In relation to Learning Disabilities the key strategic framework for local 
authorities is Valuing People Now which was published in 2009. It 
recommends that people with a learning disability should be included in local 
community provision and therefore avoid the creation of segregated provision 
and set out a challenging task for councils to modernise their day services.  

In 2010, best practice guidance was published by the Department of Health 
on setting eligibility criteria for adult social care (“the Prioritising Need 
Guidance”). This guidance is published in the context of promoting 
personalisation and choice and makes clear that this will only be appropriate 
when support is put into universal services and early intervention and 
prevention.  It also highlights the importance of utilising all relevant community 
resources, including the voluntary sector. 

This framework sets out clearly the importance of ensuring that people are 
supported to be as independent as possible and to ensure that services are 
tailored to individual needs and abilities. It will be important to ensure that 
changes implemented following consultation are in line with this framework. 
There is no national strategy that covers all people with a physical or sensory 

97



 20

disability. Improving the Life Chances of Disabled People (January 2005) and 
the Independent Living Strategy (February 2008) both have the aim of 
promoting opportunities for choice and independence for all disabled people. 
This is to be achieved through the use of individual budgets, improving 
information and advice available and in improving the transition process for 
young disabled people.  

The National Service Framework for Older People was published in March 
2001 setting out national standards for the health and social care of older 
people in England. Since 2001 there has been a move away from age-specific 
guidance in favour of wider frameworks focussed on independence, control, 
early intervention and the role of local communities in supporting older people.  
Therefore this has been overtaken by the Personalisation agenda 
 
All of this guidance points to the need for high quality and personalised 
services. Day services in the future will need to be very different from services 
provided in the past. There is an expectation that they will be user led, through 
personal budgets rather than block contracts and that they will be flexible and 
able to meet individual’s aspirations.  
 
The emphasis on control and choice, personalisation and individual budgets 
as well as more use of community and voluntary sector resources indicates an 
increasing need to move away from local authorities providing direct in-house 
services to providing personal budgets. 
 
 
 
 
 
In addition this guidance points increasingly to the suggestion that services 
should be integrated between health and social care in order to ensure that 
citizens are able to access seamless services to meet the full spectrum of 
their needs.  
 
 

 
 
 
2.4 Developing a Service Model 
This report outlines the need for a new and coherent model of services, 
transforming ‘day services’ to ‘day opportunities’.  
 
In order to develop this model in detail we wish to engage with partner 
organisations, service users, carer’s and other local people. We would expect 
our future model to be dedicated to ensuring that adults have the 
individualised support they need to be as independent as possible and to 
have happy and fulfilling lives.  
 
The model that we arrive at needs to build upon the key findings set out in this 
report, as well as from the experience of other areas undertaking similar 
reviews and the findings of our consultation. In this way we hope to arrive at 

As part of the consultation process we expect to develop 
recommendations for developing the market of day opportunities to 
ensure people have a choice of services 
 

As part of the consultation process we expect to develop 
recommendations for closer integration between health and social 
care services in the provision of day opportunities  
 

98



 21

the most effective model of services which uses the resources available to us 
to achieve the best possible outcomes.  
 
In summary the key findings and priorities that we need to meet in the new 
service model are: 

• That services and the model are personalised, allowing individual 
choice and control for service users 

• That local services are able to meet the needs of those with the most 
complex needs, those with dementia, and young people as they 
transition into adult services  

• That services are “future-proofed” in order to be able to cope with 
increasing numbers of people needing services as a result of 
demographic change 

• That services are more integrated with the health service and include 
opportunities to develop for a joint approach to prevention 

• That efficiencies are achieved and the over-capacity of provision that 
we appear to have is tackled 

• That there is a solution to the problem of providing support to a 
relatively large number of people in relatively high cost services 

 
Over the past five years there have been a number of strategic reviews of day 
opportunities in different parts of the country that have come to differing 
conclusions about the best way to deliver day opportunities. Appendix 3  
provides information on reviews and changes to Day Care models in other 
Local Authorities.   
 
Proposed model 
Taking account all of the information in this report we have identified the 
following aspects of a proposed model of services, that we are seeking 
Cabinet’s approval to enter a period of consultation upon. 
 
The aspects of the model are: 
 

1. That we explore through consultation whether there are opportunities to 
integrate with the health service to develop an offer which improves 
local preventative activities 

 
2. That the services directly provided by the council focus on supporting 

those with the highest needs, and develop specialisms, such as 
supporting those with complex learning disabilities and supporting 
people with advanced dementia 

 
3. That we rationalise the number of building based council run day 

services in order to deliver efficiencies and reduce the current over-
capacity of services 

 
4. That we explore options to continue to support people with lower level 

needs, potentially through models such as open access services, or 
through working with the voluntary sector in new ways  

 

99



 22

5. Encourage community engagement in the delivery of services to 
vulnerable adults. In particular increasing opportunities for volunteering, 
peer support and supported employment.  

 
Cabinet are asked to agree to a period of consultation with partners, staff, 
local service users and carer’s upon these broad proposals in order to define 
the most effective way to deliver day opportunities in the future. The 
consultation will explore each of the aspects of the model and how to make 
them work most effectively. It will also consider any additional options and 
suggestions raised during the period.  
 
Following the consultation a final report would be developed with a set of 
recommendations to be considered for approval by Cabinet in July 2013 for 
implementation from October 2013. 

 

2.5 Options considered  
 
Proposed option: This report requests Cabinet approval to commence 
consultation on a new model of day activities. This is on the basis that 
identifying key priorities prior to engaging the community in further developing 
the service model ensures that we are able to have meaningful consultation 
which is based on intelligence about what works and what is needed.  
 
Do nothing option: Continuing to provide and commission services as we 
currently do is not considered a realistic option. This would both fail to achieve 
the required level of efficiencies and would fail to deliver on potential for 
improved outcomes and a better strategic fit 
 
We expect to return to cabinet in July at which point options and 
recommendations from the consultation will be proposed.  
 
 

2.6 Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
The Council is yet to carry out formal consultation regarding these proposals - 
approval to do so is one recommendation of this report.  
 
Full consultation will take place subject to Cabinet agreement to carry out 
consultation with service users, families and staff.  As part of the consultation 
we would carry out a further EqIA, building upon the initial EqIA reported 
below.   
 
2.6.1 Equalities 
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. 
When making decisions in relation to service provision and in particular 
changing policies and the way services are provided, the Council must take 
account of the equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected 
groups.   
  
An initial equalities impact assessment (EqIA) has been carried out. The key 
findings were as follows: 

100



 23

• The needs for a further EqIA to be undertaken in conjunction with the 
consultation exercise proposed by this report.  

• The review of current service provision carried out to date has 
considered the demography, trends and current service provision 
against individual service user needs and gives an overall case for the 
proposed changes.  

• There are expected to be service user and staff impacts but owing to 
the potentially sensitive nature of the proposals full and open 
consultation requires approval by Cabinet. 

 
2.7 Consultation process 
Adult services undertake a large amount of service user consultation on an 
on-going basis and as part of their quality assurance systems – this is a 
fundamental aspect of the way that the department works. Within any year we 
have 45 ways to receive feedback from service users and/or carers.  
 
This report requests permission from Cabinet to undertake a full formal 
consultation on significant changes to day services. As such we have not 
undertaken formal consultation to date.  
 
A decision has been made through the Medium Term Financial Strategy in 
February 2012, to achieve savings from day services. Therefore subject to 
Cabinet approval of recommendations the consultation will focus on how to 
deliver services within the reduced financial budgets set out in the MTFS.   
 
Subject to Cabinet agreement the consultation will include service users, 
potential service users, carers, staff and Unions. The timetable would be as 
follows: 

• Consultation starts February 2013 

• End of consultation 12 weeks later – May 

• Return to cabinet in July 2013 

• Implementation from October 2013 – dependent upon options selected 
 
Service Users and their families  
Consultation if approved by Cabinet will start at the beginning of February and 
go through until April 26th. A consultation event will be arranged for each of 
the day services. In addition we will arrange focus groups for users of 
externally provided services including young people in transition from children 
to adult services.   
 
Information in accessible formats such as easy read will be available from 
(date) to outline the reason for the review and the consultation process.  
 
Staff  
Meetings will take place for staff delivering services. It is important to ensure 
that staff are aware of the review and its potential implications at the same 
time as service users so that they are able to provide service users with 
support if they want to ask questions following their meeting. Meetings will 
also take place with Unions.  
 

101



 24

Following the 12 week consultation period a report would be prepared 
summarising the consultation responses and this would be presented in 
together with detailed proposals to Cabinet in July for further consideration.  
 
 
 
 

3. Implications of the Recommendation 
 

3.1 Financial Implications 
 
3.1.1 Capital  
Capital considerations will be an important factor in developing final 
recommendations for the future of day opportunities. This will include 
considerations about future costs and opportunities of each of the building 
used and any potential for alternatives.  
 
It is likely that the new model for day opportunities will lead to changes in the 
way that services are provided and the way in which facilities are utilised. As 
stated earlier in this report there is a need to rationalise and consolidate the 
buildings that we use for day services. This would result in buildings being 
made available for disposal or alternative use. We will seek to consider capital 
opportunities widely including possible change of use, or multiple usages of 
facilities in order to ensure the most efficient use of resources. There may also 
be opportunities for improvement and investment alongside any disposals.  
 
Three of the internal services under consideration in this review are owned by 
the council. These are Milmans, Bentley and Bedford House.  
 
Bedford House day care is provided in a building that also provides residential 
services. There is an ongoing review of residential services, including Bedford 
House, which may also have capital implications for the building.  
 
 
3.1.2 Revenue  
See also section 2.3.1.  
 
This report asks for permission to consult. The consultation will consider 
recommendations that will impact on revenue – including achieving savings of 
at least £300k in 2013/14 and a further £300k in 2014/15 to meet existing 
MTFS commitments. 
 
The council receives income from client contributions under the Council’s 
Fairer Contributions Policy. Day services have only become subject to 
charging as from 1st April 2012. We do not expect that there will be changes in 
the level of income we receive as a result of this paper.  
 
There are specific savings targets that have been agreed for adult social care 
which are linked to transformation of day services.  It will be important for the 
council to hold funds in contingency, in the event that Cabinet do not approve 
final recommendations to deliver them.  
 

102



 25

One potential revenue implication of the outcomes of this review would be that 
internal services may cease to be sustainable. As people increasingly make 
informed choices about the way that they wish to spend their personal 
budgets it is possible that a significant proportion choose to move away from 
NRCs in the future. This will be an issue that needs to be closely monitored 
when final recommendations are made.  
 
A final consideration is that changes to the way that services are delivered 
may impact upon SSCs (management recharges) in the council. Potential 
impacts would be identified when final recommendations are taken to cabinet.  
 
3.1.3 Staffing Implications 
 We have conducted some initial analysis and found that the total number of 
staff working in all Harrow’s day services total 62.1 whole time equivalents. 
Currently 18% of the staffing positions are covered by agency staff which 
could assist in reducing the impact of any redundancies that may be required 
in the implementation of a future model for day opportunities.  
 
We would expect that moving to a new service model a full staffing restructure 
would be required. This would be to ensure that people are deployed in the 
appropriate services. Additional training may be required to implement new 
models effectively.  
 
It will not be possible to accurately identify staffing implications until 
consultation has been completed and recommendations are available to be 
considered by Cabinet. Following this development of detailed service 
specifications will shape a clear understanding of staffing requirements.  
 
The Council is aware of a possible risk of redundancies. Once reconfiguration 
plans have been confirmed, the full detail of these implications will be 
identified. Officers will work to prevent and reduce the need for redundancies 
where ever possible.  .   
 

3.2 Legal implications  
  
The statutory framework for the provision of these services is set out 
elsewhere in this report. 
 
There is a proposal to undertaken consultation on the review of day services.  
When undertaking consultation, the Council must ensure that it is carried out 
at a formative stage, sufficient time and information is provided to enable the 
consultees to understand the impact of the proposal and respond and the 
result of consultation is fed back to the decision maker, in this case Cabinet.  
Consultation responses can also be used to help identify any equality 
implications of a proposed decision.    
 
The Council is under a duty to provide certain services and has the power to 
provide other services.  The Council can decide to change the way services 
are provided for policy and financial reasons; however it must ensure it 
continues to meet its statutory duties and takes account of guidance when 
making decisions on service provision.  If changes are made to the services 
provided to individuals, the Council must take account of the impact of its 

103



 26

decision on those individuals and ensure that an individual’s assessed needs 
can continue to be met, albeit possibly in a different way.   
 

3.3. Performance Issues 
 
National Measures 
Harrow has been a national leader in personalisation and has developed a 
pathway and a range of services to ensure that people have as much choice 
and control over their care and support as possible. The borough has a 
substantial track record of improvement and an approach that focuses on 
supporting people to be as independent as possible.  
 
Government policy direction is for all social care needs to be assessed and 
provided through the personalisation process.  Choice and flexibility are the 
cornerstones of personalisation. At least 70% of people requiring social care 
support should receive that support through a personal budget by April 2013. 
Harrow is working to achieve one hundred percent of eligible service users 
having a personal budget and ensure that individual choice is maximised 
through the council’s electronic social care market portal. A range of services 
provided by the statutory, private and voluntary sectors are advertised through 
this portal. 
 
We have analysed the satisfaction of service users attending day services as 
reported in the National User Survey in January 2012. The results show that 
57% of day centre users reported being ‘very’ or ‘extremely’ satisfied with 
services. In addition 64% of day centre users reported having at least 
‘adequate’ control over their daily lives and 80% said services helped them to 
remain in control.  
 
An important aspect of day service provision is supporting people to maintain 
social contact. In relation to this 70% of day centre users said that they could 
spend enough time with people they wanted to and 62% of day centre users 
said they could do enough of the things they wanted to in their free time.  This 
is higher than the overall average for all service users of 57% suggesting that 
these centres are contributing to positive outcomes. 
 
In implementing these recommendations we will build upon current 
arrangements to develop a quality assurance model based on the borough’s 
MJ magazine’s highly commended ‘QAQ’model and will utilise the insight of 
partners, users, carers and Council officers to track delivery.   
 
Performance targets will be set for services against the outcomes we’re trying 
to achieve and they will be monitored as individual services and as a group.  
Individual clients will have their outcomes reviewed to ensure services are 
meeting individual needs.   
 
It is important to note that the consultation on, and implementation of, 
recommendations coming out of the paper could potentially have an impact on 
levels of service user satisfaction. If Cabinet approve the recommendations 
we will be consulting with the community, potentially raising concerns of 
service users, at the same time as the annual National Social Care User 
survey.  This is because service users and their carers may feel a 

104



 27

considerable level of concern that they could lose services that they value 
highly. 
 

 
 
 
3.4. Environmental Impact 
 
The environmental impacts arising from the recommended option are as 
follows: - 

• Rationalising the number of buildings in use reduces energy utilised in 
the delivery of these services.  

• Further environmental impacts will be assessed in the report that will 
follow consultation on the wider day opportunities model.  

 

3.5. Risk Management Implications 
    

Risk included on Directorate risk register?  No  
  
Separate risk register in place?  Yes 
 
The risks that are outlined in this section relate to the proposed period of 
consultation rather than of implementing proposals. These will be updated 
with operational risks if recommendations are approved and a new report is 
considered in July. 
 
The key risks for the project are listed below with a rating of their impact and 
likelihood.  Mitigating actions are in place for all and the risks are 
manageable: - 

• That the consultation is not adequate – in that it fails to fully explain 
the consequences or fails to include all necessary parties 

• That the consultation is not representative and reflects the views of 
only a section of affected people 

• That the consultation leads to a reduction in satisfaction levels in the 
National User Survey in early 2013, affecting overall performance 

• Changes to day services are sensitive in nature as they support a 
number of people and are highly valued. There is a risk that 
consultation will lead to considerable negative publicity and 
campaigning 
 

3.6. Equalities implications 
 
The equality implications are set out in the main body of the report. 
 

3.7 Corporate Priorities 
 
This review relates to the following Corporate Priorities set out in the 2012/13 
Corporate Plan: 

• United and involved communities: a Council that listens and leads 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 

105



 28

 
The Community, Health and Wellbeing Directorate’s vision is: 
 
“Enhancing our resident’s quality of life, and offering excellent service” 
 

Section 4 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Roger Hampson x  Chief Financial Officer 

 
Date: 07/12/12 

   

 

   on behalf of the 

Name: Sarah Wilson x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 19/12/12 

   

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

    

Name: Alex Dewsnap x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 07/12/12 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 
 

    

Name: John Edwards x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 07/12/12 

  (Environmental 
Services)  

 
 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Thom Wilson, Head of Commissioning & Partnerships, 020 8736 

6022.  
 

 

106



 29

Background Papers:   
1. Putting people first: a shared vision and commitment to the transformation 
of adult social care - 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPol
icyAndGuidance/DH_081118  
 
2. Valuing people now: a new three-year strategy for people with learning 
disabilities –  
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPol
icyAndGuidance/DH_093377   
 
3. Think Local Act Personal – A-wide commitment to moving forward with 
personalisation and community-based support January 2011 
http://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/_library/Resources/Personalisation/TL
AP/THINK_LOCAL_ACT_PERSONAL_5_4_11.pdf  
 
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 

 

 
 
 

107



108

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 D
e

ta
il

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 i
n

-h
o

u
s

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 
C

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 u
s

a
g

e
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 

V
a

u
g

h
a

n
 N

R
C

  
L

o
c
a

te
d

 i
n
 W

e
s
t 

H
a

rr
o
w

 
c
lo

s
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 W
e
s
t 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

tu
b

e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
. 
  

T
h
e

 s
ta

ff
 t
e

a
m

 a
t 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 s

k
ill

s
 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
u
ti
s
m

 
a

n
d

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
in

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

  

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
: 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 a

t 
S

t 
P

e
te

r’
s
 C

h
u

rc
h

 
s
e

rv
in

g
 t

e
a

 a
n

d
 c

o
ff

e
e

, 
S

u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t 
in

 W
e
s
t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
fi
lli

n
g
 s

h
e

lv
e

s
’,
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g
 

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

c
lu

b
 a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
c
a
fe

, 
w

a
lk

 
4

 l
if
e

 f
u

n
d
 r

a
is

in
g
, 

 
C

o
o

k
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

lif
e

 a
n

d
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
/ 

g
ro

u
p

s
 e

tc
. 

A
n

im
a

l 
W

e
lf
a

re
 G

ro
u

p
, 
th

e
 

D
is

c
o

v
e

ry
 a

w
a

rd
 

 T
h
e

ra
p
e

u
ti
c
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

A
rt

 a
n
d

 c
ra

ft
s
, 
h

o
rt

ic
u

lt
u

re
, 

c
o

m
p
u

te
rs

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 l
if
e

 s
k
ill

s
, 

h
o

rs
e

 r
id

in
g
, 

a
llo

tm
e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 a

 s
e
n

s
o

ry
 s

e
s
s
io

n
. 
 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 3

0
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
, 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 2
7
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
d

a
y
. 

T
o
ta

l 
3
5

 u
s
e

rs
, 
m

o
s
t 

o
f 

w
h

o
m

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
iv

e
 d

a
y
s
 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k
. 

P
F

I 
w

it
h

 B
H

H
 L

IF
T

. 
T

h
e

 
b

u
ild

in
g
 a

ls
o

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

 
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 c
e
n

tr
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

 
e

x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

c
h

o
o

l’s
 c

lu
b
 

w
h

ic
h

 r
u

n
s
 f

ro
m

 l
a

te
 

a
ft

e
rn

o
o

n
. 

M
e

n
c
a

p
 u

s
e
 t

h
e

 
c
a

n
te

e
n

 o
n

 T
u

e
s
d
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 
o

c
c
a

s
io

n
a

l 
T

h
u

rs
d
a

y
s
. 

D
o

 n
o

t 
c
h

a
rg

e
 f
o

r 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
u

s
e

. 

K
e

n
m

o
re

 N
R

C
 

lo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 K
e

n
to

n
 

T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

a
s
 i
n

it
ia

lly
 

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h

 s
e

v
e

re
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 n

e
e

d
s
. 

O
v
e

r 
ti
m

e
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 t
o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
e

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

n
e

e
d

s
 

  
 

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
: 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
  
a
n

d
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
 C

o
u

rs
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
C

o
m

p
u

te
r 

S
k
ill

s
, 

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 w
o

rk
 a

t 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
h

u
rc

h
, 

g
a

rd
e
n

in
g
, 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

le
a
fl
e

ts
 f
o

r 
H

e
lp

lin
e
, 

re
c
e

p
ti
o
n

 
w

o
rk

 a
t 

th
e

 c
e
n

tr
e

, 
ra

is
in

g
 m

o
n
e

y
 

fo
r 

c
h

a
ri
ty

 i
.e

. 
C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n

 N
e

e
d

 
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
  

S
w

im
m

in
g
, 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 w

a
lk

in
g
 

IT
 s

k
ill

s
, 
W

e
ll 

m
e

n
’s

 a
n
d

 w
o

m
e

n
’s

 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 3

0
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 2
6
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
d

a
y
. 

T
o
ta

l 
3
1

 u
s
e

rs
  

P
F

I 
w

it
h

 B
H

H
 L

IF
T

  
N

o
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
u

s
e

 

109



C
e

n
tr

e
 

A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 
C

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 u
s

a
g

e
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 

g
ro

u
p

, 
M

a
k
a

to
n

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

k
ill

s
, 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 4
 

lif
e

, 
A

s
ia

n
 W

o
m

e
n

 S
p

o
rt

s
 d

a
y
 

,t
h

e
 B

ig
 H

e
a

lt
h

 D
a

y
 a

n
d

 c
o
ff

e
e

 
m

o
rn

in
g
s
 

B
y
ro

n
 P

a
rk

 R
C

 
lo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 W
e
a

ld
s
to

n
e

 n
e

x
t 

to
 t

h
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 c

e
n
tr

e
  

A
 h

u
b

 f
o

r 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
re

la
te

d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

F
E

 C
o

lle
g
e

s
 

m
a

k
e
 v

is
it
s
. 

R
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 

re
a

b
le

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
. 

 F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 –

 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
: 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 E

a
ti
n

g
, 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 

w
a

lk
 f

o
r 

lif
e

 a
n

d
 g

re
e
n

 g
y
m

, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
, 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 
w

o
rk

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

ri
p

s
, 
m

u
s
ic

 
th

e
ra

p
y
, 

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

v
e

l 
s
k
ill

s
, 

M
a

k
a

to
n
  

 W
o
rk

 S
k
ill

s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 

R
e

tr
e

a
t 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
e
n

tr
e

 c
a
fé

 
a

n
d

 R
e

d
 b

ri
c
k
 C

a
fé

, 
P

a
s
s
p

o
rt

 t
o

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 c
h
a

ri
ty

 s
h

o
p

 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 w
o

rk
, 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
re

c
e

p
ti
o
n

 d
u

ti
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
 T

h
e

ra
p
e

u
ti
c
 S

e
s
s
io

n
s
  

A
rt

s
 a

n
d

 C
ra

ft
s
, 
B

o
lly

w
o

o
d

 m
u

s
ic

 
a

n
d

 d
a

n
c
e

, 
g
a

rd
e

n
in

g
, 

tr
a

m
p
o

lin
in

g
, 

 a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 
lib

ra
ry

, 
s
n

o
o

k
e

r,
 t

a
b

le
 t
e

n
n

is
 a

n
d

 
p

h
o

to
g
ra

p
h

y
 

  

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 4

0
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 2
5
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
d

a
y
. 

 
 

P
F

I 
w

it
h

 B
H

H
 L

IF
T

  
T

h
e

 s
it
e

 i
s
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 A

s
h

ia
n

a
 

(L
e

a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 C

h
a

ri
ty

) 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 w

e
e

k
e

n
d

. 
 

B
e

d
fo

rd
 H

o
u

s
e

 D
a

y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
  

L
o

c
a

te
d

 i
n
 P

in
n

e
r 

G
re

e
n

. 
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

im
s
 t
o

 

F
o

c
u

s
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
- 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n

 t
h
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 9

 p
e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
d

a
y
, 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 7
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
. 

T
o
ta

l 
1
0

 u
s
e

rs
  

B
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

It
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

it
e
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
. 

N
o
 o

th
e

r 

110



C
e

n
tr

e
 

A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 
C

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 u
s

a
g

e
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 s
e

v
e

re
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 
a

u
ti
s
m

 

 A
rt

 a
n
d

 c
ra

ft
s
, 
tr

a
m

p
o

lin
in

g
, 

b
o

w
lin

g
, 

s
w

im
m

in
g
, 

c
o
o

k
in

g
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 o

u
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 w
a

lk
s
 a

n
d

 
a

 s
e

n
s
o

ry
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
a

y
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 s

p
a

c
e
. 

G
o

rd
o

n
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 

lo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

. 
T

h
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
s
e

v
e

re
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
, 

a
u

ti
s
m

, 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 

n
e

e
d

s
. 

 

F
o

c
u

s
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 A
c
ti
v
it
y
: 

- 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
c
e

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 o

u
ti
n

g
s
, 

lib
ra

ry
 v

is
it
s
, 

fi
lm

s
, 

g
a

rd
e

n
in

g
, 

c
o

o
k
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
 

b
a

k
in

g
, 

m
u

s
ic

 s
e

s
s
io

n
, 
a

rt
s
, 

c
ra

ft
s
 

a
n

d
 w

a
lk

s
. 

  

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 9

 p
e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
d

a
y
, 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 7
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
. 

T
o
ta

l 
9
 u

s
e

rs
 

N
o

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
u

s
e

. 

B
e

n
tl

e
y
 N

R
C

 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

 
W

e
a
ld

 
  

F
o

c
u

s
: 

R
e
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 S

k
ill

s
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t:
 

IT
 s

k
ill

s
 u

s
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

e
d

ia
 ,
 O

n
e

 
to

 O
n
e

 r
e

h
a

b
ili

ta
ti
o

n
, 

w
a

lk
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p

, 
h

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
e

r 
m

a
s
s
a

g
e

, 
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 s

k
ill

s
, 

w
e

ll 
m

e
n

’s
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll 
w

o
m

e
n

’s
 

g
ro

u
p

s
, 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 t
a

lk
s
, 

S
tr

o
k
e

 G
ro

u
p

, 
R

e
a
b

le
m

e
n
t 

G
ro

u
p

 
a

n
d

 Y
o

g
a

, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 n

u
tr

it
io

n
 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
, 
to

n
e

 a
n

d
 t

ri
m

, 
c
o
o

k
in

g
 

s
k
ill

s
, 

a
n

d
 s

w
im

m
in

g
. 
P

e
rs

o
n

 
C

e
n

tr
e

d
 P

la
n
n

in
g
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

r’
s
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

r 
e
n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
. 

 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 6

4
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
, 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 2
7
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
d

a
y
. 

(4
2

%
 u

ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
) 

T
o

ta
l 
7
4

 
u

s
e

rs
 

 T
h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
2

 a
s
 a

 
re

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

fa
ir
e

r 
c
h

a
rg

in
g
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 m

e
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t
o
 a

ff
o

rd
 t

o
 

p
a

y
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

tt
e
n

d
in

g
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

h
a

v
e

 c
h

o
s
e
n

 n
o

t 
to

 a
tt
e

n
d

 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n
 t

o
 p

a
y
. 

B
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il.

 1
3

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 f
a

c
ili

ty
, 

n
o

t 
c
h
a
rg

e
d

 
fo

r 
h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
re

a
s
o

n
s
, 

th
o

u
g
h

 a
 B

ri
d

g
e

 C
lu

b
 

m
a

k
e

s
 a

 d
o

n
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

£
5

1
 a

 
m

o
n
th

. 

M
il

m
a

n
s

 N
R

C
 

fo
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 
P

in
n

e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 A
c
ti
v
it
y
- 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e

 
N

e
w

s
p

a
p

e
r 

re
a

d
in

g
, 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
, 

q
u

iz
, 

b
in

g
o

, 
c
h

a
ir
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
, 

w
a

lk
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 m

u
s
ic

, 
re

m
in

is
c
in

g
, 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 5

0
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
, 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 2
3
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
e

r 
d

a
y
. 

(4
4

%
 u

ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
) 

 
T

o
ta

l 
1
0

6
 u

s
e

rs
, 
m

o
s
t 
o
f 

w
h

o
m

 
a

tt
e
n

d
 o

n
ly

 o
n

e
 d

a
y
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

 

B
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il.

 C
h

a
rg

e
s
 f
o

r 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
u

s
e

. 
C

ro
s
s
ro

a
d

s
 

ru
n

s
 a

 S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
o

r 
9

k
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
 

111



C
e

n
tr

e
 

A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 
C

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 u
s

a
g

e
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 

c
h

a
ir
 y

o
g
a

, 
a

rt
s
 a

n
d

 c
ra

ft
s
, 
fl
o

o
r 

g
a

m
e

s
, 

s
in

g
 a

 l
o

n
g
, 

ta
b

le
 t

e
n

n
is

, 
IT

, 
s
c
ra

b
b

le
, 

c
a

rd
 g

a
m

e
s
, 

d
o

m
in

o
e

s
 a

n
d

 j
ig

s
a

w
. 

 
R

e
a

b
le

m
e
n

t 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
, 
p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

fa
lls

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

m
o

s
t 
o
f 

w
h

o
m

 a
tt
e

n
d

 o
n

ly
 o

n
e

 
d

a
y
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

A
s
 w

it
h

 B
e

n
tl
e

y
 

th
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

tt
e
n

d
in

g
 

h
a

s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 a

s
 a

 
re

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f

a
ir
e

r 
c
h
a

rg
in

g
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

. 

  

112



Appendix 2 – External Day Service Provision 
 

Day Services 
Total 
No of 

Clients 
Description 

 
Shop4 

Support 
Entry 

Daily Unit 
Cost 

£ 

Total Spot 
Purchase Cost 

£ 

Anjali Day Centre 105 Part of Sancroft Hall. Focused 
mainly on Asian older people, 
mainly PD 

 
 

    37.66 

Maya Day Centre 39 Part of Sancroft Hall. Focused 
mainly on Asian older people, 
mainly PD 
 

 
 

37.66 

Byron Day Centre 70 Part of Sancroft Hall. Dementia 
older people 
 

 
 

37.66 

489,580 

CMSS 
 

8 Serves people from different 
boroughs. PD and LD 
Skill development centre, offering 
tailored activities in-house as 
well as in the community, 
including vocational 
programmes, mainstream 
qualifications, work experience 
as well as life skills and leisure 
activities.  

 

 
 

92.09 

138,871 

Harrow Activity 
Centre 

18 LD under 65, run by Mencap, 
offering a range of activities. 

  
22.00 

99,333 

Community 
Solutions 

11 Run by Mencap Harrow. A range 
of services to meet individual 
needs, including support in 
accessing social and leisure 
activities. 

 
 

b 

 
 

47.75 

88,151 

Flower Lane Centre, 
Barnet 

2 Day centre for learning 
disabilities, with a specialism in 
autism. Provides 1:1 support. 

  
202.48 to 
240.04 

 
115,055 

Kids Can Achieve 6 Support for children, and some 
adults, with emotional, social and 
behavioural difficulties, autism 
and LD. Intended to engage 
children with mainstream 
education.  

 

 
36.25 – 
39.10 

 
124,925 

Leonard Sainer Day 
Centre 

2 For Jewish elders with a 
programme of activities for 
people with dementia or memory 
impairment 

 
 

46.75 to 
48.62 

 
4,959 

Nas Radlett Lodge, 
Acton centre 

3 Part of National Autistic Society, 
for people with autism and 
learning disability. 

  
106.57 to 
114.43 

 
91,356 

Sense, 12 Hyde 
close Barnet 

4 1:1 support for high level needs 
for people with LD, PD, and dual 
diagnosis 

 
126.97 to 
197.73 

 
143,582 

Sneh Care, Brent 7 For Asian people with learning 
disabilities and mental health 
problems, including dementia. 
Range of activities, Asian music, 
dance, handicrafts, outings, skills 
in cooking, shopping, literacy, 
numeracy. 

 
 
 

b 

 
 

46.92 

 
12,802 

Templeton Centre 7 Saturday centre for older people 
with dementia 

 

b 
45 

 
45,000 

113



Day Services 
Total 
No of 

Clients 
Description 

 
Shop4 

Support 
Entry 

Daily Unit 
Cost 

£ 

Total Spot 
Purchase Cost 

£ 

Weldon Activity 
centre 

14 LD 18-65, offering a range of 

social, therapeutic, leisure 

and work related activities 

 

b 
 

17.00 

 
48,008 

Shaw Trust 12 Services for people with various 
kinds of disabilities or medical 
conditions, who live in the 
surrounding boroughs of Harrow, 
Brent and Barnet. Provides an 
alternative to traditional daycare. 
Activities include: socialising, 
horticulture, skills for working life, 
NVQ level 1 in horticulture, work 
placements. 
 

 

 
 

35.00 

 
70,630 

Choices 4All 6 Provide person-centered 

training for young people 

and adults with learning 

disabilities. All the trainees 

are helped to gain new skills, 

both to help with 

independent living, and to 

help with finding paid work. 

 

  
37 to 59 
depending 
on need 

 
 
34,345 

Development and 
Learning 
Opportunities Ltd 

2 Provides a service to young 
people aged 16-25 years who 
have severe and profound 
learning disabilities. Activities 
include use of public transport, 
sports and leisure, shopping, arts 
and crafts, music, cooking and 
money management.  

  
227.18 

 
11,813 

Drive 1   £67.29 3432 

Hamilton House 1 Scope day service in Hove, 
Sussex, for PD and LD 
 

  
71.32 

 
11,197 

Hoffman Foundation 
for Autism, London 

1 In Haringey ; care home as well 
as day activities 
 

  
165 

 
42,900 

Norwood 
Ravenswood 

3 Supports people with learning 
disabilities and children and 
families in need in the Jewish 
community and to people in the 
wider community, in London and 
the South East. Norwood offers a 
range of services to support the 
varying needs of adults aged 19 
years and over, who are 
registered as having a learning 
disability. Supports them to  
access training and employment 
opportunities, develop their skills, 
and where possible, to find jobs, 
make friends.  

 

      b  

 
 
118.79 

 
 
43,358 

Willesden resource 
Centre 

8 Provides day services and 
outreach support for people with 

  
 

 
 

114



Day Services 
Total 
No of 

Clients 
Description 

 
Shop4 

Support 
Entry 

Daily Unit 
Cost 

£ 

Total Spot 
Purchase Cost 

£ 

a learning disability, physical 
disabilities, sensory impairments, 
communication development 
needs and associated health 
needs, 1:1 and 2:1 support if 
necessary, for complex needs. 
Support people to access 
community activities. 

49.00 98,451 

Wilsmere House 1 Care home run by Barchester in 
Wealdstone, also provide 
supported living, and also have 
care homes in other parts of 
country. 

  
 
71.72 

 
 
18,718 

Sudbury House  1   
 
 
 

  
30 

 
4,680 

Total 336  
 
 

  1,753,887 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

115



Appendix 3  

Other Local Authorities carrying out reviews of day centres 

 
BRENT 
Brent Council carried out a review in 2010 which saw the closure of two out of three day centres 
in 2011. 
 
The original consultation took part two years ago and focused on Learning Disabilities. In 2013, 
phase two will look at Physical Disabilities and Older People. 
 
The reason for the closures was a strategic one as Brent wanted to support more service users 
in the community. Brent’s aim was to have fewer centre buildings with a replacement of purpose 
built centres for those people with profound needs. 
 
They are now in the process of carrying out a review and options appraisal of the council’s 
remaining learning disability services and day care for older people. These services include 
outreach, day care, adult placements and social networks for people with autism and learning 
disabilities (based at two sites), day care for older people and people with disabilities and 
residential care in one group home.  The review and options appraisal will set out 
recommendations relating to working with expert partners; improving the quality of services 
delivered; facilitating greater service user control and efficiency improvements. 
  
The cabinet decision is due by 31st Jan 2013 
 
HILLINGDON 
The local authority has proposed replacing Woodside Day Centre, the Phoenix Day Centre and 
the Parkview Day Centre with a single day centre at Queens Walk. 
 
The Council have stated that the proposed changes would enable service users to have more 
choice and independence through offering care and support tailored to their needs. Families 
and carers were fully involved in the proposals, the council had carried out a full consultation 
over a two-month period, involving a range of meetings with people using services and their 
families. People were also invited to have their say on the council's website or by calling it 
directly.  They emphasised that they will continue to support service users and their family 
carers throughout this process 
 
The Council is currently being legally challenged on its decision and the challenge is proceeding 
through the courts.   
 

 
STOCKPORT 
A review of Day Care was carried out by Stockport Council. A number of issues were identified; 
they also considered special needs transport to centres and use of buildings. 
 
The main overall weaknesses identified in relation to current day services include: 

• A hotchpotch of services with a lack of information on what is available and confusion 
about criteria / the referral process 

• A lack of stimulation and activities 

• A lack of services in the West of the Borough despite local demand 

116



• Significant transport issues around provision and criteria 

• Poor provision in terms of diversity 
 

The main strengths identified for available services included them being more community 
based, less institutionalised, less formal, more stimulating, arranging trips out, and offering 
some specialist services (for example, for Black and Minority Ethnic service users and service 
users with a dementia and their carers).  
 
Good services were mainly identified as being able to provide personal care, having a high level 
of paid staff, providing meaningful activities and stimulation, and ensuring service user and 
carer involvement. 
 
Development 
A key area for development identified for was to monitor and develop more varied and dynamic 
activities. In addition there was a need identified to be able to meet higher levels of physical and 
mental health needs, having more flexible times, and being more community inclusive. 
 
The main areas of development identified for day services in general include: 
 

• Service user involvement groups that help shape services 

• Meaningful, varied and stimulating activities to help improve people’s physical and 
mental health  

• Reablement and promotion of independence to improve people’s skills (including around 
mental functioning) 

• Promotion of Direct Payments and personal budgets to ensure innovation, choice and 
quality 

• Use of Telecare as a day care alternative 

• Increase in joint working between Health, Social Care and Voluntary Sector 

• A co-ordinated Day Service Strategy, including the needs of people with dementia 

• Development of a more comprehensive and holistic community service meeting the 
diverse needs of the population 

• or conversely specialist services, particularly for people with mental health needs 

• Less building based services 

• More flexible opening hours / days, including a seven day service / longer hours / 
evening service 

 
 
HAMPSHIRE 
Hampshire manages 12 main day services, attended by 802 people with learning disabilities. 
They have proposed changes in order to provide more choice for individuals and opportunity to 
integrate with mainstream community activities.  
 
There has been evidence that young people are not choosing to attend the Council day 
services. The buildings are in isolated settings, making the users more isolated. Many of the 
buildings are old, which makes them too big for the number of users, expensive to maintain due 
to their age, and unsuitable for users with profound and multiple learning disabilities, who are 
predicted to increase in numbers over the next twenty years. The services are in general more 
expensive than alternatives run by the voluntary and private sector. 
 
Under the proposed changes, the services would be re-focused on users with significant 
disabilities living with family carers. The services will be relocated to three new bases offering 

117



enhanced facilities for those with complex needs. The more able will be provided with a choice 
of alternatives. People will be supported to access mainstream and alternative support services 
where possible. Community Link services will be developed to provide information, advice and 
help. 
 
It is thought that proposed changes will improve the sustainability of in-house services through 
creating more attractive and modern building bases. 
 
Consultation took place at the end of 2010. It was proposed that changes would be incremental 
over two years, with priority given to day services with the most unsuitable buildings.  
 
The final plans were agreed by councilors on 16th May 2011.The proposals consisted of 
relocation of day services to modern venues that were fit for purpose and more integrated into 
the community. These services focused on specialist provision for those with complex needs 
and the provision of a wider choice of activities for service users with a disability. 
 
 

118



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

1
 

T
e

m
p

la
te

 1
 -

 I
n

it
ia

l 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
m

p
la

te
 

        
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 /
 S

e
rv

ic
e

: 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

W
h
a
t 
a

re
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
?

 (
N

o
te

: 
‘p

ro
p

o
s
a

l’ 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 
p

o
lic

y
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
, 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
) 

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

 
o
f 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

s
e

v
e

n
 

N
R

C
’s

/D
a

y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

fo
r 

a
d
u

lt
 

c
lie

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

W
e
 

a
ls

o
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 

a
 

ra
n

g
e
 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 o

th
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 u
s
e
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
b
u

d
g
e

ts
 
to

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

T
h

e
 
g
ro

u
p

s
 
c
a
te

re
d

 
fo

r 
a
re

; 
p

e
o
p

le
 

w
it
h

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
a

n
d

 
s
e

n
s
o

ry
 

im
p

a
ir
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

 
 W

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

th
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 

th
e

 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

 
d

a
ily

 
a

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 
c
lie

n
t 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 
T

h
is

 
w

o
rk

 
h

a
s
 
s
h

o
w

n
 
th

a
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 
a

re
 
u

n
d
e

r 
u

ti
lis

e
d

, 
p

lu
s
 

th
e

re
 

is
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
th

a
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 

w
it
h

 
le

a
rn

in
g

 
d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

u
to

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 c

h
o

o
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
 i

n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il.

  
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 p

e
o
p

le
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 t
h

e
 

c
a

re
 
a

n
d

 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 
n

e
e
d

e
d

 
to

 
b
e

 
a

s
 
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
a

s
 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 
w

h
ils

t 
b

e
in

g
 t

re
a

te
d

 w
it
h

 d
ig

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t.

 
 T

h
is

 E
Q

IA
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
u
tu

re
 

m
o

d
e

l 
o
f 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 
re

la
ti
n

g
 
to

 
th

e
 
re

m
o

d
e

lli
n

g
 
a
n

d
 
c
o

n
s
o

lid
a
ti
o

n
 
o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

a
n

d
 
id

e
a

s
 
fo

r 
n

e
w

 
w

a
y
s
 
o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
. 

T
h

e
re

 
a

re
 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
ts

 f
o

r 
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 
 

 

N
O

T
E

: 
T

h
is

 i
s
 N

O
T

 a
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 t
e
m

p
la

te
 b

u
t 

to
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 g

iv
e
 y

o
u

 a
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 
im

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
/ 

c
o

n
c
e
p

t 
s
ta

g
e
. 
B

y
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 t
e
m

p
la

te
, 
it

 i
s
 y

o
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 t

o
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 w

h
y
 a

 F
U

L
L

 E
q

IA
 i

s
 N

O
T

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
 

 
If

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 i

n
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
e
v
id

e
n

c
e
, 
d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 o

r 
n

e
e
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

, 
th

e
n

 a
 f

u
ll
 E

q
IA

 (
T

e
m

p
la

te
 2

) 
w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 y
o

u
 d

o
 N

O
T

 n
e
e
d

 t
o

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

is
 t

e
m

p
la

te
. 

 

119



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

2
 

 It
 i

s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

la
te

r 
in

 2
0

1
3

 o
n

c
e
 t

h
e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

w
it
h

 
fu

ll 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

. 
A

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 a
 f

u
ll 

E
Q

IA
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 i
n

 d
e

ta
il 

o
n

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
. 

A
t 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
w

e
 a

re
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 I
n

it
ia

l 
E

Q
IA

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
ts

. 
 

  

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
A

re
a

: 
 

T
h
o

m
 W

ils
o
n

, 
B

ri
d

g
e

t 
B

e
rg

in
 a

n
d

 A
m

a
n
d

a
 D

a
d

e
 

O
ff

ic
e

r(
s
) 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 I
n

it
ia

l 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

(I
E

IA
):

 
 

M
a

rc
 J

a
c
k
s
o

n
 

D
a

te
 I

E
IA

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
: 

 
0

3
rd

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

 

1
. 
W

h
a

t 
a

re
 t
h

e
 a

im
s
, 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
, 

a
n
d

 d
e

s
ir
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
?

 
 (A

ls
o

 e
x
p

la
in

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 e

.g
. 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 /
 r

e
m

o
v
a

l 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

d
e

le
ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
o

s
ts

, 
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 e
tc

) 

T
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 d
a

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 c

h
o

ic
e

s
 f
o

r 
a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

• 
T

o
 r

e
a

lis
e

 a
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

a
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
e

d
 m

o
d

e
l 
fo

r 
d

a
y
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 i
n

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e

s
, 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 
s
e

n
s
o

ry
 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
 

 

• 
T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
p

ti
o
n

s
 t

h
a

t:
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
, 
m

a
x
im

is
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

tr
o

l,
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

 • 
T

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
is

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
m

o
d
e

l 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 £
6
0

0
k
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 M
e
d

iu
m

 T
e

rm
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

2
. 
W

h
o

 a
re

 t
h
e

 m
a

in
 p

e
o

p
le

 /
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

h
o

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 y

o
u

r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
?

 F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

rn
a

l/
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
, 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

, 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 e

tc
. 

T
h
e

 m
a

in
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

u
s
e

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
; 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

; 
 

• 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

• 
P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

• 
S

e
n

s
o

ry
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

• 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

  

• 
C

a
re

rs
  

120



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

3
 

W
it
h

in
 t
h

e
s
e

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 g
ro

u
p

s
’ 
p

e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

; 
 

• 
B

la
c
k
 

a
n

d
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
, 

p
e

o
p

le
 

fr
o
m

 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fa

it
h
 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
, 

p
e

o
p

le
 
w

it
h

 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
e

x
u

a
l 

o
ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
b

o
th

 

g
e

n
d

e
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 a

ll 
a
ff

e
c
te

d
. 
  

• 
S

ta
ff

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 N
R

C
’s

  

 

• 
O

th
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
 t

h
a

t 
u

s
e

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 o

u
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 M

id
d

le
s
e

x
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 B
lin

d
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
tr

o
k
e

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

S
p

e
a

k
a

b
ili

ty
, 

R
e

a
b

le
m

e
n
t 

S
k
ill

s
 

&
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

F
it
n

e
s
s
 &

 M
o

b
ili

ty
 E

x
e

rc
is

e
 G

ro
u

p
, 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

3
rd

 A
g
e

, 
M

o
b

ili
z
e

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 E
p

ile
p

s
y
 S

e
lf
-s

u
p
p
o

rt
 G

ro
u

p
, 

K
in

g
fi
s
h

e
r 

S
w

im
m

in
g
 C

lu
b

, 
A

s
ia

n
 D

e
a
f 

C
lu

b
, 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 S

o
c
ia

l 
G

ro
u

p
, 

F
ri
e

n
d
s
 

B
ri
d

g
e

 C
lu

b
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
tl
e

y
 O

ld
 V

ic
a

ra
g
e

 N
a

tu
re

 R
e

s
e

rv
e

. 

121



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

4
 

 

3
. 
W

h
a

t 
d

a
ta

, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

, 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
, 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
, 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
, 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
(s

) 
h
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t?
  

 (i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d

a
ta

, 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e

) 

 D
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
g
u

la
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 (

C
Q

C
) 

b
u

t 
a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 

th
e

 
C

o
u
n

c
il.

 
T

h
is

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

fo
c
u

s
e

s
 

o
n

 
c
lie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 
ri
s
k
 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
o
u

tc
o
m

e
 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
, 

d
a

y
 
c
e

n
tr

e
 
u
s
a

g
e

, 
d

a
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 c
a

re
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t.
  
 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
e

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
-I

, 
o

u
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n
 

s
y
s
te

m
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

a
ta

 o
n

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
, 

 
 W

h
ils

t 
lo

o
k
in

g
 
a

t 
th

e
 
to

ta
l 

o
f 

a
ll 

in
 
h
o

u
s
e

 
d

a
y
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
th

e
 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 f
o
u

n
d

: 
T

o
ta

l 
n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h

o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
s
 2

9
0

 
T

h
e

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

lie
n

t 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
 i
s
 2

3
2
 

T
h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

  
a
tt

e
n
d

a
n
c
e

 i
s
 1

4
3

.5
 

T
h
e

 u
s
a

g
e

 i
s
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

s
 i
s
 6

2
%

 
T

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 t
im

e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t/
 r

a
ti
o

 i
s
 6

5
.1

 (
W

T
E

) 

 

Y
e

s
 

N
o

 
If

 y
e

s
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 e
x
p

la
in

 h
o

w
?

 
4
. 

C
o
u

ld
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
ly

 a
ff

e
c
t 

m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 
o
f 

o
n

e
 g

ro
u

p
 t

h
a

n
 a

n
o
th

e
r?

 
X

 
 

 
 

4
. 

A
 -

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
le

v
a
n

c
e
  

 H
o

w
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
re

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

o
 e

a
c
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
?

  
 E

x
a

m
p

le
: 

R
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 o
f 
fr

e
e

d
o
m

 p
a

s
s
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

f 
‘H

ig
h

’ 
re

le
v
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
A

g
e

 a
n
d
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 o
f 

‘L
o

w
’ 
re

le
v
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 

 B
 -

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

 

W
h

e
n

 y
o

u
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
a

c
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
, 

it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
e
fi
n
e

d
 a

s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
, 

n
e

u
tr

a
l 
o

r 
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

: 

 Ø
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

: 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

b
e

n
e
fi
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d
 /
 o

r 
fo

s
te

r 
g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

s
. 

 Ø
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l:

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 n

e
u

tr
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t,
 n

e
it
h

e
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 n

o
r 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 
 Ø

 
A

d
v
e

rs
e

: 
w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

c
o
u

ld
 d

is
a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
n

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 

th
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o
 a

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
. 

T
h

is
 

122



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

5
 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 m
a

y
 b

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a

l,
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 o
n
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 o

r 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n

 o
n

 a
n

o
th

e
r.

 
 C

 -
 A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 A

d
v
e
rs

e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

  
 

 W
h
e
n
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
, 

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
d

 e
n

te
r 

a
 

s
c
o

re
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
e

a
c
h

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a
d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

in
 c

o
lu

m
n
 C

. 
 

  

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
Im

p
a
c

t 
L

ik
e

li
h

o
o

d
 

N
e

g
lig

ib
le

 
M

in
o

r 
M

o
d

e
ra

te
 

H
ig

h
 

M
a

jo
r 

C
e

rt
a

in
 t

o
 o

c
c
u

r 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
H

ig
h

 
H

ig
h

 
V

e
ry

 H
ig

h
 

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

 

L
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 o
c
c
u

r 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
H

ig
h

 
H

ig
h

 
V

e
ry

 H
ig

h
 

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 o
c
c
u

r 
L

o
w

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
H

ig
h

 
H

ig
h

 

U
n

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 o

c
c
u

r 
L

o
w

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
H

ig
h

 

R
a

re
 

L
o

w
 

L
o

w
 

L
o

w
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

 
C

a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

c
o
re

 -
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 
X

 L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 =

 S
c
o
re

 

A
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
c
e

 

B
 

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 

C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

L
o

w
/ 

M
e

d
iu

m
/ 

H
ig

h
 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
/ 

A
d

v
e

rs
e

/ 
N

e
u

tr
a

l 

D
e

s
c
ri
b

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t(

s
) 

(n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
) 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

 
th

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

P
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
Im

p
a

c
t 

(W
h
a

t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

, 
d

a
ta

, 
a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 
d

id
 y

o
u

 u
s
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

is
?

) 
 

C
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 

N
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 
Im

p
a

c
t 

S
c

o
re

 

 
A

g
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
/o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o
p

le
) 

 

H
ig

h
 

A
d

v
e

rs
e

 

A
 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

g
ro

u
p

s
 
a

n
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
a

re
 

g
e

a
re

d
 
to

 
O

ld
e

r 
p
e

o
p

le
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 
c
o

u
ld

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 

h
a

v
e

 
to

 
re

lo
c
a

te
 

th
e

ir
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 
w

h
ic

h
 
c
o

u
ld

 
h

a
v
e

 
a

n
 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
a

b
ili

ty
 
to

 
a

tt
e

n
d

, 
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
a

n
d

 
ti
m

e
s
 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
. 

 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 1

3
1

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
6

5
 

w
h

o
 

u
s
e

 
in

 
h

o
u

s
e
 

d
a

y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

A
tt

e
n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

e
a

c
h

 c
e

n
tr

e
 v

a
ri
e

s
 f

ro
m

 
1

 t
o

 5
 d

a
y
s
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

H
ig

h
 

H
ig

h
 

 
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 

p
e

o
p

le
) 

H
ig

h
 

A
d

v
e

rs
e

 

T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 
to

 
p
e

o
p

le
 

w
it
h

 
d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 
d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 
to

 
th

e
s
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

c
o

u
ld

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 

h
a

v
e

 
a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
p

e
o
p

le
 
a
n

d
 
th

e
ir
 

c
a

re
r’
s
 
–

 
b

u
t 

th
e

s
e

 
w

ill
 
b

e
 
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 2

9
6

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 i
n

 h
o
u

s
e

 d
a

y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

A
tt

e
n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

e
a

c
h

 c
e
n

tr
e

 
v
a

ri
e

s
 f

ro
m

 1
 t
o

 5
 d

a
y
s
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

 
H

ig
h

 

123



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

6
 

 
u

p
o
n

 f
in

a
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
. 
 

 

 
G

e
n

d
e

r 
R

e
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
 

L
o

w
 

 

N
/A

 
 

 

 
M

a
rr

ia
g
e

 a
n

d
 

C
iv

il 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 

L
o

w
 

 

N
/A

 
 

 

 
P

re
g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 
M

a
te

rn
it
y
 

 

L
o

w
 

 

N
/A

 
 

 

 
R

a
c
e

 
 

H
ig

h
 

A
d

v
e

rs
e

 

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 t

h
a

t 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 

N
R

C
’s

 
h

a
v
e

 
h

ig
h

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

to
 

th
e

s
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

c
o

u
ld

 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 

a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e
m

, 
if
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

s
to

p
 

ru
n

n
in

g
 o

r 
a

re
 r

e
lo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
e

a
s
ily

 r
e

a
c
h

. 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 1

3
0

 p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n
d

 w
h

o
 u

s
e

 i
n

 
h

o
u

s
e

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

A
tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 c
e

n
tr

e
 v

a
ri
e

s
 f

ro
m

 1
 t

o
 5

 d
a

y
s
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

H
ig

h
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

 
R

e
lig

io
n

 o
r 

B
e

lie
f 

 

L
o

w
 

 

N
/A

 
 

 

 
S

e
x
 

 
L

o
w

 
 

N
/A

  
 

 

 
S

e
x
u

a
l 

o
ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 

L
o

w
 

 

N
/A

 
 

 

 

S
c

o
re

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

L
o

w
 

M
in

o
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 e

.g
. 

s
ty

le
 a

n
d

 m
e

th
o
d

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

, 
ti
m

in
g
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

v
e

n
u

e
 s

u
it
a

b
ili

ty
, 

a
n
d

 
m

in
o

r 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
o

r 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
. 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 t
a

k
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

a
n

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

124



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

7
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n

te
rn

a
l/
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
e

x
p

e
rt

 a
d

v
ic

e
/c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 

H
ig

h
 

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

 
A

 f
u

ll 
E

q
IA

 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

   

M
a

k
in

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 (

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

) 
–
 A

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 a
 f

u
ll 

E
q
IA

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

th
e

 I
E

IA
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

r 
s
te

p
s
 y

o
u

 c
a
n

 t
a

k
e

 t
o
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 e
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
. 

M
a
k
in

g
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 d

e
c
id

in
g
 w

h
a

t 
s
te

p
s
 y

o
u

 w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

y
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u

r 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
, 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 e

ff
e

c
ts

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 s
te

p
s
/a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 y
o

u
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

. 

5
 -

 L
is

t 
b
e

lo
w

 a
n

y
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 y

o
u

 p
la

n
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 I

E
IA

. 
 

A
re

a
 o

f 
p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
.g

. 
R

a
c
e

, 
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

D
e

s
ir
e

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
D

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

A
g
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
/o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

) 

 

   

T
h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
 o

n
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

fo
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

d
a

y
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
in

 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

T
h

is
 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 
w

ill
 
le

a
d
 

to
 

fi
n

a
l 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

u
p

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 a
 f

u
ll 

E
Q

IA
 w

ill
 

b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

. 
 

 

T
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

 
a

llo
c
a

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 
g
ro

u
p

s
 w

it
h

in
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

T
h
o

m
 W

ils
o
n

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 c

a
b

in
e
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
ro

c
e

e
d

. 
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 
p

e
o
p

le
) 

    

T
h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
 o

n
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

fo
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

d
a

y
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
in

 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

T
h

is
 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 
w

ill
 
le

a
d
 

to
 

fi
n

a
l 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

u
p

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 a
 f

u
ll 

E
Q

IA
 w

ill
 

b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

. 
 

 

T
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

 
a

llo
c
a

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 
g
ro

u
p

s
 w

it
h

in
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

T
h
o

m
 W

ils
o
n

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 c

a
b

in
e
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
ro

c
e

e
d

. 

 
R

a
c
e

 
   

T
h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
 o

n
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

fo
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

d
a

y
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
in

 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

T
h

is
 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 
w

ill
 
le

a
d
 

to
 

fi
n

a
l 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

u
p

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 a
 f

u
ll 

E
Q

IA
 w

ill
 

b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

. 
 

 

T
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

 
a

llo
c
a

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 
g
ro

u
p

s
 w

it
h

in
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

T
h
o

m
 W

ils
o
n

 
R

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 c

a
b

in
e
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
ro

c
e

e
d

. 

   

125



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

8
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

th
is

 s
e
c

ti
o

n
 m

u
s

t 
b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i

n
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
re

p
o

rt
s

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 P
a

n
e
l)

  

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 /
 C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t:
 (

in
c
lu

d
e

 
th

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

it
ia

l 
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 f

o
r 

fu
ll 

E
q
u

IA
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

g
iv

e
s
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

. 
 

 A
n

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 o

n
ly

 h
a

p
p

e
n

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 b
y
 c

a
b

in
e

t 
a
n

d
 b

y
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

n
e
e

d
. 
T

h
e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

y
, 

tr
e

n
d

s
, 
a

n
d

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

r 
n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
s
 a

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
m

o
d
e

l 
w

it
h

in
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
  

O
n

 t
h
e

 b
a

s
is

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

d
o

 y
o

u
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

a
 f
u

ll 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

?
 

Y
e

s
 

X
 

N
o

 
 

  If
 n

o
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 e
x
p

la
in

 w
h

y
 n

o
t?

  
  

N
/A

 
 

D
o

 y
o

u
 t

h
in

k
 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

u
p

o
n
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

g
ro

u
p

 i
n

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

h
a
t 

y
o

u
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f?
 

If
 y

e
s
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 e
x
p

la
in

 t
h

e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

 

      

S
ig

n
a

tu
re

 -
 L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

M
a

rc
 J

a
c
k
s
o

n
 

 
D

a
te

 
9

/1
/2

0
1
3

 

  

126



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

9
 

 

 
P

ro
je

c
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 b
e
in

g
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

P
a
n
e
l 

 

A
ll 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

  
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
/s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

n
e
w

 p
o
lic

ie
s
, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 e

tc
 

O
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
, 
y
o
u
r 

(s
ig

n
e
d
) 

In
it
ia

l 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I

m
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
te

m
p
la

te
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 b
y
 t

h
e
 s

e
t 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

a
n
e
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

a
ll 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

te
m

p
la

te
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
re

d
 t

a
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u

n
t 

y
o
u
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
 f
u
ll 

E
q
IA

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

r 
n

o
t.
 I
f 
th

e
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 G

ro
u
p
 d

is
a
g
re

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

th
a
t 
a
 f

u
ll 

E
q
IA

 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

le
a
d
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
’s

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
. 

 
 

O
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 (

s
ig

n
e
d
) 

In
it
ia

l 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I

m
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
te

m
p
la

te
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 (

E
T

G
) 

to
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
. 

 A
ft

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 t
e
m

p
la

te
, 
y
o
u
r 

E
T

G
 m

a
y
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

y
o
u
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 f
u
ll 

E
q
IA

; 
th

e
re

fo
re

 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 

y
o
u
 w

a
it
 f
o
r 

th
is

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 b

e
fo

re
 s

u
b
m

it
ti
n
g
 y

o
u
r 

re
p
o
rt

. 
 D

E
T

G
 C

h
a
ir
s
 –

 o
n
c
e
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 t
h
e
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 t
h
is

 t
e
m

p
la

te
 t
o
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
it
h
 y

o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
. 

 L
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 m
u
s
t 
th

e
n
 e

m
a
il 

th
e
ir
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 (

s
ig

n
e
d
) 

te
m

p
la

te
s
 t

o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o
v
.u

k
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

 

  

127



V
e
rs

io
n
 4

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

1
0

 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 S
ig

n
 O

ff
 

(t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 E

T
G

’s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 G

ro
u

p
) 

 

A
re

 t
h
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 c

le
a

r?
 

Y
e

s
 

X
 

N
o

 
 

C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

: 
     

 

Is
 i
t 

c
le

a
r 

w
h

o
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 w

h
a

t 
is

 b
e

in
g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

?
 

Y
e

s
 

X
 

N
o

 
 

C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

: 
     

 

A
re

 y
o

u
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

d
a

ta
/e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 u
s
e
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t?
 

Y
e

s
 

X
 

N
o

 
 

If
 n

o
, 

e
x
p

la
in

 w
h

y
 n

o
t?

 
     

 

If
 a

 f
u

ll 
E

q
IA

 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
, 

a
re

 y
o

u
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
?

  
Y

e
s
 

 
N

o
 

 

If
 n

o
, 

e
x
p

la
in

 w
h

y
 n

o
t?

 
      

N
/A

 

 S
ig

n
a

tu
re

 -
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 

 
C

a
ro

l 
Y

a
rd

e
 

 
D

a
te

 
9

/1
/2

0
1
3

 

  

128



 1 

Appendix B 

Transformation of Day Opportunities: 
Consultation Report 

For Older People, People with Learning Disabilities and 
People with Physical Disability / Sensory Impairment 

 
 
 

   

               
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

129



 2 

Contents 
 

Section Page 

1 Introduction 3 

2 Key findings and themes 3 

3 Methodology 4 

4 Feedback from consultation meetings 7 

5 Feedback from questionnaires 16 

6 Other feedback 27 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1 
Schedule of Consultation events and attendance at 
each event 

32 

Appendix 2 List of providers who were invited to give feedback 33 

 
 
 
 

130



 3 

1.  Introduction 
 
Following approval by Cabinet in January 2013, a formal consultation on Adult Day 
Services was carried out from 11th February 2013 to 7th May 2013.  
 
The consultation covered day services for older people, people with learning 
disabilities and people with physical disability/sensory impairment. The focus of the 
review was the seven in-house day centres (Bedford House Day Service, Bentley 
Day Service, Byron NRC, Gordon Avenue Day Service, Kenmore NRC, Milmans 
Day Centre and Vaughan NRC) and the external contract with Sancroft.  
 
The consultation focused on developing a new model of day care provision. The 
proposed model, described in the consultation meetings and questionnaires set out 
the need to provide services differently to meet demands from demographic changes 
and the increasing number of service users with complex needs. Consultation 
responses were sought on day services being sustainable into the future; 
recognising some of the current services may need to close; and other services will 
need to change to meet the needs of different client groups. Increased choice and 
control through personalisation and the development of day opportunities was a 
central element of the consultation. 
 
 

2. Key findings and themes  
 

 

The following key findings and themes were identified from consultation sessions 
and questionnaire responses: 
 

• Service users and carers emphasised the importance of day care. Carers 
highlighted in particular the structure and safety offered in current day centres.  
Respite was seen as an important element of independent living enabling 
carers to continue to support service users within their own homes. 

 

• When asked about the type of activities service users wanted, responses 
included:  
o More activities, outings, sports and employment services.  
o The need to develop new services and more choice of day activities 
o Closing day centres was an unpopular option, but would be more 

acceptable if valued relationships are maintained and there was assurance 
of appropriate services as well as transport. 

 

• Ideas have been put forward for using buildings to full capacity, including:  
o Day centres becoming hubs for different user groups 
o Generating income through renting space to community groups. 

 

• Integration with Health and access to health services such as physiotherapy 
were positively welcomed. 

 

131



 4 

• Mixing user groups at neighbourhood resource centres is considered a 
feasible choice, but would require detailed planning to cater for different 
needs, provision of special equipment, access, suitable available space, 
trained staff, and management of complexities of sharing space and transport. 

 

• The majority of service users and carers said that they wanted day care to be 
available from Monday to Friday. Some said they would prefer longer hours. 

 

• The services users and carers felt they needed more information on personal 
budgets. 

 

• Transport needs to be more flexible as the length of the journey shortens the 
time at the centres for the service users, making it difficult for staff to organise 
activities. Additionally, the respite time for carers is shortened. 

 
 

 3.  Methodology 
 
The council went to great lengths to ensure that the consultation was thorough and 
gave people the opportunity to make their views known. Consultation focused on 
developing a new model of day care provision. The consultation questionnaire 
proposed a service model providing services differently to meet demands from 
demographic changes and the increasing number of service users with complex 
needs 
 
The main method for consulting with stakeholders was through consultation 
meetings, and questionnaires.  
 
The level of participation was very good: 
 

• 477 consultees  participated in 33 consultation events 

• 164 questionnaires were returned 

• Additionally, there were three written submissions from voluntary sector 
organisations, and one from the NHS Harrow Clinical Commissioning Group 
two letters from carers, one carer phone call and an email from the Bentley 
Day Service Users Committee. 

• In total there were 649 participants throughout the consultation, however, it 
should be noted that some people will have completed a questionnaire and 
attended a consultation meeting, so this figure does not represent the total 
number of different people consulted, which will be smaller.  

132



 5 

 

Consultation participants No. % 

Consultation meetings - day service user   

Adults with learning disabilities (Bedford House Day Service, Byron NRC, Gordon 
Avenue Day Service, Kenmore NRC, Vaughan NRC) 

95 14.5 

Adults with physical disabilities (Bentley Day Service) 54 8 

Older people (Milmans NRC) 34 5 

Sancroft (Harrow Council contracted Day Service for older people) 39 6 

Welldon Activity Group 18 3 

Shaw Trust (Independently provided day service for adults with learning disabilities) 3 0.5 

Sub total 243 37 

Consultation meetings - other   

Carers (of users of Harrow Council provided day services) 63 9.8 

Tanglewood (A weekly club for people with learning disabilities, some members may 
use a day service) 

50 8 

Young people in transition (Shaftesbury High School and Kingsley High School) 26 4 

Sheltered accommodation residents (older people) 17 2.5 

Members of staff (attended the seven Harrow Council Day Service staff consultation 
meetings) 

60 9 

Unions (One union member attending three different Harrow Council Day Service 
staff consultation meetings)  

1 0.2 

Day Service providers (17 representatives from 14 provider organisations) 17 2.5 

Sub total 234 36 

Questionnaire respondents 164 25 

Additional written submissions and telephone feedback 8 2 

Total Number of consultation participants 649 100% 

 
 
In addition, key stakeholders (including advocacy groups, voluntary sector 
organisations and providers) were encouraged to send further comments and views 
in writing (letter or email) using a dedicated consultation email address 
(dayserviceconsultation@harrow.gov.uk), or by phoning officers coordinating the 
consultation. 
 
Key voluntary sector organisations were invited to be members of a Consultation 
Project Group, together with Council officers. They were: 

• Harrow MENCAP 

• Harrow Age UK 

• Harrow Association of Disabled People 

• Harrow Carers 
 
The consultation covered all of the day service provisions, including the seven in-
house day centres and the external contracted day service at Sancroft. 
 
Prior to the start of the consultation, letters were sent to service users, carers and 
staff, informing them of the forthcoming consultation. They were invited to participate 
by completing a questionnaire or attending a meeting. Additionally, posters were 
displayed at the day centres informing users and carers of dates of meetings. Key 
voluntary organisations encouraged users and carers to take part in the consultation, 
by displaying the information within their organisation and in their newsletters. Age 
UK and Harrow Mencap were sent copies of the questionnaires and assisted service 
users to complete these on request. Age UK were sent 35 easy-read questionnaires 
and 15 Gujarati translated questionnaires. Harrow Mencap were sent 18 

133



 6 

questionnaires. Posters were also sent to Sancroft, Changes Nightclub and the 
seven in house day services to advertise the consultation meetings. 
 
The following events were organised: 
 

• Consultation meetings with users and carers were held at the seven in-house 
day centres. Staff attended in a support role. The majority of the sessions 
were held at the day centres to accommodate the numbers of service users  
 

• A consultation meeting with the Service Users Committee, and a meeting with 
Gujarati speaking users and carers was held at Bentley Day Service which 
were facilitated by Harrow Council staff 

 

• Consultation meetings were held with users at Maya, Anjali, and Byron Day 
Centres at Sancroft Hall. Day care services are provided for Harrow residents 
by Fremantle Trust under a block contract. Sessions were held in Gujarati, 
Hindi and Punjabi which were facilitated by Harrow Council staff 

 

• Consultation meetings were held with users at two external services: Shaw 
Trust and Weldon Activity Group 

 

• Consultation team members attended a number of events where service 
users and/or carers regularly meet. Information was provided at these 
sessions about the consultation; encouraging participation; and seeking 
views. These events included:  

o The Carers Revival Project 
o The Changes Nightclub for people with mixed disabilities  
o Tanglewood Club for people with learning disabilities  
o A meeting for tenants’ representatives of sheltered housing schemes 

 

• An additional consultation event was held in the evening for those service 
users and carers who were unable to attend the day time meetings, due to 
working patterns or other commitments 

 

• Two consultation meetings were held at special schools (Kingsley High 
School and Shaftesbury High School), to seek the views of young people in 
transition, (16-18 years olds) 

 
An informal consultation event meeting was held with the staff of each in-house day 
centre, to provide information about the consultation, seek their initial views, and 
answer any queries. It was confirmed at these sessions were informal consultation 
meetings and that that staff would be formally consulted if any changes were to be 
implemented. An additional consultation session was held in the evening for those 
staff members who were unable to attend the earlier day time meetings, due to 
working patterns or other commitments.  
 
Unions and Ward Councillors were kept informed about the staff meetings and 
invited to attend. A Union representative was present at four staff meetings. Ward 
councillors were informed about all events for users and carers, and invited to 
attend. Information about these consultation events is provided in Appendix 1. 

134



 7 

 
An extra consultation event was held for Day Service provider organisations, at the 
Civic Centre, who have experience of working with and/or providing day 
opportunities for people with a disability or older people. Invitees included out-of-
borough providers whose services are used by some Harrow residents. Providers 
were sent information about the consultation and invited to send in their views by 
filling in the questionnaire or via letter/email. Appendix 2 lists the attendees. 
 
The consultation team liaised closely with the day centre staff to ensure that all 
service users were able to engage in the consultation. One to one support as well as 
language support was provided at the events, where necessary.  
 
All advocacy groups were invited to provide their views. Those advocates identified 
representing individual service users were also invited to consultation events. 
 

 
4. Feedback from consultation meetings 
 
The level of participation and responses to the consultation was good, with people 
taking the opportunity to attend events and complete the questionnaires. In total 
there were 477 consultation meeting participants, as shown in the table below.  
 
 

Consultation meeting participants No. 
Consultation meetings - day service user  

Adults with learning disabilities (Bedford House Day Service, Byron NRC, Gordon 
Avenue Day Service, Kenmore NRC, Vaughan NRC) 

95 

Adults with physical disabilities (Bentley Day Service) 54 

Older people (Milmans NRC) 34 

Sancroft (Harrow Council contracted Day Service for older people) 39 

Welldon Activity Group 18 

Shaw Trust (Independently provided day service for adults with learning 
disabilities) 

3 

 243 

Consultation meetings - other  

Carers (of users of Harrow Council provided day services) 63 

Tanglewood (A weekly club for people with learning disabilities, some members 
may use a day service) 

50 

Young people in transition (Shaftesbury High School and Kingsley High School) 26 

Sheltered accommodation residents (older people) 17 

Members of staff (attended the seven Harrow Council Day Service staff 
consultation meetings) 

60 

Unions (One union member attending three different Harrow Council Day Service 
staff consultation meetings)  

1 

Day Service providers (17 representatives from 14 provider organisations) 17 

 234 

  

Total Number of consultation meeting participants 477 

 
 
 
 

135



 8 

4.1. Key points raised across the consultation meetings 
 
Value of current day centres/Neighbourhood Resource Centres  
Users and carers generally described the centres as a lifeline, enabling people to 
continue living in their own homes, and enabling carers to continue providing 
necessary support. 
 
Some people who had reservations about the model believed it would mean a 
cessation of the day service for them and that they will be left isolated. At the 
meetings staff offered reassurance that people would not lose the support that they 
needed as they had been assessed as needing support; however services may look 
different and be provided in a different way.  
 
Structure and safety 
Respondents valued the routine of fixed days and times, which provided a structure 
to their week; physical safety and access; and the sense of security from being in an 
environment with familiar routines. 
 
Relationships 
The importance of relationships with staff, between service users and the carers was 
emphasised by users and carers. They spoke very highly of the support and 
understanding they received from the staff and the sense of the day centre 
community as one extended family. Service users felt comfortable and confident in 
day centres. The staff were seen as a source of support, not only to the users but 
also to the carers, and sometimes helped manage the relationship between the two.  
 
Although all service users said they did not want to move from their centre, many 
expressed the view that if they did have to move, they would like to stay together 
with the same staff and services. 
 
Discussion took place in consultation sessions about implementation of any 
proposed change. Service users and carers said that changes had to be well 
planned with individual needs of service users continuing to be met. Many asked for 
peers within centres and staff to transfer together if changes were being made.  
 
Respite 
Carers fed back that the attendance at the day service by the person they are caring 
for gives them a much need respite. Attending different sessions in different places, 
perhaps with unfamiliar staff or personal attendants would not provide the 
reassurance that carers currently have. 
 
Activities and facilities in the Centres 
Service users and carers welcomed many of the activities provided including 
independent living skills, board games, bingo, cooking, arts and crafts, computers, 
reading, writing, numbers, money management, exercise, dance, drama, music, 
library groups, beauty treatments, gardening, caring for animals, trips out to 
museums, swimming etc. Some users with learning and physical disabilities and 
their carers expressed a wish for more sports facilities through the centre. Many said 
that they wanted to access health services such as physiotherapy, speech therapy 
and hydrotherapy pool and facilities to have a bath at the day centre using assistive 

136



 9 

equipment. They also pointed out that access to some services such as   
physiotherapy and speech therapy has reduced in the recent years. Older people 
stated they would like more services to be available at the centre, for example, 
hairdressing and chiropody.  
 
Service users said that having a hot meal at the day centre was appreciated and 
important to them. Older people especially pointed out that for some of them this was 
the only good meal they have. Service users who did not have a hot meal at the 
centre said it would be something they would like. 
 
Some users said it was difficult to think about what else they might like as they were 
anxious about continuance of their existing service. 
 
Transport 
Some service users and carers said that the introduction of the Fairer Charging 
policy in 2012 may have resulted in a reduction in the use of day centres as some 
people who have a taxi card try to save these for critical journeys, such as hospital 
appointments.  
 
Transport routes often reduce time at the centre for users, respite time for carers, 
and also make it difficult for staff to organise activities as well as outings. 
 
Long transport routes are enjoyed by some, but found tiring by others. This can lead 
to difficulties with managing toileting needs, and can sometimes challenge the 
behaviour by those with learning disabilities. 
 
Several users with learning or physical disabilities, including some who lived in 
residential units, were hindered in attending evening or weekend activities due to 
transport. 
 
There was some apprehension in that the new model could increase journey times 
and that the number of journeys required would increase to access different 
community based services. Carers were concerned as they may be expected to 
provide lifts. Assurance was provided that transport issues would be carefully 
considered. 
 
Times when the service is available 
The majority of service users were happy with the weekday day-time service, 
although many stated they would like a longer day at the centre. In addition, many 
users said their time at the day centre was shortened due to transport rotas or 
availability of personal carers in the morning. 
 
Many did not want to attend the centre at weekends and evenings, unless there was 
a one-off special event. Some service users, particularly those who lived alone, 
would like additional activities for some part of the weekend. 
 
Many of the service users with a learning disability were accessing a service five 
days a week. This is either at a day centre, or elsewhere by using their personal 
budget. Many older people were attending a day centre one or two days a week. 
Those with physical disabilities were attending from one to five days a week.  Both, 

137



 10

people with a physical/sensory disability and older people stated they would like to 
be able to attend on more days. 
 
Activities in the community 
Most service users were satisfied with the variety of activities they accessed in the 
centre. When asked, they said they would enjoy more outings to the cinema, 
swimming, day trips, shopping trips etc. However, they wanted to access these 
through the day centre, in the company of their friends and with appropriate support 
from staff and transport.  
 
The service users felt that there were limitations when engaging in activities in the 
community due to appropriate transport; access; lack of trained support staff; lack of 
information and understanding in the community. 
 
Several people with learning disabilities attended some activities at weekends or 
evenings, e.g. Tanglewood, one evening a week. However, it was clear that most 
consultees relied upon special transport and support from family or residential staff 
to access these. Some service users mentioned they had access to community 
activities with support from residential staff, but have increasingly become isolated 
since moving to independent living. 
 
Service users, carers and staff pointed out that while the principle of community 
access is excellent; there is little availability of services, especially for those with 
complex needs. Providers said the model of flexible community based services 
would work for some service users, but people with higher level needs would require 
day centres. 
 
Young people in transition 
Young people in transition appeared to have requirements to other consultees, 
noting the need for the choice of a wide range of activities and the importance of 
building and keeping social relations. However, the key difference from many current 
adult day service users was a greater focus on employment related activities. 
 
Mixing different users groups 
The majority of service users, carers and staff thought that it was possible to move to 
a model where different user groups attend a day centre with appropriate planning 
for different needs. There is the need for sufficient space and facilities and well 
trained staff. Many attendees thought this model could have beneficial effects for 
service users to mix with other people. 
 
There were, however, some concerns around integrating with people with dementia, 
challenging behaviour or very complex needs; losing the specialist expertise needed 
by some service users and devaluing the specialism that some centres had worked 
hard to build up. Other issues were sharing space and transport; or users being 
overwhelmed by large multipurpose centres. At the meetings council officers 
reassured attendees that that all service users with an assessed need for a day 
service would continue to receive a service, to meet their assessed need, however, 
this may be in an alternative building/hub or could be more community based.  
 

138



 11

Staff and users at Bentley were particularly keen to emphasize that the day centre 
was very spacious and accessible due to the building being single storey. This would 
mean that the centre was particularly suitable for integrating different user groups. 
Participants also said that the facilities at the centre would be suitable for younger 
people with disabilities. This could provide more activities geared towards 
employment, social skills and independent living skills. 
 
During consultation sessions, it was evident that people were not familiar with other 
day centres; some respondents indicated that buildings should be used fully, and 
said that if centres and transport were more affordable a greater number of people 
would attend and increase attendance rates. 
 
Focusing on people with the most complex needs 
At these events service users, carers and staff indicated support for a change in 
focus for the NRCs to meet the requirements of those with higher level or complex 
needs. They also highlighted the need for further development of activities in the 
community and more information on the potential impact of changes for individual 
service users. 
 
Using buildings to full or a greater capacity 
The need to use buildings to full or a greater capacity was appreciated and 
understood by most attendees, who also suggested the following ways to increase 
the number of people attending day services: 
 

• Creating a café culture whereby different groups use the building as a social 
hub, or venue for a variety of sessions 

• Generating income through renting to other groups in the evenings and 
weekends 

• Encouraging Harrow residents to use in-borough centres by identifying 
reasons why external centres were chosen over local services and developing 
the services 

• Facilitate extra days 

• ‘Sell’ places to residents of neighbouring boroughs 

• More affordable charging 

• Make centres more attractive and ‘future-proof’ them 

• Improve communication about what is available at each centre 
 
Closure of buildings 
The closure of day service buildings was considered a highly undesirable option by 
most attendees. However some service users and carers went on to say that if their 
centre was to close, they would prefer to move to a different building with similar 
services and facilities. Transport would need to be provided and the relationships 
they valued.  
 
Bentley staff and service users were concerned that the high value of land that 
Bentley Day Centre was built on would make this a particular target for closure. 
Additionally, they pointed out that if any centres had to close, the space and 
accessibility of the Bentley building would make it suitable for hosting other centres, 
and Bentley served a large geographical area.   
 

139



 12

Personal budgets 
Many service users and carers were unclear about how personal budgets worked. 
They felt personal budgets could be a source of anxiety, needing extra time and 
support. Additionally, some people mentioned how the personal budget can fall short 
due to the higher weekend rates charged by some agencies that are not being taken 
into account. Although they acknowledged that some situations could be better 
managed by personal budgets, they did not want personal budgets to be imposed 
upon them. 
 
Providers were also unclear about personal budgets and said that they would 
welcome more information.  
 
The views of external Day Service Providers  
The providers highlighted an increasing need for services for older people with 
dementia; people on the Aspergers spectrum; and an ethnically diverse population. 
The reducing amount of funding to voluntary organisations is making it difficult to 
develop services. Providers made suggestions about market development and how 
they could respond to opportunities provided through the development of the market. 
 

1. A larger number of small providers offering services to individuals or small 
groups 

2. A pool of people with skills in a particular activity (e.g.: horse riding) who could 
work with vulnerable adults on an individual basis, or offer sessions at day 
centres 

3. Supported housing, 24 hour home care, day care 
4. Supported breaks 
5. Community based support groups for a few hours each week, offering leisure, 

social skills, independent living skills and sports. 
6. Flexible transport 
7. Job brokerage service, which the providers and service user groups could link 

into 
 
Provider representative suggested the Council could support market development 
through the following:  
 

• Information on services already being provided 

• Identifying the number of vulnerable adults with different needs  

• How personal budgets work 

• Support with marketing and using Care Place (Care Plan is an on line Social 
Care Directory which provides information on a range of services available 
from providers in Harrow and across West London) 

• Support with costing and developing chargeable services 

• Support in accessing grants and pump-prime funding being made available 
 
Employment and working conditions 
Staff members were concerned about their job security, as well as changes to their 
working conditions and contracts, if centres were to provide extended hours. They 
emphasised the following should to be taken into consideration: 
 

• Current staffing profiles 

140



 13

• Secondments 

• Transferable skills 

• Adequate staffing levels and training. 
 
Union representation  
A union member has been present at four staff meetings and their views have been 
incorporated into the general staff feedback. Specific comments and questions 
included:  

• Breakdown of the efficiency target 

• Confidence that changes would achieve required targets 

• Risks to jobs and working conditions 

• Importance of considering role profiles 

• Covenants which restrict sale of buildings 

• Having sufficient time to respond to the cabinet report before a decision is 
made. 

 
Views about the consultation itself 
Some respondents questioned if the changes would achieve the desired savings and 
other benefits. There was cynicism that the consultation would have any influence on 
the decisions that were already made. Staff made reference to a consultation three 
years ago when their views were sought. Staff at Gordon Avenue and Bedford 
House, in particular, expressed anxiety and indicated rumours had been circulating 
on the closure of centres for some time.  
 
Many service users, carers and providers commented that they enjoyed their 
consultation event, and found the session informative and supportive. 
 
Facilitating the change 
Service users and carers were concerned they would receive a reduced service and 
the change would be disruptive. Additionally, they expressed uncertainty about how 
the model would work for them in practice. In particular, they were unclear and 
anxious about how personal budgets would affect them. Assurance was provided 
that the Council will continue to meet all assessed needs. 
 
The Consultation team made note of the aspects of the service which service users 
and carers valued. These included: structure; safety; access; facilities; choice of 
activities; and supportive relationships between staff, users, and carers. Council staff 
implementing any proposed changes will ensure that these issues are addressed in 
planning and implementation.  
 
Staff at consultation sessions confirmed that if changes do take place they would be 
well managed, could involve a period of transition and be delivered in a person-
centred way. Opportunities would be provided to enable service users and carers to 
visit centres in advance if an individual was going to attend a different location.  This 
may also help to address possible carers’ concerns about service users transferring 
to a different centre.  
 
Staff members were advised that the Council is committed to a policy of non 
compulsory redundancies where possible. A formal consultation with staff will be 
planned if any changes are required. 

141



 14

4.2. Specific key points raised in the individual in-house Day  
Centres 

 
 
Kenmore NRC 
Attendees fed back that they would generally welcome a range of different clients 
groups within the day centre they attended, however, some people felt that noise 
level may not be appropriate for older service users  
                
Due to difficulties in accessing suitable transport in the evenings and because 
service users spend time at weekends with their families there was little appetite for 
the provision of activities during the evenings and weekends. 
 
Attendees said that they would welcome realistic employment support programmes. 
Kenmore NRC runs taster sessions for potential new service users. Attendees 
thought that any new model of day care should incorporate taster sessions.  
 
 
Bentley Day Service 
Service users valued the sense of community enjoyed at the centre, the support from 
the staff team and the break it provided for themselves and for their carers. However, 
many service users felt that the principles of greater choice and services in the 
community had little practical application to them, given the complexity of their 
needs. 
 
Only a few service users expressed the desire for the provision of activities in 
addition to daytimes between Monday to Friday, with a preference for day time 
activities on Saturday. However, many service users said that they would prefer a 
longer daytime provision, in response to the constraints of Council transport and  
waiting times for personal carers in the morning that in effect reduce actual time 
spent at Bentley Day Service. 
 
The majority of service users did not want a change in service away from Bentley 
although a few service users would not mind using a different building if there was an 
assurance of appropriately trained staff and equipment. All service users 
emphasised the importance of planning any transfer very carefully and the need to 
consider existing relationships with other users and staff, as part of a managed 
move. 
 
Whilst there was considerable concern about the future of Bentley Day Service a few 
attendees said that they found the discussion at the consultation session helpful and 
‘liberating’ 

 
 

Gordon Avenue Day Service 
Three carers attended the consultation meeting held at Gordon Avenue Day Service, 
there were no service users present. The attendees expressed the importance of 
respite for carers as a result of day care provision for service users and thought it 
would be welcomed using out of borough services to come back into the borough by 
offering more specialised places  

142



 15

 
Attendees also discussed the need for access to a hydrotherapy pool for current 
Gordon Avenue service users and the potential to use day centres to improve 
access to health services such as speech therapy and physiotherapy.  
 
 
Bedford House Day Service 
Three carers attended the consultation meeting held at Bedford House Day Service, 
there were no service users present. Carers emphasised that the centre was 
excellent, catering for people with highly complex needs who can not go anywhere 
else and the centre provided a sense of community for users and carers alike, 
providing a safe environment, as well as valuable respite care for carers. 
 
Carers pointed out that most users did not want to go an alternative day centre which 
may not meet the specific needs of users. This would include one to one support 
required with eating, challenging behaviour, stimulation and incontinence. Carers 
were also concerned about whether the current service users would continue to 
enjoy the relationships they have built up with the other service users and staff. 
Carers also highlighted the importance of continued access to important facilities 
such as a sensory room. Carers suggested that if there are any decisions to change 
services that service users and carers are offered an opportunity to view other day 
services centres.  
 
 
Milmans’ Day Centre 
Service users commented on the benefits of being able to access services such as 
hairdressing and chiropody at Milmans Day Centre as well as advice and information 
provided. Service users said that they would enjoy more daytrips or outings from the 
centre but they do not want to go to different places to access a range of activities 
regularly. Service users said the centre was the highlight of their week, and if they 
did not attend they would be depressed and isolated. 
 
All users emphasised the value of social interaction, the friendships that they have 
built up, and commended the support from the staff. Participants emphasised that if 
the centre did need to close, they would want to be able to go to a different building 
with the same peers and staff 
 
Service users highlighted difficulties with transport as well as waiting times for 
personal carers in the morning which reduce time spent at Milmans Day Centre. 
Some service users said that they would like to attend on extra days if their personal 
budget allowed.  
 
Most service users said that they would not mind sharing the centre with other user 
groups as long as enough trained staff and facilities were available. Some people 
expressed concerns about sharing day care space with those with severe dementia. 
 
Service users suggested that the centre should try to generate income by renting the 
space to other groups 
 
 

143



 16

Byron NRC 
Attendees were generally pleased with the range of activities but more equipment 
and sensory provision was needed. Many felt they were being supported to learn 
independent living skills such as cooking and shopping. The need for activities 
outside of the centre was also emphasised.  
 
Attendees did not want the centre to close but also said that if the centre did need to 
close, they would want to be able to go to a different building with the same peers 
and staff. There was little support for an extension of opening hours beyond current 
levels. Many people said that they needed more information and support on personal 
budgets. 
 
 
Vaughan Neighbourhood Resource Centre 
Service Users said that they enjoyed a range of activities, including college courses, 
arts and crafts, music/dance, culture-specific activities, independent living skills, 
good access to sports, exercise and work experience in local community arranged 
through the centre. The majority of users wanted to continue to access day service 
during daytime between Monday to Friday. 
 
Service Users said that they valued friendships, safety, and support provided from 
staff. Most service users said they would be happy for others client groups to join 
their centre but noted the difficulties of change for people with autism.  
 
Carers described the centre as a lifeline but also reported that transport schedules 
can significantly shorten the amount of time service users spend at the centre.  
 
 

5. Feedback from questionnaires 
 

5.1. Breakdown of respondents 
 
A single accessible questionnaire was developed for all stakeholders. 
Questionnaires were posted to all service users of the seven in-house centres, and 
their carers and in addition questionnaires were distributed at other consultation 
meetings including Sancroft and special schools. Also copies were provided to the 
Managers of each centre, to distribute to staff, any users or carers where requested. 
The questionnaire was also translated into Gujarati. Copies were made available at 
meetings and sent to Managers.  
 
Questionnaires and information about the consultation were made widely available to 
stakeholders, including voluntary sector organisations, advocacy groups and service 
providers, who were also given the option to complete the questionnaire online.  
Participants were also signposted to four voluntary organisations that would offer 
support to complete the questionnaire independently as requested.  
 
A total of 164 completed questionnaires were received. The table overleaf provides a 
breakdown for questions 1, 2, 6 and from 18 onwards in the questionnaire. 
 

144



 17

 
Respondent Age 

Day Service User 107 65% Under 16 8 5% 

Carer 21 12% 16-24 7 4% 

Family member 17 10% 25-44 36 22% 

Special School student 10 6% 45-64 64 39% 

Volunteer  3 2% 65+ 42 26% 

Advocate 1 1% Did not answer 7 4% 

Council Staff 1 1% Total  164 100% 

Voluntary organisation 1 1%  

Did not answer 3 2% Sex 

Total  164 100% Female 69 42% 

 Male 76 46% 
Ethnicity Did not answer 19 12% 

Asian: Indian 47 29% Total 164 100% 

White: British 43 26%  

Black: Caribbean 12 8% 
Service used by the respondent  

or person they care for 

White: Irish 10 6% Harrow Council Service   

Asian: Pakistani 10 6% Bedford 1 1% 

Other Asian background 7 4% Bedford & Vaughan 1 1% 

Mixed : White and Asian 5 3% Bentley NRC 20 12% 

Asian: Sri Lankan 2 1% Bentley NRC & Byron Day Centre 1 1% 

White and Black Caribbean 2 1% Bentley NRC & The Bridge 1 1% 

Other Iranian 2 1% Byron NRC 11 7% 

Black: African 2 1% Byron NRC & Anjali 1 1% 

Other Arab 1 1% Byron NRC & Gordon Avenue 1 1% 

Did not answer 21 13% Gordon Avenue 1 1% 

Total 164 100% Kenmore NRC 8 5% 

 
Kenmore NRC, Harrow Activity 
Centre & Harrow College 1 1% 

Disability Milmans 22 13% 

Yes 119 73% Milmans NRC & Byron Day Centre 2 1% 

No 29 18% Vaughan NRC 12 7% 

Did not answer 16 9% Other Service Provider   
Total 164 100% Anjali 1 1% 

 Byron Day Centre 1 1% 
Religion and belief Byron Day Centre & Shaw 1 1% 

Christianity (all denominations) 60 37% Byron Day Centre, Shaw & Other 1 1% 

Hinduism 40 24% Do not use an Adult Day Service 20 12% 

Islam 12 7% Harrow Activity Centre 30 18% 

No religion / Atheist 7 4% Other - Harrow college 1 1% 

Jainism 5 3% Shaw 1 1% 

Buddhism 2 1% Sneh Care 22 13% 

Sikh 1 1% Sneh Care & APDA 1 1% 

Did not answer 37 23% The Bridge 1 1% 

Total 164 100% Total 164 100% 

 
 
 
 
 

5.2. What did people tell us? 
 
5.2.1. The Proposed Model  
There were three questions on the proposed model described in the consultation 
around the provision of more choice and control to service users through the move to 
personal budgets and the development of a wider range of day facilities.  
 

145



 18

 

Q3: Will this vision and proposed model meet your needs? 

Yes, but with support 100 (61%) 

Yes 15 (9%) 

No 29 (18%) 

Did not answer 20 (12%) 

Total 164 (100%) 

 
Seven out of ten respondents thought the vision and proposed model would meet 
the need of service users (70%) with or without support. Just under a fifth (18%) 
thought that the model would not meet the needs of service users, whilst the 
remaining 12% did not provide an answer. 

 
 
Q4: Type of support needed if new model is adopted 
Respondents were asked what support would be required if the proposed model was 
chosen. An analysis of the open ended questions, where respondents provided 
comments highlighted that the following support would be required: 
 

• More specific information about the implications of the model for each service 
user, as one respondent stated, ‘to understand how the change will effect me’ 

• Support with financial and administrative management of a personal budget 

• Information and advice about the availability and quality of new/alternative day 
services, and 

• The availability of advocacy support to make informed decisions for some 
people 

• Transport and travel arrangement to access day services, 
 

Many other respondents did not answer the question directly but did say that they 
wanted to continue to receive a good day service, mainly without changes to current 
provision. 
 
 
Q5: Please tell us what you think about the proposed model? 
The following broad responses were received to the above open ended question. 
 
Some respondents expressed frustration about their limited understanding of the 
model and the implications for change. Responses included: 
 

“I need help to fully understand it” 
“It is a little confusing” and  
“I don’t know enough about it” 

 
Respondents providing a positive response offered a range of reasons for doing so, 
stating the following positive outcomes: 
 

“Good to have own budget and choice” 
“Challenging and interesting” 
“Comprehensive, caring practical mode”’ 
“Like the idea of trying out something new” 

146



 19

 
Other respondents recognised the benefits of the model but thought that success 
would depend upon the level of support provided to service users and individual 
needs being taken into consideration, comments included 
 

“Looks good as long as I get support to access” 
“Model is a good idea, but putting plan into action is more important” 
“Model must meet individual needs rather than impose same thing on 
everyone” 

 
Respondents who gave a negative response, fed back concerns that the model 
could lead to an end of current day service and the burden of managing provisions 
could fall on families and carers: 
 

“If the centres close we will only be left at home alone and nothing to and this 
will make us depressed” 
“My family will have to do it all and won’t get paid” 

 
The remaining respondents did not answer the question directly but fed back that 
they prefer no change to current service provision or that peers within centres and 
staff and transfer together if changes were being made. 
 
An analysis of question 6 which asked respondents which day services(s) they or the 
person they care for attends is contained in section 5.1. 
 
 

147



 20

5.2.2. Important aspects of a day service/activity   
In order to help plan future day opportunities respondents were asked to rate how 
important various aspects of a day service/activity is to them or the person they care 
for. The detailed response is contained in the table below. 
 

Q.7: How important would you rate the following aspects of a day service/activity?  
 

Aspect of day 
service/activity 

Essential 
Very 

Important 
Important 

Not 
Important 

Don't 
know 

Did not 
answer 

Total 

Somewhere safe 
to be looked after 

120 (73%) 31 (20%) 9 (5%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 4 (2%) 164 

Friendly and 
helpful staff 

111 (68%) 34 (21%) 9 (5%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 10 (6%) 164 

The chance to 
meet other 
people 

99 (60%) 39 (24%) 14 (9%) 2 (1%) 0 (0%) 10 (6%) 164 

The break it gives 
me from home 

98 (60%) 35 (21%) 18 (11%) 2 (1%) 1 (1%) 10 (6%) 164 

Feeling safe 
when traveling 

109 (67%) 27 (16%) 13 (8%) 0 (0%) 3 (2%) 12 (7%) 164 

Being part of the 
community 

94 (57%) 29 (18%) 25 (15%) 2 (1%) 0 (0%) 14 (9%) 164 

Physical exercise 80 (49%) 32 (19%) 28 (17%) 11 (7%) 0 (0%) 13 (8%) 164 

Having a good 
meal 

87 (53%) 36 (22%) 17 (10%) 9 (5%) 1 (1%) 14 (9%) 164 

Respite for Carer 98 (59%) 27 (16%) 14 (9%) 6 (4%) 3 (2%) 16 (10%) 164 

Advice and 
information 

82 (50%) 28 (17%) 27 (17%) 9 (5%) 2 (1%) 16 (10%) 164 

Being able to do 
what I want, 
when I want it 

70 (43%) 41 (25%) 25 (15%) 5 (3%) 5 (3%) 18 (11%) 164 

Where the 
service is 

72 (44%) 41 (25%) 16 (10%) 18 (11%) 4 (2%) 13 (8%) 164 

Independent 
living skills 

77 (47%) 30 (18%) 19 (11%) 14 (9%) 6 (4%) 18 (11%) 164 

The things 
provided  

50 (31%) 53 (32%) 20 (12%) 26 (16%) 4 (2%) 11 (7%) 164 

Helps me to 
continue living at 
home 

78 (48%) 26 (16%) 13 (8%) 7 (4%) 18 (11%) 22 (13%) 164 

Work related 
skills 

66 (40%) 14 (9%) 18 (11%) 38 (23%) 7 (4%) 21 (13%) 164 

 
When the responses for ‘essential’, ‘very important’ or ‘important’ by respondents are 
added together, the aspects of day service/activities can be ranked in the following 
order of importance. 
 

• Somewhere safe to be looked after   98% 

• Friendly and helpful staff      94% 

• The chance to meet other people   93% 

• The break it gives me from home   92% 

148



 21

• Feeling safe when traveling   91% 

• Being part of the community   90% 

• Physical exercise     85% 

• Having a good meal     85% 

• Respite for Carer     84% 

• Advice and information    84% 

• Being able to do what I want, when I want it 83% 

• Where the service is    79% 

• Iindependent living skills    76% 

• The things provided     75% 

• Helps me to continue living at home  72% 

• Work related skills     60% 
 
An analysis of the response has shown that having somewhere safe to be looked 
after was the most important aspect of day care (98%). Day Centre staff received 
considerable praise throughout the consultation, which is reflected by the second 
highest rankling of 94% for the importance of friendly and helpful staff.  
All of the of day services/activities were clearly considered to be important, the fact 
that only 60% of respondents said that work related skills were essential, very 
important or important may be a reflection of the number of older people who 
returned a questionnaire.  
 
The chance to meet other people (93%); having a break from home for service users 
(92%): being part of the community (90%); respite for carers (84%); and a day 
service helps service users to continue to live at home (72%) were also mentioned 
throughout the consultation. 
 
Other results of interest were the importance for respondents of physical exercise 
and having a good meal (both 85%). 
 
 
Q. 8 Please state any other important aspects of a day service/activity not on 

the list above 
Some respondents fed back that the following additional aspects of the day service 
were important to them or the person they care for.  
 
Attending a day service provides much needed routine, structure and a change from 
being at home. Additional comments were that day care: 
 

• provides mental stimulation through a choice of activities 
 

• offers the opportunity not just to meet other people and friends, and enjoy 
social interaction with like minded people and staff who understand the needs 
of service users 

 

• practical help and support from activities and staff to learn new skills with 
problems such as paying bills and learning skills  

 
 

149



 22

Q9: Instead of attending a day centre, which of the following would you 
like to do? (You can tick more than one box) 

 
No. of 

respondents 
as % of total 

respondents (118) 

Shopping trips 78 66% 

Visit parks & gardens 75 64% 

Day trips 72 61% 

Exercise 70 59% 

Cinema 66 56% 

Adult education classes 56 48% 

Learn new skills 55 47% 

Out with friends 55 47% 

Theatre 55 47% 

Go to place of worship 43 36% 

Activities in the pub 31 26% 

Alternative therapies 26 22% 

Other 23 19% 

Total number of respondents 118 

 
 

Q10: In addition to attending a day centre, which of the following would 
you like to do? (You can tick more than one box) 

 
No. of 

respondents 
as % of total 

respondents (136) 

Visit parks & gardens 82 60% 

Shopping trips 81 60% 

Day trips 79 58% 

Exercise 68 50% 

Learn new skills 68 50% 

Out with friends 60 44% 

Adult education classes 51 38% 

Cinema 48 35% 

Go to place of worship 47 35% 

Alternative therapies 44 32% 

Theatre 37 27% 

Activities in the pub 30 22% 

Other 19 14% 

Total number of respondents 136  

 
Questions 9 and 10 asked respondents to tick which activities and services they (or 
the person they cared for) like to do instead (question 9) and in addition (question 
10) to attending a day centre. 
 
The activities and services chosen by respondents who answered the questions 
were relatively similar for both questions. Outings and activities including visiting 
parks and gardens, shopping and day trips and exercise were the most popular 
activities chosen by over half of the respondents. Going to places of worship, 

150



 23

activities in the pub and alternative therapies were listed by between a quarter and a 
third of respondents. Some 47% of respondents would like to go to the theatre 
instead of attending a day centre, whilst 27% of respondents said they would like to 
go to the theatre in addition to attending a day centre. 
 
Learning and education were also important to respondents: 48% would like adult 
education classes if they did not attend a day centre and 38% would like to attend 
these classes in addition to attending a day service.  Whilst 47% of respondents 
wanted to learn new skills if they did not attend a day centre and 50% would like this 
opportunity in addition to attending a day service. 
 
Other activities and services listed by respondents included eating out, sports (such 
as swimming and bowls), music, IT and also developing practical skills such as 
cooking and attending to laundry. 
 
 

Q11: When do you think you should be able to go to activities? 
 

Option 
Essential 

Very 
Important 

Important 
Not 

Important 
Don't 
know 

Did not 
answer 

Total 

Weekdays 
during the day 
(10.30-3.00) 

108 (66%) 24 (14%) 13 (8%) 6 (4%) 1 (1%) 12 (7%) 164 

Weekday 
mornings 

17 (10%) 17 (10%) 13 (8%) 13 (8%) 2 (1%) 102 (63%) 164 

Weekday 
afternoon 

15 (9%) 11 (7%) 14 (9%) 14 (9%) 2 (1%) 108 (65%) 164 

Evenings 8 (5%) 9 (5%) 14 (9%) 31 (19%) 4 (2%) 98 (60%) 164 

Weekends 11 (7%) 11 (7%) 13 (8%) 34 (20%) 3 (2%) 92 (56%) 164 

 

In total 153 (93%) of total respondents provided an answer to this question. Some 
respondents only gave an answer for one option whilst others provided an answer 
for 2 or more options.   
 
The table above shows that there was a major preference for weekday provision of a 
day service during the day (10.30am – 3pm), some 88% of all 164 respondents 
thought that it was essential, very important or important. A large proportion of the 
respondents did not provide an answer for the provision during weekday mornings 
(63%), weekday afternoons (65%), evenings (60%) or weekends (56%).  
 
Around a fifth of respondents said that it was essential, very important or important 
for the services to be provided during the evening (19%) and weekends (22%).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

151



 24

Q12: How do you prefer to access information and support for day 
services/ activities in the community? 

Type of information and support 
No. of 

respondents 

as % of total 
respondents 

(118) 

Leaflets and flyers 82 47% 

Voluntary organisations 76 44% 

Centres 61 35% 

Advocacy and advice groups 42 24% 

Council (including Access Harrow) 34 20% 

Internet (Including Harrow Council website) 25 15% 

Information points in community (e.g. libraries) 12 8% 

Other: Letters/written information sent in the post 8 5% 

Other: Through family or support workers 5 3% 

Other: Email 2 1% 

Other: Newspaper adverts 2 1% 

Total number of respondents 153  

 
The analysis of the 153 responses to this question, shows that the preferred 
communication methods for relaying information were leaflets and flyers (47%), the 
internet (15%) and though information in the community such as libraries (8%). Other 
methods fed back were letters or written information sent directly to people (3%) and 
emails (1%) or newspaper adverts (1%). 
 
Respondents favoured the provision of information and support through voluntary 
organisations (44%), day centres (35%), and council (20%) and also through family 
or support workers (3%).  
 
 
5.2.3. The views of respondents on specific aspects of the vision and model 
 

Q 13. We need to change services so that people have more choice about how they 
spend their day and can be as independent as possible. For example, by using 
places and services which are open to everyone and by giving people their 
own Personal Budget so they can buy the services they want.  

 

We think that the way to do this is: 
 

People with high level and complex needs can have the choice of receiving 
their care and activities in buildings specially designed for them. This does not 
stop them from using other places and services, if that is what they want. 
 
People with lower level needs can use their personal budget to purchase a 
range of activities in the community 

 

Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Don’t know Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

Did not 
answer 

27 (16%) 32 (20%) 20 (12%) 21 (13%) 37 (23%) 27 (16%) 

 

152



 25

The table above shows that just over a third of respondents (36%) strongly agreed or 
agreed with the model outlined. The same proportion of respondents (36%) strongly 
disagreed or disagreed, although a greater percentage of respondents strongly 
disagreed (23%) than strongly agreed (16%). 
 
Just over a quarter of respondents (29%) either stated that they did not know or did 
not answer the question. 
 
A few respondents provided additional comments to this question. A small number of 
respondents were worried about the impact of the model for service users with lower 
needs and the actual availability of suitable services in the community. Some anxiety 
was expressed about managing personal budgets: respondents said that they did 
not want a change to their current service.  
 
 

Q14. We also need to make the best use of the money we have. 
 
Several of our buildings are not being fully used.  
 
We could close some buildings and ensure that the ones which are open are fully 
used. 
 

Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Don’t know Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

Did not 
answer 

16 (10%) 29 (17%) 23 (14%) 29 (18%) 44 (27%) 23 (14%) 

 
Almost half (45%) of respondents strongly disagreed or disagreed with closure of 
under utilised buildings and full utilisation of the remaining buildings. Just over a 
quarter (27%) strongly agreed or agreed, the remaining 28% did not know or did not 
provide an answer. 
 
An additional comment to this question was the need for a dedicated service for 
people with autism. Some respondents thought that the introduction of charging for 
transport and the Fairer Charging policy has contributed to a decline in the number 
of people attending some of the day centres. One respondent suggested the council 
should consider leasing space in some of the buildings to the voluntary sector 
service providers to avoid potential closures. 
  
 
 

Q15: Currently many service users are travelling outside of Harrow for up to 90 
minutes when we have services in Harrow they could use  

 
We think that, where possible, current and future users could be using Harrow Day 
Centres to meet their needs 
 

Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Don’t know Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

Did not 
answer 

41 (25%) 34 (21%) 18 (11%) 14 (8%) 33 (20%) 24  (15%) 

 

153



 26

Just under half of respondents (46%) strongly agreed or agreed that current and 
future service users should be using Harrow Day Centres to meet their needs, rather 
than travelling to use services outside of the borough. 
 
Over a quarter of respondents (29%) strongly disagreed or disagreed, while the 
remaining 26% did not know or did not provide an answer. 
 
Additional comments to this question included a response that “this proposal would 
work as long as a genuine choice is offered to service users”. A small number of 
respondents gave a positive response that the model could offer better value for 
money for the council and save money, but any new services should meet the needs 
of service users.  Other comments included the need for specialist autism services in 
Harrow, some people felt that even if they have a higher level of need they should be 
able to have their needs met in Harrow. A small number of people said they had 
made friendships in the services they attend and would want to maintain those 
friendships. One respondent stated that people with complex needs should be able 
to access the community like anyone else and not spend all their time in a building. 
 
 

Q16: In the future, we may need to use our Day Centres in a different way. This 
could mean that the day centres could be used by lots of different people in the 
community 

 
This would mean that service users, regardless of age and disability can attend 
different sessions and activities run at the any of the day centres 

Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Don’t know Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

Did not 
answer 

22 (13%) 43 (26%) 14(9%) 16 (10%) 40 (24%) 29 (18%) 

 
Four out of ten respondents (39%), either strongly agreed or agreed with the 
proposal that Harrow Council day centres could be used by lots of different people in 
the community. A further third (34%) strongly disagreed or disagreed whilst the 
remaining 27% said they did not know or did not provide an answer. 
 
Additional comments were that the model will not be suitable for people with Autism 
unless there is a dedicated service and that the model may not suit people with very 
complex needs who may require specialist support and staffing.  Any move in 
service will be very disruptive for this client group. There were concerns that some 
people, who will be accessing community services in the future, may face some 
difficulties in accessing suitable transport arrangements. Some respondents stated 
that any new arrangement would need to ensure that potential safety issues are 
mitigated and that staff are sufficiently trained to work with new client groups. A few 
respondents thought that some client groups would not mix well, whilst other 
respondents thought that this would be a positive move for greater integration. 
 
 
Q17: If there is anything more you would like to tell us about day services and 
opportunities in Harrow? (e.g.: what improvements can be made): 
 
There were 47 responses to this question which centred on the following points. 

154



 27

 

• Many respondents re-emphasised the need for good quality day centres 

• There were suggestions for the provision of new or alternative activities, 
including arts and crafts, sports, IT and adult education  

• Several respondents requested an increase in the number of days they, or the 
person they care for, attend a day service 

• Some respondents had concerns that the proposals would mean a change in 
current staff that have built up relationships with clients over a period of time 

• Others had concerns about the affordability for clients attending a day service 
and one respondent stated that preventative services need investment 

 
 

6. Other Feedback 
 
6.1. View from Voluntary Organisations and NHS Harrow Clinical 

Commissioning Group 
 

Harrow Association for Disabled People (HAD) 
 
HAD welcomed the provision of personal budgets, which they believe may 
encourage people to gradually replace some of their day service attendance time.  
HAD highlighted that many people rely on day centres to socialise and they do not 
want to change. Spending personal budgets on support into work/voluntary work, etc 
is a positive outcome for many people, as there is currently very limited support 
available. Often, the preparation time before work, is the time that support is really 
needed. Access to work provides support afterwards if someone finds work.  
 
Personal budgets are a better option to meet the needs of the many people who do 
not fit into a recognised service model, e.g. people on the Aspergers or Autism 
spectrum. However, as with commissioned care, personal budgets may need to be a 
used differently to purchase specialist services for people who have additional needs 
such as challenging behaviour. 
 
HAD emphasised that although the reality is that the local area is less accessible to 
people with complex needs, they would be very wary of a policy which implies it is 
good practice for people with complex needs to be in day centres and others to be in 
more mainstream environments. Additionally, the local area should be made more 
accessible and there is very little incentive if those who have additional access 
needs do not use local services as often. 
 
HAD suggested transport is a real issue for many disabled and older people. The 
lack of transport to go to mainstream places is one of the reasons why many 
disabled people have been so keen to embrace day centres in the past. Transport 
options need to be explored. 
 
They also said that activities should not be labelled ‘day activities’ or ‘day 
opportunities’.  
 

155



 28

Harrow Mencap  
 
Harrow Mencap welcomed the move towards a more personalised approach to the 
Council’s day service provision and said that if personal budgets are implemented 
appropriately individuals would have the opportunity for greater choice and control, 
not only in their day activities but also in all aspects of their lives. 
 
Harrow Mencap stated that there needs to be better interconnectedness in relation to 
the number of changes currently being taken forward locally and nationally. 
 
A piecemeal approach can mean that some individuals will face significant changes 
in key aspects of their lives one after the other. This was having the effect of 
compounding their anxieties, confusion, sense of loss etc and would undoubtedly 
have a detrimental impact on their health and wellbeing. 
 
People may need more of one service and less of a different service depending on 
other things going on in their lives. Whilst understanding the council’s need to 
balance risks, choice and control, better well-being can only be achieved if personal 
budgets provide for greater flexibility. 
 
Harrow Mencap believe that the personalisation of day services offers real 
opportunities for people with learning disabilities to have greater access and active 
participation in their local community but fear that the market place is not sufficiently 
developed to offer a range of inclusive opportunities. 
 
Harrow Mencap welcomed any proposed changes that increase real choice and 
control for disabled people, but acknowledged that many service users have had 
limited opportunity to make informed choices and need skills development, advice 
and support. Opportunities to try new things before agreeing to any long term 
commitment must be included. 
 
Harrow Mencap strongly believes that a holistic approach to service development 
and delivery is essential if the Council is to achieve its ambition for providing high 
quality and sustainable outcomes for those most in need.  
 
 

156



 29

Harrow Age UK  
 
One of the key messages from Harrow Age UK was the need to give service users a 
choice in what they wanted to do, when and where they would do it.  
 
Harrow Age UK suggested that there should be a pilot model with a review carried 
out by service users. There were concerns around funding restrictions and people 
having less choice and possibly being able to access fewer activities.   
 
Regarding council services, Harrow Age UK stated that they agree it is important for 
the council services to support those with very high needs, but they should also 
support those with lower needs who want to use these services, especially if this is 
what the individual would want. Lower level needs and issues should be addressed 
as important preventative measures. 
 
Harrow Age UK also suggested reviving day centres to make them more accessible 
to all and have a different range of activities for different service users. More 
activities are important for people with dementia who require mentally stimulating 
and challenging activities. This was seen as important as preventative and health 
measures. Service users should be involved in designing their own activities and in 
having committees so they can raise their views. 
 
The organisation did not agree with the possibility of closing some centres. As the 
number of older service users grows it is important to keep as many buildings open 
as possible. Also closure of buildings may be very disruptive to some especially if 
they have relied on these and will need extra support in any transition. 
 
Current service users could be provision within borough to meet their needs, 
although some may prefer to continue using their current service as they have made 
friends and familiar with the centre. It is very important to have a range of activities in 
community hubs to keep people physically and mentally healthy so that all service 
user groups are comfortable attending. 
 
Harrow Age UK emphasised from their discussions with older service users, that 
some people do not like attending day centres as they still ‘feel young and active’. 
They find the idea of attending such centres or participating is activities as 
depressing. Whilst day centres are excellent for some, Harrow Age UK strongly 
agreed that there should be a range of activities within centres for all services users. 
They said that older people should not all be placed into one large group.  
 
Harrow Age UK concluded by saying that they believe some older people feel there 
are not enough activities for older men and even older couples. This is important as 
many older men can be very socially isolated and may not acknowledge this 
isolation. 
 
 

157



 30

NHS Harrow Clinical Commissioning Group 
 
Harrow CCG wishes to work with the Harrow Local Authority in the development of 
the proposed model for Adult Day Services. This will maximise the shared 
opportunity to support greater integration of health and social care services in order 
to develop improved, seamless, preventative services.  

There are significant opportunities for alignment and collaboration between health 
and social care in the development of Adult Day Services. 

This is reflected in a number of strategic Harrow CCG priorities and specific areas of 
work underway that would be relevant to Adult Day Service Review including:. The 
Out of Hospital Strategy: ‘Shaping a Healthier Future’, the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 2013 – 2016 and the: local Quality, Innovation, Productivity, and 
Prevention (QIPP) Programme 

Other areas of synergy between Harrow CCG and Harrow Council with regards to 
Adult Day Services include: 

• Harrow Council and CCG Joint Commissioning Intentions for 13/14, i.e. winter 
Planning, Dementia, and Children’s Services (particularly where we can support 
alignment of the health and social care services supporting service users as they 
transition from children’s to adult services). 

• Winterbourne View: ensuring that adult safeguarding is strengthened in line with 

national recommendations. 

• Joint NHS Harrow and Harrow Council Autism Strategy: including improving the 

support offered to the known population of people with autism, including people 

who have autism with additional learning disabilities or mental health issues. 

Harrow CCG welcomes the consultation and review of Adult Day Services in Harrow, 
and hopes to work closely with the Council to develop proposed models in order to: 

• Maximise opportunities for integration between health and social care services; 
and 

• Ensure alignment with existing health and social care strategies. 

 

 

6.2. Summary of written, email and phone responses from carers 
and a service user committee  

 
Summary of Letter one from a carer 
 
The consultation process is thorough but has it considered the consequences. My 
son has severe and complex needs. The centre meets all his needs and he 
accesses a good range of activities in a secure environment with supportive staff, 
and transport. He is unable to operate a personal budget. If left to services of 
outsiders he would be vulnerable to abuse and neglect. Any change will cause 
anxiety in the family. The centre integrates: respite, residential and day care users. 
Funding was also withdrawn from our other handicapped son, and we finally 

158



 31

resolved this issue without help from Harrow Council.  If you need to save money, 
you could spend less on the consultation, with only 1 researcher not 4. Researchers’ 
lack of understanding was evident when they required a service user to complete a 
questionnaire.   
 
Summary of letter two from carer 
 
My relative is very happy with the existing arrangements, has a good routine and a 
range of activities. I must insist this does not change. I request that you keep me fully 
informed of any changes to my relative’s care before the changes are made. I wish 
t0 be informed of any further meetings proposed and I would like a copy of the 
minutes of any meeting held regarding this consultation. 
 
Summary of a phone call from carer.  
 
Her son attends one NRC and one local external centre. She is concerned about 
losing the service as her son is happy there. The carer was forwarded a copy of the 
questionnaire at her request. 
 
Email from Bentley users’ committee 
 
At the committee meeting on Wednesday 1st May, the committee discussed the day 
services consultation, and wished to make sure that the following point was included 
within the consultation: 
 
A number of service users at Bentley have very large electric wheelchairs, the 
corridors and door frames at Bentley can all accommodate these wheelchairs safely, 
and allow for them to pass each other in the corridors. Internal doors are also kept 
open with magnetic metal pads that release in the event of a fire, which also allow 
easier entry and egress. There is a concern that if service users in future use other 
sites, if these sites will be able to accommodate the large electric wheelchairs that 
service users currently use? 
 

 
 

159



 32

Appendix 1: Schedule of Consultation events and attendance at each event 
 

Venue Date Service Users 
in attendance 

Family members, 
advocates and key 

workers in 
attendance 

Staff 

Milmans NRC Staff  20 February N/A N/A 13 

Milmans NRC Users 
and carers 

20 February 19  4 volunteers plus 1 
advocate 

N/A 

Byron NRC staff  28 February  N/A N/A 12 + I union rep 

Byron NRC users 
and carers 

28 February 24 0 N/A 

Milmans NRC users 
and carers 

4 March  14 2 carers  N/A 

Bedford House Day 
Service Staff  

6 March  N/A N/A 4 

Bedford House Day 
Service users and 
carers 

6 March (zero) 0 3 carers N/A 

Bentley Day Service 
staff 

7 March  N/A N/A 11 + I union rep 

Bentley Day Service 
users and carers 

7 March  25 1 carer N/A 

Bentley NRC users 
and carers 

13 March  18 2 carers N/A 

Shaftesbury High 
School 

18 March  8 N/A N/A 

Welldon Activity 
Group users 

19 March 18 (inc 2 non-
verbal) 

3 staff in attendance N/A 

Bentley Day Service 
users and carers: for 
Gujarati speakers 

20 March  5 4 carers plus  2 staff in 
attendance 

N/A 

Bentley Day Service 
Users committee 

20 March  7 1 staff in attendance N/A 

Gordon Avenue Day 
Service Staff 

21 March  N/A N/A 4 

Gordon Avenue Day 
Service users and 
carers 

21 March  (zero) 0 3 carers plus 1 staff in 
attendance 

N/A 

Vaughan NRC Staff 26 March  N/A N/A 10 + 1 union rep 

Vaughan NRC users 
and carers 

26 March  26 3 carers N/A 

Sancroft: Maya/ 
Anjali users 

28 March  28 4 staff in attendance N/A 

Shaw Trust users 2 April  3 1 staff in attendance N/A 

Sheltered 
accommodation 
residents 

3 April  17 reps from 
sheltered 

housing 
accommodation 

N/A N/A 

Carers meeting in St 
Peter’s Church 

5 April  N/A 33 carers N/A 

Tanglewood 8 April  70 approx N/A N/A 

Byron Park NRC 
users and carers 

9 April 22 3 staff in attendance  

Changes Nightclub 10 April  Questionnaires 
distributed 

N/A N/A 

Additional users and 
carers session at 
Civic 1  

10 April  1 8 carers N/A 

160



 33

Venue Date Service Users 
in attendance 

Family members, 
advocates and key 

workers in 
attendance 

Staff 

Kenmore NRC staff 11 April   N/A N/A 6 

Kenmore NRC users 
and carers 

11 April  22 3 carers N/A 

Sancroft: Byron users 15 April  11   1 carer plus 3 staff in 
attendance 

N/A 

Additional staff 
session at Civic 1  

16 April  N/A N/A  (zero) 0 

Kingsley High School 2 May    18 N/A N/A 

 
A summary of feedback from the consultation meetings is available on request. 

 
 
Appendix 2: List of Day Service Providers who were invited to attend a 

consultation event  
                      
 

1. CMSS 
2. Harrow Mencap  
3. Templeton Centre, Alzheimer’s Society 
4. Weldon Activity Group 
5. Choices4All 
6. Seva Care Services 
7. Age UK Harrow  
8. Fremantle Trust 
9. Harrow Association of Disabled People 
10. ADHD & Autism Support Harrow Council 
11. Chiltern Jigsaw Resource Centre/Chiltern Support and Housing 
12. Harrow Leisure Centre 
13. Flash Musicals 
14. ASAP Harrow 

 

161



162

This page is intentionally left blank



  
1

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
- 

T
a
b

le
 o

f 
b

u
il
d

in
g

/c
a
p

it
a
l 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
   

B
u

il
d

in
g

 
N

a
m

e
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
U

s
e
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

a
c
it

y
 

e
a
c
h

 d
a
y
 

A
c

c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 

O
w

n
e
d

 
b

y
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t/

 L
e
a
s
e
 

S
u

it
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
m

o
d

e
l?

 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l/
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

B
e
n

tl
e
y
 

(H
a
rr

o
w

 
W

e
a
ld

) 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

L
a
rg

e
 s

it
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n
 a

 
p
re

s
ti
g

io
u
s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 
T

h
o
u
g

h
t 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e
. 

S
it
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

g
y
m

 a
n
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

s
e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

R
u
n
-d

o
w

n
 b

u
ild

in
g

 
- 

In
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n
 

6
4
 

Y
e
s
 

L
B

H
 

N
/A

 
Y

e
s
 –

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
n
y
 

g
ro

u
p
 

L
a
n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f
o
r 

d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
b
y
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il.

 
A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
ly

 
c
o
u
ld

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 

h
ig

h
ly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

s
it
e
 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
(P

in
n
e
r)

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

T
h
is

 b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
it
e
. 

R
e
s
p
it
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

m
o
v
e
 (

fo
llo

w
in

g
 c

a
b
in

e
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
).

  
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

fu
tu

re
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

9
 

Y
e
s
 

L
B

H
 

N
/A

 
N

o
, 

to
o
 

s
m

a
ll 

s
c
a
le

 
 T

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

(M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
) 

o
u
tl
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
le

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

(P
in

n
e
r)

 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

D
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 

S
it
e
 a

ls
o
 h

a
s
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 t
h
a
t 

h
o
u
s
e
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

s
 

(u
p
s
ta

ir
s
).

 H
a
rr

o
w

 C
ro

s
s
ro

a
d
s
 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
 o

n
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 

th
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

t 
w

e
e
k
e
n
d
s
 

5
0
 

Y
e
s
 

L
B

H
 

C
o
v
e
n
a
n
t 

o
n
 l
a
n
d
 

–
 l
im

it
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
s
e
  

Y
e
s
 –

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 
C

o
v
e
n
a
n
t 

o
n
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 u
s
e
 

- 
G

o
o
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

in
 d

e
s
ir
a
b
le

 a
re

a
 

S
a
n

c
ro

ft
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

fr
o
m

 B
M

E
 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 
 

S
it
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

 
a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 d

a
y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

L
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

P
F

I 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

 

5
0
 

Y
e
s
 

C
a
ta

ly
s
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

P
F

I 
–
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

. 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
o
u
ld

 
re

q
u
ir
e
 

n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

v
a
ry

 u
s
e
  

 

Y
e
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 

n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 

o
f 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

  

163



  
2

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 
N

a
m

e
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
U

s
e
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

a
c
it

y
 

e
a
c
h

 d
a
y
 

A
c

c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 

O
w

n
e
d

 
b

y
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t/

 L
e
a
s
e
 

S
u

it
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
m

o
d

e
l?

 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l/
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

G
o

rd
o

n
 

A
v
e
n

u
e
 

(S
ta

n
m

o
re

) 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn

in
g

 
d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

S
m

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

n
 s

it
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 
is

 e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

re
s
p
it
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

9
 

Y
e
s
 

G
e
n
e
s
is

 
W

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 

u
s
e
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

w
h

ic
h
 u

s
e
s
 t
h
e
 

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
it
e
 

N
o
 –

 t
o
o
 

s
m

a
ll 

S
m

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

w
o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

id
e
a
l 
fo

r 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 d

a
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
 

B
y
ro

n
 

(W
e
a
ld

s
to

n
e
) 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn

in
g

 
d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

P
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
, 

n
e
x
t 

d
o
o
r 

to
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
. 
T

h
e
 

R
e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

 a
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 o

c
c
u
p
y
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 

o
n
 b

o
th

 f
lo

o
rs

 

4
0
 

Y
e
s
 

L
B

H
  

P
F

I,
 2

5
 y

e
a
rs

 
Y

e
s
 –

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 
re

n
e
g

o
ti
a
te

 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 i
f 

n
o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 a

s
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
(W

e
s
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

) 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn

in
g

 
d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

P
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
n
 A

u
ti
s
m

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
  

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
u
s
e
 V

a
u
g

h
a
n
 t
h
re

e
 t

im
e
s
 a

 
w

e
e
k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 4

p
m

 t
o
 6

p
m

 
m

a
in

ly
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 

5
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

3
0
 

Y
e
s
 

L
B

H
 

P
F

I,
 2

5
 y

e
a
rs

 
Y

e
s
 –

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 
re

n
e
g

o
ti
a
te

 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 i
f 

n
o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 a

s
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

(K
e
n
to

n
) 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn

in
g

 
d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

P
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
. 
S

it
e
 a

ls
o
 h

a
s
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
o
u
s
e
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 2

 T
e
a
m

 
(u

p
s
ta

ir
s
) 

3
0
 

Y
e
s
 

L
B

H
 

P
F

I,
 2

5
 y

e
a
rs

 
Y

e
s
 –

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 
re

n
e
g

o
ti
a
te

 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 i
f 

n
o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 a

s
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

 

164



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 –
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

a
y
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

F
u

ll
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
(E

q
IA

) 
 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 i
t 
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h

e
 E

q
IA

 E
-l

e
a
rn

in
g
 M

o
d
u

le
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 o

n
 E

q
IA

s
. 

P
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
s
e

 t
o
 

a
s
s
is

t 
y
o

u
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 t
h

is
 f

o
rm

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
 

 

W
h
a
t 
a
re

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
?
 (

N
o

te
: 
‘p

ro
p

o
s
a
l’ 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 

n
e

w
 p

o
lic

y
, 

p
o

lic
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n

, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
p
ro

je
c
t,
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

, 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
) 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 
A

d
u

lt
 
D

a
y
 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
re

v
ie

w
 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 
fo

r 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

, 
a
d

u
lt
s
 
w

it
h
 
le

a
rn

in
g
 
d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
s
o
ry

 i
m

p
a
ir
m

e
n
t.
  

 In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
a
d

u
lt
 d

a
y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 

W
h

ic
h

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 /
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

th
is

?
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
ll-

B
e
in

g
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

 

N
a
m

e
 a

n
d

 j
o

b
 t

it
le

 o
f 

le
a
d

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

B
ri
d

g
e
t 

B
e
rg

in
, 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r,

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

 N
a
m

e
 &

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

d
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

q
IA

: 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u
p

  
 D

e
v
e
n
 P

ill
a

y
 

 
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 M
e
n
c
a
p
 

S
a
n
ja

y
 K

a
ri

a
 

 
 

G
M

B
 

A
n
g

e
la

 D
ia

s
  
  
  
  

 
 

H
A

D
  

A
v
a
n
i 
M

o
d
a
s
ia

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
 H

a
rr

o
w

 A
g
e
 U

K
 

D
a
rr

e
n
 B

u
tt
e
rf

ie
ld

  
  
  
  

  
  

U
N

IS
O

N
 

G
a
ry

 M
a
rt

in
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
U

N
IS

O
N

 
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

: 
 B

ri
d

g
e
t 

B
e
rg

in
  

A
lli

s
o

n
 B

ri
c
e
  

P
o
o

n
a
m

 J
a
in

  
B

a
rb

a
ra

 K
o
rs

z
n

ia
k
  

A
n
d

e
e
p
 L

o
ta

  
P

e
te

r 
S

in
g
h

  
U

n
a
 T

a
y
lo

r 

D
a
te

 o
f 

a
s

s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t:
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

: 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 

1
. 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 a

im
s
, 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
, 
a
n

d
 

d
e
s
ir

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

?
 

 (E
x
p
la

in
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 e

.g
. 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 /
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

T
h
e
 
o
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 
a

im
 
o
f 

th
e
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
re

v
ie

w
 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 
is

 
to

 
in

tr
o

d
u
c
e
 
a
 
m

o
d
e

rn
is

e
d
 
m

o
d
e
l 

o
f 

d
a

y
 
o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 
w

h
ic

h
 
w

ill
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 c
h
o
ic

e
, 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

, 
in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
ts

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 r
a
ti
o
n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 

165



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

d
e

le
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
ts

, 
c
h
a
n
g

in
g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

e
tc

) 
T

h
e
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 c
h
a
n
g
e

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

A
d

u
lt
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

re
: 

D
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 i

n
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
 e

.g
. 

a
 g

re
a
te

r 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
n

d
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
v
e
re

 a
n

d
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 a

n
d
 a

d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
p
o

lic
y
 o

n
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

a
y
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
 m

u
c
h
 c

h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
  

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

d
a

y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 f
u
lly

 u
s
e

d
 

S
o
m

e
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 m

o
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
m

 g
e
tt
in

g
 t
o
 w

o
rk

/f
in

d
in

g
 a

 j
o

b
 

W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
d
a

y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
p

e
o
p

le
’s

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e

m
 t
o
 s

ta
y
 a

s
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
e

y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
, 

H
a
rr

o
w

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

p
e
n
d
s
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

th
e
r 

L
o

n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 o

n
 

D
a

y
 C

a
re

. 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 s

a
v
e
 3

0
%

 o
f 

it
s
 t

o
ta

l 
b

u
d
g

e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
3
 -

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i

d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 M

T
F

S
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
1
1
.4

5
%

  
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1

5
, 

w
h
ic

h
 e

q
u

a
te

s
 t
o

 £
6
0
0

,0
0

0
 

 M
o
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

, 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
b
e

lo
w

 
  
 

●
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

 
–
 

M
a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e

 o
f 

d
a

y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 n

e
w

 a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p

s
  

–
 

E
n
s
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
n
e

e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

–
 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 r
e
c
e

iv
e
 c

a
re

 i
n
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 s

p
e
c
ia

lly
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
m

 
 

●
 

U
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

w
a

y
s
 

–
 

W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 u

s
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 f

u
lly

 
•
 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
n
e
e

d
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

h
a

v
e
 t

o
 t
ra

v
e

l 
o
u
t 
o
f 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 m
ix

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 c

e
n

tr
e
 

•
 

S
o
m

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 m

a
y
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
- 

e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e
d
 

 
●

 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 a

s
k
e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e

n
ts

 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 a

b
o
u
t:
 

–
 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
n
e
e

d
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 t
h
e

ir
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 i
n

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

m
  

–
 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
n
e

e
d

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 a

 r
a

n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
/a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

–
 

F
u
lly

 u
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
-t

h
is

 m
a

y
 m

e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 m

a
y
 c

lo
s
e
 

 T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

1
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
 a

n
d
 7

 M
a

y
 2

0
1
3
. 
 

2
. 
W

h
a
t 
fa

c
to

rs
 /
 f

o
rc

e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

y
o

u
 

fr
o
m

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

im
s
, 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
 

• 
Id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
/g

ro
u
p
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 

• 
F

in
d

in
g
s
 o

f 
E

q
IA

 –
 w

ill
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 i
f 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
n

y
 g

a
p
s
 o

r 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a
c
ts

 

166



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
 

• 
S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 w

h
a
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
d

 a
re

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 u
n
a

b
le

 t
o
 s

h
a

p
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

• 
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 k

e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

• 
F

e
a
r 

a
n

d
/o

r 
re

s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 b

y
 a

ll 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

• 
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 t
h
a
t 

d
e

liv
e
r 

b
o
th

 t
h
e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

3
. 
W

h
o
 a

re
 t
h
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

?
 W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l?

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 w
h
o
 

a
re

 t
h
e

 e
x
te

rn
a
l/
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e
h
o

ld
e
rs

, 
th

e
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 e

tc
. 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
-h

o
u

s
e
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 t
h
e

y
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
re

 c
h
o
ic

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
m

o
re

 d
a

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

• 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 n
e

e
d
 d

a
y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
, 
e
.g

. 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
, 

a
n
d
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 n
e

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

• 
C

a
re

rs
 

• 
W

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

ri
e
n
d
s
, 
fa

m
ily

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

• 
P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 m
a

y
 b

e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
tl
y
, 
a

n
d
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 h
a

v
e

 n
e

w
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

• 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 
s
e
c
to

r:
 
th

e
y
 
m

a
y
 
b
e
 
c
u
rr

e
n

t 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
a

n
d
 
a

ls
o
 
p

la
y
 
a

 
k
e

y
 
ro

le
 
in

 
a
d

v
is

in
g
, 

s
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n

g
 
a
n

d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 

• 
S

ta
ff

 w
ill

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
, 

a
n
d
 m

a
y
 f

a
c
e
 n

e
w

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ts

 

4
. 
Is

 t
h
e

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 o

r 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
?
 I

f 
s
o
: 
 

• 
W

h
o
 a

re
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

?
 

• 
W

h
o
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

?
 

 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
re

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

: 
A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 
w

o
rk

 
in

 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 
s
e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 
d
a

y
 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
to

 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
 
n

e
w

 
d

a
y
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

ig
n
p

o
s
ti
n

g
, 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 d

a
y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

It
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 H

e
a

lt
h
 t

o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

 

4
a
. 
H

o
w

 a
re

/w
ill

 t
h
e

y
 b

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t?

 

• 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 (

H
a
rr

o
w

 M
e
n
c
a
p

, 
A

g
e

 U
K

 H
a
rr

o
w

, 
H

A
D

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
a
re

rs
, 

a
n
d
 M

A
B

) 
h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u

p
. 

A
ll 

k
n
o

w
n
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 g

ro
u
p

s
 w

e
re

 i
n

v
it
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
, 
p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 c
o
p

y
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n

a
ir
e

 a
n

d
 i
n
v
it
e

d
 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

. 

• 
A

 f
o
ru

m
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 o
f 

a
ll 

c
u

rr
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r,
 t

o
 s

e
e
k
 t

h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 d
a

y
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

h
a
p

e
d
. 

• 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
if
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

m
a
k
e
s
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
, 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 
d
a

y
 c

a
re

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 f

o
r 

s
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
, 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

in
g

 u
s
e
rs

. 

• 
H

e
a
lt
h
 r

e
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
n

v
it
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u
p
. 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
to

o
k
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 

• 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
a
n
ts

 
to

 
a

v
o
id

 
s
ta

ff
 

re
d
u
n
d
a

n
c
ie

s
, 

th
e
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 

a
n

y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

b
y
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

a
ro

u
n

d
 

th
e
 

re
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

F
o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 U

n
io

n
s
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i

n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

to
c
o
l.
 A

 f
u
ll 

E
Q

IA
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o
 s

ta
ff

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

. 
 

 

S
ta

g
e
 2

: 
M

o
n

it
o
ri

n
g

 /
 C

o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 /
 D

a
ta

 

5
. 
W

h
a
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

f 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

?
 I

n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d
a
ta

, 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

u
ll 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
) 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e
 

167



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

4
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 e

a
c
h

 e
q

u
a
lit

y
 g

ro
u
p
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
).

 T
h
is

 c
a
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 f

ro
m

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
tr

a
c
k
e
r,

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 
fo

c
u
s
 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

s
, 
s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 p
ro

fi
le

s
, 
lo

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
, 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 e

tc
 

(W
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 t
h
e

 n
in

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 
W

h
e
re

 y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 g

a
p
s
, 

y
o

u
 m

a
y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h

is
 a

s
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
) 

A
g
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
y
o

u
n
g
/o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
) 

 T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 a
t 
S

a
n
c
ro

ft
 

 

A
g

e
 -

  
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(1
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(7
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
y
ro

n
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

(3
5
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

G
o

rd
o

n
 

A
v

e
n

u
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(8
 c

li
e
n

ts
) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(3
4
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

(1
0
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(3
8
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

S
a
n

c
ro

ft
  

(1
3
6
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

1
8
-2

4
 

1
 

 
1
 

1
 

3
 

- 
6
 

- 

2
5
-4

4
 

4
 

1
7
 

1
8
 

4
 

1
0
 

- 
1
3
 

2
 

4
5
-6

4
 

5
 

2
7
 

1
2
 

3
 

1
9
 

- 
1
7
 

1
0
 

6
5
+

 
- 

2
6
 

4
 

- 
2
 

1
0
0
 

2
 

1
2
4
 

 T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

P
S

 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt

) 

T
h
e
 G

re
a
te

r 
L
o
n

d
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 (

G
L

A
 D

a
ta

s
to

re
) 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 

in
 2

0
1

3
 t
h

e
re

 w
e
re

 1
9
0
,5

6
8
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g
e
d
 1

8
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

(t
h
e

 a
g

e
 

fr
o
m

 w
h
ic

h
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

d
u

lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
),

 b
y
 2

0
1
8

 i
t 

is
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 2

5
9
,1

8
4

 p
e

o
p
le

 
a
n
d
 b

y
 2

0
2

3
 t
o

 2
7

1
,4

1
2
.T

h
e
 G

L
A

 h
a
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
g

e
d
 6

5
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

in
 2

0
1

3
 i
s
 3

5
,7

1
2
 o

r 
1

4
.5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l 
p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
1
.1

%
. 
T

h
e
 G

L
A

 h
a

s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
b

y
 2

0
1

8
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 6

5
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 3
9
,5

1
8
 o

r 
1
5
.2

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

; 
b

y
 2

0
2
3

 t
h
e

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 4

3
,7

9
8
 o

r 
1
6
.1

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 
 

 O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
In

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
, 
m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

,2
0
0
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 a
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

o
f 

w
h
o
m

 8
1
.8

%
 w

e
re

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n
d

e
n
tl
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 9

.8
%

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

. 
 

P
ro

je
c
ti
n

g
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p

le
 P

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

P
O

P
P

I)
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g
 a

lo
n
e

, 
w

it
h
 a

 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 l
im

it
in

g
 i
lln

e
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 u
n

p
a
id

 c
a
re

 d
e
s
p

it
e
 h

a
v
in

g
 p

o
o
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 

D
e

m
e
n
ti
a
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o

n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 d
e
m

a
n
d
. 
N

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 s

h
o

w
s
 t
h
a
t 

v
a
s
t 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

a
n
t 

to
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tl
y
. 

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 d

a
ta

 i
n
d

ic
a
te

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
p
e
n
d
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 m
o
re

 o
n
 d

a
y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
 

(l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

) 
th

a
n
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 

 W
h
ils

t 
w

e
 p

a
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

ra
te

s
 f

o
r 

d
a

y
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
it
h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 l

e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
, 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

’s
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 i
s
 l

e
s
s
 t

h
a
n

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 c

o
s
t 

in
 

L
o
n
d

o
n
, 

a
s
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 o
v
e
rl

e
a
f.

 
 

168



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

5
 

   

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 G

ro
s
s
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 p
e
r 

D
a

y
 o

f 
C

a
re

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 
£
7
4
 

£
1
4
4
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 

£
4
6
7
 

£
3
5
4
 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
ll
y
 D

is
a

b
le

d
 

£
2
7
8
 

£
2
2
9
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p

le
) 

 T
h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

t 
S

a
n

c
ro

ft
. 

(T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
t 

M
ilm

a
n
s
 D

a
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

‘p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a
b

ili
ty

, 
fr

a
ilt

y
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
s
o
ry

 i
m

p
a
ir

m
e
n
t’
):

  

 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 
D

is
a
b

il
it

y
 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(1
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(7
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
y
ro

n
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

(3
5
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

G
o

rd
o

n
 

A
v

e
n

u
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(8
 c

li
e
n

ts
) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(3
4
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

(1
0
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(3
8
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

S
a
n

c
ro

ft
  

(1
3
6
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
fr

a
ilt

y
 a

n
d
 

s
e
n
s
o
ry

 
im

p
a
ir
m

e
n
t 

-  
6
1
 

- 
- 

- 
8
4
 

- 
1
1
4
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ty

 
1
0
 

8
 

3
5
 

8
 

3
4
 

5
 

3
8
 

1
4
 

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

- 
1
 

- 
- 

- 
1
1
 

- 
7
 

O
th

e
r 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
P

e
o

p
le

 

-  
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
1
 

 In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
a

ry
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

t 
S

a
n
c
ro

ft
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n
 o

v
e
rl

e
a
f 

   

169



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

6
 

 

S
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
o

r 
a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(1
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(7
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
y
ro

n
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

(3
5
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

G
o

rd
o

n
 

A
v

e
n

u
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(8
 c

li
e
n

ts
) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(3
4
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

(1
0
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(3
8
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

S
a
n

c
ro

ft
  

(1
3
6
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
fr

a
ilt

y
 a

n
d
 

s
e
n
s
o
ry

 
im

p
a
ir
m

e
n
t 
 

2
 

5
 

2
 

2
 

1
0
 

1
0
 

1
1
 

1
5
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
 

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

1
 

1
 

- 
- 

- 
5
 

- 
3
 

O
th

e
r 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
P

e
o

p
le

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 P
A

N
S

I 
(P

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 
A

d
u

lt
 
N

e
e
d
s
 
a
n

d
 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
n
u

m
b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 
a

g
e
d
 
b
e
tw

e
e

n
 
1

8
-6

4
 
w

it
h
 
a

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 3
7
5
4

 p
e

o
p
le

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
 t

o
 4

1
0

6
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
, 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
9
.4

%
. 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 a

u
ti
s
m

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 1
5
3
0
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
 t

o
 1

6
9
4
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
 2

0
2
0
, 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

1
0
.7

%
 i
n
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri

o
d

. 
P

A
N

S
I 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

ls
o
 s

h
o
w

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 a

 m
o
d
e
ra

te
 o

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 f

ro
m

 1
4

,6
7
3
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 2

0
1

3
 t

o
 

1
6
,3

3
9
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 2

0
2
0
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

1
1
.4

%
. 

L
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

4
5
0
 a

d
u

lt
s
 i
n
 1

8
-6

4
 a

g
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

o
f 

w
h

o
m

 6
9
.6

%
 w

e
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 2

1
0

 o
r 

4
6
.7

%
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

5
8

2
 1

8
-6

4
 a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h
 a

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
s
e
n
s
o
ry

 i
m

p
a
ir
m

e
n
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
o
f 

w
h
o
m

 9
5
%

 w
e
re

 i
n

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 4

9
 (

8
.4

%
) 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 d
a

y
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e

. 
 A

b
o

u
t 

4
5
 

y
o

u
n
g

 
p

e
o
p

le
 

w
ill

 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
to

 
a
d

u
lt
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
 

th
e

 
n
e
x
t 

tw
o

 
y
e

a
rs

 
a
n

d
 

m
a

y
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 

d
a

y
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

R
e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t 

 W
h
ils

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

i 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 s

e
t 
u

p
 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
th

is
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

e
ld

 c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

 

M
a
rr

ia
g

e
 /
 C

iv
il 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
W

h
ils

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

i 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 s

e
t 
u

p
 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
th

is
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

e
ld

 c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c

 

170



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

7
 

P
re

g
n

a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 M

a
te

rn
it
y
 

W
h
ils

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

i 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 s

e
t 
u

p
 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
th

is
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

e
ld

 c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c

 

               R
a
c
e
  

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 e

th
n

ic
it
y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 S

a
n

c
ro

ft
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 b

e
lo

w
 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 -

 
C

li
e
n

ts
 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(1
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(7
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
y
ro

n
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

(3
5
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

G
o

rd
o

n
 

A
v

e
n

u
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(8
 c

li
e
n

ts
) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(3
4
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

(1
0
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(3
8
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

S
a
n

c
ro

ft
  

(1
3
6
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

 
W

h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

ri
ti
s
h

):
 4

 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

ri
ti
s
h

):
 2

9
 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

ri
ti
s
h

):
 1

7
 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

ri
ti
s
h

):
 4

 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

ri
ti
s
h

):
 1

1
 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

ri
ti
s
h

):
 6

0
 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

ri
ti
s
h

):
 1

1
 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

ri
ti
s
h

):
 1

6
 

 
A

s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

):
 5

 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

ri
s
h

):
 2

 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

ri
s
h

):
 1

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

):
 2

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

):
 1

5
 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

ri
s
h

):
 8

 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

ri
s
h

):
 2

 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

ri
s
h

):
 4

 

 
A

s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
1

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

):
 2

0
 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(o

th
e

r 
W

h
it
e
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
1

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(P

a
k
is

ta
n
i)

: 1
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(P

a
k
is

ta
n
i)

: 2
 

W
h
it
e

 o
r 

W
h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 
(o

th
e

r 
W

h
it
e
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 2

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

):
 1

4
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

):
 9

3
 

 
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(P

a
k
is

ta
n
i)

: 4
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

):
 8

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 1

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 2

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

):
  

9
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(P

a
k
is

ta
n
i)

: 
 

2
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(B

a
n

g
la

d
e
s
h

i)
: 

 1
 

 
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 4

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(P

a
k
is

ta
n
i)

: 2
 

 
B

la
c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(C
a

ri
b

b
e
a

n
):

 
4

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(P

a
k
is

ta
n
i)

: 1
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 5

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 1

3
 

 
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(C
a

ri
b

b
e
a

n
) 

: 
5

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 3

 

 
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 2

 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(A
fr

ic
a
n

):
 1

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(P

a
k
is

ta
n
i)

: 2
 

 
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(A
fr

ic
a
n

):
 1

 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(A
fr

ic
a
n

):
 1

 

 
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(A
fr

ic
a
n

):
 1

 

O
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
 

(o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 
g

ro
u

p
):

 2
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(C
a

ri
b

b
e
a

n
):

 
3

 

171



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

8
 

 
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(A
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
B

la
c
k
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
1

 

M
ix

e
d

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
 

(W
h
it
e

 a
n

d
 

B
la

c
k
 

C
a

ri
b

b
e
a

n
):

 
1

 

 
 

M
ix

e
d

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
 

(W
h
it
e

 a
n

d
 

B
la

c
k
 

C
a

ri
b

b
e
a

n
):

 
1

2
 

 
O

th
e

r 
e

th
n

ic
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
 

(o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 
g

ro
u

p
):

 2
 

 
 

O
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
 

(o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 
g

ro
u

p
):

 1
 

M
ix

e
d

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
 

(o
th

e
r 

m
ix

e
d

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
1

 

 
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(A
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
B

la
c
k
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
 1

 

 
N

o
t 

k
n
o

w
n

: 2
 

 
 

N
o

t 
k
n
o

w
n

: 3
 

 
 

 
M

ix
e

d
 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
 

(o
th

e
r 

m
ix

e
d

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
)

: 
2

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u
n

d
 

(o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 
g

ro
u

p
):

 2
 

 
 

 T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 e

th
n
ic

it
y
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 -

 
s
ta

ff
 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(4
 s

ta
ff

) 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(1
7
 s

ta
ff

) 

B
y
ro

n
 N

R
C

 
(1

4
 s

ta
ff

) 
G

o
rd

o
n

 
A

v
e
n

u
e
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(5
 s

ta
ff

) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(1
5
 s

ta
ff

) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

(1
6
 s

ta
ff

) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(1
6
 s

ta
ff

) 

 
W

h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(B
ri
ti
s
h
) 

- 
1
 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(B
ri
ti
s
h
) 

- 
5
 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(B
ri
ti
s
h
) 

–
 7

 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(B
ri
ti
s
h
) 

–
 1

 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(C
o
lu

m
b
ia

n
) 

–
 1

 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(B
ri
ti
s
h
) 

–
 6

 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(B
ri
ti
s
h
) 

–
6
 

 
W

h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(I
ri
s
h
) 

–
 1

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(I
n
d
ia

n
) 

–
 5

 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(S
p
a
n

is
h
) 

–
 

1
 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(o
th

e
r 

W
h
it
e
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
) 

–
 3

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(I
n
d
ia

n
) 

–
 3

 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(I
ri
s
h
) 

–
 2

 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(I
ri
s
h
) 

–
 1

 

172



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

9
 

 
A

s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(I
n
d
ia

n
) 

–
 2

 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

fr
ic

a
n
) 

- 
4
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(I

n
d

ia
n

) 
–

 2
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

fr
ic

a
n
) 

- 
1
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(S
ri
 L

a
n
k
a
n
) 

–
 1

 

W
h
it
e
 o

r 
W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(a
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

: 
S

w
e
d

is
h
) 

–
 

1
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(I
n
d
ia

n
) 

–
 4

 

 
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(C

a
ri
b
b

e
a
n
) 

- 
3
 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(P

a
k
is

ta
n
i)

 –
 

1
 

 
A

s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(A
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

A
s
ia

n
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
) 

–
 1

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(I
n
d
ia

n
) 

–
 2

 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

fr
ic

a
n
) 

–
 2

 

 
 

 
A

s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

(N
e
p
a

le
s
e
) 

–
 1

 

 
B

la
c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

fr
ic

a
n
) 

- 
4
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

fr
ic

a
n
) 

- 
1
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(C

a
ri
b
b

e
a
n
) 

- 
1
 

 
 

 
B

la
c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(A

fr
ic

a
n
) 

- 
2
 

 
B

la
c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(C

a
ri
b
b

e
a
n
) 

- 
4
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(C

a
ri
b
b

e
a
n
) 

- 
1
 

D
id

 n
o
t 

w
is

h
 

to
 s

ta
te

 -
 4

 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ix
e
d
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 

(o
th

e
r 

m
ix

e
d
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
) 

- 
1
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(o

th
e
r 

B
la

c
k
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
) 

- 
1
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ix

e
d
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 

(W
h
it
e
 a

n
d
 

B
la

c
k
 

C
a
ri
b

b
e
a

n
) 

- 1
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 

(I
ra

n
ia

n
) 

- 
1
 

 

173



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
0

 

 T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
la

n
g

u
a

g
e
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 i
n

 e
a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 S

a
n
c
ro

ft
 

 

F
ir

s
t 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
 

s
p

o
k
e
n

 b
y
 

c
li
e
n

ts
 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(1
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(7
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
y
ro

n
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

(3
5
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

G
o

rd
o

n
 

A
v

e
n

u
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(8
 c

li
e
n

ts
) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(3
4
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

(1
0
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(3
8
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

S
a
n

c
ro

ft
  

(1
3
6
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

 
E

n
g

lis
h
: 

4
 

E
n
g

lis
h
: 

4
8
 

E
n
g

lis
h
: 

2
8
  

E
n
g

lis
h
: 

5
  

E
n
g

lis
h
: 

2
2
 

E
n
g

lis
h
: 

8
2
 

E
n
g

lis
h
: 

2
1
 

E
n
g

lis
h
: 

2
8
 

 
G

u
ja

ra
ti
: 
5
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
: 

1
3
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
: 
5
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
: 
2
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
: 
9
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
: 
3
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
: 

1
0
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
: 

7
6
 

 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
: 1
 

N
o
t 
s
ta

te
d
: 5
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 S

ig
n
 

L
a
n
g

u
a
g

e
: 1
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 S

ig
n
 

L
a
n
g

u
a
g

e
: 1
 

N
o
t 
s
ta

te
d
: 3
 

N
o
t 
s
ta

te
d
: 
 

1
0
 

N
o
t 
s
ta

te
d
: 1
 

H
in

d
i:
 3

 

 
 

A
ra

b
ic

: 
1
 

P
u
n
ja

b
i:
 1

 
 

 
P

u
n
ja

b
i:
 1

 
P

u
n
ja

b
i:
 2

 
M

a
ra

th
i:
 1

 

 
 

P
u
n
ja

b
i:
 1

 
 

 
 

U
rd

u
: 
1
 

T
a
m

il:
 3

 
N

o
t 
S

ta
te

d
: 

1
5
 

 
 

U
rd

u
: 
1
 

 
 

 
G

re
e
k
: 
1
 

F
a
rs

i/
 

P
e
rs

ia
n
: 
1
 

O
th

e
r:

 1
 

 

 
 

K
u
rd

is
h
: 
1
 

 
 

 
P

o
lis

h
: 

1
 

 
P

u
n
ja

b
i:
 9

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
e
rm

a
n
: 
1
 

 
T

a
m

il:
 1

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

U
rd

u
: 
1
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
h
in

e
s
e
: 
1
 

  T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e
s
 s

p
o
k
e
n
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

, 
o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 E

n
g

lis
h
, 

in
 e

a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

  

L
a
n

g
u

a
g

e
s
 

s
p

o
k
e
n

 b
y
 

s
ta

ff
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 
E

n
g

li
s
h

 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(4
 s

ta
ff

) 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(1
7
 s

ta
ff

) 

B
y
ro

n
 N

R
C

 
(1

4
 s

ta
ff

) 
G

o
rd

o
n

 
A

v
e
n

u
e
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(5
 s

ta
ff

) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(1
5
 s

ta
ff

) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

(1
6
 s

ta
ff

) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(1
6
 s

ta
ff

) 

 
G

u
ja

ra
ti
 –

 2
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
 –

 4
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
 –

 4
 

S
p
a

n
is

h
 –

 1
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
 –

 2
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
 –

 3
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
 –

 4
 

 
H

in
d

i 
–

 2
 

H
in

d
i 
–

 2
 

H
in

d
i 
–

 2
 

C
z
e
c
h
 –

 1
 

P
u
n
ja

b
i 
–
 1

 
H

in
d

i 
–

 2
 

H
in

d
i 
–

 3
 

 
P

u
n
ja

b
i 
–
 1

 
A

s
s
a
m

e
s
e
 –

 
S

w
a
h

ili
 –

 2
 

K
ik

u
y
u
 –

 1
 

S
w

a
h

ili
 -

 1
 

U
rd

u
 –

 2
 

P
u
n
ja

b
i 
–
 1

 

174



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
1

 

1
 

 
S

w
a
h

ili
 -

 1
 

B
e
n

g
a

li 
–
 1

 
S

p
a

n
is

h
 –

 1
 

S
w

a
h

ili
 –

 1
 

Ig
b
o
 –

 1
 

It
a
lia

n
 –

 2
 

F
re

n
c
h
 –

 2
 

 
 

F
re

n
c
h
 –

 1
 

P
o
rt

u
g
u
e
s
e
 

–
 1

 
 

C
re

o
le

 –
 1

 
E

d
o
 –

 1
 

R
o
m

a
n
ia

n
 –

 
1
 

 
 

Ig
b
o
 –

 1
 

It
a
lia

n
 -

 1
 

 
C

o
lu

m
b
ia

n
 -

 
1
 

S
w

e
d

is
h
 -

 1
 

 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti

o
n
 s

k
ill

s
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 S

ig
n
 

L
a
n
g

u
a
g

e
s
 -

 
1
 

 
B

a
s
ic

 
M

a
k
a
to

n
 

(b
u
t 
n
o

 
fo

rm
a
l 

tr
a
in

in
g
) 

- 
1
4
 

M
a
k
a
to

n
 -

 1
 

M
a
k
a
to

n
 -

 3
 

M
a
k
a
to

n
 -

 1
 

0
 

 
M

a
k
a
to

n
 -

 2
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

a
k
a
to

n
 -

 2
 

  H
a
rr

o
w

 h
a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
th

n
ic

a
lly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
; 

O
N

S
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

 n
o

w
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 r
a
n
k
in

g
 o

f 
e
ig

h
th

 i
n
 2

0
0
1

. 
 

T
h
e
 G

re
a
te

r 
L
o
n

d
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
G

L
A

 D
a
ta

s
to

re
) 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
in

 2
0

1
3
, 

6
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 o
r 

5
7

%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 

a
g
e
d

 1
8
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

a
re

 f
ro

m
 a

 B
A

M
E

 (
B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

) 
g
ro

u
p
. 

B
y
 2

0
1

8
 B

A
M

E
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 6

5
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o
ta

l 
p
o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 6

1
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
g
e

d
 1

8
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r;

 b
y
 2

0
2
3
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 6

8
%

 a
n
d
 6

5
%

, 
re

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 

R
e
lig

io
n
 a

n
d
 B

e
lie

f 

 T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 r

e
lig

io
n
/b

e
lie

f 
o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n

 e
a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 S

a
n
c
ro

ft
. 

 

R
e
li
g

io
n

/ 
b

e
li
e
f 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(1
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(7
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
y
ro

n
 

N
R

C
 (

3
5
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

G
o

rd
o

n
 

A
v

e
n

u
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

(8
 c

li
e
n

ts
) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(3
4
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

(1
0
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(3
8
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

S
a
n

c
ro

ft
 

(1
3
6
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

C
h
ri
s
ti
a

n
 

4
 

1
3
 

2
0
 

4
 

 
5
6
 

1
5
 

1
4
 

C
a
th

o
lic

 
 

2
 

1
 

 
 

6
 

 
6
 

175



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
2

 

H
in

d
u
is

m
 

5
 

1
0
 

8
 

3
 

 
8
 

1
2
 

8
6
 

Is
la

m
 

 
 

4
 

1
 

 
3
 

1
0
 

1
0
 

J
u
d
a
is

m
  

 
 

 
 

 
2
 

 
1
 

J
a
in

is
m

 
 

1
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
u
d

d
h

is
m

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
 

 
1
 

O
th

e
r 

re
lig

io
n
 

1
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
ik

h
is

m
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
 

5
 

N
o
 

re
lig

io
n
/ 

a
th

e
is

t 

 
1
 

1
 

 
 

1
 

 
1
 

N
o
t 
s
ta

te
d
 

 
4
3
 

1
 

 
 

2
3
 

 
1
2
 

  

S
e
x
 /
 G

e
n
d
e
r 

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 s

e
x
/g

e
n

d
e
r 

o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 S

a
n
c
ro

ft
 

 

S
e
x
/ 

G
e
n

d
e
r 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(1
0
 c

li
e
n

ts
 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(7
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

B
y
ro

n
 

N
R

C
 (

3
5
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

G
o

rd
o

n
 

A
v

e
n

u
e
 

D
a

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(8
 c

li
e
n

ts
) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(3
4
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

(1
0
0
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(3
8
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

S
a
n

c
ro

ft
  

(1
3
6
 

c
li
e
n

ts
) 

M
a
le

 
4
 

3
2
 

2
1
 

4
 

1
8
 

2
9
 

1
6
 

3
1
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
6
 

3
8
 

1
4
 

4
 

1
6
 

7
1
 

2
2
 

1
0
5
 

 T
h
e
 2

0
1
1
 c

e
n
s
u
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
m

e
n
 o

u
tn

u
m

b
e

r 
m

e
n
 i
n
 a

ll 
a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

v
e

r 
3
4
-3

9
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
in

 
th

e
 o

v
e
r 

7
5
s
. 

T
h
e
 G

re
a
te

r 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
G

L
A

 D
a
ta

s
to

re
) 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

in
 2

0
1
3
 t

h
e
 m

a
le

 t
o
 f

e
m

a
le

 r
a
ti
o

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
g

e
d
 6

5
 

o
r 

o
v
e
r 

is
 4

5
%

/5
5
%

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 c
h

a
n
g

in
g
 t

o
 4

6
%

/5
4

%
 b

y
 2

0
2
3
; 

th
e

 2
0

1
3
 m

a
le

 t
o
 f

e
m

a
le

 r
a
ti
o
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 a

g
e
d

 7
5
 o

r 
o

v
e
r 

is
 

3
9
%

/6
1
%

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 c
h
a

n
g

in
g
 t

o
 4

4
%

/5
6
%

 b
y
 2

0
2

3
; 

th
e
 2

0
1
3

 m
a
le

 t
o
 f

e
m

a
le

 r
a

ti
o
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 9

0
 o

r 
o

v
e
r 

is
 3

3
%

/6
7
%

 i
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 c
h
a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 4

4
%

/5
6
%

 b
y
 2

0
2
3
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

ro
a
d
ly

 i
n
 l

in
e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 H
a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
2
4
 (

4
2
%

) 
m

a
le

 a
n

d
 1

7
1
 (

5
8
%

) 
fe

m
a
le

 
c
lie

n
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
t 

M
ilm

a
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
ll 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
re

 a
g

e
d

 6
5
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r,

 2
1
%

 o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
e
re

 m
a
le

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 7

9
%

 o
f 

fe
m

a
le

s
. 

T
h
e
 t

a
b
le

 o
v
e
rl
e

a
f 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 s

e
x
/g

e
n
d
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

e
m

a
le

 t
o
 m

a
le

 r
a
ti
o
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 i
s
 

7
6
%

/2
4
%

. 

176



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
3

 

  

S
e
x
/ 

G
e
n

d
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 

B
e
d

fo
rd

 
H

o
u

s
e
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(4
 s

ta
ff

) 

B
e
n

tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  

(1
7
 s

ta
ff

) 

B
y
ro

n
 N

R
C

  
  
  

(1
4
 s

ta
ff

) 
G

o
rd

o
n

 
A

v
e
n

u
e
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  
  
  

(5
 s

ta
ff

) 

K
e
n

m
o

re
 

N
R

C
  
  
  

  
 

(1
5
 s

ta
ff

) 

M
il
m

a
n

s
 

D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

(1
6
 s

ta
ff

) 

V
a
u

g
h

a
n

 
N

R
C

  
  
  

  
 

(1
6
 s

ta
ff

) 

M
a
le

 
1
 

3
 

6
 

1
 

4
 

1
 

5
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
3
 

1
4
 

8
 

4
 

1
1
 

1
5
 

1
3
 

 

S
e
x
u
a

l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

W
h
ils

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

i 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 s

e
t 
u

p
 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
th

is
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

e
ld

 c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

 

6
. 

Is
 t

h
e
re

 a
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

(l
o
c
a

l,
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l,
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
, 

re
p
o
rt

s
, 

m
e
d
ia

) 
d
a
ta

 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n

 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t?

 

In
c
lu

d
e
 t
h

is
 d

a
ta

 (
fa

c
ts

, 
fi
g
u

re
s
, 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
, 
k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
) 

in
 t

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

O
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 t
h
e

ir
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

g
re

a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
. 

B
a
rn

e
t 

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
g
re

e
d

 i
n
 2

0
1
2

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

re
s
h
a
p
in

g
 d

a
y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 l

o
c
a

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

A
 n

e
w

 ‘
n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o

d
 m

o
d
e
l’ 

fo
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 

d
a

y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
v
e
n
ts

 
a
s
 l

o
c
a
lly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

a
n

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 p
ro

m
o
te

 w
e

ll 
b
e

in
g

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 i

s
o

la
ti
o
n
 a

m
o
n
g
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
 
w

ill
 
b

e
 
le

d
 
b

y
 
a

 
g
ro

u
p

 
o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 
lo

c
a

l 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 
s
e
c
to

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
w

h
o
 
h

a
v
e
 
c
o
m

e
 

to
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 o
f 

B
a
rn

e
t 

C
o
u

n
c
il,

 t
o

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e

 k
in

d
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e

y
 w

a
n
t.

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

u
n
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 
o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 l
o
c
a

l 
a
re

a
. 

B
u
c
k
in

g
h
a
m

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
d
 i

n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
ix

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

D
a

y
 O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 

th
e

 c
o
u
n
ty

 a
n

d
 a

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

a
s
e
s
 

s
it
u
a
te

d
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 r

e
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

7
. 

H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
?
  

(t
h

is
 m

a
y
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 s

ta
ff

, 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
u
n
io

n
s
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 /

 
v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

, 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
e
r 

v
ic

e
 u

s
e
rs

) 
Y

e
s
 

ü
 

N
o
 

 

N
O

T
E

: 
If

 y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 a
s
 y

e
t,

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

y
o

u
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
if
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
d

a
ta

/i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
 a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t,
 y

o
u
 m

a
y
 w

a
n
t 

to
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

m
 o

n
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

y
 w

ill
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
m

. 
A

n
y
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
e
fo

re
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 E

q
IA

. 
 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e
 o

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

/
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i

n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
to

o
lk

it
 c

a
n

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 l
in

k
 b

e
lo

w
 

h
tt
p
:/
/h
a
rr
o
w
h
u
b
/i
n
fo
/2
0
0
1
9
5
/c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
/1
6
9
/c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
_
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t_
to
o
lk
it

 

177



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
4

 

W
h
o
 w

a
s
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e

d
?
 

W
h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 m
e
th

o
d
s
 w

e
re

 u
s
e

d
?
 

  
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

3
2
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 

1
6

4
  
re

tu
rn

e
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

n
a

ir
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
o
 t
h
e

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o

w
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
e
q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

(p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
)?

 

W
h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

re
 y

o
u
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
  

T
h
is

 m
a

y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
v
is

in
g
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
, 
s
te

p
s
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 a
n

y
 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.
 

(A
ls

o
 I

n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h

e
s
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g

e
 5

) 

 C
lie

n
ts

 
• 

F
o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
, 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

 f
in

a
l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a

t 
th

e
 c

iv
ic

 c
e
n
tr

e
, 

th
e
re

 
w

e
re

 2
3

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 (

a
p
p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 
b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
t 

e
a
c
h
 e

v
e

n
t)

 

• 
A

 s
in

g
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e
 

(a
p
p
e

n
d
ix

 2
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 

o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e

n
ts

) 

• 
W

ri
tt
e
n
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l
e

tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

e
m

a
il 

u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 e

m
a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 –

 
d
a

y
s
e
rv

ic
e
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

@
h
a

rr
o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

• 
T

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 s

p
e

a
k
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 

w
it
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 o
n
 a

 p
h
o
n
e
 

 

P
o
in

ts
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

/c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

 

• 
C

e
n
tr

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d
 a

s
 a

 l
if
e
lin

e
, 
e

n
a

b
lin

g
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
tl
y
, 

a
n
d

 e
n
a
b

lin
g
 c

a
re

rs
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

• 
F

a
ir
 C

h
a
rg

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 
h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e

d
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
u
s
e
rs

 a
tt
e
n

d
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
. 

 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 v

a
lu

e
 t

h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
, 
s
a
fe

ty
, 
fa

m
ili

a
ri
ty

, 
s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

, 
th

e
 b

re
a
k
 f

ro
m

 h
o
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
it
e

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
. 
C

a
re

rs
 

e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t
h
a

t 
ro

u
ti
n

e
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
s
e
n

ti
a

l 
a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

re
s
p
it
e

 
a
n
d
 m

a
y
 b

e
 e

ro
d

e
d
 b

y
 a

 v
a

ri
e
ty

 o
f 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
p
la

c
e
s
. 

 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 e
n
jo

y
 t

h
e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
a
im

e
d
 a

t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

liv
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
. 
T

h
e

y
 d

id
 e

x
p
re

s
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

in
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
m

a
in

ly
 m

o
re

 o
u
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
o
rt

s
, 

b
u
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o
 

d
o
 t
h

e
m

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 

 

• 
E

q
u

a
lly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
tl
y
, 

if
 n

o
t 

m
o
re

 s
o
, 
th

e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 v

a
lu

e
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t

h
a
t 
c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

u
s
e
rs

, 
c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

. 
 

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 r
o
u
te

s
 o

ft
e
n
 s

h
o
rt

e
n
 t

h
e
 c

e
n

tr
e
 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
rs

, 
re

s
p
it
e
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
L
o
n
g

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
jo

u
rn

e
y
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 t
ir
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
, 
e
x
a
c
e
rb

a
te

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 

c
a
u
s
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t
o

ile
ti
n
g
 n

e
e

d
s
. 
 T

h
is

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a

n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l’s

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
b

u
t 
m

a
y
 a

ff
e
c
t 

ro
u
te

s
 a

n
d
 t

im
in

g
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

• 
M

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 L

D
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

iv
e
 d

a
y
s
 a

 w
e
e
k
. 

M
a
n

y
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 P

D
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a

y
s
 t
h
e

y
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d
. 

 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e

d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

is
 n

e
e
d
, 

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

is
 n

e
e

d
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

r 
a
 m

o
re

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

A
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
, 

o
n
c
e

 t
h
e
 

n
e

w
 m

o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e

 m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
n
e

e
d
s
  

 T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 a

 S
p
e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d

s
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
fo

r 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 

o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 
a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

re
 t

o
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 m

o
re

 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 

tr
a
v
e

lli
n

g
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
e

rs
o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
ts

. 
T

h
e
 g

ro
u

p
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 a
d
u
lt
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 k

e
p
t 

fu
lly

 
in

fo
rm

e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 
re

v
ie

w
. 
  
 

 P
h
a
s
e
 1

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

178



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
5

 

• 
M

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 h

a
p

p
y
 w

it
h
 a

 w
e
e
k
d
a

y
 d

a
y
 t

im
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 m

a
n

y
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 a

 l
o
n

g
e
r 

d
a

y
 a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

S
o
m

e
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 l
iv

e
 a

lo
n
e
, 

w
o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 s

o
m

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

a
 f

e
w

 
h
o
u
rs

 a
t 
th

e
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
. 

 

• 
M

ix
in

g
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

t 
n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o

d
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

 f
e
a
s
ib

le
 

o
p
ti
o
n
, 

b
u
t 

w
o
u

ld
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
n
e
e

d
s
, 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t,
 a

c
c
e
s
s
, 

s
p
a
c
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
tr

a
in

e
d
 s

ta
ff

, 
a
n
d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 s

h
a
ri
n

g
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n

s
p
o
rt

. 
 

• 
C

lo
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 i
s
 a

n
 u

n
p
o
p

u
la

r 
o
p
ti
o

n
, 
b

u
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

 
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 i
f 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h

ip
s
 a

re
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 

 

• 
M

a
n

y
 i
d
e

a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

u
s
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
 f

u
ll 

c
a

p
a
c
it
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

s
 h

u
b
s
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

in
c
o
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 r
e
n
ti
n
g

 t
h
e

 s
p
a
c
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i
n
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h
t 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

-h
o
u
s
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
, 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 c
h

a
rg

in
g
, 

a
n
d

 
‘s

e
lli

n
g
’ 
p
la

c
e
s
 t
o
 s

e
lf
-f

u
n
d
e
rs

 o
r 

n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n

g
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
. 

 

• 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 b

y
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

, 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
, 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
s
u

p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
, 
a
n
d

 a
tt
it
u
d

e
s
. 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t-

 r
e
la

te
d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

h
a
v
e
 d

im
in

is
h
e
d
 d

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
. 
 

 

• 
P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
re

 k
e
e
n
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

e
 u

p
 w

it
h
 m

a
n

y
 i
d
e

a
s
 f

o
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

w
a

y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a
n
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

is
. 

 

• 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

a
re

rs
 w

a
s
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 b

y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
a

re
rs

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 

s
p
o
k
e
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
ly

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 t

h
e

y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 t
h

e
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
 o

n
e
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d
 

fa
m

ily
. 
U

s
e
rs

 f
e
lt
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

in
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 
T

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 
w

e
re

 s
e
e

n
 a

s
 a

 s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
o
t 

o
n

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
rs

 b
u
t 

a
ls

o
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

c
a
re

rs
, 
a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e

 t
h
e

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

tw
o
. 
 

 

• 
A

lt
h
o
u

g
h
 a

ll 
th

e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 d

id
 n

o
t 

w
a
n
t 

to
 m

o
v
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
e
n
tr

e
, 
m

a
n

y
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 v

ie
w

 t
h
a
t 

if
 t
h
e

y
 d

id
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 a

 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
b
u
ild

in
g
, 
th

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

m
in

d
 i
f 

th
e

y
 c

o
u

ld
 a

ll 
g
o
 s

o
m

e
w

h
e
re

 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
w

o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
re

 m
o
v
e
d
 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

in
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 i
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 

s
ta

ff
 

w
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 m

o
v
e
 w

it
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
th

e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h
 d

a
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

lim
it
e
d
 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 m
a
rk

e
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 

v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

d
a

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

p
o
rt

. 
  

 T
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
is

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 

to
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
 w

h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u
d

g
e
t.
 

H
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 i
t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o
te

d
 t
h
a

t 
a
t 
p
re

s
e
n

t,
 3

8
9
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

a
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
t,
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 6

2
%

 (
2

4
2
) 

h
a

v
e
 

a
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t.
 M

a
n
a

g
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

r 
re

q
u
ir
e
s
 t

h
is

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
. 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 w

ill
 

m
o
v
e
 o

n
 t
o
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

179



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
6

 

e
ls

e
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 s

ta
ff

. 
                               S

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
o
in

ts
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

lie
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
 

 O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 (
B

a
s

e
d

 o
n

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

t 
M

il
m

a
n

s
 a

n
d

 M
a
y
a
 /

A
n

ja
li
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 a
re

 h
a
p

p
y
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
a
n

d
 a

p
a
rt

 f
ro

m
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ti
n

g
 

m
o
re

 o
u
ti
n
g
s
 o

r 
d
a

y
 t
ri
p
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

w
a
n
te

d
 a

n
y
th

in
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
t,
 e

x
c
e
p
t 
a
s
 a

 o
n
e
- 

o
ff

 o
u
ti
n
g
 e

tc
. 
T

h
e

y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

w
is

h
 t
o

 g
o
 t

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
p
la

c
e

s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
re

g
u

la
rl

y
. 

T
h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 a

 m
e
a
l,
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ti
o
n

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
fo

r 
m

a
n

y
 i
t 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 

o
n
e
 g

o
o

d
 m

e
a
l 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
. 

T
h
o
s
e
 a

t 
M

ilm
a
n
s
 c

o
u
ld

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
ik

e
 

a
n
d
 a

re
 a

n
x
io

u
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 b

u
d

g
e
t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 

a
n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

, 
u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 M

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

P
u
rs

e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
m

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 

K
e
n
m

o
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 In

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

ll 
a
tt
e
n

d
e
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
a
s
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 
a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

n
e
e
d

 f
o
r 

a
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t
h

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
n
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
/h

u
b
 o

r 
m

o
re

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
. 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

re
g
u
la

r 
a
n

d
 t
im

e
ly

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

u
tl
in

in
g
 

a
n

y
 C

a
b

in
e
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
f 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

h
o

w
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n

 t
h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

      T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
/m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
s
 l
is

te
d
 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 m

o
re

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
p
o

in
ts

 
ra

is
e
d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

/c
a
re

rs
 

a
n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

ls
o
 a

p
p

ly
 

to
 t
h

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
o

in
ts

 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 b

u
t 

h
a

v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 

180



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
7

 

h
a
ir
d
re

s
s
in

g
, 
c
h

ir
o
p

o
d

y
 a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
g

g
e
s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 m

o
re

 s
u
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e
 i
ts

e
lf
. 
 A

ll 
u
s
e
rs

 
v
a

lu
e

d
 t
h

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

s
 a

 s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n
. 

 

• 
A

ll 
u
s
e
rs

 e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

fr
ie

n
d
s
h
ip

s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

u
ilt

 u
p

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff

. 
M

o
s
t 
s
a
id

 i
t 

w
a
s
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 w

e
e
k
, 
a
n
d
 i
f 

th
e

y
 d

id
 

n
o
t 
a

tt
e
n

d
 t
h

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
o
la

te
d

. 
 

 

• 
M

o
s
t 
u
s
e
rs

 a
re

 h
a
p

p
y
 w

it
h
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

p
e
n

in
g

 a
s
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
a
m

 t
o
 

3
p
m

 a
lt
h
o
u

g
h
 s

o
m

e
 s

a
id

 t
h

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 p

re
fe

r 
e
a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
m

a
n

y
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 l
e

n
g
th

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
y
 w

a
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 b

y
 w

h
a
t 

ti
m

e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
c
a
re

r 
c
o
u

ld
 a

rr
iv

e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 g
e
t 
re

a
d

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
rn

in
g
, 
o
r 

th
e
 

ti
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

 w
a
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 d

a
y
 w

a
s
 s

h
o
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
n

y
 w

o
u

ld
 p

re
fe

r 
a
 l
o

n
g
e
r 

d
a

y
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
a
id

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y
 d

id
 n

o
t 

w
a
n
t 
to

 a
tt

e
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e

n
in

g
s
, 
e
x
c
e
p
t 

a
s
 a

 o
n
e
-o

ff
. 
S

o
m

e
 a

ls
o
 

s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 l
o
n

g
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 r
o
u
te

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

ir
in

g
. 

T
h
e
 t

a
b
le

 o
n
 p

a
g

e
 4

 
s
h
o

w
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
o

w
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

g
e
d
 2

5
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
r 

u
s
in

g
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t.

 
 

• 
M

a
n

y
 u

s
e
rs

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 o

n
 e

x
tr

a
 d

a
y
s
 i
f 

th
e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u

d
g
e
t 

a
llo

w
e

d
, 
o
r 

if
 t
h
e

y
 c

o
u

ld
 a

ff
o
rd

 t
h
e

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

. 
 

• 
M

a
n

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
a

id
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
m

in
d
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

s
 l
o
n
g
 a

s
 e

n
o

u
g
h

 t
ra

in
e
d

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 w

e
re

 
a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

S
e

v
e
ra

l 
s
a

id
 t

h
a
t 

it
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 m

o
v
e
, 

a
s
 t
h
e

y
 w

o
u
ld

 
le

a
rn

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
rs

, 
a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
, 

a
n
d

 h
o

w
 o

th
e
rs

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h
 

th
e
ir
 d

is
a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
. 

S
o
m

e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
, 
e

.g
. 

s
h
a
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 s

p
a
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 s

e
v
e
re

 d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
. 
 

 

• 
M

ilm
a
n
s
 u

s
e
rs

 s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 

if
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 d

id
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 c

lo
s
e

, 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 w
a

n
t 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
b
u

ild
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 t

ry
 t

o
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

y
 

le
tt

in
g

 o
th

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 u

s
e
 t

h
e

 s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

a
 c

o
s
t.
  

 

• 
S

o
m

e
 u

s
e
rs

 e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

c
a
rr

y
 a

n
y
 

w
e
ig

h
t.
 

 P
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s
  
(B

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

t 
B

e
n

tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

re
p
e
a
te

d
 t

o
 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 l
e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
is

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

                                      T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 l
is

te
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 m

o
re

 

181



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
8

 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 v
a
lu

e
d

 t
h
e

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 l
ik

e
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d
 c

ra
ft

s
, 
a
 w

e
ll 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 

h
o
t 
m

e
a
l,
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
, 

re
h
a
b

ili
ta

ti
o

n
, 
a

n
d
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 n

e
w

 s
k
ill

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
a
d

in
g
, 

w
ri
ti
n

g
 e

tc
. 

 

• 
E

q
u

a
lly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
tl
y
, 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
rs

 v
a

lu
e

d
 t
h

e
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
th

e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
s
ta

ff
 t
e
a
m

, 
a
n
d
 t
h

e
 b

re
a
k
 i
t 
p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 c

a
re

rs
. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h

a
t 
s
ta

ff
 o

ft
e
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

 v
a

lu
a
b
le

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 r
o
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

a
re

rs
, 
a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 b
e

tw
e
e
n

 t
h
e

 u
s
e
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

a
re

r.
 

 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

s
 a

 l
if
e
lin

e
. 

M
a
n

y
 f

e
lt
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

r 
c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

a
d
 l
it
tl
e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e
m

, 
g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d

s
, 
la

c
k
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
, 
a
n
d
 i
n

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
w

it
h

o
u
t 

a
s
s
is

te
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
 

• 
A

ll 
u
s
e
rs

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 M

o
n
d
a

y
 t

o
 F

ri
d

a
y
, 

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
. 

S
e
v
e
ra

l 
s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 o

n
 a

 S
a
tu

rd
a

y
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
. 

M
o
s
t 

w
o
u

ld
 

n
o
t 

w
a
n
t 
to

 a
tt

e
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
s
, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h
 o

c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l 

e
v
e

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
lik

e
 a

 d
is

c
o
, 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
. 
 

 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 d
a

y
 i
s
 o

ft
e
n
 v

e
ry

 s
h
o
rt

 d
u
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

tr
a

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
o
r 

w
a

it
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
c
a
re

r 
in

 t
h
e
 m

o
rn

in
g
. 

M
o
s
t 

w
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 a

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

d
a

y
, 
e

.g
. 
9
 a

m
 t
o
 4

 p
m

. 
M

a
n

y
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 a

tt
e

n
d
 o

n
 

e
x
tr

a
 d

a
y
s
 i
f 

th
e

ir
 b

u
d
g
e

t 
a

llo
w

e
d
 o

r 
if
 t
h
e

y
 c

o
u
ld

 a
ff

o
rd

 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
. 
M

a
n

y
 u

s
e
rs

 d
o

 h
a

v
e
 t

a
x
i-
c
a
rd

s
, 
b
u

t 
tr

y
 t

o
 s

a
v
e
 t
h
o
s
e

 r
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
tr

ip
s
 l
ik

e
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a
p
p
o

in
tm

e
n
ts

. 
T

ra
n
s
p
o

rt
 r

o
u
te

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

lo
n

g
, 
a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f

e
e
lin

g
 t
ir

e
d
, 

w
h
ils

t 
o
th

e
rs

 e
n
jo

y
e

d
 t
h

e
 

jo
u
rn

e
y
. 

 

• 
S

o
m

e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
a
id

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
m

in
d
 g

o
in

g
 t
o
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
b
u
ild

in
g
 i
f 

it
 h

a
d
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
ra

in
e
d

 s
ta

ff
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
m

 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t
h
e

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
y
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
v
e
ry

 c
a
re

fu
lly

, 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

. 
T

h
e
 

fa
m

ili
a
ri
ty

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e

 l
iv

in
g

 a
lo

n
e
 o

r 
th

o
s
e

 
w

it
h
 a

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 

 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 a
ls

o
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 s

p
a

c
e
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
to

 e
n
g
a

g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ri
e
n
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 i
n
d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
liv

in
g
 s

k
ill

s
, 

a
n
d
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
p
o
in

ts
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

/c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

a
ls

o
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
o
in

ts
 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 b

u
t 

h
a

v
e

 n
o
t 

b
e

e
n
 

re
p
e
a
te

d
 t

o
 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 l
e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
is

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

 A
ll 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

re
 D

D
A

 
(D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 D

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 A

c
t)

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
a

n
d
 a

n
y
 m

o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 w

o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 D
D

A
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

fu
lly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

ill
 

m
it
ig

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
B

e
n
tl
e

y
 

D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

 S
ta

ff
 t
e
a
m

s
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
e

o
p
le

 
m

o
v
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

fr
ie

n
d
s
h
ip

 
g
ro

u
p
s
  

 T
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
a
re

fu
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

ro
u
n

d
 m

o
v
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a
n

d
 g

ro
u
p
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

            

182



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

1
9

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
o
c
ia

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
It
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

if
 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

w
a
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
ru

s
e
d
, 

p
e

o
p
le

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 e

x
tr

a
 d

a
y
s
. 

 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
a

id
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 o
th

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
h

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
, 
e
.g

. 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 h

o
lid

a
y
s
, 

s
h
o
p

p
in

g
, 
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
liv

in
g

 c
la

s
s
e
s
, 
m

o
re

 
p
h

y
s
io

th
e
ra

p
y
 a

n
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g

y
m

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 w

a
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 t
h

in
k
 a

b
o
u

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
g

iv
e

n
 t
h
e

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

a
n
x
ie

ty
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

B
e

n
tl
e

y
. 

  P
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 (

b
a
s

e
d

 o
n

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 a

t 
5
 i
n

-h
o

u
s

e
 D

a
y
 

C
e
n

tr
e
s
, 

S
h

a
w

 T
ru

s
t 

a
n

d
 W

e
ll
d

o
n

 A
c
ti

v
it

y
 G

ro
u

p
. 
 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 g

a
m

e
s
, 

g
a
rd

e
n
in

g
, 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

ft
e
r 

a
n
im

a
ls

, 
a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

ra
ft

s
, 
m

u
s
ic

, 
d
a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

d
ra

m
a
, 
c
o
o
k
e
ry

, 
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
liv

in
g
 s

k
ill

s
, 
b
e

a
u
ty

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

, 
le

a
rn

in
g
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

d
 b

y
 c

o
lle

g
e
 t
u
to

rs
, 
c
o
m

p
u
te

rs
, 
d
a

y
 t
ri

p
s
, 
o

u
ti
n

g
s
 f

o
r 

s
w

im
m

in
g
, 

s
h
o
p
p

in
g
, 

fa
rm

s
 e

tc
. 
T

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 h
a

p
p

y
 w

it
h
 w

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
, 
a

n
d
 

w
h
e
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

w
h

a
t 
o
th

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
, 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 m

o
re

 o
u
ti
n
g

s
, 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
, 

s
h
o

p
p
in

g
, 
m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 

a
n
d
 c

in
e
m

a
. 

 

• 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ri
e
n
d
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
s
e

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

t 
th

e
ir
 c

e
n

tr
e
, 

a
n
d
 s

p
o
k
e
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
ly

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ff

. 
 

• 
M

o
s
t 
u
s
e
rs

 e
it
h
e
r 

a
tt
e

n
d
e

d
 a

 c
e
n
tr

e
 f

iv
e
 d

a
y
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
, 
o
r 

h
a
d
 a

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

fi
v
e
 d

a
y
s
. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ll 
w

a
n

te
d
 t

o
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
id

 t
h
e

y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e

 v
e
ry

 u
p
s
e
t 

if
 t
h
e

y
 

c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
c
o
m

e
, 
‘b

o
re

d
, 

lo
n

e
ly

, 
d

e
p
re

s
s
e
d
, 
ju

s
t 

w
a
tc

h
in

g
 t
e

lly
.’
 

 

• 
M

a
n

y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
tt

e
n

d
e
d
 a

 c
lu

b
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 
o
r 

w
e
n

t 
o
u

t 
a
t 

w
e
e
k
e
n
d
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 w

a
s
 c

le
a
r 

th
a
t 
m

o
s
t 
w

e
re

 d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n
t 

e
it
h
e
r 

u
p
o
n

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
o
r 

u
p

o
n
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 f
a
m

ily
 o

r 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
u
n
it
s
. 
T

h
e
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
tr

a
v
e
lle

rs
 w

a
lk

e
d
 o

r 
to

o
k
 t
h

e
 b

u
s
 t
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 o

r 
c
lu

b
s
, 
b
u
t 

w
e
n

t 
o

n
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

tr
ip

s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 o
r 

fa
m

ily
. 
T

w
o
 

w
o
m

e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

y
 h

a
d
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 i
s
o
la

te
d
 a

ft
e
r 

m
o
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
a
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
h
o
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
d
e

p
e
n
d
e

n
t 

liv
in

g
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 n

o
 l
o
n

g
e
r 

h
a

d
 t
h

e
 s

ta
ff

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
r 

a
 r

e
a

d
ily

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
p
e

o
p
le

 t
o

 g
o
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
. 

 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 d
id

 n
o
t 

e
x
p
re

s
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 v
ie

w
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 l
e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
y
 

th
e

y
 a

tt
e
n
d

e
d
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 
 

           T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 l
is

te
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 m

o
re

 
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
p
o
in

ts
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

/c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

a
ls

o
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
o
in

ts
 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 b

u
t 

h
a

v
e

 n
o
t 

b
e

e
n
 

re
p
e
a
te

d
 t

o
 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 l
e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
is

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 b

ro
a

d
e
r 

ra
n
g
e

 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
a
rk

e
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u

g
h
 M

y
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

P
u
rs

e
 

 F
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e

 
A

u
ti
s
m

, 
g
o
o
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 b
y
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

, 
c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff

 
 A

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t
o

 
h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

 b
u

ild
in

g
 b

a
s
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
f 

th
e

y
 n

e
e
d
 o

n
e
. 

A
n

y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t
h

is
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e

 t
h

e
 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
n
e
e

d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

c
h
o
ic

e
 

 

183



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
0

 

 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
a

id
 t

h
e

y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 h

a
p

p
y
 t

o
 s

h
a
re

 t
h

e
ir
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 

a
n
d

 t
h
o

u
g

h
t 
it
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 c
h

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
e
o

p
le

 
a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 m

o
re

 f
ri
e
n
d
s
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t
h

e
y
 s

a
id

 t
h
a

t 
it
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 i
f 

s
o
m

e
 o

th
e
r 

u
s
e
rs

 c
o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

s
p
e
a
k
 o

r 
g
o
t 
u

p
s
e
t 

v
e
ry

 e
a

s
ily

. 
 

  Y
o

u
n

g
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
ra

n
s
it

io
n

 (
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

t 
S

h
a
ft

e
s
b

u
ry

 a
n

d
 

K
in

g
s
le

y
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
) 

• 
W

h
ils

t 
y
o
u

n
g
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 f
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 s

im
ila

r 
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 w

a
n
ti
n
g
 a

 
ra

n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
re

la
ti
o
n

s
, 
a
n
d
 w

a
n
ti
n
g

 
c
h
o
ic

e
, 
th

e
 k

e
y
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
re

la
te

d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

S
ta

ff
 t
e
a
m

s
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
n

y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h

a
t 
m

o
v
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

fr
ie

n
d
s
h

ip
 g

ro
u
p

s
  

 C
a
re

fu
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
fe

rs
 a

n
d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
a
n

d
 g

ro
u
p
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
 A

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t
o

 
b
e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

 d
a

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

    

 C
a
re

rs
/ 

fa
m

ili
e
s
/ 

a
d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 

 

• 
F

o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
, 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

 f
in

a
l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a

t 
th

e
 c

iv
ic

 c
e
n
tr

e
, 

th
e
re

 
w

e
re

 1
4

 c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 f

o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 (

a
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 
b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
t 

e
a
c
h
 e

v
e

n
t)

 

• 
A

 s
in

g
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e
 

(a
p
p
e

n
d
ix

 2
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 

o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e

n
ts

) 

• 
W

ri
tt
e
n
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l
e

tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

e
m

a
il 

u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 e

m
a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 –

 
d
a

y
s
e
rv

ic
e
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

@
h
a

rr
o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

• 
T

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 s

p
e

a
k
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 

w
it
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 o
n
 a

 p
h
o
n
e
 

A
 f

e
w

 c
a
re

rs
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 a

tt
e
n
d

e
d
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
m

o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 e

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 w

it
h
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 V
a
lu

in
g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 

C
a
re

rs
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 s

tr
o
n

g
 v

ie
w

s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r,

 t
h
e

y
 c

a
re

 f
o
r,

 n
e
e

d
s
 t
h
e

 
ro

u
ti
n

e
, 
fa

m
ili

a
ri
ty

, 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
s
a
fe

ty
, 
fr

ie
n

d
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 p

e
e
rs

, 
a
n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o

d
 t
h

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
e

y
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
c
o

p
e
 w

it
h
 g

o
in

g
 t
o

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

p
la

c
e
s
 f

o
r 

v
a
ri

o
u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 C
a
re

rs
 s

a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

y
 w

a
n
te

d
 t
h
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri

ty
 o

f 
a
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

a
n
d
 d

id
 n

o
t 

w
a
n
t 
th

e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 ‘
ro

a
m

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e

ts
’ 
w

it
h
 u

n
fa

m
ili

a
r 

P
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 v
ie

w
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
e
m

s
 t
o
 b

e
 f

o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
o
s
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
w

h
o
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n
t 

 O
v
e
r 

a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
le

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
c
a
re

rs
 v

a
lu

e
d
 t
h

e
 

fr
ie

n
d
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
, 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 u

s
e
rs

, 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
a
re

rs
, 
fo

r 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
. 
T

h
e

y
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d
 t
h
e

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

s
 a

 l
if
e
lin

e
 

w
h
ic

h
 e

it
h
e
r 

e
n
a
b

le
d

 t
h
e

ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
d

e
p
e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
 o

r 
e
n
a

b
le

d
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 c

a
re

. 
 

 T
h
e

y
 p

o
in

te
d
 o

u
t 
th

a
t 

in
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 i
n
te

re
s
ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

 c
ru

c
ia

l 
a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

d
a

y
 

c
a
re

 i
s
 t
h
e

 m
e
n
ta

l 
a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
re

s
p

it
e

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

a
re

rs
. 
A

 c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n

d
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
ti
m

e
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

re
s
p
it
e

. 
M

a
n

y
 c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 

g
e
tt

in
g
 o

ld
e
r,

 a
n
d
 c

a
n
 n

o
t 
ta

k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 a

d
u
lt
 o

ff
s
p
ri
n
g
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 

 

A
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

. 
 

A
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
s
w

e
rs

 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
. 
 W

e
 

h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 s
ta

ff
  
h
a
v
e
 

M
a
k
a
to

n
/B

S
L
 s

k
ill

s
. 

S
ta

ff
 i
n

 e
a
c
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 k

n
o

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
e
ll 

a
n
d
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

d
v
is

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

m
e
th

o
d
s
. 

     T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

 s
e
c
o
n
d
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

h
e
a

lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

    

184



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
1

 

C
a
re

rs
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d

 s
o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

e
n
e

fi
c
ia

l,
 e

.g
. 
 A

 
h

y
d
ro

th
e
ra

p
y
 p

o
o
l,
 r

e
d
u
c
e

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p

h
y
s
io

th
e
ra

p
y
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

e
c
h
 t
h

e
ra

p
y
, 
o

p
ti
o
n
 

to
 h

a
v
e

 a
 b

a
th

 a
t 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 u
s
in

g
 a

s
s
is

ti
v
e
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

 P
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

 
M

a
n

y
 c

a
re

rs
 w

e
re

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

a
b
o
u

t 
h
o

w
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u

d
g
e
ts

 w
o
rk

e
d
. 
M

o
s
t 
c
a
re

rs
 f

e
lt
 

th
a
t 

p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
n
x
ie

ty
, 

n
e
e
d

in
g
 t

im
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 o

v
e
r 

h
o

w
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

w
o

u
ld

 g
e
t 

u
s
e
d
 u

p
, 

a
n
d
 

s
o
m

e
 p

o
in

te
d

 o
u
t 

th
a

t 
 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
t 
c
a
n
 f

a
ll 

s
h

o
rt

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

w
e
e
k
e
n
d
 r

a
te

s
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 b
y
 s

o
m

e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
ta

k
e
n

 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n

t.
 T

h
e

y
 d

id
 

n
o
t 
b

e
lie

v
e
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d
g
e

ts
 w

o
u

ld
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
fo

r 
h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h
 t

h
e

y
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d

g
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
s
o

m
e

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e

d
 b

y
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u

d
g
e

ts
, 
th

e
y
 d

id
 n

o
t 

w
a

n
t 

p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

im
p
o
s
e
d
 u

p
o

n
 t
h

e
m

. 
 T

im
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 
M

o
s
t 
c
a
re

rs
 w

e
re

 h
a
p

p
y
 w

it
h
 w

e
e
k
d
a

y
s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u

g
h
 s

o
m

e
 t
h
o

u
g
h

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 

w
e
e

k
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 g

iv
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 

th
e
 f

a
m

ily
. 

T
h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 p

o
in

te
d
 o

u
t 

th
a
t 

fo
r 

s
o
m

e
 u

s
e
rs

 l
iv

in
g
 a

lo
n

e
, 

w
e
e
k
e
n
d
s
 

c
o
u
ld

 g
e
t 

lo
n
e
ly

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 s
o
m

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
M

a
n

y
 c

a
re

rs
 

w
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 a

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

d
a

y
, 
e

.g
. 
9
.3

0
 a

m
 t
o
 4

.3
0

p
m

. 
C

a
re

rs
 s

a
id

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 d

a
y
 w

a
s
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

s
h
o
rt

e
n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

. 
 S

e
v
e
ra

l 
o
f 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
s
e
 

re
la

ti
v
e
s
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d
 o

n
ly

 o
n
c
e
 o

r 
tw

ic
e
 a

 w
e
e
k
 s

a
id

 t
h
e

y
 w

o
u

ld
 q

u
it
e
 l
ik

e
 a

n
 e

x
tr

a
 

d
a

y
. 

 C
a
re

rs
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
f 

a
n

y
 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
, 
a
s
 c

a
re

rs
 c

a
n
 n

o
t 
b

e
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 l
if
ts

. 
 

 M
ix

e
d
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
in

g
 o

r 
m

e
rg

in
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

M
a
n

y
 c

a
re

rs
 t
h
o

u
g

h
t 
th

a
t 
m

ix
e
d
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 c

o
u
ld

 w
o

rk
, 
if
 p

la
n
n
e
d

 w
e

ll 
to

 c
a
te

r 
fo

r 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
e

y
 s

a
id

 t
h
a
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
lik

e
 t
o
 m

ix
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 ‘
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

’ 
p
o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

. 
 S

o
m

e
 w

o
rr

ie
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
k
ill

s
 t
h
e

ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 n

e
e

d
e
d
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

ilu
te

d
, 
o
r 

th
a
t 
th

e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 l
o
s
t 
in

 a
 m

u
lt
ip

u
rp

o
s
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
. 
S

o
m

e
 c

a
re

rs
 a

ls
o
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 m
a

y
 f

e
e
l 
th

re
a
te

n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 
d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 o

r 
c
h
a

lle
n
g

in
g
 b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r.

 A
n

y
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 w

o
u
ld

 
n
e
e
d

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
d
e

q
u
a

te
, 

s
p
a
c
e
, 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 s

k
ill

s
. 
 

 It
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 s

u
g

g
e
s
te

d
 t
h
a

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 n
e

e
d
e

d
 t
o

 f
in

d
 o

u
t 

w
h
a
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

e
re

 b
e

in
g
 

     R
e
m

a
in

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 w

ill
 

m
o
v
e
 o

n
 t
o
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

a
n
d
 a

re
 a

n
x
io

u
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 b

u
d

g
e
t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 

a
n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

, 
u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 M

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

P
u
rs

e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 b

ro
a

d
e
r 

ra
n
g
e

 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
a
rk

e
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u

g
h
 M

y
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

P
u
rs

e
 

      A
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d
s
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 r
e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

o
n
g
o

in
g
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 
re

v
ie

w
, 
b

u
t 
fe

e
d

b
a
c
k
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
m

. 
             

185



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
2

 

o
ff

e
re

d
 i
n
 o

u
t-

o
f-

b
o
ro

u
g
h

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
s
o
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 c

o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

im
ila

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 
d
a

y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
ir
 u

s
e

. 
C

a
re

rs
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 u

s
e
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 p
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
s
e
. 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

‘s
e

lli
n

g
’ 
it
s
 

o
w

n
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 p

e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 

 C
a
re

rs
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 o

p
e
n

in
g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 s

e
v
e

n
 d

a
y
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
, 

a
n
d

 c
h
a
rg

in
g
 o

th
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o

 u
s
e
 t

h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
, 
a

n
d
 a

llo
w

in
g
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d

 o
n
 e

x
tr

a
 d

a
y
s
 a

s
 a

 w
a

y
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 V

ie
w

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n

y
 c

a
re

rs
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
e
d

 i
f 

th
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a

v
e
 a

n
y
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

th
a
t 

w
e
re

 m
a
d
e
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 s

o
m

e
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

n
 

u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 e
x
p
e

n
s
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n

a
ir
e
 w

a
s
 t
o

o
 l
o

n
g
. 
C

a
re

rs
 a

t 
G

o
rd

o
n
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
 a

n
d
 B

e
d
fo

rd
 H

o
u
s
e
 s

a
id

 t
h
a

t 
e

v
e
r 

s
in

c
e
 B

re
m

b
e
r 

C
e
n

tr
e
 s

h
u
t,

 t
h

e
re

 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

u
m

o
u
rs

 a
b
o
u
t 
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 c

a
u
s
in

g
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

a
n
x
ie

ty
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 G
o
rd

o
n
 A

v
e
n
u
e

 c
a
re

rs
 t
h
a
t 
c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

p
re

s
e
n
t 
to

 h
e

a
r 

th
e
ir
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
  

 T
h
e
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

v
e

n
ts

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
. 
C

a
re

rs
 s

a
id

 t
h
e

y
 f

e
lt
 

lis
te

n
e
d
 t

o
, 

a
n
d
 m

u
c
h
 c

le
a
re

r 
a
b
o

u
t 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
  

 

         

 S
ta

ff
 

 

• 
F

o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
, 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

 f
in

a
l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a

t 
th

e
 c

iv
ic

 c
e
n
tr

e
, 

th
e
re

 
w

e
re

 8
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
  

(a
p
p
e

n
d
ix

 1
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 

o
f 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
t 
e

a
c
h
 e

v
e
n
t)

 

• 
A

 s
in

g
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e
 

(a
p
p
e

n
d
ix

 2
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 

o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e

n
ts

) 

• 
W

ri
tt
e
n
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l
e

tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

e
m

a
il 

u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 e

m
a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 –

 
d
a

y
s
e
rv

ic
e
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

@
h
a

rr
o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

• 
T

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 s

p
e

a
k
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 

w
it
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 o
n
 a

 p
h
o
n
e
 

S
ta

ff
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 a
t 
th

e
 s

e
v
e
n
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 
 

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

s
 o

ft
e
n
 s

h
o
rt

e
n
e

d
 u

s
e
rs

’ 
d
a

y
s
, 

c
a
u

s
e
d
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 d

a
ily

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 u

s
e
rs

 c
a
m

e
 i
n
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
ti
m

e
s
. 
L
o
n

g
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
ro

u
te

s
 c

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 c

a
u
s
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 t
o

ile
ti
n
g
 o

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

t 
in

 o
rg

a
n
is

in
g

 d
a

y
 t
ri
p
s
. 
A

ll 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t

h
e
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
f 

a
n

y
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

a
s
 

to
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
, 

a
s
 c

a
re

rs
 c

a
n
 n

o
t 
b

e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 l
if
ts

. 
 A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
ta

ff
 p

o
in

te
d
 o

u
t 
th

a
t 

a
lt
h
o
u

g
h
 t
h

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 g
re

a
te

r 
c
h

o
ic

e
 i
s
 

d
e
s
ir
a
b

le
, 

in
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 

v
e
ry

 m
u
c
h
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

h
o
s
e
 f

ro
m

, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 s

e
v
e
re

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 o

r 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
. 

R
e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 g

re
a
tl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
 

 Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u

d
g
e

ts
 

S
ta

ff
 p

o
in

te
d
 o

u
t 
th

a
t 
m

a
n

y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
re

 c
h
o
o
s
in

g
 n

o
t 
to

 a
tt
e
n
d

 t
h
e

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

s
 a

 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

a
ir
e
r 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
lt
h
o

u
g
h

 

If
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
ta

k
e
s
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o

 a
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 r

o
le

s
, 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
/o

r 
th

e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 C
h

a
n
g

e
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
to

c
o
l 
a
t 
th

e
 

b
e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

s
ta

g
e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 f
u
ll 

E
Q

IA
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o
 s

ta
ff

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
  T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 a

 S
p
e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d

s
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
fo

r 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 

o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 
a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

re
 t

o
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 m

o
re

 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 

186



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
3

 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 i
s
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a

b
le

, 
th

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
, 
e
.g

. 
H

e
rt

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
. 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u

d
g
e
ts

 m
a

y
 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 s

o
m

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
h
o

o
s
in

g
 

n
o
t 
to

 c
o
m

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 m

a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

 If
 u

s
e
rs

 w
e
re

 a
tt
e

n
d
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
p
la

c
e
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 o

n
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

a
n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 l
o
s
t.
 

S
ta

ff
 a

ls
o
 s

a
id

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

fu
tu

re
-p

ro
o
f 

th
e
m

. 
S

ta
ff

 s
a
id

 t
h
a

t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

o
o
r 

a
b
o

u
t 

w
h

a
t 

is
 o

n
 o

ff
e
r 

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

c
e
n

tr
e
s
. 

 M
ix

e
d
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

S
ta

ff
 t
h
o
u
g
h

t 
th

a
t 
m

ix
e
d
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 c

o
u
ld

 w
o
rk

, 
w

it
h
 c

a
re

fu
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 

e
.g

. 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 t
ra

in
e
d
 s

ta
ff

. 
S

o
m

e
 

s
e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
u
s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
n

e
e

d
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

 c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 w

h
ile

 s
h

a
ri
n
g
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
T

h
e

y
 p

o
in

te
d
 

o
u
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a
n
y
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

to
 m

ix
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
T

h
e

y
 c

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 e
n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 
fr

o
m

 o
th

e
rs

. 
B

e
n
tl
e

y
 s

ta
ff

 s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

 s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
e
n
tr

e
, 
to

 e
n
g
a

g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ri
e
n
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 i
n
d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
liv

in
g
 s

k
ill

s
, 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
s
o
c
ia

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 S
o
m

e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 a

 c
a
fé

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
, 

w
it
h
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
ti
m

e
s
, 
a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
o

 u
s
e
 t

h
e
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 a

n
d
 

to
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r.

 
 S

ta
ff

 a
t 
o
n
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
e
x
p

e
rt

is
e
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
d
 

w
o
rk

e
d
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 u
p

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 l
o
s
t 

if
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 m
ix

e
d
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 a

t 
th

e
 

c
e
n
tr

e
. 

 C
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 

S
ta

ff
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

 t
h

a
t 
s
e
v
e
ra

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
rs

 h
a

d
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 m

o
v
e
d
 o

n
c
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
n

d
 c

lo
s
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 t

h
e
m

 a
g
a

in
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 v

e
ry

 
d
is

ru
p
ti
v
e
. 
C

lo
s
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 w

o
u
ld

 p
la

c
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 c

a
re

rs
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
f 

it
 m

e
a
n
t 
a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
a
n
d

 c
o
u
n
te

ra
c
t 
th

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 g
re

a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
. 

 S
ta

ff
 a

ls
o
 s

a
id

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
is

s
e
d
 m

a
n

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t
o

 u
s
e
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

t 
w

e
e
k
e
n
d
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e
n

in
g
s
, 
th

u
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
m

 l
e
s
s
 c

o
s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
. 

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 w
o
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 

tr
a
v
e

lli
n

g
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
e

rs
o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
ts

. 
T

h
e
 g

ro
u

p
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 a
d
u
lt
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 k

e
p
t 

fu
lly

 
in

fo
rm

e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 
re

v
ie

w
. 
  
 

                                 A
 f

u
ll 

E
Q

IA
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
 d

e
ta

il 

187



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
4

 

S
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
e
re

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 j
o
b

 s
e
c
u
ri

ty
, 
a
n
d

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e

ir
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 i
f 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 w

e
re

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d
 

h
o
u
rs

. 
T

h
e

y
 p

o
in

te
d
 o

u
t 
th

a
t 
a
n

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 p

ro
fi
le

s
, 
s
e
c
o
n

d
m

e
n
ts

, 
tr

a
n
s
fe

ra
b
le

 s
k
ill

s
, 
a
n

d
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

 V
ie

w
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 i
ts

e
lf
 

S
o
m

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ir
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 c
o
n
c
e

rn
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e
 a

n
y
 

in
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e
t.
 T

h
e

y
 m

a
d
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

to
 a

 c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
g
o
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e

ir
 v

ie
w

s
 w

e
re

 s
o
u
g

h
t.
 S

ta
ff

 a
t 
G

o
rd

o
n
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
, 

B
e
d
fo

rd
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 B

e
n
tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

n
x
ie

ty
 

a
n
d
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
ru

m
o
u
rs

 h
a
d
 b

e
e

n
 c

ir
c
u
la

ti
n
g
 o

n
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 

ti
m

e
. 

 S
ta

ff
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 t

im
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e

 f
in

a
l 
C

a
b
in

e
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

s
ta

ff
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 
fo

llo
w

 i
ts

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
C

h
a

n
g
e

 (
P

M
O

C
).

  
 

 U
n
io

n
s
 

 

• 
F

o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
, 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

 f
in

a
l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a

t 
th

e
 c

iv
ic

 c
e
n
tr

e
, 

U
n
io

n
s
 

w
e
re

 i
n
v
it
e

d
 t
o

 8
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 (

a
p
p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 
b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
t 

e
a
c
h
 e

v
e

n
t)

 

• 
A

 s
in

g
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e
 

(a
p
p
e

n
d
ix

 2
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 

o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e

n
ts

) 

• 
W

ri
tt
e
n
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l
e

tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

e
m

a
il 

u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 e

m
a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 –

 
d
a

y
s
e
rv

ic
e
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

@
h
a

rr
o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

A
 U

N
IS

O
N

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

a
tt
e
n

d
e
d
 t
h
re

e
 s

ta
ff

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
If

 c
a
b
in

e
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

ta
ff

, 
U

N
IS

O
N

 t
h

o
u
g
h

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
/a

n
a

ly
s
is

 w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 e

a
c
h
 f

o
rm

a
l 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

 

• 
ri
s
k
s
 t
o
 j
o
b
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 

• 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 r

o
le

 p
ro

fi
le

s
 

• 
c
o
v
e
n

a
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
s
tr

ic
t 
s
a

le
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 

 A
 l
e
tt
e
r 

fr
o
m

 D
a
rr

e
n
 B

u
tt
e
rf

ie
ld

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
B

ra
n
c
h
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 d
a
te

d
 3

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
, 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 t
h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 p

o
in

ts
: 

 T
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n
t 
fa

ils
 t
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
w

h
e
n
 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 t
o
 D

a
y
 C

a
re

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 w
e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

th
is

 h
a
d
 o

n
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

tt
e

n
d
a
n
c
e

 w
h

ic
h
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
o
 

u
s
e
rs

 n
o
t 
b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e

n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 k
n
o
c
k
-

o
n
 e

ff
e
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
h

e
re

b
y
 u

s
e
rs

 h
a

v
e
 h

a
d

 t
o
 r

e
s
tr

ic
t 
th

e
ir
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e
 

d
a

y
s
 o

r 
in

d
e
e

d
 s

to
p

 a
tt

e
n
d

in
g
 a

lt
o

g
e
th

e
r 

w
h

ic
h
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h

e
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 
o
f 

d
a

y
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
m

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
ru

ti
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 
 

 In
 m

a
n

y
 l
o
c
a

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 u

n
io

n
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 h

a
s
 d

is
c
o

v
e
re

d
 t
h
a

t 
p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b
u

d
g
e
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

‘s
o
c
ia

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
’ 
a
re

 s
e
t 
a

 l
o

w
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
th

a
n
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
, 
a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

is
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

ly
 p

ri
c
in

g
 u

s
e
rs

 o
u
t 
o
f 

d
a

y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 

a
lt
o

g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 w

e
ll 

b
e

 o
c
c
u
rr

in
g
 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

. 
 

U
n
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 e
n
g

a
g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

in
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
p
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
. 
 I
f 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

ta
k
e
s
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 l
e
a
d

in
g
 t
o
 a

 
c
h
a
n
g
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 r
o
le

s
, 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
/o

r 
th

e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 C
h

a
n
g

e
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
to

c
o
l 
a
t 
th

e
 

b
e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

s
ta

g
e
 

 T
h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

p
a
p

e
r 

o
f 

J
a
n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
3

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

o
u

g
h
t 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

fo
r 

th
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
, 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
  

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
is

 p
o
in

t 
       

188



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
5

 

 U
N

IS
O

N
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
 d

o
u
b

t 
th

a
t 
‘c

h
o

ic
e
’ 
a
n
d

 ‘
c
o
n

tr
o
l’ 

w
it
h

in
  
p
e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

ig
h
t,
 

w
h
a
t 

w
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

is
 t
h
e
 a

g
e

n
d
a

 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 c

h
o
ic

e
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 w
h

e
n
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 f

a
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
a

y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 c
lo

s
u
re

s
. 
T

h
e
 s

it
u
a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

e
x
a
c
e
rb

a
te

d
 l
o
c
a
lly

 g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 u

n
d
e
rd

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 
p
la

c
e
, 

a
s
 

in
fe

rr
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

it
 m

u
s
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
. 
 

 T
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 i
t 

w
a
s
 s

u
g

g
e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

d
a

y
 c

a
re

 c
h
a
rg

e
s
 i
n
 h

a
rr

o
w

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
m

o
re

 o
f 

a
 l
e

v
e

l 
p

la
y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

 i
n
 t

h
e
 ‘
s
o
c
ia

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
’ 
a
m

o
u
n
ts

 
a

w
a
rd

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g
e
ts

, 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 a
im

 t
o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
m

o
re

 u
s
e
rs

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
a

y
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
. 
H

ig
h
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

a
tt

e
n
d

a
n
c
e

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
s
t 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 i
t 

c
o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
in

 t
h
e
 l
o
n

g
e
r 

te
rm

. 
 U

N
IS

O
N

 b
e
lie

v
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
p
la

c
e
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 t
h

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 r
e
in

v
ig

o
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

in
-h

o
u
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 
In

 f
a
c
t,
 

o
n
ly

 o
n
e
 b

u
lle

t 
p
o

in
t 

is
 d

e
v
o
te

d
 t

o
 u

s
in

g
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 i
n

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

w
a

y
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 c

lie
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

fo
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 m

o
v
in

g
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 ‘
tr

a
d
it
io

n
a

l’ 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
o
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b
u
d

g
e
t 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
, 
a
s
 s

ta
te

d
, 

a
re

 c
h
e
a
p

e
r 

th
a

n
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e

 d
a

y
 c

a
re

. 
 If

 t
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
ll 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

c
o
s
t 
is

 t
o
 b

e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 a

s
 r

e
la

y
e
d
 i
n
 p

o
in

t 
5
 a

b
o

v
e
, 
th

e
n

 a
 w

id
e
r 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

d
a

y
 c

e
n

tr
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
ill

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 i
n
-

h
o
u
s
e
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 f
a
ir
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d

 t
h

ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r.
 C

re
a
ti
n
g
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

u
b
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

fu
lly

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 U

n
is

o
n
 a

n
d
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 w

o
u
ld

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

p
it
a
l 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u

g
h
 t
h
e

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

e
P

u
rs

e
  

                         

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 H

A
D

 (
H

a
rr

o
w

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

is
a
b

le
d

 P
e
o

p
le

) 
  

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 

I’
m

 n
o
t 
s
u
re

 e
x
a
c
tl
y
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 s
a

y
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

I 
th

in
k
 t
h
e

y
’r

e
 s

a
y
in

g
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
b
u

ild
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

o
p
e
n

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
m

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

, 
w

h
ils

t 
m

o
v
in

g
 

m
o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 u

s
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
c
a
s
h

 b
u

d
g
e
ts

 t
o

 b
u

y
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
. 
 W

h
ic

h
 s

e
e
m

s
 v

e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
, 
a
s
 I

 g
u

e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
a
n
s
 n

o
-o

n
e
 w

ill
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 h
a
v
e
 t
o

 l
e

a
v
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
ir
 w

ill
, 
s
o
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
a
n
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
f 

th
e

y
 w

a
n
t 
to

. 
  

 P
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

  
G

iv
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b
u
d

g
e
ts

 i
s
 d

e
fi
n
it
e
ly

 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 t

o
 g

o
, 
a

n
d
 m

a
y
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 g
ra

d
u

a
lly

 r
e
p
la

c
e
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
im

e
. 
 I
 t
h

in
k
 t
h

a
t 
a
s
 m

a
n

y
 p

e
o
p

le
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
o
c
ia

lis
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
o

n
’t
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ri

ly
 w

a
n
t 
to

 
c
h
a
n
g
e

 t
h
a

t,
 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 f
e
e
l 
lik

e
 l
e
s
s
 r

is
k
 t
o
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o

 t
ry

 s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 n

e
w

, 
b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
lo

s
in

g
. 
  

189



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
6

 

 S
u
g

g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 l
ik

e
 s

p
e
n
d

in
g
 b

u
d
g

e
ts

 o
n

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 i
n
to

 w
o

rk
/ 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

 e
tc

 a
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 f

o
r 

m
a
n

y
 p

e
o
p

le
, 

a
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 v

e
ry

 l
im

it
e
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
, 

a
n
d

 i
t’
s
 o

ft
e
n
 i
n

 t
h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o

n
 t

im
e
 b

e
fo

re
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 i
s
 r

e
a
lly

 
n
e
e
d

e
d
, 

a
s
 i
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 a
ft

e
rw

a
rd

s
 i
f 

s
o
m

e
o
n
e
 f

in
d
s
 w

o
rk

. 
 

 P
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

 a
re

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
n
’t
 f

it
 i
n

to
 a

 r
e
c
o
g
n

is
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

m
o
d
e
l 
–
 e

.g
. 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 A
s
p
e
rg

e
rs

 S
p

e
c
tr

u
m

 o
r 

A
u
ti
s
m

. 
B

u
t 
a
s
 w

it
h

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 c

a
re

, 
p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e
ts

 m
a
y
 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
ff

e
r 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e

e
d
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
ra

l.
 

 S
h
o

p
 4

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 
A

s
 C

a
re

 P
la

c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 i
n
s
te

a
d
 o

f 
S

h
o

p
4

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
w

h
ic

h
 n

o
-o

n
e
 c

o
u
ld

 r
e
a
lly

 w
o
rk

 o
u
t 
h
o

w
 t
o
 s

h
o

p
 o

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a

l 
p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 c

o
u
ld

 w
o
rk

 n
o

w
. 
 I

t 
is

 e
a
s
ie

r 
fo

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 u

s
e
, 

a
n
d
 d

o
e
s
n
’t
 c

h
a
rg

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
r 

c
lie

n
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e
s
 i
t 
a
s
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n

 a
s
 b

u
y
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
. 
 T

h
e
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 s
e

p
a
ra

te
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
it
e
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

a
n
t 
to

 b
u

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 s
o
m

e
o
n
e
 w

h
o
 d

o
e
s
n

’t
 a

c
tu

a
ll
y
 w

a
n
t 
to

 a
d

v
e
rt

is
e
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 d

o
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
, 

b
u
t 

it
 s

e
e
m

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
a
t 

to
 h

a
p

p
e
n

 n
o

w
. 

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a

l 
is

s
u
e
 f

o
r 

m
a
n

y
 d

is
a
b

le
d
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
it
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 p
la

c
e
s
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o

n
s
 m

a
n

y
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 p

e
o
p

le
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 s

o
 k

e
e
n
 t

o
 e

m
b
ra

c
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
t.
 A

lt
h

o
u
g

h
 b

u
s
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
m

o
re

 o
r 

le
s
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
, 
jo

u
rn

e
y
s
 t

o
 b

u
s
 s

to
p
s
 a

re
 n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t,
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
 s

ta
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
re

 g
e
n

e
ra

ll
y
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
. 

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 o
p
ti
o

n
s
 n

e
e

d
 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 a

n
d

 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
s
im

p
le

, 
a
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
, 
a
n

d
 n

o
t 
c
h
e

a
p
, 

a
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

o
 m

u
c
h
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o

n
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 

w
it
h

o
u
t 

w
h
ic

h
 

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 i
s
 n

o
t 

v
a
lid

 –
 s

o
 i
t’
s
 v

e
ry

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 c
o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
th

e
y
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

u
n
 

b
y
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e

 h
ig

h
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 c
o
s
ts

. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 g

o
o
d

 i
d
e

a
s
 a

ro
u

n
d
, 

b
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 m

e
a
n
ti
m

e
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a

l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 j
u
s
t 
p

a
y
 a

 c
h
e

a
p
 r

a
te

 t
o
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n

 o
r 

c
o
m

p
a
n

y
 t

h
a
t 

is
 n

o
t 

le
g
is

la
ti
v
e

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.
  

(H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 s

o
m

e
 r

e
a
lly

 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 i
d
e
a
s
, 

is
 a

ls
o
 w

e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
) 

 P
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
 

A
lt
h
o
u

g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
lit

y
 i
s
 t
h

a
t 

lo
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 p

e
o
p

le
 t

o
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
, 

w
e

’d
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 w
a
ry

 o
f 

a
 p

o
lic

y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
lie

s
 t
h
a
t 

it
’s

 g
o

o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
 d

a
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 t
o

 b
e
 i
n
 

m
o
re

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ts

, 
it
 r

e
a

lly
 i
s
n

’t
. 

 A
ls

o
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
a
re

a
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 
lit

tl
e
 i
n
c
e

n
ti
v
e
 i
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a
c
c
e

s
s
 n

e
e
d
s
 d

o
n
’t
 u

s
e
 i
t 
a
s
 m

u
c
h
. 

M
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

A
 l
o
t 
o
f 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 t
o
 u

p
 t

h
e
ir
 g

a
m

e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
f 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 m

o
re

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

ro
m

 
d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
, 
s
o
 t

h
e
 e

th
o
s
 o

f 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 m

a
y
 b

e
c
o

m
e
 r

e
a
l.
  

B
u
t 

b
e
 a

w
a
re

 t
h
a
t 

in
 t
h
e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
s
ta

g
e
s
 t
h

e
 o

ff
e
rs

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 s

e
e
m

, 
a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 t
h
a

t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 v

e
ry

 c
le

a
r 

a
s
 t
o
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

te
 a

 
s
o
c
ia

l 
o
r 

le
is

u
re

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
. 
 E

G
. 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 g

re
a

t 
fo

r 
b
o
rr

o
w

in
g
 b

o
o
k
s
 o

r 
s
tu

d
y
in

g
 i
n
 (

a
t 
le

a
s
t 

w
it
h
 n

e
w

 I
T

 p
u
t 
in

 
a
n

y
w

a
y
),

 b
u
t 

th
e

y
 d

o
n

’t
 a

ll 
o
ff

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 

P
e
rh

a
p
s
 p

e
o
p
le

 m
a

y
 e

m
b
ra

c
e
 m

o
re

 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e

ir
 c

h
o
s
e

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
if
 t

h
e

y
 w

e
re

n
’t
 c

a
lle

d
 ‘
d
a

y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
’ 
o
r 

190



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
7

 

‘d
a

y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
’.
  
O

th
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 h

a
v
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
liv

e
s
, 

lif
e

s
ty

le
s
, 

e
tc

, 
a

n
d
 i
t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 

h
e
lp

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 n

o
n
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a
l 

th
in

k
in

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
h
a
t’
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e
r,

 i
f 

th
e
 t

e
rm

s
 u

s
e
d
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 o

n
ly

 e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t
o
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 

u
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 H

a
rr

o
w

 M
e
n

c
a
p

 
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 M
e
n
c
a
p
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 a

 m
o
re

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
. 

 W
e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 t

h
a
t 

if
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b
u
d
g

e
ts

 a
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l,
 n

o
t 
o
n

ly
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 d

a
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

u
t 
a

ls
o
 i
n
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

, 
d
a

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
, 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 l
iv

in
g
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
lli

n
g
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
n

d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

. 
 W

h
ils

t 
w

e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 f

a
c
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h
e

 s
e
v
e
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 c

u
ts

 t
o
 i
ts

 
g
ra

n
ts

 w
e
 a

re
 n

o
n
e

th
e

le
s
s
 d

is
a
p

p
o
in

te
d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 i
n
te

rc
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n
 f

u
lly

 a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 o

r 
th

o
s
e
 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 b
e

in
g

 
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d
. 

 A
 p

ie
c
e
m

e
a
l 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 c

a
n
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
ill

 f
a
c
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n
 k

e
y
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
 o

n
e
 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
m

p
o
u
n
d

in
g
 t
h
e

ir
 a

n
x
ie

ti
e
s
, 
c
o
n
fu

s
io

n
, 

s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
lo

s
s
 e

tc
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 u

n
d

o
u
b
te

d
ly

 h
a

v
e
 a

 d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e

ir
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

 In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t

h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t
h
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 

‘p
e
rs

o
n
a

l’ 
b

u
d
g
e

ts
 c

a
n
 a

d
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
fu

s
io

n
 w

h
e
re

b
y
 s

o
m

e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

‘m
a
n
a
g
e
d
’ 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
. 

 T
h
is

 c
a
n
 s

e
v
e
re

ly
 r

e
s
tr

ic
t 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
c
h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

tr
o
l.
 

 P
e
o

p
le

 m
a

y
 n

e
e

d
 m

o
re

 o
f 
o
n
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 l
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

p
e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

th
in

g
s
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

liv
e
s
. 
W

h
ils

t 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

n
e

e
d
 t

o
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 r
is

k
s
 c

h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l,
 b

e
tt
e
r 

w
e

ll-
b
e
in

g
 c

a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 i
f 

p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b
u
d

g
e
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

. 
 W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ff
e
r 

re
a
l 
o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
  
fo

r 
p
e

o
p
le

 w
it
h
  

le
a
rn

in
g
  
d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
  
b

u
t 
fe

a
r 

th
a

t 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
p
la

c
e
 i
s
  
n

o
t 
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
  
to

 o
ff

e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

c
lu

s
iv

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 W
e
 f
e
e
l 
th

a
t 
p

e
o
p

le
 r

e
g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 c
a
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 b

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h
  

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h
t 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

 W
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 e

x
is

ts
 o

r 
c
a
n
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
h
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
  
s
h

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
  

o
f 

  
u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u

d
g
e

t 
to

 a
tt
e

n
d
 o

u
t 
 o

f 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

w
h

e
re

  
th

e
s
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
ir
  

n
e
e

d
s
 o

r 
a
s
p
ir
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
th

e
y
  

s
im

p
ly

  
c
h

o
o
s
e
  
to

  
d

o
  
s
o
. 
 

  W
e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
  
 a

n
y
  

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a

n
g
e
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
a
l 
 c

h
o
ic

e
  

a
n
d

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
 f

o
r 

  
d
is

a
b

le
d
 p

e
o
p

le
; 
 i
t 

h
o

w
e
v
e
r 

m
u
s
t 
 

b
e
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
n
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 l
im

it
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
  

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
  
in

fo
rm

e
d
  
c
h
o
ic

e
s
  
a
n

d
  
n

e
e
d
  

191



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
8

 

s
k
ill

s
, 
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 d

o
  

s
o
  
a

n
d
 t

h
is

  
m

u
s
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
  

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
  
to

 t
ry

 n
e

w
  

th
in

g
s
  

b
e
fo

re
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 t

o
  
a
n

y
 

lo
n

g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t.
 

 W
e
 s

tr
o
n
g
ly

 b
e
lie

v
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
 h

o
lis

ti
c
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a

l 
if
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 t

o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 i
ts

 a
m

b
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 m

o
s
t 
in

 n
e
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 s
u
it
 y

o
u
n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

, 
a
n

d
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
n

e
e
d
s
 w

o
u

ld
 s

ti
ll 

re
q
u

ir
e
 d

a
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
F

le
x
ib

le
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 g

o
in

g
 a

 n
e
e

d
 a

 l
o
t 
m

o
re

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
, 
p

e
o
p

le
 o

n
 t
h

e
 A

s
p

e
rg

e
rs

 S
p
e
c
tr

u
m

, 
a
n
d
 n

e
e

d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

e
 a

n
 e

th
n
ic

a
lly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
. 

A
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 A

g
e
 U

K
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
 (T

a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

n
a

ir
e
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 a

n
d

 s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e

n
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
s
) 

 

P
e
rh

a
p
s
 t
h
e

y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 p
ilo

t 
m

o
d
e
l,
 a

s
 i
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
 a

ll 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
. 
 A

ls
o
 t
h

a
t 

w
a

y
 t

h
in

g
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

a
d
a
p

te
d
 a

n
d

 c
h
a
n

g
e
d

. 
 P

e
rh

a
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

is
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

rs
. 
 

 P
e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

. 
C

o
n
c
e
rn

 r
e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

n
 p

e
o
p

le
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
s
s
 c

h
o
ic

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
n
d
 b

e
 

a
b
le

 t
o
 d

o
 f

e
w

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 p

e
rh

a
p
s
. 
  

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 
I 

a
g
re

e
 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

o
s
e
 w

it
h
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 n

e
e

d
s
, 

b
u
t 
th

e
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
a
ls

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
e
r 

n
e
e

d
s
 w

h
o

 w
a
n

t 
to

 u
s
e

 t
h
e
m

, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
f 

th
is

 i
s
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u

a
l 
w

o
u

ld
 w

a
n
t.

 
C

h
o
ic

e
 b

e
in

g
 k

e
y
. 

 A
ls

o
 l
o

w
e
r 

le
v
e

l 
n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

a
s
 a

 p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 
i.
e
. 
s
o

 a
s
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

p
e

o
p
le

 d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
n
g

 b
o
th

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
lly

, 
m

e
n
ta

lly
 a

n
d
 e

m
o
ti
o
n

a
lly

. 
 I
f 

p
e
o
p

le
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

te
 –

th
is

 i
s
 

o
b
v
io

u
s
ly

 n
e

g
a
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 b
u
t 

w
ill

 p
u
t 
a

 s
tr

a
in

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

lly
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
s
 m

o
re

 c
a
re

 e
tc

. 
w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e

d
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
p
la

c
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 l
o

w
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
, 
p
h

y
s
io

th
e
ra

p
y
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 e

tc
. 

to
 k

e
e
p
 t
h

e
m

 f
it
te

r,
 

le
s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 f

a
lls

, 
m

o
re

 e
n

g
a
g

e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 a

n
d
 l
e
s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 g
e
t 

s
o
c
ia

lly
 i
s
o

la
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n
 

d
e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 h

e
a

lt
h
. 

P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 c

u
re

 p
h

ilo
s
o
p

h
y
-r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 m

ild
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 e

tc
. 
 

 A
g
re

e
 t
h
o

u
g
h

 t
h
a

t 
s
o
m

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
o

w
e
r 

le
v
e

l 
n

e
e
d

s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

w
a

n
t 
to

 u
s
e
 a

 d
a

y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

s
 f

e
e

l 
it
 i
s
 j
u
s
t 
fo

r 
o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 

v
e
ry

 s
ic

k
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 n

o
t 
th

a
t 
s
ti
m

u
la

ti
n

g
 o

r 
in

te
re

s
ti
n
g

. 
 S

o
 p

e
rh

a
p
s
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
iv

e
d
 s

o
 a

s
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
m

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 a

ll 
a
n

d
 h

a
v
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

ra
n
g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
i.
e
. 

n
o
t 

e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
6
0
, 

o
r 

e
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 w

it
h

 a
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 w

ill
 l
ik

e
 o

r 
w

a
n
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 s

o
 t

h
is

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
p
e
rs

o
n
a

lis
e

d
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 m

o
re

 c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 
 

 M
o
re

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

ls
o
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
-m

o
re

 m
e
n
ta

ll
y
 s

ti
m

u
la

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
 E

x
e
rc

is
e
 e

tc
. 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
a
s
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 p

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l.
  

A
ls

o
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 
k
e
e
p
 p

e
o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g
e
d
. 

 P
e
rh

a
p
s
 g

e
t 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d

 i
n

 d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
 o

w
n

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 h

a
v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 e

tc
. 

s
o
 t
h
e

y
 c

a
n
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e

ir
 v

ie
w

s
. 

 T
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
s
o
u

n
d
s
 g

o
o
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
o
ry

 b
u

t 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

ill
 o

c
c
u
r 

a
n
d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 a

ll 
n
e
e

d
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
. 

 C
h

o
ic

e
. 

 A
g
re

e
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 c
u
ts

 b
u
t 

n
e
e

d
 t
o

 f
ir
s
tl
y
 s

e
e
 w

h
a
t 
o

th
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

e
t 
u
p
 

in
 t

h
e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 s

tr
a

ig
h
t 

a
w

a
y
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 c

lo
s
in

g
. 
 W

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 g
ro

w
in

g
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 k
e
e
p
 a

s
 

192



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

2
9

 

m
a
n

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 o

p
e
n

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

A
ls

o
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 d
is

ru
p
ti
v
e

 t
o
 s

o
m

e
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
f 

h
a

v
e

 r
e
lie

d
 

o
n
 t
h

e
s
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d

 e
x
tr

a
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 a
n

y
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
. 

 
 N

e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
n
d
 n

o
t 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 (

e
v
e
n
 n

e
x
t 
c
o
u

p
le

 o
f 

y
e

a
rs

 s
h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

).
 

 I 
a
g
re

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e

d
s
 b

u
t 

th
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 

a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 a
n

d
 f

u
lly

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
If

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t
ra

v
e

l 
9

0
 m

in
u
te

s
 t

h
e
n
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 d

o
in

g
 s

o
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s

o
 t

h
e
re

 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

s
 a

 c
h
o

ic
e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

d
e

q
u
a
te

 a
n
d

 f
u
lly

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
. 
 

A
ls

o
 d

e
p

e
n
d
s
 h

o
w

 l
o
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 o

th
e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 .
If

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e

n
 a

tt
e

n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

y
e

a
rs

 m
a

y
 b

e
 f

a
m

ili
a
r 

w
it
h
 i
t 

a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 f

ri
e
n

d
s
. 
 P

e
o
p

le
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
lw

a
y
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 n
o
t 

fo
rc

e
d
 t
o

 c
h
o
o
s
e
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 e

ls
e
 i
f 

th
e

y
 

d
o
n

’t
 w

a
n
t.
 S

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e

n
 g

o
o
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
s
te

a
d
. 
 

 W
ill

 b
e
 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
s
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

u
b
s
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

. 
P

ilo
t 
s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 o

r 
m

a
y
 

w
o
rk

 w
e
ll.

  
Im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

e
v
e
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

 a
tt

e
n
d

in
g
. 
  

 I 
d
o
 n

o
t 
k
n
o

w
 e

n
o
u

g
h
 a

b
o

u
t 
a
ll 

th
e
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

I 
th

in
k
 i
t 
is

 v
e
ry

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

s
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

  
I 
fe

e
l 
th

a
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 
n
o
t 
a
s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 o

r 
in

te
re

s
ti
n
g
 a

s
 t
h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 b
o
th

 i
n

 d
a

y
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 o

ld
e

r 
p
e
o
p

le
s
 h

o
m

e
. 
 I
t 

is
 v

e
ry

 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 h
a

v
e
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

o
 a

s
 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 p

e
o
p
le

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
lly

 a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

lly
 h

e
a
lt
h

y
 a

n
d
 I
 t

h
in

k
 t
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

 A
s
 I
 s

a
y
 I

 k
n
o
w

 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

 g
re

a
t 
s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 t
o
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 I

 d
o
 n

o
t 

p
e
rs

o
n

a
lly

 k
n
o

w
 

e
n
o
u

g
h
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
b
u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 g
e

n
e
ra

l 
fe

e
lin

g
. 
A

ls
o
 a

s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d

 p
e

o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
, 
th

o
s
e
 w

it
h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

n
d
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e

n
 m

o
re

 c
h
o
ic

e
. 

 A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 f

re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 a

s
k
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 t

y
p

e
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o
 d

o
. 

 T
h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 r

u
n
 b

y
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 o

r 
c
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e

n
 f

e
d
 b

a
c
k
. 

 A
ls

o
 I

 d
o
 k

n
o

w
 t

h
a
t 

a
 l
o
t 
o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
w

a
n
t 
to

 a
tt

e
n
d
 a

 d
a

y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

s
 t
h

e
y
 f

e
e

l 
y
o

u
n

g
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

y
 

fe
e
l 
th

a
t 
d
a

y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 f

ill
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 l
o
t 
o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 s

it
ti
n
g
 a

ro
u
n

d
 a

n
d
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
fo

r 
th

e
m

. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 s

a
id

 t
h
is

 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
y
 f

in
d
 t

h
e
 i
d

e
a
 o

f 
a
tt
e
n

d
in

g
 s

u
c
h

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

r 
d
o

in
g
 s

u
c
h
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

e
p
re

s
s
in

g
. 
 S

o
 w

h
ils

t 
d
a

y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 e

x
c
e

lle
n
t 
fo

r 
s
o

m
e
 I
 s

tr
o
n
g
ly

 a
g
re

e
 t
h
e
re

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
m

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 u

s
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
tl
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 l
u
m

p
e
d
 i
n
to

 o
n
e
 b

ig
 g

ro
u
p
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
re

 m
a

y
 w

e
ll 

b
e
 a

 h
u
g

e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 6
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 w
it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 a

 9
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 w
it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

-t
h
e

 9
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 m
a

y
 w

a
n

t 
to

 d
o
 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 6

5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 o
r 

v
ic

e
 v

e
rs

a
, 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
m

a
y
 w

a
n
t 

to
 d

o
 a

 l
o
t 

m
o
re

 o
r 

a
 l
o
t 

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 9

5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 w
a
n
t 

to
 a

tt
e
n
d
 a

 d
a

y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 e

v
e
n
 i
f 

h
e
 h

a
s
 v

e
ry

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
y
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 d
o
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 

a
 l
o

t 
m

o
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
n
te

re
s
ti
n
g
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

 c
h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

 A
ls

o
 I

 f
e
e
l 
a

n
d
 I

 b
e

lie
v
e
 s

o
m

e
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 f
e
e
l 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o
t 

e
n

o
u
g

h
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

m
e
n
 a

n
d
 e

v
e

n
 o

ld
e
r 

c
o
u
p
le

s
. 
 

S
o
m

e
 o

ld
e
r 

m
e
n
 w

a
n

t 
to

 h
a

v
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 a

s
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

 s
it
ti
n
g

 a
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 c

h
a

tt
in

g
 

a
n
d
 m

a
y
 p

re
fe

r 
o
th

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
 T

h
in

k
 t
h
is

 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

a
s
 m

a
n

y
 o

ld
e
r 

m
e
n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 s
o
c
ia

lly
 i
s
o
la

te
d
 a

ls
o
 a

n
d
 m

a
y
 

n
o
t 
s
a

y
 s

o
. 

193



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
0

 

 A
g
e
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

 a
ls

o
 b

e
lie

v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
n

y
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
n

d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
ir
 d

a
y
 

c
a
re

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 b
u
ild

in
g

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 d

is
p

o
s
e
d

 o
f,

 a
s
 t
h

is
 w

ill
 l
im

it
 l
o

n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
 W

it
h
 a

n
 

a
g
e

in
g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 i
t 
m

a
y
 a

 s
h
o
rt

 s
ig

h
te

d
 p

o
lic

y
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t
h
a

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 N

H
S

 H
a

rr
o

w
 C

li
n

ic
a
l 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

 
B

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 

N
H

S
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
 i
s
 p

le
a
s
e
d
 t
o

 s
u
b
m

it
 i
ts

 v
ie

w
s
 w

it
h

 r
e
g
a
rd

s
 t
o

 H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

d
u

lt
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
W

e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h

a
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 c

o
n

ti
n
u
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 s

h
a
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

. 
B

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
3
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e
n

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

 C
a
re

 M
a

n
a

g
e
r/

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

a
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 n
e

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 a

 P
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
a

g
e
n

d
a
 o

n
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 o

n
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

lis
a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

b
y
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
1
3
, 

7
0
%

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
ill

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 P

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
B

u
d
g

e
ts

. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
e
 t

y
p
e

 o
f 

d
a

y
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
, 
to

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 o

r 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e

 a
n

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 b
ro

a
d
e
r 

ra
n
g

e
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 r
e
s
p
o
n

d
 t
o

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
n

e
e
d
. 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
: 
 

• 
U

s
e
rs

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g
e
t 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
c
a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
; 

a
n
d
 

• 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
d
a

y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
 w

o
u

ld
 l

ik
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 L
o

c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 m
o

d
e
l 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt

 D
a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 w

il
l 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 g

re
a
te

r 
in

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

h
e
a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i

n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

, 
s

e
a
m

le
s
s
, 

p
re

v
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 b

e
lo

w
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
o
s
t 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 i
n
 t

h
e

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 i
n
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
  

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
’s

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
  

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
’s

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

o
v
e
ra

rc
h

in
g

 i
m

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
s
 t
o

: 

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 l

o
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 –
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 a
n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 (

H
W

B
S

);
 a

n
d
 

• 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
a
re

, 
i.
e
. 
to

 d
e

liv
e
r 

a
n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c

a
re

. 

K
e

y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 A

d
u
lt
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

o
 

O
u

t 
o

f 
H

o
s
p

it
a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

O
O

H
):

 a
t 

th
e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
’s

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t

h
e

 
ri
g
h
t 

c
a
re

, 
in

 t
h
e
 r

ig
h

t 
p
la

c
e
, 

a
t 

th
e
 r

ig
h
t 

ti
m

e
, 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 r

e
a
c
ti
v
e

, 
u
n
s
c
h
e
d

u
le

d
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 t

o
 d

o
 m

o
re

 
p
la

n
n
e

d
 

c
a
re

 
e
a
rl

ie
r.

 
T

h
e
re

 
a
re

 
fi
v
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
g
o
a

ls
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

O
O

H
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
h

ic
h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
s
o
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 h

e
a
lt
h
) 

w
ill

 w
o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

to
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e

 

194



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
1

 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
, 

th
e
 e

ld
e
rl

y
 a

n
d
 E

n
d
 o

f 
L
if
e
 c

a
re

 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 o
u
t 

o
f 

h
o
s
p
it
a

l.
  
 

• 
‘S

h
a
p

in
g

 a
 H

e
a
lt

h
ie

r 
F

u
tu

re
’ 

(S
a
H

F
):

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 N

H
S

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 t
w

o
 m

ill
io

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 l
iv

e
 

in
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

L
o
n
d
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 S
a
H

F
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 t

h
re

e
-f

iv
e

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t,
 e

n
s
u
ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
in

 o
u
t-

o
f-

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
c
a
re

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
fo

re
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 t

h
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

• 
J
o

in
t 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 (

J
H

W
S

) 
2
0

1
3

 -
 2

0
1
6
: 

lo
c
a

l 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

in
 t

h
e
 J

o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(J
S

N
A

) 
2
0
1
2
-1

6
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 k

e
y
 h

e
a

lt
h
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e

n
tl
y
 
o

u
tl
in

e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 
w

ill
 
b
e

 
o
v
e
rs

e
e

n
 
b

y
 
th

e
 
H

e
a

lt
h
 
a
n
d

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

. 
R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 J

H
W

S
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

o
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 W

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 

• 
Q

u
a
li
ty

, 
In

n
o

v
a
ti

o
n

, 
P

ro
d

u
c
ti

v
it

y
, 

a
n

d
 P

re
v

e
n

ti
o

n
 (

Q
IP

P
) 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
: 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
 i
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

lly
 c

h
a

lle
n
g
e
d

. 
T

h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 R
e
c
o

v
e
ry

 P
la

n
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

1
, 

s
e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

a
 t

h
re

e
-y

e
a
r 

£
4
3
 m

ill
io

n
 p

la
n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 Q

IP
P

 P
la

n
, 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

ll
y
 s

ta
b

le
 C

C
G

. 

• 
M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
: 

T
h
e
 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 
fo

c
u
s
 
o
f 

th
is

 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 
is

 
th

e
 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
f 

c
a
re

 
in

 
th

e
 
le

a
s
t 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 b

y
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

a
re

. 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 D

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 h

e
a

lt
h
 w

it
h
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 

a
lig

n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 i
n

p
u
t 
to

 d
a

y
 c

a
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

O
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
s

y
n

e
rg

y
  

O
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
s
y
n
e
rg

y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
 a

n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

w
it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t
o

 A
d
u

lt
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

: 

• 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 a

n
d

 C
C

G
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 I

n
te

n
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

1
3
/1

4
, 

i.
e

. 
w

in
te

r 
P

la
n
n

in
g
, 

D
e
m

e
n
ti
a
, 

a
n
d

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

w
h

e
re

 
w

e
 

c
a
n
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

h
e

a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
s
 t
h
e

y
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 t
o
 a

d
u

lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
).

 

• 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 V

ie
w

: 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

a
d

u
lt
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n

e
d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

• 
J
o

in
t 

N
H

S
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n

d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 A

u
ti

s
m

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
: 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 k

n
o

w
n

 
p
o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 a

u
ti
s
m

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

u
ti
s
m

 w
it
h

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
le

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 o

r 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

C
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
C

G
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
s
 t
h
e

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 A

d
u

lt
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

, 
a
n

d
 h

o
p
e
s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
: 

• 
M

a
x
im

is
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
a

n
d
 

• 
E

n
s
u
re

 a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 a
t 
th

e
 c

iv
ic

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 s
u
it
 y

o
u
n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

; 
u
s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
n

e
e
d
s
 w

o
u
ld

 s
ti
ll 

re
q
u

ir
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 

F
le

x
ib

le
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
 a

 l
o
t 
m

o
re

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h
 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
, 
p

e
o

p
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 A

s
p
e
rg

e
rs

 S
p
e
c
tr

u
m

 a
n
d
 t
h

e
 e

th
n

ic
a
lly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
 t
o

 
v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 i
t 
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

 

195



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
2

 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

’ 
s
u
g
g

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

w
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
c
o
u
ld

 l
o

o
k
 l
ik

e
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 c

o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 w

e
re

: 
 

1
. 

A
 l
a
rg

e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
m

a
ll 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 o
r 

s
m

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 
2
. 

A
 p

o
o
l 
o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 s

k
ill

s
 i
n
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
lik

e
 h

o
rs

e
-r

id
in

g
, 

w
h
o
 c

o
u

ld
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u

lt
s
 o

n
 

a
n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

, 
o
r 

o
ff

e
r 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 

3
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
, 
2

4
 h

o
u

r 
h
o
m

e
 c

a
re

, 
d
a

y
 c

a
re

 
4
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 b

re
a
k
s
 

5
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 g
ro

u
p
s
 f

o
r 

a
 f

e
w

 h
o

u
rs

 e
a
c
h
 w

e
e
k
, 
o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 l
e

is
u
re

, 
s
o

c
ia

l 
s
k
ill

s
, 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n
t 

liv
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
, 
s
p
o
rt

s
. 

6
. 

F
le

x
ib

le
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
7
. 

J
o
b
 b

ro
k
e
ra

g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 c

o
u

ld
 l
in

k
 i
n
to

. 
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 w

a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o
 a

 m
a
rk

e
t 
o
f 
fl
e
x
ib

le
 d

a
y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

d
 

h
o

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o

u
ld

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 m
a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h

 t
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
, 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

 T
h
e

y
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
 l
e
a

d
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
n

 t
h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 

• 
T

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
p
la

c
e
 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

• 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
n

e
e

d
s
  

• 
H

o
w

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u

d
g
e

ts
 w

o
rk

, 
 

• 
C

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 c

h
a
rg

e
a

b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
 

• 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
  

• 
U

s
in

g
 C

a
re

 P
la

c
e

  

• 
H

o
w

 t
o

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 g

ra
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

u
m

p
-p

ri
m

in
g
 f

u
n
d
in

g
. 
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

y
 w

o
u
ld

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 e
m

a
ils

, 
fo

ru
m

s
, 
o
r 

n
e

w
s
le

tt
e
rs

. 
T

h
e

y
 s

a
id

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 

fo
u
n
d
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 e
v
e
n

t 
u
s
e
fu

l 
fo

r 
b
o
th

 t
h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 

S
ta

g
e
 3

: 
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 

8
. 
W

h
a
t 
d
o
e
s
 y

o
u
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
e

ll 
y
o

u
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
?

 C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e

th
e
r 

th
e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 s

h
o

w
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t,
 i
f 

s
o
 s

ta
te

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 a

n
 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 o

r 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t?

 H
o

w
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
s
 t
h

is
 t
o
 h

a
p

p
e

n
?
 H

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 m

it
ig

a
te

/r
e

m
o
v
e
 a

n
y
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t?

  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 

C
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 

A
d

v
e
rs

e
 

E
x
p
la

in
 w

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
is

, 
h
o

w
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
t 

is
 t
o
 h

a
p

p
e

n
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

im
p
a
c
t 
if
 i
t 
w

a
s
 t
o
 o

c
c
u
r.

 

W
h
a
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 c

a
n
 y

o
u
 t
a

k
e
 t
o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 o
r 

re
d

u
c
e
 t
h

e
 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t(

s
)?

 E
.g

. 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
, 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 e

tc
 (

A
ls

o
 I
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e
 5

) 

A
g
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
/o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
) 

    

    

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

it
h

in
 

tw
o
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
v
e
n
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
in

 M
ilm

a
n
s
 a

ll 
1
0
0
%

 o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 (
1
0
0
) 

a
re

 a
g

e
d
 6

5
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

w
h
ils

t 
a
t 

B
e

n
tl
e

y
 3

7
%

 
(2

7
 o

f 
th

e
 7

0
 c

lie
n
ts

) 
a
re

 a
g

e
d
 6

5
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r.

  

    

196



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
3

 

 
ü

 
 
ü

 
 P

o
s
it

iv
e
: 

P
e
rs

o
n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

ff
e
rs

 m
o
re

 c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 Y
o
u

n
g
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
  
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 t
o
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
o

u
t 
 o

f 
b
o
ro

u
g

h
 

 A
d

v
e
rs

e
: 

 A
 f

e
a
r 

o
r 

p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 
c
u

rr
e
n
t 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 o
r 

fu
lly

 w
it
h
d
ra

w
n
. 
C

a
re

rs
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 s

tr
o
n

g
 

v
ie

w
s
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

th
e

y
 c

a
re

 f
o
r,

 n
e

e
d
s
 t
h

e
 r

o
u

ti
n
e

, 
fa

m
ili

a
ri
ty

, 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
s
a
fe

ty
, 

fr
ie

n
d
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 p

e
e
rs

, 
a
n

d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 s

ta
ff

 w
h
o

 u
n

d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t

h
e
ir
 n

e
e

d
s
. 
T

h
e

y
 c

o
u
ld

 
n
o
t 
c
o
p

e
 w

it
h
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
p

la
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

v
a
ri

o
u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

   T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 f

ri
e
n
d
s
h

ip
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
ta

ff
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 e

n
jo

y
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 c

it
e
d
 a

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
d

v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

. 
 

   T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 f
ro

m
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a
ll 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 f
o
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
, 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g
 b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

o
r 

v
e

ry
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
 

 L
im

it
e
d
 a

v
a

ila
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

, 
a
n
d
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 

w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

. 
 

 F
e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

ro
u
n
d

 m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b
u
d

g
e
ts

, 
m

a
n

y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

e
re

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

a
b
o
u

t 
h
o

w
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
ts

 w
o
rk

e
d
, 
a
n

d
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a
t 
p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b
u

d
g
e
ts

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

 
s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
n
x
ie

ty
, 

n
e
e

d
in

g
 t

im
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

. 
 

  

           A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e

d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

is
 n

e
e
d
, 

a
lt
h
o

u
g
h
 t

h
e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

is
 n

e
e
d
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
/h

u
b

 o
r 

a
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

b
a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
ill

 
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e
, 

o
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e

l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

, 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
  

 P
h
a
s
e
 1

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
w

o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
re

 m
o
v
e
d
 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

in
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 

s
ta

ff
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 m

o
v
e
 w

it
h

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
th

e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 

m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 m

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

re
p
o
rt

. 
  

 T
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
is

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
d
e

ta
ile

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a

t 
a
t 

p
re

s
e
n
t,

 3
8

9
 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

a
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
t,
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

6
2
%

 (
1
2

9
) 

h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
n
a
g
e

d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t.

  
P

e
o
p

le
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

197



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
4

 

   C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

a
tc

h
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o
m

in
g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
, 

w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 i
n
 

g
a
in

in
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

o
re

 s
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 

re
s
p
it
e
 w

h
ils

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
tt
e

n
d
 a

 d
a

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

w
a
s
 s

e
e
n

 a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

in
d
e

p
e

n
d
e
n
t 

liv
in

g
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 c

a
re

rs
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
o
m

e
s
. 
 

  

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
u
s
in

g
 M

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

-
P

u
rs

e
 t
o

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g
e

ts
 i
n
 a

 s
a
fe

 w
a

y
  

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
m

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 t
ra

v
e
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 K

e
n
m

o
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

u
s
e
rs

. 
  In

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

ll 
a
tt
e

n
d
e

e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

a
s
s
u

re
d
 t
h
a

t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
a

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 t
h

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
n
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
/h

u
b
 o

r 
m

o
re

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
. 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

a
n
d
 t

im
e
ly

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
u
tl
in

in
g
 a

n
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
f 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

h
o

w
 a

n
d
 w

h
e

n
 

th
e
s
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a
re

rs
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p

le
) 

  
ü

 

  
ü

 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

i 
re

c
o
rd

s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 
a

ll 
1
0
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
t 

B
e

d
fo

rd
 

H
o
u
s
e
, 

3
5
 a

t 
B

y
ro

n
 N

R
C

, 
8

 a
t 
G

o
rd

o
n
 A

v
e
n
u

e
, 
3

4
 a

t 
K

e
n
m

o
re

 N
R

C
 a

n
d
 3

8
 a

t 
V

a
u
g
h

a
n
 N

R
C

 h
a
d
 a

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 a
s
 t
h

e
ir
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 
O

f 
th

e
 7

0
 c

lie
n

ts
 a

t 
B

e
n
tl
e

y
, 
th

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 w
a
s
 a

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

6
1
 c

lie
n
ts

, 
le

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

8
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h
 

fo
r 

o
n
e
 c

lie
n
t.
  

 T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
th

e
 r

o
w

 a
b
o

v
e
 a

ls
o
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o

 c
lie

n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
. 
 

 P
o

s
it

iv
e
: 

 P
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
  

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

o
 t
ra

v
e
l 
o

u
t 
 

o
f 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 

 A
d

v
e
rs

e
: 

 
S

o
m

e
 c

lie
n
ts

 w
it
h

 A
u
ti
s
m

 m
a

y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o

n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e
 

 S
o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
n

y
 

                    G
o
o
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

, 
c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff

 
 A

ll 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

re
 D

D
A

 (
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 D

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n

 A
c
t)

 

198



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
5

 

c
h
a
n
g
e

 o
f 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

c
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 w

h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 m

o
b
ili

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
a

n
d
 a

n
y
 m

o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 w

o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 D
D

A
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

R
e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

 
 

M
a
rr

ia
g

e
 a

n
d
 C

iv
il 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
N

o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

 
 

P
re

g
n

a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

M
a
te

rn
it
y
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

 
 

R
a
c
e
 

 
ü

 
N

o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
: 

 T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

 u
s
e
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 f

ro
m

 a
 w

id
e

r 
ra

n
g
e
 o

f 
c
u
lt
u
ra

lly
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
s
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 

m
a
d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a

n
d
 r

e
lig

io
u
s
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
B

e
lie

f 
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

 
 

S
e
x
 

 
N

o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

ü
 

S
ta

ff
 –

A
d

v
e
rs

e
: 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n
ti
a

l 
a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 s
ta

ff
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 d

u
e

 t
o
 g

e
n

d
e
r 

b
a

la
n
c
e
 (

th
e
 m

a
le

/f
e
m

a
le

 
ra

ti
o
 i
s
 2

4
%

/7
6
%

).
 T

h
is

 i
s
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
b
a

la
n
c
e

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

  

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 f

u
ll 

in
 t
h
e

 E
Q

IA
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

M
a
n
a
g

in
g
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
C

h
a

n
g
e

, 
in

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
, 

if
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

d
e
c
id

e
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
e
x
u
a

l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

 
 

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e
 s

ta
te

) 
N

o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

N
o
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

 
 

9
. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

–
 A

re
 y

o
u
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t?

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
w

h
e
n
 c

o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 m
e
a
n
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
a
t 

y
o

u
 

h
a
v
e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
. 
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

: 
A

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 f

o
u
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
o

lic
ie

s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

, 
d
a

y
 c

a
re

, 
a
n
d

 r
e
s
p
it
e
 f

o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
S

m
a
ll 

c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 m

a
y
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 p

e
o
p

le
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 c

o
u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o
n
 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
’s

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

u
b

lic
 l
if
e
. 
T

h
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
e
ff

e
c
t 
o
n
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
e
s
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 
a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
, 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a

t 
in

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
e
q

u
a

lit
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 

in
 t

h
is

 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e
o

p
le

, 
h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 o

r 
w

id
e

n
. 
T

h
is

 m
a

y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 m
a
k
in

g
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 t
o
 s

p
re

a
d

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 t
o
 l
e
s
s
e
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
 i
n

 a
n

y
 o

n
e
 a

re
a

. 

T
h
e
 F

a
ir
e
r 

C
h
a
rg

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d
 i
n

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1

2
. 
D

u
ri
n
g

 2
0

1
2
/1

3
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

3
5
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
to

p
p
e

d
 a

tt
e
n
d

in
g

 t
h
e

ir
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

it
e

d
 t
h

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

F
a
ir
e
r 

C
h

a
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

s
 t
h

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
. 

A
ll 

3
5
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h

o
 l
e
ft

 w
e
re

 s
u
b
s
e

q
u

e
n
tl
y
 

c
o
n
ta

c
te

d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
o
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
a

n
c
e
 

 In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
in

c
e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
2
 h

a
s
 h

a
d
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
s
e
rs

. 
U

s
e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
x
ic

a
rd

s
 o

ft
e
n

 p
re

fe
r 

to
 s

a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 r

id
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
ri
ti
c
a
l 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 l
ik

e
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 a

t 
p
re

s
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
s
 t
o

 r
e
d
u
c
e

 t
h
e

 n
u

m
b
e
r 

o
f 

ta
x
ic

a
rd

 r
id

e
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 S

o
m

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 m
a

y
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 h

o
m

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 H

o
m

e
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
2
, 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
is

 b
e

g
in

s
 i
n
 s

p
ri

n
g
/s

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
In

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
rs

 w
ill

 
b
e
 m

a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
e
n
s
u
ri

n
g
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

199



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
6

 

S
o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 s
ta

te
d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
e
n

t 
c
h
a

n
g
e
s
 t

o
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
s
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n

d
 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 

h
a
v
in

g
 a

 s
p
a
re

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o

 a
s
 t
h

e
 ‘
b
e
d
ro

o
m

 t
a
x
’.
  

1
0
. 
H

o
w

 d
o
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 (
P

S
E

D
),

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 h

a
v
e
 d

u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n

, 
h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
d

v
a
n

c
e

 e
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d
 f

o
s
te

r 
g
o
o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 

(I
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
ll 

th
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a
m

p
le

 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 l
a
rg

e
 p

ri
n
t,
 B

ra
ill

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e
s
, 

fl
e
x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
, 
IT

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 D

D
A

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

e
tc

) 

E
lim

in
a
te

 u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
p
ro

h
ib

it
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 E

q
u
a

lit
y
 A

c
t 

2
0
1
0
 

A
d

v
a
n
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

p
e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

F
o
s
te

r 
g
o
o

d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
o

p
le

 
fr

o
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
n

y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 y

o
u
 c

a
n
 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 P

S
E

D
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

?
 (

L
is

t 
th

e
s
e
 

h
e
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e

m
  

in
 t

h
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e
 5

) 
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

e
re

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 p
re

v
e
n

t 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n

. 
B

o
th

 w
ri
tt

e
n
 a

n
d
 

s
p
o
k
e
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 

u
s
e
r-

fr
ie

n
d
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 
g
re

a
te

r 
a
n
d
 m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
 o

n
ly

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

n
a

ir
e
 t
o

 
b
e
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
d
, 

w
a
s
 i
n

to
 G

u
ja

ra
ti
, 

a
n
d

 a
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
 v

e
rs

io
n
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
G

u
ja

ra
ti
 s

p
e

a
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 G

u
ja

ra
ti
 a

n
d
 P

u
n
ja

b
i 

s
p
e
a
k
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
e
re

 o
n

 h
a
n
d

 d
u
ri

n
g
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t

o
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
 a

s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 

 A
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
o
k
 

p
la

c
e
 a

t 
B

e
n
tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n

 G
u
ja

ra
ti
. 

A
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 a
t 
M

a
y
a

 a
n

d
 

A
n
ja

li 
D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

d
 s

m
a
lle

r 
g
ro

u
p
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
, 
H

in
d
i 
a
n
d
 P

u
n
ja

b
i 
w

e
re

 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

d
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

im
s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
l 

o
f 

d
a

y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

s
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
tl
y
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
th

ro
u
g
h
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u
d
g

e
ts

. 
 

 P
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

h
o

ld
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
a

ilo
re

d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
n
e

e
d
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

ir
s
t 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

, 
a
s
 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
s
 

 T
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

 a
g

e
n
d

a
 a

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 

P
u

tt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 F
ir

s
t 

(2
0
0
7

).
 I
n
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
1

 t
h
e

 T
h

in
k
 L

o
c
a
l,
 A

c
t 

P
e
rs

o
n

a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
u

ilt
 u

p
o

n
 P

u
tt

in
g
 P

e
o
p

le
 

F
ir
s
t 
w

it
h

 a
n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 m

o
re

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

lis
e

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

. 
T

h
is

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

in
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 a

d
u

lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
T

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 p
o
in

t 
1

9
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t
h

is
. 

 
• 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

a
ll 

n
in

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

• 
T

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
o

ld
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h

 i
s
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

• 
T

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 M

in
o
ri
ty

 
E

th
n

ic
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

S
o
m

a
li,

 T
a
m

il,
 S

o
u

th
 A

s
ia

n
 a

n
d
 

E
a
s
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e
a

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

w
h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 

c
u
lt
u
ra

lly
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u

d
g
e

ts
 a

s
 t
h
e
 

m
a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
s
 

• 
T

h
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 d
a

y
 c

a
re

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 

a
ll

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 f

u
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

u
se

rs
  
w

il
l 

b
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t 

 

1
1
. 
Is

 t
h

e
re

 a
n

y
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 t
h
a

t 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 m

a
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n
 a

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e

d
 (

p
le

a
s
e

 r
e
fe

r 
to

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 f

o
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
, 
h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

h
ib

it
e

d
 c

o
n
d
u
c
t 
u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t)

?
 

 
A

g
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a
re

rs
) 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a
re

rs
) 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

R
e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t 

M
a
rr

ia
g

e
 a

n
d
 

C
iv

il 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

P
re

g
n

a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

M
a
te

rn
it
y
 

R
a
c
e
 

R
e
lig

io
n
 a

n
d
 

B
e
lie

f 
S

e
x
 

S
e
x
u
a

l 
O

ri
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

200



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
7

 

Y
e
s
 

ü
 

ü
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
o
 

 
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

If
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 "

y
e
s
" 

to
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e
, 
s
e

t 
o
u

t 
w

h
a
t 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 t
h

e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
n
 Q

1
2

a
 b

e
lo

w
 -

 l
in

k
 t
h
is

 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
a

n
d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 d

is
a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e

 
is

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
s
e
 a

im
s
. 
 (

Y
o

u
 a

re
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t
o

 s
e
e
k
 l
e
g

a
l 
a

d
v
ic

e
, 

if
 y

o
u

 a
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 b

re
a
c
h
 t
h

e
 e

q
u
a

lit
y
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 o

r 
y
o
u

 a
re

 
u
n
s
u
re

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l)
 

 If
 t
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 s
h
o

w
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
r 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e
 (

o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
) 

b
u

t 
y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
ju

s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
is

, 
th

is
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
e
r 

fo
r 

a
 f

in
a
l 
d
e

c
is

io
n
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 d

is
a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 t
h
e

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l.
  

If
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
d

v
e
rs

e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 n
o

t 
ju

s
ti
fi
e
d

 a
n

d
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
, 

y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 

p
ro

c
e
e

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l.
  
(s

e
le

c
t 
o
u

tc
o
m

e
 4

) 
If

 t
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 s
h
o

w
s
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o
n
, 

y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 
p
ro

c
e

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a
l.
 (

s
e
le

c
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 4

) 

S
ta

g
e
 4

: 
D

e
c
is

io
n
 

1
2
. 

P
le

a
s
e
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

 w
h
ic

h
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 b
e
s
t 
d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

E
q
IA

 (
 ü üüü

 t
ic

k
 o

n
e
 b

o
x
 o

n
ly

) 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 1

 –
 N

o
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

: 
w

h
e
n

 t
h

e
 E

q
IA

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

y
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

o
r 

a
d

v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 

e
n

h
a
n

c
e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

d
d

re
s

s
e
d

. 
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 2

 –
 M

in
o

r 
a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v

e
 /
 m

it
ig

a
te

 a
d

v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
r 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

. 
L

is
t 

th
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 y

o
u

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
 t

o
 t

a
k

e
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s

s
 t

h
is

 i
n

 t
h

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 a

t 
S

ta
g

e
 5

 
ü

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 3

 –
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 d
e
s
p

it
e
 h

a
v

in
g

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d

v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
r 

m
is

s
e

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

. 
In

 t
h

is
 

c
a
s
e

, 
th

e
 j
u

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 n
e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

q
IA

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i

n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

S
E

D
 t

o
 h

a
v

e
 ‘
d

u
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

’.
 I
n

 s
o

m
e
 c

a
s

e
s

, 
c
o

m
p

e
ll
in

g
 

re
a
s
o

n
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 n

e
e
d

e
d

. 
Y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c

e
 t

h
e
 a

d
v

e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
/o

r 
p

la
n

s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 

im
p

a
c
t.

  
(e

x
p

la
in

 t
h

is
 i

n
 1

2
a
 b

e
lo

w
) 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 4

 –
 S

to
p

 a
n

d
 r

e
th

in
k
: 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
s

e
ri

o
u

s
 a

d
v

e
rs

e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
r 

d
is

a
d

v
a
n

ta
g

e
 t

o
 o

n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 
 (

Y
o

u
 a

re
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
d

 t
o

 s
e
e

k
 L

e
g

a
l 

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

u
n

d
e
r 

e
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 l

e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
) 

 

1
2
a
. 

If
 y

o
u

r 
E

q
IA

 i
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 a
s

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
 3

 o
r 

h
a
v

e
 t

ic
k
e
d

 ‘
y
e
s

’ 
in

 Q
1
1

, 
e
x
p

la
in

 y
o

u
r 

ju
s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 f

u
ll
 r

e
a
s
o

n
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

. 
 

  

S
ta

g
e
 5

: 
M

a
k
in

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 (
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
) 

1
3
. 
L

is
t 
b

e
lo

w
 a

n
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 y

o
u
 p

la
n

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e
 E

q
IA

. 
 

A
re

a
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a

d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
e
.g

. 
R

a
c
e
, 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

D
e
s
ir
e
d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
D

a
te

 
L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

A
 f

e
a
r 

o
r 

p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

m
a
y
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ia
ll
y
 o

r 
fu

lly
 

w
it
h

d
ra

w
n
. 

C
a
re

rs
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

s
tr

o
n
g
 v

ie
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
r,

 t
h
e

y
 c

a
re

 f
o
r,

 n
e
e
d
s
 

th
e
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
, 
fa

m
ili

a
ri
ty

, 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
s
a
fe

ty
, 
fr

ie
n

d
s
h
ip

s
 

w
it
h
 p

e
e
rs

, 
a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

to
 m

e
e
t 
th

is
 n

e
e
d
, 

a
lt
h
o

u
g
h

 t
h
is

 
m

a
y
 b

e
 i
n
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
/h

u
b

 o
r 

m
o
re

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

b
a
s
e
d
. 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
, 

o
n
c
e
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

n
e
e

d
s
 a

re
 

m
e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 
m

o
d
e
l.
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 

m
o
d
e
l 
w

ill
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 

ta
rg

e
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

d
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
ir
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

le
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
J
o
n

a
th

a
n
 P

ri
c
e
 

  

201



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
8

 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o

d
 t
h

e
ir
 

n
e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
e

y
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
c
o

p
e
 

w
it
h
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
p
la

c
e

s
 

fo
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e

 m
o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
n

e
e
d
s
. 

n
e
e
d
s
 

T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

fr
ie

n
d
s
h
ip

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
ta

ff
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 

e
n
jo

y
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

d
a

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 c

it
e
d
 a

s
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
d

v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

. 
 

P
h
a
s
e
 1

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
w

o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
re

 m
o
v
e
d
 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

in
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 

s
ta

ff
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 i
n

it
ia

ll
y
 m

o
v
e
 

w
it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
th

e
s
e

 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 
u
s
e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 n
e

tw
o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

n
e
e

d
s
 a

re
 

m
e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 
m

o
d
e
l.
 

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 P

ri
c
e
 

         

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

fr
o
m

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a
ll 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
fo

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
in

v
o

lv
in

g
 t
h

e
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
, 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 

b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

o
r 

v
e
ry

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 

n
e
e
d
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h
 d

a
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

e
 

m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
ir
 

n
e
e
d
s
 

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 P

ri
c
e
 

 

L
im

it
e
d
 a

v
a

ila
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

, 
a
n
d
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

. 
 

M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 m

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

s
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

re
p
o
rt

. 
  

 

A
 f

u
ll 

ra
n
g

e
 o

f 
d
a

y
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 

c
h
o
ic

e
 

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

 

T
h
o
m

 W
ils

o
n
 

 

F
e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

ro
u
n
d

 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

, 
m

a
n

y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

e
re

 
u
n
c
le

a
r 

a
b

o
u
t 

h
o

w
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u
d
g

e
ts

 w
o
rk

e
d
, 
a
n

d
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 
s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
n
x
ie

ty
, 

n
e
e

d
in

g
 

ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

. 
 

T
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
is

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 

to
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
 w

h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u
d

g
e
t.
 

H
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 i
t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o
te

d
 t
h
a

t 
a
t 
p
re

s
e
n

t,
 3

8
9
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

a
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
t,
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 6

2
%

 (
2

4
2
) 

G
o
o
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
B

u
d
g

e
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
. 
S

im
p
lif

ie
d
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

 

V
is

v
a
 S

a
th

a
s
iv

a
m

 
J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 P

ri
c
e
 

 

202



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

3
9

 

h
a
v
e
 a

 m
a
n
a
g

e
d
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t.
 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 
th

ro
u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
u

s
in

g
 

M
y
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
e
-P

u
rs

e
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

, 
th

e
 w

id
e

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

a
c
ti
v
a
te

 a
u
to

m
a
te

d
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 d

a
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

m
a
tc

h
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o
m

in
g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
, 

w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 i
n

 
g
a
in

in
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

o
re

 s
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
m

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 

K
e
n
m

o
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

M
o
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

y
o

u
n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h
 a

 
ra

n
g
e
 o

f 
in

d
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 

a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
  

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

 

T
h
o
m

 W
ils

o
n
 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 P

ri
c
e
 

    

T
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 

re
s
p
it
e
 w

h
ils

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
tt
e
n

d
 a

 d
a

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

w
a
s
 s

e
e
n

 a
s
 a

n
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
liv

in
g
 e

n
a
b

lin
g

 
c
a
re

rs
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 

o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s
. 
 

 

In
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

ll 
a
tt
e
n

d
e
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
a
s
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
lt
h
o
u

g
h
 t

h
is

 m
a

y
 b

e
 i
n
 

a
n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
/h

u
b
 o

r 
m

o
re

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
. 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

ill
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
a
n
d

 t
im

e
ly

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
u
tl
in

in
g
 a

n
y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
f 

th
e
re

 
a
re

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

h
o

w
 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
n

 t
h
e
s
e

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

re
s
p
it
e
 

fo
r 

c
a
re

rs
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3
 

V
is

v
a
 S

a
th

a
s
iv

a
m

 
 

S
o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
n

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

c
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

w
h
e
e

lc
h
a

ir
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

e
o
p

le
 

w
it
h
 m

o
b
ili

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

A
ll 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

re
 D

D
A

 
(D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 D

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 A

c
t)

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
a

n
d
 a

n
y
 m

o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 w

o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 D
D

A
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

 

E
n
s
u
re

 c
o

n
ti
n
u
e

d
 D

D
A

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3
 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 P

ri
c
e
 

 

S
o
m

e
 c

lie
n
ts

 w
it
h

 A
u
ti
s
m

 
m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 d

u
e

 
G

o
o
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 

b
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

S
m

o
o
th

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 
p
re

v
io

u
s
 t

o
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o
n
 a

n
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 P

ri
c
e
 

 

203



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

4
0

 

to
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

u
s
e
rs

, 
c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

s
ta

ff
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3
 

  

S
ta

g
e
 6

 -
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
  

T
h
e
 f

u
ll 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
y
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 

it
 i
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.
  

1
4
. 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 y
o

u
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
?
 

H
o

w
 o

ft
e
n
 w

ill
 y

o
u
 d

o
 t
h

is
?
 (

A
ls

o
 I

n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g

e
 5

) 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 v

ia
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

if
 

a
n

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

m
o
v
e
s
 t
h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

t 
w

e
e

k
 6

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 m

o
v
e
. 
 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 t
a
k
e
 a

 ‘
p
a
ti
e

n
t 
e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
’ 
to

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 t
h
a

t 
m

a
y
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

if
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
h
a
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te

s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 f
o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
. 
 

• 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

• 
A

 p
ro

je
c
t 
g
ro

u
p
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t
o

 a
c
t 
a
s
 

‘c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
fr

ie
n
d

’ 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
a

n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

o
n
g
o

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 c

h
a
n
g
e

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t.
 

1
5
. 
D

o
 y

o
u
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 m

o
n
it
o

r 
th

is
 f

u
n
c
ti
o

n
 /
 s

e
rv

ic
e
?

 D
o

 y
o

u
 k

n
o
w

 w
h
o
 y

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
a
re

?
 

Y
e
s
 

ü
 

N
o
 

 

1
6
. 
W

h
a
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
?
 (

A
ls

o
 I

n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e

 5
) 

A
s
 1

4
 a

b
o

v
e
 

1
7
. 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
a
n

y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 b

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
d
, 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

u
b
lic

is
e
d

?
 (

A
ls

o
 

In
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g

e
 5

) 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 a
 h

o
lis

ti
c
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
 Q

A
 

q
u
a
d
ra

n
t 
m

o
d
e
l 
a
n
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t
o
o

l 
(Q

A
Q

) 
w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 f

o
u
r 

k
e

y
 

a
re

a
s
: 
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e
, 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e
, 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
c
h
a

lle
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

e
r/

c
it
iz

e
n
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e

. 
 T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

is
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
o

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o

 u
s
e
 i
n
 h

o
ld

in
g

 t
h
e

 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

h
o

w
 m

o
n
e

y
 i
s
 s

p
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
. 

 D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h

a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 
w

h
o
 u

s
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
o
s
e

 w
h
o

 d
o

n
’t
. 

T
h
e

y
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 u

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th

ro
u

g
h
o

u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t.
  

 H
a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
lly

 r
e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 a

s
 a

 l
e

a
d
e
r 

in
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
, 
h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 M

J
 f

o
r 

p
io

n
e
e
ri

n
g

 w
o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 Q
u
a
d
ra

n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

 

204



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

4
1

 

A
d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
is

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 b

y
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

 S
a
fe

ty
 H

e
lix

 a
s
 o

u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 f

o
r 

a
 “

s
a
fe

ty
 y

a
rd

s
ti
c
k
”.

 T
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 m

o
v
e
 u

s
 

fr
o
m

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
o
 a

 g
ra

n
u
la

r 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

b
ri
n
g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

d
a
ta

 t
o
 a

s
s
u
re

 o
u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 b

y
 e

n
s
u
ri
n

g
 e

a
c
h

 a
n
d
 e

v
e
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

is
 c

o
n
ta

c
te

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
th

re
e
 t

im
e
s
 a

 
y
e

a
r,

 d
u
ri

n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

t 
c
o

n
c
e
p
t 
s
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 i
n
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

il 
in

 f
u
tu

re
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

s
. 

1
8
. 
H

a
v
e
 y

o
u
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 o
r 

c
o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n

, 
p
ro

je
c
t 
o
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 b
e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
?
 I
f 

s
o
, 
p
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
ta

ils
. 

2
4
.2

.2
0
1

3
 –

 E
 m

a
il 

fr
o
m

 a
 f
a
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

a
t 

B
e
d
fo

rd
 H

o
u
s
e
 

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t
h

a
t 
s
o

m
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d
g
e

ts
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

a
m

ily
 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

x
p
e

n
s
e
 o

f 
a

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

lie
n
t.
 A

ls
o
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
n

y
 a

g
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b
e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 a
 c

h
a
n
g
e

 i
n

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

k
n
o
w

n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 

T
h
e
 f

a
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

m
e
t 
w

it
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

n
 6

.4
.1

3
 

 2
0
.3

.2
0
1

3
 –

 L
e
tt

e
r 

fr
o
m

 a
 f
a
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

a
t 

K
e
n
m

o
re

, 
w

a
s
 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o
 s

a
v
e
 m

o
n
e

y
 b

y
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
w

h
o
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 o

r 
lim

it
a
ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

re
 l
e
s
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 v
o
ic

e
 t

h
e
ir
 o

p
p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d
. 
 

 Q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e
s
 –

 T
h
e
re

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 b
y
 s

o
m

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n

d
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 

w
e
re

 ‘
lo

a
d
e

d
’ 
to

 h
e
lp

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d
 m

in
im

is
e
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 –

 t
h

e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

w
e
re

 v
e
ry

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

fu
l 
in

 e
x
p

la
in

in
g
 t

h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 w

o
u

ld
 

m
a
k
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
tt
e

n
d
e

e
s
 f

e
lt
 t
h

a
t 
c
o
u

n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 l
is

te
n
e
d
 t
o

 t
h
e

ir
 v

ie
w

s
. 

S
ta

g
e
 7

 –
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 E

q
IA

 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
m

. 
 

 E
q
IA

’s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 o

n
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t.
 

205



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

4
2

 

1
9
. 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
 

 N
O

T
E

: 
T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 y

o
u
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

y
o

u
 m

u
s
t 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll 

E
q
IA

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
s
 a

 b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 p

a
p
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e
rs

 (
C

a
b
in

e
t,

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 
a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
, 

C
S

B
 e

tc
) 

 Ø
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re

 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 b

o
th

 a
d

v
e
rs

e
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
?

 
Ø

 
A

re
 t
h

e
re

 a
n

y
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

th
e
rs

?
 

Ø
 

D
o
 y

o
u
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

p
ro

c
e
e
d

in
g

 w
it
h

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h
 a

n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

?
 I
f 

y
e
s
, 

w
h
a

t 
a
re

 y
o
u
r 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

?
 

Ø
 

W
h
a
t 
c
o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

re
 y

o
u
 a

d
v
is

in
g
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 E

q
IA

?
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

c
e
e

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 D

a
y
 C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

• 
B

y
ro

n
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

R
e

s
o
u
rc

e
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 

- 
 

A
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
e

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

w
ill

 
b
e

 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 a

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 A

u
ti
s
m

  

• 
K

e
n
m

o
re

 
N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

- 
C

o
m

p
le

x
 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l/
S

e
n
s
o
ry

  
D

is
a
b

ili
ty

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
m

  

• 
V

a
u

g
h
a

n
 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 
C

e
n
tr

e
 
- 

A
 
s
p
e

c
ia

lis
e
d
 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 
w

ill
 
b
e

 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
 

• 
M

ilm
a
n
s
 N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

 A
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 

  
  
  

T
h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

c
e
a
s
e
s
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

s
 a

 d
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 
a
d
u

lt
s
, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
: 

• 
B

e
n
tl
e

y
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

–
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

a
re

 
a
s
k
e
d
 

to
 

g
iv

e
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
to

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

• 
G

o
rd

o
n
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

lo
s
e
 –

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
ill

 n
e

g
o
ti
a

te
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
/e

n
d
in

g
 u

s
e
 

• 
B

e
d
fo

rd
 
H

o
u
s
e
 
D

a
y
 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 
- 

T
h
e
 
b
u
ild

in
g
 
w

ill
 
c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
 
to

 
b

e
 
u
s
e
d
 
a
s
 
a

 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

te
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h

 a
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

. 
In

 a
 

fu
tu

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

 C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 t

e
n
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
o

s
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
  

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 A
s
ia

n
 D

e
a
f 

C
u
b
 

u
s
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

A
n

y
 g

ro
u
p

s
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

im
p
a
c
te

d
. 
T

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 a
n

y
 i
m

p
a
c
t,
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
ill

 w
o
rk

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 s
u

it
a
b
le

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
u
s
in

g
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
. 

2
0
. 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
b
e
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
d
?
 E

.g
. 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
, 

in
tr

a
n
e
t,

 
fo

ru
m

s
, 
g
ro

u
p
s
 e

tc
 

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
e
b
s
it
e
 

S
ta

g
e
 8

 -
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

s
ig

n
 O

ff
 (

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 C

h
a
ir

 o
f 

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 

E
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
) 

T
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 E
q

IA
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
ir

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 (

D
E

T
G

) 
to

 b
e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

. 

2
1
. 
W

h
ic

h
 g

ro
u
p
 o

r 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
, 
re

v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
?

  
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 G

ro
u

p
 –

 1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
  

 S
ig

n
e

d
: 
(L

e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 E

q
IA

) 
 

B
ri
d

g
e
t 

B
e
rg

in
 

S
ig

n
e

d
: 
(C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
D

E
T

G
) 

 

D
a
te

: 
 

3
1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
 

206



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

4
3

 

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
. 

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 e
v

e
n

t 
 

V
e
n

u
e
 

D
a
te

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 

F
a
m

il
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
a
d

v
o

c
a
te

s
 a

n
d

 k
e

y
 

w
o

rk
e
rs

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 

S
ta

ff
 

M
ilm

a
n
s
 N

R
C

 S
ta

ff
  

2
0
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
1
3
 

M
ilm

a
n
s
 N

R
C

 U
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 

2
0
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 
1
9

 
 4

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 p
lu

s
 1

 a
d
v
o
c
a

te
 

N
/A

 

B
y
ro

n
 N

R
C

 s
ta

ff
  

2
8
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

  
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
1
2
 +

 1
 u

n
io

n
 r

e
p
 

B
y
ro

n
 N

R
C

 u
s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 

2
8
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
5
 

0
 

N
/A

 

M
ilm

a
n
s
 N

R
C

 u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 

4
 M

a
rc

h
  

1
4
 

2
 c

a
re

rs
  

N
/A

 

B
e
d
fo

rd
 H

o
u
s
e
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 S

ta
ff

  
6
 M

a
rc

h
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

4
 

B
e
d
fo

rd
 H

o
u
s
e
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

6
 M

a
rc

h
 

(z
e
ro

) 
0
 

3
 c

a
re

rs
 

N
/A

 

B
e
n
tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 s
ta

ff
 

7
 M

a
rc

h
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

1
1
 +

 1
 u

n
io

n
 r

e
p
 

B
e
n
tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 

7
 M

a
rc

h
  

2
4
 

1
 c

a
re

r 
N

/A
 

B
e
n
tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 

1
3
 M

a
rc

h
  

1
8
 

2
 c

a
re

rs
 

N
/A

 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 H
ig

h
 S

c
h
o

o
l 

1
8
 M

a
rc

h
  

8
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

W
e
lld

o
n
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 G

ro
u
p
 u

s
e

rs
 

1
9
 M

a
rc

h
 

1
8
 (

in
c
 2

 n
o

n
-v

e
rb

a
l)
 

3
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e
 

N
/A

 

B
e
n
tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 F

o
r 

G
u
ja

ra
ti
 s

p
e

a
k
e
rs

 
2
0
 M

a
rc

h
  

5
 

4
 c

a
re

rs
 p

lu
s
  

2
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a
n
c
e
 

N
/A

 

B
e
n
tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 U
s
e
rs

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
0
 M

a
rc

h
  

7
 

1
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e
 

N
/A

 

G
o
rd

o
n
 A

v
e
n
u

e
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 S

ta
ff

 
2
1
 M

a
rc

h
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

4
 

G
o
rd

o
n
 A

v
e
n
u

e
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

2
1
 M

a
rc

h
  

(z
e
ro

) 
0
 

3
 c

a
re

rs
 p

lu
s
 1

 s
ta

ff
 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a
n
c
e
 

N
/A

 

V
a
u

g
h
a

n
 N

R
C

 S
ta

ff
 

2
6
 M

a
rc

h
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

1
0
 +

 1
 u

n
io

n
 r

e
p
 

V
a
u

g
h
a

n
 N

R
C

 u
s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 

2
6
 M

a
rc

h
  

2
6
 

3
 c

a
re

rs
 

N
/A

 

S
a
n
c
ro

ft
: 
M

a
y
a

/A
n
ja

li 
u
s
e
rs

 
2
8
 M

a
rc

h
  

2
8
 

4
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e
 

N
/A

 

S
h
a

w
 T

ru
s
t 
u
s
e
rs

 
2
 A

p
ri

l 
 

3
 

1
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e
 

N
/A

 

S
h
e

lt
e
re

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
3
 A

p
ri

l 
 

1
7
 r

e
p
s
 f

ro
m

 s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

C
a
re

rs
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 S

t 
P

e
te

r’
s
 C

h
u
rc

h
 

5
 A

p
ri

l 
 

N
/A

 
3
3
 c

a
re

rs
 

N
/A

 

T
a
n
g
le

w
o

o
d
 

8
 A

p
ri

l 
 

7
0
 a

p
p
ro

x
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
y
ro

n
 P

a
rk

 N
R

C
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

9
 A

p
ri

l 
2
2
 

3
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e
 

 

C
h
a
n

g
e
s
 N

ig
h
tc

lu
b
 

1
0
 A

p
ri

l 
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e
s
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 a

t 
C

iv
ic

 1
  

1
0
 A

p
ri

l 
 

1
 

8
 c

a
re

rs
 

N
/A

 

K
e
n
m

o
re

 N
R

C
 s

ta
ff

 
1
1
 A

p
ri

l 
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

6
 

K
e
n
m

o
re

 N
R

C
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 

1
1
 A

p
ri

l 
 

2
2
 

3
 c

a
re

rs
 

N
/A

 

S
a
n
c
ro

ft
: 
B

y
ro

n
 u

s
e
rs

 
1
5
 A

p
ri

l 
 

1
1
 

  
1
 c

a
re

r 
p

lu
s
 3

 s
ta

ff
 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a
n
c
e
 

N
/A

 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 a

t 
C

iv
ic

 1
  

1
6
 A

p
ri

l 
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

 (
z
e
ro

) 
0
 

K
in

g
s
le

y
 H

ig
h
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
2
 M

a
y
  
  

1
8
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

  

207



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

4
4

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
. 

P
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

re
s

p
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

n
a
ir

e
  
 

 A
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
1
6

4
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir

e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 t
a

b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

o
s
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 t
h
a

t 
c
h

o
s
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
is

. 
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

d
e
n

t 
A

g
e

 

D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 U
s
e

r 
1

0
7

 
6

5
%

 
U

n
d

e
r 

1
6

 
8

 
5

%
 

C
a

re
r 

2
1

 
1

2
%

 
1

6
-2

4
 

7
 

4
%

 

F
a

m
ily

 m
e
m

b
e

r 
1

7
 

1
0

%
 

2
5

-4
4

 
3

6
 

2
2

%
 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h

o
o
l 
s
tu

d
e
n

t 
1

0
 

6
%

 
4

5
-6

4
 

6
4

 
3

9
%

 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
 

3
 

2
%

 
6

5
+

 
4

2
 

2
6

%
 

A
d

v
o

c
a

te
 

1
 

1
%

 
D

id
 n

o
t 
a

n
s
w

e
r 

7
 

4
%

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

S
ta

ff
 

1
 

1
%

 
T

o
ta

l 
 

1
6

4
 

1
0

0
%

 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

 
1

 
1

%
 

 

D
id

 n
o

t 
a

n
s
w

e
r 

3
 

2
%

 
S

e
x

 

T
o

ta
l 

 
1

6
4

 
1

0
0

%
 

F
e

m
a
le

 
6

9
 

4
2

%
 

 
M

a
le

 
7

6
 

4
6

%
 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 

D
id

 n
o

t 
a

n
s
w

e
r 

1
9

 
1

2
%

 

A
s
ia

n
: 

In
d
ia

n
 

4
7

 
2

9
%

 
T

o
ta

l 
1

6
4

 
1

0
0

%
 

W
h
it
e

: 
B

ri
ti
s
h

 
4

3
 

2
6

%
 

 

B
la

c
k
: 

C
a

ri
b

b
e
a

n
 

1
2

 
8

%
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
t 

 
o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

 t
h

e
y
 c

a
re

 f
o

r 

W
h
it
e

: 
Ir

is
h

 
1

0
 

6
%

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

 
 

A
s
ia

n
: 

P
a

k
is

ta
n

i 
1

0
 

6
%

 
B

e
d

fo
rd

 
1

 
1

%
 

O
th

e
r 

A
s
ia

n
 b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 
7

 
4

%
 

B
e

d
fo

rd
 &

 V
a

u
g
h

a
n

 
1

 
1

%
 

M
ix

e
d

 :
 W

h
it
e

 a
n
d

 A
s
ia

n
 

5
 

3
%

 
B

e
n

tl
e

y
 N

R
C

 
2

0
 

1
2

%
 

A
s
ia

n
: 

S
ri

 L
a

n
k
a

n
 

2
 

1
%

 
B

e
n

tl
e

y
 N

R
C

 &
 B

y
ro

n
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
1

 
1

%
 

W
h
it
e

 a
n

d
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n

 
2

 
1

%
 

B
e

n
tl
e

y
 N

R
C

 &
 T

h
e

 B
ri

d
g

e
 

1
 

1
%

 

O
th

e
r 

Ir
a

n
ia

n
 

2
 

1
%

 
B

y
ro

n
 N

R
C

 
1

1
 

7
%

 

B
la

c
k
: 

A
fr

ic
a

n
 

2
 

1
%

 
B

y
ro

n
 N

R
C

 &
 A

n
ja

li 
1

 
1

%
 

O
th

e
r 

A
ra

b
 

1
 

1
%

 
B

y
ro

n
 N

R
C

 &
 G

o
rd

o
n

 A
v
e

n
u
e
 

1
 

1
%

 

D
id

 n
o

t 
a

n
s
w

e
r 

2
1

 
1

3
%

 
G

o
rd

o
n

 A
v
e

n
u
e

 
1

 
1

%
 

T
o

ta
l 

1
6

4
 

1
0

0
%

 
K

e
n

m
o

re
 N

R
C

 
8

 
5

%
 

 
K

e
n

m
o

re
 N

R
C

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 &

 H
a

rr
o

w
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
1

 
1

%
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 

M
ilm

a
n

s
 

2
2

 
1

3
%

 

Y
e

s
 

1
1

9
 

7
3

%
 

M
ilm

a
n

s
 N

R
C

 &
 B

y
ro

n
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
2

 
1

%
 

N
o

 
2

9
 

1
8

%
 

V
a

u
g

h
a
n

 N
R

C
 

1
2

 
7

%
 

D
id

 n
o

t 
a

n
s
w

e
r 

1
6

 
9

%
 

O
th

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

1
6

4
 

1
0

0
%

 
A

n
ja

li 
1

 
1

%
 

 
B

y
ro

n
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
1

 
1

%
 

R
e

li
g

io
n

 a
n

d
 b

e
li

e
f 

B
y
ro

n
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 &
 S

h
a

w
 

1
 

1
%

 

C
h

ri
s
ti
a

n
it
y
 (

a
ll 

d
e

n
o
m

in
a

ti
o

n
s
) 

6
0

 
3

7
%

 
B

y
ro

n
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
S

h
a

w
 &

 O
th

e
r 

1
 

1
%

 

H
in

d
u

is
m

 
4

0
 

2
4

%
 

D
o

 n
o

t 
u
s
e

 a
n

 A
d
u

lt
 D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
2

0
 

1
2

%
 

208



V
e
rs

io
n
 6

 –
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
 

4
5

 

Is
la

m
 

1
2

 
7

%
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
3

0
 

1
8

%
 

N
o

 r
e

lig
io

n
 /

 A
th

e
is

t 
7

 
4

%
 

O
th

e
r 

- 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o

lle
g
e

 
1

 
1

%
 

J
a

in
is

m
 

5
 

3
%

 
S

h
a

w
 

1
 

1
%

 

B
u

d
d

h
is

m
 

2
 

1
%

 
S

n
e

h
 C

a
re

 
2

2
 

1
3

%
 

S
ik

h
 

1
 

1
%

 
S

n
e

h
 C

a
re

 &
 A

P
D

A
 

1
 

1
%

 

D
id

 n
o

t 
a

n
s
w

e
r 

3
7

 
2

3
%

 
T

h
e

 B
ri

d
g

e
 

1
 

1
%

 
T

o
ta

l 
1

6
4

 
1

0
0

%
 

T
o

ta
l 

1
6

4
 

1
0

0
%

 

   

209



210

This page is intentionally left blank



  
1

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 E
 –

 M
a
p

 S
h

o
w

in
g

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e
 L

o
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

 
   

 

A
 

B
 

C
 

D
 

E
 

F
 G

 

H
 

V
a

u
g
h

a
n

 N
R

C
 

 K
e

n
m

o
re

 N
R

C
 

 M
ilm

a
n

s
 N

R
C

 
 G

o
rd

o
n
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 

 B
e

d
fo

rd
 H

o
u

s
e

 
 B

e
n

tl
e

y
 N

R
C

 
 B

y
ro

n
 N

R
C

 
 S

a
n

c
ro

ft
 

 

 
A

 

B
 

C
 

D
 

E
 

F
 

G
 

H
 

 

211



212

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7
Pages 213 to 302

213



214



 

 Cabinet - 18 July 2013 - 1 - 

 
 
 

CABINET   

DRAFT MINUTES 

 

18 JULY 2013 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor Thaya Idaikkadar 
   
Councillors: * Nizam Ismail 

* Krishna James 
* Zarina Khalid  
 

* Asad Omar 
* William Stoodley 
 

Non Executive 
Non Voting 
Councillors: 
 

* Susan Hall 
 

* Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

  Kam Chana 
  Paul Osborn 
  David Perry 
  Simon Williams 
 

Minute 667 
Minute 667 
Minute 667 
Minute 667 

* Denotes Member present 
 

676. Concessionary Travel - Changes to the Taxicard Scheme   
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Director of Resources, which set 
out proposed changes to the Taxicard Scheme as a result of the need to 
make savings to balance the Council’s budget for the next financial year.  The 
report showed how feedback from the consultation had shaped the changes 
put forward. 
 
The Leader of the Council, in his capacity as Portfolio Holder for Finance, 
stated that it was with a ‘heavy heart’ that he was introducing this report, 
which had been due to the need to eliminate a budget gap. However, the 
Council had to make difficult decisions and the proposal to reduce the Taxi 
Card scheme trip to 40 for all Members with effect from October 2013 was 
being proposed to make a saving of £200,000. 
 

215



 

- 2 -  Cabinet - 18 July 2013 

The Leader added that a comprehensive consultation exercise had been 
undertaken and the feedback received had been carefully analysed. The 
consultation had provided three options: 
 

• an increase in the contribution to £5.00 for every individual trip a member 
of the Taxicard scheme took representing an increase of £2.50; 

 

• a reduction in all trips to 40 a year; 
 

• a combination of the two options above. 
 
It was noted that users had, overwhelmingly, chosen the option of having the 
trips reduced to 40. The Leader added that he was mindful of the impact of 
the proposals, as he was aware that there were approximately 450 users who 
currently had been allocated 104 trips per annum, rather than the usual 52 
because they had no other travel concessions, who might be severely 
affected by the introduction of these changes mid-year when they may 
already have used more than the new allowance of 40 trips by the time of 
implementation. As a result, he proposed an additional recommendation, 
which was duly seconded by the Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Regeneration, which would provide transitional arrangements for users. 
 
The Leader of the Council informed Members that the consultation had also 
brought to attention the many failings with the existing providers and it was 
intended to lobby London Councils in this regard. A meeting date had been 
agreed where Officers, Members and representatives from Harrow 
Association of Disabled (HAD) people would put forward the findings with a 
view to ensuring a better service or the procurement of different contractors in 
the future. 
 
In response to questions from the Portfolio Holders for Environment and 
Community Safety and Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing, the Leader 
agreed that the role of the NHS in this area needed to be investigated though 
the Council’s Health and Wellbeing Board. The Leader also responded to 
additional questions from the non-voting non-Executive Cabinet Members 
about the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) which he was satisfied with, 
including that the consultation, which had received a high number of 
responses, had been thorough and inclusive. He added that the Council 
needed to save money and a way of achieving this was by providing efficient 
services. A non-voting non-Executive Member was pleased with the mitigation 
measures being proposed.  
 
An officer informed Cabinet that a clear mandate for Option 2 had been 
received as a result of the consultation undertaken. In order to mitigate the 
impact a transition scheme had been proposed by the Leader. He added that 
the consultation had provided ‘rich’ data which would be used at the meeting 
with London Councils. The report also set out answers given to specific 
comments received during the consultation.   
 

216



 

Cabinet - 18 July 2013 - 3 - 

The Divisional Director informed Members that Harrow had the highest 
number of users and the highest numbers that received Discretionary 
Freedom Passes.  
 
Having moved a further recommendation to help mitigate the impact of the 
proposals, it was 
 
RESOLVED:  That  
 
(1) the scheme changes as recommended by officers in the body of the 

report, namely the adoption of Option (2), a maximum of 40 trips per 
annum for all users with effect from 1 October 2013 be agreed; 

 
(2) the scheduled review of all existing members during 2013/14 be noted; 
 
(3) it be noted that officers would be liaising with London Councils 

regarding the issues raised by users and HAD regarding the operation 
of the Taxicard Scheme; 

 
(4) the implementation of additional trips on top of the new scheme 

allowance for the period 1 October 2013 to 31 March 2014 to support 
phasing from current scheme into new scheme be agreed; however  

 
(i) for those users who were previously allocated 104 trips, an 

additional allocation of 20 trips for the year 2013/14 only for the 
period 1 October 2013 until 31 March 2014, be agreed so long 
as no more than 52 trips had been used by 30 September 2014, 
otherwise scheme holders would be given the balance of 72 
trips minus their trip usage to 30 September 2013; 

 
(ii) for those users who were previously allocated 52 trips, an 

additional allocation of 20 trips for the year 2013/14 only for the 
period 1 October 2013 until 31 March 2014, so long as no more 
than 26 trips had been used by 30 September 2013, otherwise 
scheme holders would be given the balance of 46 trips minus 
their trip usage to 30 September 2013. 

 
(5) resolution (4) above would provide transitional arrangements and 

would ensure that all scheme members had at least some trips for the 
rest of the year and specifically to use during the winter months when 
bad weather and lack of transport facilities could lead to unnecessary 
isolation. 

 
Reason for Decision:  The changes proposed to the Taxicard Scheme had 
been shaped as a result of feedback from a wide consultation with residents 
and users of the Taxicard Scheme.  Feedback from the consultation had 
influenced both the proposals that have been put to Cabinet for consideration 
and the Equality Impact Assessment showing the impacts of these changes.   
 
To implement the changes to the Taxicard on 1 October 2013 and provide 
transitional arrangements.   
 

217



 

- 4 -  Cabinet - 18 July 2013 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  As set out in the report. 
 
Conflict of Interest relating to the matter declared by Cabinet Member / 
Dispensation Granted:  None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

218



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

18 July 2013 
 
 

Subject: 

 

Concessionary Travel – Changes to the 
Taxicard Scheme 

Key Decision:  

 

Yes  
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Tom Whiting, Corporate Director of 
Resources  

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Thaya Idaikkadar, Leader of the 
Council and Portfolio Holder for Business 
Transformation and Communications, 
Finance, Performance, Customer Service 
and Corporate Services, Property and Major 
Contracts 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix A – Taxicard Changes 
Consultation Report June 2013 
Appendix B – Taxicard Changes EqIA 
 

 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report sets out the proposed changes to the Taxicard Scheme as a result 
of the need to make savings to balance the Council’s budget for the next 
financial year.  The report shows how feedback from the consultation has 
shaped the changes put forward to elected members for discussion. 

 
 

219



2 
 

Recommendations:  
a) To agree to the scheme changes as recommended by officers in the 

body of the report; namely the adoption of Option                                                                                                           
(2) a maximum of 40 trips per annum for all users with effect from 
1/10/2013. 

b) To note the scheduled review of all existing members during 2013/14. 
c) To note Officers will be liaising with London Councils regarding the 

issues raised by users and HAD regarding the operation of the 
Taxicard Scheme. 

 
 

Reason:  (For recommendation) 
 
The changes proposed to the Taxicard Scheme have been shaped as a result 
of feedback from a wide consultation with residents and users of the Taxicard 
Scheme.  Feedback from the consultation has influenced both the proposals 
that are being put to Cabinet for consideration and the Equality Impact 
Assessment showing the impacts of these changes.   
 
The changes to the Taxicard will be implemented on the 1st of October 2013 
subject to Cabinet agreement.   
 

 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 
2. Introductory paragraph 
 
2.1 The Council has had to make savings of £22.4m to balance its budget 

for the next financial year.  The Council must make savings across all 
of its services to meet this deficit.  This report outlines the proposed 
changes to the Taxicard Scheme run in Harrow which, if taken forward 
will provide a contribution of £200k towards the overall Councils 
savings target. 

 
2.2 The proposed changes to the Taxicard Scheme have been developed 

through a twelve week consultation with residents and users of the 
service.  There was a good response to the consultation and the 
feedback has helped to shape both the proposals being put to 
members for discussion and the equality impact assessment carried 
out in relation to these changes.   A summary of the feedback from the 
consultation is included within Section 6.4 of this report and further 
detail included in the Taxicard Consultation report at Appendix A.   

 
 

220



3 
 

3. Options considered 
 
3.1 The savings to the Taxicard Scheme were agreed as part of the 

Council’s overall budget setting and commissioning process and 
therefore the consultation focussed on asking the community for ways 
in which the savings could be made.      

 
3.2 The options for change were limited as accessibility to the scheme is 

set by   Transport for London (TfL) and focuses on need in relation to 
mobility.  Therefore the Council consulted with the public on the areas 
which the Council has local flexibility to be able to change which are 
changes to trip numbers and changes to the subsidy provided to the 
customer.   

 
3.3 The options put to consultation were:   
 

1. Increasing the initial contribution the users make for each 
individual trip from £2.50 to £5.00 

 
2. Reducing all trips to 40 a year 
 
3. Combination of options 1 & 2 as follows: 

a. Increasing the contributions towards trips to £5.00 for 
year 2013/14 and then decreasing to £4.00 for year 
2014/15.   

 b. Reduce all trips to 52 a year.   

 
 

4. Background  
 
4.1 The Taxicard Scheme is a discretionary service.  The scheme operates 

across London and gives subsidised door-to-door transport for people 
who have serious difficulties with their mobility, or severe sight 
impairment and find it difficult to use public transport.   

 
4.2 The scheme is funded by both the Mayor of London and currently the 

Council as detailed in the financial section of this report at Section 9.  
The scheme is run on behalf of the Council by London Councils 
Transport and Environment Committee (TEC).   

 
4.3 All London boroughs currently participate in the Taxicard Scheme.  

Whilst the criteria to access the scheme is prescribed by Transport for 
London, the individual boroughs have the flexibility to decide the level 
of member contribution it requires and the number of trips that will be 
subsidised through the scheme.  

 
4.4 Funding by TfL is based on a formula which takes the total TfL subsidy 

for London and divides it by a combination of the total cumulative 
numbers of recipients of the Higher Rate Mobility Component of 
Disability Living Allowance (HRMCDLA) and the number of people over 
65 in the 33 London Boroughs and then multiplies the resultant figure 
by the relevant numbers for the same in Harrow. For 2013/14 the total 
subsidy to Harrow is £258k. 

221



4 
 

 
4.5 Following a report to London Councils TEC on 18/10/2012 changes 

were agreed with regards to the TfL funding contribution and boroughs 
own contributions from 2013/14. TfL reduced its contribution from 
£13.9m to a fixed sum of £9.4m plus taxi card inflation rate (assumed 
at 2.5%) or £9.635m in 2014/15. 

 
4.6 Scheme expenditure for Harrow for 2013/14 is expected to be 

approximately £450k. The difference between the £258k TfL subsidy 
and the actual expected expenditure is paid by Harrow. 

 
4.7 Currently the Harrow budget consists of £450k of which £302k was 

built into the MTFS as a saving for 2013/14 and £105k as a saving for 
2014/15. As such scheme expenditure needs to be reduced to only the 
anticipated TfL allocation to Harrow which is expected to be 
approximately £280k-£320K although this could increase to a 
maximum of £345k due to small alterations in funding allocations being 
proposed. 

 
4.8 Harrow residents took a total of 70,018 Taxicard trips in 2011/12 and 

49,701 trips last year (2012/13). A further decrease has been 
calculated by the options proposed to bring expenditure in line with 
available budgets. 

 
 
 

5. Current situation 
 
 The scheme is currently delivered as follows: 
 
5.1 Criteria for access to the Taxicard scheme  
 
5.1.1 The eligibility criteria is based on both automatic and discretionary 

criteria.  To be eligible an applicant must have a disability that is 
permanent.   
 

5.1.2 The automatic eligibility criteria is based on the following which is 
prescribed by Transport for London: 
 
- In receipt of Higher Rate Mobility Component of Disability Living 

Allowance 
- Registered as Severely Sight Impaired/Blind 
- In receipt of War Pension Mobility Supplement 
 
A person meeting the automatic eligibility criteria is not subject to 
further assessment.   

 
5.1.3 If the person does not meet the automatic criteria then they are subject 

to a further assessment where they must prove that their impairment is 
constant and causes the applicant to walk only with excessive labour 
and at an extremely slow pace or with excessive pain at all times.  By 
having discretionary criteria it allows Harrow Council to take into 
account exceptional cases.  These cases will be reviewed on a regular 
basis to ensure the person continues to meet the eligibility criteria.   

222



5 
 

 
 
 
 
5.2 How the scheme operates 
 
5.2.1 Computer Cab, contracted by Transport for London, is the major 

provider of taxis in London that work within the Taxicard Scheme.   
 
5.2.2 A Taxicard user can book a taxi through telephoning the central 

booking number or through the internet.  A Taxicard user can also pick 
up a Computer Cab taxi from the local rank or by hailing an available 
taxi.   All of the taxis within the scheme all carry the logo.  All licensed 
taxis are wheelchair accessible and the contractors’ drivers are obliged 
to take wheelchair users.    Some electric wheelchairs and scooters are 
too large to be carried by a taxi however some can be taken by certain 
types of taxi.   
 

5.2.3 The standard tariff for all London Taxi journeys is £2.50 on arrival at 
the pick-up point.  The meter can legitimately be left running for any 
time spent helping someone to, or into, the vehicle before departure.  A 
taxicard user can travel with up to 4 companions at no extra charge 
however if there is a wheelchair in the cab then there may be less room 
for companions.  A taxicard booking is treated in the same way as any 
other taxi booking. 

 
5.2.4 Taxicard users can use the scheme 365 days of the year.  Transport 

for London’s Taxi and Private Hire Directorate sets fares for journeys 
made by licensed taxis.  The metered fare shows on the meter at the 
end of the journey and works on a combination of both distance and 
time.  In some areas, not in Harrow, private hire vehicles are also 
contracted to provide the taxicard service.  Private hire vehicles will 
have a minimum charge and then a fixed amount per mile.  Where this 
is the case the contractor would be able to advise the user how much 
the trip is going to cost in advance.  The Taxicard is not a guaranteed 
service and therefore if there is not a taxi available the member will 
have to use another means of transport. 

 
5.2.5 Users of the Taxicard Scheme pay a flat fare and then the remainder of 

the trip is subsidised by the Council.  Dependant on subsidy provided 
by the Council, and the length of the trip, the member of the scheme 
may have to pay a ‘top-up’ amount if the trip cost goes beyond the flat 
rate and subsidy added together.  The table below shows the pricing as 
it applies in Harrow: 

 
 

 Member flat 
fare 

Harrow trip 
subsidy (same 
at all times) 

Fare limit 

Harrow £2.50 £8.30 £10.30 

     
 
5.2.6 The Taxicard Scheme provides trips for social purposes, for example 

going shopping, visiting friends and family and going to events. 

223



6 
 

Transport for London and London Councils are clear that the scheme is 
not suitable for time specific appointments as it is not a guaranteed 
scheme, therefore it is not recommended that members of the scheme 
use it for hospital trips.   Members in Harrow are advised, when they 
join the scheme, that the Taxicard should not be used for Hospital 
appointments.  Many other London Boroughs do monitor members 
trips and will contact individuals to advise them to cease utilising the 
scheme as a replacement for NHS Patient Transport 

 
5.2.7 Over the year 2010 a consultation was held, in partnership with Adult 

Services, on changes to Discretionary Travel which included proposals 
for change to the Discretionary Freedom Pass and changes to the 
Taxicard Scheme.  As a result of this consultation currently the scheme 
allows members to the following: 

 
- Member flat fare is £2.50 
- Maximum of 104 trips a year for members who hold no other 

concessionary passes 
- Members who also hold either a Freedom Pass or/and Blue Badge 

are only able to take a maximum of 52 trips per year.   
- Members of the Discretionary Disabled person’s Freedom Pass are 

not able to be members of the Taxicard Scheme. 
 
5.2.8 A Taxicard trip is one journey and therefore if a Taxicard member uses 

their Taxicard to go to the shops and return home this will constitute as 
two separate journeys. 

 
5.2.9 These changes were implemented on the 1/10/2011 for new scheme 

members and 1/4/2012 for existing members. 
 
 

6. Consultation 
 
6.1 The Adult Services Steering Group has continued to meet to monitor 

the implementation of changes to both Adult Services and 
Concessionary Travel.  Therefore it was felt that the most appropriate 
approach to taking forward these most recent changes to the Taxicard 
Scheme was to meet with this group, discuss the proposed changes 
and get feedback to help shape the consultation activity.  The group 
gave their views on the content of the consultation and helped to 
support the activity taken forward. 

 
6.2 The consultation for the proposed changes to the Taxicard Scheme 

was carried out over a 12 week period from 8th March, 2013 to 31st 
May, 2013.   

 
6.3 Consultation Activity   
 
6.3.1 The consultation activity was shaped to ensure that all users of the 

scheme got the opportunity to be informed about the proposed 
changes and give their view in the way that was most appropriate to 
the individuals.   

 

224



7 
 

6.3.2 People were given the opportunity to respond to the consultation by 
contacting the Council through the web, email, telephone, freepost, 
face to face.  A full consultation report is attached at Appendix A. 

 
 
6.3.3 The following activity was held: 

 

Activity Response Rate 

Consultation booklet and survey 
distributed widely and sent to all current 
Taxicard users (2,841 at the time of 
mailing)with opportunity for comment 
through freepost/telephone/email and 
web 

794 forms returned through the 
post 

Dedicated consultation web pages 97 surveys completed online 

Face to face activity including discussion 
groups and events held with users of the 
service, carers and residents  

Over 400 people spoken to about 
the changes 

 
 
6.4 Consultation Feedback 
 
6.4.1 The feedback from the consultation was collected and shared with the 

Adult Services Steering Group.  The group discussed the feedback, 
impacts of the changes and the proposals being put to Cabinet.  
Harrow Association for Disabled People provided a formal response to 
the consultation and their feedback is included (page 12) within the 
detailed Consultation Report which is attached at Appendix A. 

 
6.4.2 The response to the consultation is summarised below: 
 

Question Summary of Feedback 

1. Please tick the option 
you feel we should take 
forward to make savings 
to the scheme: 
 
Option 1 – Increase to 
£5 Members 
Contribution 
 
Option 2 – Reduce all 
members to 40 trips per 
year 
 
Option 3 – Increase to 
£5 Members 
contributions for 
2013/14 then reduce to 
£4 and 52 trips 2014/15 

The majority of people who responded 
through the web and completion of forms 
(56%) chose Option 2 – to reduce all 
members trips to 40 per year 
 
Through the face to face activity there was a 
mixed response to the options.  Some people, 
who were more able, felt that the trips could 
be reduced and this would not dramatically 
reduce their ability to go out.  However many 
people who were less mobile (often in 
wheelchairs), and had no other support felt 
strongly that the trips should not be reduced 
and no savings should be made to this 
Council Service as it provides support for the 
most vulnerable.   
 
The formal response from HAD refuses to 
select an option as they feel the service 
should be preserved with no further cuts until 
a better option is found. 

225



8 
 

The Council’s response:   
§ The scheme will provide 40 trips for all users as from 1st October 

2013.  There will be no increase in the Member flat rate.   
 

What do you think the 
effects of these changes 
will be for members of 
the Taxicard Scheme? 

The majority of people who responded 
through the web and completion of forms 
made the following key issues 
– Financial impacts if the member flat fare is 

raised would result in the scheme 
becoming prohibitively expensive and 
uneconomic, particularly for those 
members who only take short trips 

– The changes would impact greatly on 
social exclusion and would create isolation  

– People with disabilities particularly those in 
wheelchairs who are only able to go out 
using their Taxicard were concerned that 
they may not be able to go to health 
appointments 

Through the meetings the face to face 
discussions tended to focus mainly on the 
impacts and the following were the key 
concerns: 
– Members were very concerned that the 

changes would result in isolation and an 
inability to go out, particularly for those 
people who had no other support and the 
Taxicard is their only means of getting out.   

– Concern that numbers had already 
dropped at Day Centres and if further 
changes then people will not be able to 
access services 

– Concern that these changes are hitting the 
most vulnerable and should not be taken 
forward 

– Concern that funding is being cut from this 
service and money wasted elsewhere 
within the Council  

– Some members who use the Taxicard 
often very distressed at the prospect of 
losing their independence 

HADs formal response states: 
The service is necessary, and the fact that 
people use it at all indicates this, as few 
people would use such a poor value, poor 
quality, routinely discriminatory service if they 
had other options. 

2. 

The Council’s response: 
§ The member flat rate will remain the same  
§ Work with Communications to ensure that people are aware that 

changes are being made across all Council Services 
§ 72% of the respondents use their Taxicard for health appointments.   

The council will liaise with Health Services to try and improve their 
patient transport.  

226



9 
 

§ The Council will feed into other services/organisations providing 
transport to vulnerable people to ensure the best use of available 
resources for people who require these services.  

§ As stated in Section 3 the Council will ask for a meeting with 
Transport for London and London Councils and invite HAD to attend 
to raise their issues regarding the operation of the scheme. 

3. Do you have any further 
comments? 

There was some concern that the consultation 
was merely a PR exercise and the decision 
had been taken. 
 
Within this section there were considerable 
comments relating to the operation of the 
Taxicard Scheme which include the following, 
all raised by more than one member: 
– Taxis running the meter for a long time 

before the member gets in the taxi.  
Particular problem for people with severe 
mobility issues as takes longer to get to 
the Taxi 

– Different Charging/costs for the same 
journey.  Members aware the costs can be 
different dependant on traffic however 
wide variances in costs dependant on time 
of day and driver 

– Taking longer routes which in turn 
increases the cost 

– General unhelpfulness 
– Some people were very positive about the 

scheme and felt it was a great scheme and 
the Taxi Drivers were very helpful. 

 
Within the formal response from HAD there 
was concern that the service “is generally 
incompetent, condescending, discriminatory 
towards disabled users, unreliable and 
expensive (even with all the subsidies) to the 
end user…” 
 
HAD have also suggested that support should 
be provided to get the funding from Transport 
for London released to develop a more 
effective local service. 
 

 The Council’s response: 
§ People were advised, throughout the face to face activity, that the 

Council was making savings across all services and had not only cut 
funding to this scheme 

§ The Council will provide Transport for London and London Councils 
will a full breakdown of all the concerns raised throughout the 
consultation about the Taxicard Service and will request a meeting.  
HAD will be invited to attend the meeting.   

 

 

227



10 
 

 
7. Proposals for change 

 
7.1 As a result of the feedback from the consultation activity the proposals 

for change to the Taxicard Scheme include the following: 
 
 

1. The Scheme will remain ‘as is’ until 30th of September 2013 
which is: 

 
o Member flat fare £2.50 
o Maximum of 104 trips a year for members who hold no other 

concessionary passes 
o Member who also hold either a Freedom Pass or/and Blue 

Badge are only able to take a maximum of 52 trips per year. 
o Members of the Discretionary Disabled person’s Freedom 

Pass are not able to be members of the Taxicard Scheme 
 

 
2. From 1st October 2013 onwards the scheme will include: 
 

o Member flat fare £2.50 
o Maximum of 40 trips a year for all users of the Scheme 
o Members of the Discretionary Disabled Person’s Freedom 

Pass are not able to be members of the Taxicard Scheme 
 

 
8. Legal Implications 
 
8.1 In determining service provision, local authorities are obliged to 

consider their overarching statutory duties and its public law duties.   
This requires consideration of the public sector equality duty, as well as 
taking account of all relevant information, including results from 
consultation.   

 
8.2 In determining service provision, local authorities are obliged to 

consider their overarching statutory duties.  The Prioritising Needs 
guidance makes specific reference to the equality duties, stating that 
“equality should be integral to the way in which social care is prioritised 
and delivered, allowing people to enjoy quality of life and to be treated 
with dignity and respect.”  

 
8.3 Equality duties 
 
8.3.1 Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector 

equality duty.  Section149 states:- 
 

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

 
(a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 

conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
 

228



11 
 

(b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

 
(c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 
8.3.2 When making decisions in relation to service provision and in particular 

changing charging policies and eligibility criteria, the Council must take 
account of the equality duty and in particular any potential impact on 
protected groups  

8.3.3 An EqIA’s has been completed to indicate the impact of this proposal 
on particular groups and any mitigating measures that can be taken.  A 
summary of the results is included in this report and copy of the EqIA is 
included in the appendices.  The Council must also take account of 
other relevant information such as consultation results to determine 
whether there is a potential positive or negative impact on a specific 
individual or group of individuals and if so, what mitigating measures 
can be taken to address this  

 
8.3.4 When making decisions on changing service provision, the Council 

must take account of all relevant material, including financial resources, 
consultation responses and potential equality impact in order to reach a 
decision.  This report presents a number of options and the financial 
implications of these options. However, this does not preclude Cabinet 
from determining that another option is the most appropriate way 
forward.  In an extreme case, if Cabinet felt that the severity of the 
impact of the proposed options on particular groups of individuals was 
such that none of the options are appropriate and that additional 
resources are required to fund these services, then it should refer the 
matter up to full Council with a recommendation that further spending 
resources be allocated to the Directorate (either from Council reserves 
or from other budgets  

 
8.4 Consultation 
 
8.4.1 The Council undertook a stakeholder consultation exercise to ensure 

that users and other stakeholders had opportunities to comment on the 
proposals.  This included involvement of the voluntary sector and 
groups representing service users.   

 
8.4.2 Details of the consultation responses have been set out in the main 

report and copies of all consultation responses are available as 
background information. Case law has confirmed that when 
determining whether to change service provision, the Council must be 
receptive to reasonable arguments against the proposals, however this 
does not simply involve a head count of those for and against the 
proposals.  It is common for the most vociferous response to come 
from those affected by the proposals and in the case of a cut in service 
provision, for the majority of respondents to be against the proposals.    
The Council must of course take these views into account, however 
just because a majority of the respondents to consultation do not agree 
with the proposals does not mean that Cabinet is not able to decide to 
change service provision if justified for proper policy reasons.  

 

229



12 
 

 

9. Financial Implications 
 
9.1 As part of the budget setting for 2013/14, the Council reduced the Taxi 

Card scheme budget by £200k. Savings of £102k in 2013/14 and 
£105k in 2014/15 were already scheduled in the MTFS, having come 
about as part of the previous years (2012/13) budget setting process. 

 
9.2 In summary the following savings are scheduled to be made from the 

Taxi Card Scheme; 
 

MTFS Savings Value £000 Effective from 

Commissioning Process 
in 2012/13 

£200k 2013/14 

Commissioning Process 
in 2011/12 

£102k 2013/14 

 £105k 2014/15 

   

Total Savings £407k  

 

 
9.3 Scheme expenditure for Harrow for 2013/14 is expected to be 

approximately £450k. The difference between the £258k TfL subsidy 
and the actual expected expenditure will be paid by Harrow. 

 
9.4 Currently the Harrow budget consists of £450k. From the beginning of 

this current financial year the budget has reduced by £302k, due to the 
savings scheduled, leaving a budget of £148k. In 2014/15 it will reduce 
by a further £105 to £43k. 

 
9.5 The scheme will be need to be delivered within the available budget. 

As such scheme expenditure needs to be reduced to ensure it is 
capped at the anticipated TfL subsidy allocation to Harrow for 2014/15 
which is expected to be between £280k and £320k. The scheme 
changes proposed restrict expenditure within the required parameters 
of between £280k - £320k leaving the small budget balance to cater for 
growth in scheme members (likely considering Harrow’s ageing 
population) or as a contingency in case Harrow is allocated the lower 
end of the TfL subsidy. 

 
9.6 In order to ensure no overspend this year, Harrow has already 

cleansed the database and removed all existing scheme members that 
had not used the Taxi card scheme for 12 months or more. This has 
reduced members from 5200 to 2990. 

 
9.7 Additionally, Cabinet should note that all current members are 

scheduled to be reviewed in 2013/14 which is expected to remove 
around 5% of existing users; no eligible user has had a review since 
they were originally assessed, some having remained on the scheme 
for 10+ years regardless of positive improvements to their mobility. A 
three year rolling review will also be introduced which will ensure only 
those physically vulnerable and meeting the mobility criteria will in 
future be eligible, thus providing some headroom for growth and future 

230



13 
 

proofing the scheme for at least the next two years.  Implementing the 
scheme half way through the current financial year will also restrict 
expenditure and support the savings expectation in the current year. 

 

9.8 Financial Detail 

9.8.1 To arrive at the consultation options, an analysis was carried out which 
looked at 2633 members who took trips in 2012/13 and how many they 
took. The results are summarised below. 

 

  52 & 104 
52 trip members 

only 
104 trip members 

only 

  Members 
Trips 

Taken Members 
Trips 

Taken Members 
Trips 

Taken 

40 trips or 
below 2025 40839 1278 24756 747 16083 

41-52 trips     208 1849* 48 302* 

41-72 trips 333 3670*     97 1439* 

53-72 trips     28 382* 49 549# 

73-104 trips 100 5192* 1 54* 99 5138* 

TOTAL   49701   27041   22660 

 *please note these figures are the additional trips taken above 40(#or 52) by these members and 
represent the saving in trips that would occur by the reduction. For example in the first column 333 
members took 40 trips each and these (13,320 trips) are included within the 40839 on the top row so the 
additional 3670 trip taken by these members above 40 is only shown.  

  

9.8.2 However it has become apparent that only two options were really 
considered by respondents to the consultation, the option of combining 
a reduction in trips with increased member contributions proving 
unpopular. As such the two viable options, of reducing the number of 
trips to 40 or increasing member contributions to £5 are set out below. 
Officers’ recommendation to Cabinet is the adoption of Option (2), a 
reduction in trips to 40 to all scheme members. 

9.9 Option 1 - Increasing member contributions 

Increasing members contributions to £5 from the current £2.50 would 
raise approximately £125k (49,701 trips x £2.50 extra) which would 
reduce Harrows own expenditure to within the budgeted parameters. 

Increasing member contributions would impact on all 2990 
members 

 

 

231



14 
 

9.10 Option 2 - Reducing all members to 40 trips 

The total number of trips taken by all members in 12-13 was 49701 and 
to reduce all members to 40 trips would reduce this to 40,839 trips – or 
save 8,862 trips (a saving of £73.8k based on average borough fee of 
£8.30 per trip) and this is split between the 2 groups as follows: 

Of the 52 trip members 27,041 trips were taken and reducing all 
members to 40 trips would save 2,285 trips (£19.03k saving) 

Of the 104 trip members to reduce to 40 trips would save 6,577 trips 
(£54.79k saving).  

Reducing to 40 trips would impact on 433 members 

 
 

10. Performance Issues 
 
10.1 The mitigation of this negative impact is to keep service users informed 

and to carefully explain the reasons for the changes, with an emphasis 
on providing the service in an equitable and sustainable way, while 
continuing to meet the needs of the most vulnerable regarding mobility.  
Arrangements will be put in place to closely monitor the effects of the 
changes and to act upon any negative impact.  

 

11. Environmental Impact 
 
11.1 In general, the above proposals will have a minimal environmental 

impact.  The review of the Taxicard scheme may allow some 
reductions in Carbon emissions from reduced trip numbers but this 
may well be offset by scheme membership growth due to the 
population demographics in Harrow. 

 

12. Risk Management Implications 
 
12.1 The programme of changes to concessionary travel has now been 

ongoing for 3 years; the changes having commenced with 
centralisation & improvement of the application process, improved 
administration and the introduction of professional and consistent 
mobility assessments which have had positive impacts on customers 
and the most vulnerable. 

 
12.2 However, the policy changes introduced in late 2011 and early 2012 

reduced the service and the further changes proposed in this report will 
reduce the service further. The reduction in service is clearly linked to 
the savings required in the MTFS and the lower number of trips will 
potentially affect the most vulnerable detrimentally as is set out in the 
attached EqIA. 

 
12.3 Officers however intend to address some of the poor service provided 

with London Councils which may well mitigate some of the issues. We 
will also monitor impacts through public health and through complaints 
to ensure we are aware of repercussions directly associated with the 
policy. 

232



15 
 

 

13. Equalities implications 
 
13.1 The impacts of the changes have been shared with the Adult Services 

Steering group and feed in to both the body of the Cabinet Report and 
the attached EqIA attached at Appendix B. 

 
13.2 The scheme is a discretionary service that only operates in London.  

Whilst savings are being made from the scheme the Council is 
continuing to operate the scheme using funding provided by TfL to 
ensure that vulnerable residents continue to be able to access the 
scheme and receive the Taxicard subsidy. 

 
13.3 An extensive consultation was held with users, residents and voluntary 

organisations:   
 

- There were positive comments about the scheme and some people 
felt the changes would not impact their use of the scheme.  

  
13.4 The adverse impacts highlighted through the consultation raised by 

both users of the scheme and HAD impacted both the ‘age’ and 
‘disability’ protected characteristics.   The key impacts that were 
identified included: 

 
- If option 1 (to increase the cost from the users to £5 from £2.50) 

then the feedback suggested that the operation of the scheme 
would not be viable as the costs for the users would be too great. 

- Limit the ability to go out (shopping, social appointments, health 
appointments, day centres) 

- The impacts of the changes are likely to increase social isolation 
- For those people with limited mobility, no other source of support 

and reliant on the scheme would be unable to go out as often.  
- There were lots of concerns regarding the operation of the scheme   

 
13.5 As a result of this feedback Officers are recommending that Option 2 

(reducing the trips to 40) is taken forward. In addition some mitigating 
measures have been identified as follows: 

 
- The Council will work with the health sector in relation to patient 

transport services, as many trips relate to need to attend GP, clinic 
or hospital visits; 

- Work with other parts of the Council to ensure a joined up 
approach, in particular in relation to special needs transport and 
transport to day centres; 

- Contact with Dial-a-Ride has been made to ensure that other 
alternatives are considered for users of taxicards; 

- Liaise with London Councils on the quality issues raised about the 
current service; 

- Ongoing monitoring of the impact on service users. 
 
 
13.6 The EqIA also highlights the potential cumulative impact of this 

proposal alongside changes to welfare reform and other council 
services.  The purpose behind the taxicard scheme is to advance 

233



16 
 

equality of opportunity to older residents and those with a disability in 
relation to accessing social activities.  As a result of the consultation, it 
is proposed to cut the number of trips rather than increase the cost of 
the service.  Whilst the number of trips is proposed to be reduced, the 
scheme will continue to exist and officers will work with partners to 
identify alternative transport options.   

 
 

14. Corporate Priorities 
 
14.1 The retention of a reduced Discretionary Taxi Card Scheme supports 

and protects people who are most in need and as such reflects the 
aims of our corporate priorities. It also reduces expenditure and meets 
budget requirement’s which again reflects Harrow’s financial priorities. 

 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
 

Name: Simon George x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 4 July 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Sarah Wilson x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 5 July 2013 

   
 

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:  Martin Randall x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 18 June 2013 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director of 

  
Date: 24 June 2013 

  Environment and 
Enterprise 

 

234



17 
 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 
Contact:  Fern Silverio (Head of Service – Collections & Housing Benefits), 
Tel: 020-8736-6818 / email: fern.silverio@harrow.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers:   Taxicard Welcome Booklet 

                                             Taxicard letter template 

 
 
 
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 

 

 

235



236

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

M1358 / Harrow Single Assessment Pilot 

30/07/2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in 

Harrow 
 

 

 

 

Consultation Report 

 

 

 

 

June 2013 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Version Number 1.0 

 

 

 

 

 

237



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

2 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 
                 Page 
 
1. Background         3 
 
2. The Consultation Process       4 
 
3. Consultation Response       5 
 
 3.1 – 3.16 Questionnaire Response     5 
 

3.11  Workshop and Discussion Groups   11 
 
3.15  Formal Response from HAD    12 

 
 3.17  Monitoring Information     14 
 
5. Summary         19 
 
 
 
 

         
 
 
 

 

 

238



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

3 

 

 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Over a twelve week period, from 8th March, 2013 to 31st May, 2013, 

Harrow Council undertook a consultation on proposed changes to the 
Taxicard Scheme.    These changes are being proposed as a direct result 
of the need to make savings across the Council to ensure the Council is 
able to meet the budget deficit.  

 
1.2 The Taxicard scheme only operates in London and provides members 

with subsidised door-to-door (taxi) transport. Taxicards are issued free to 
people who have serious difficulties with their mobility, or a severe sight 
impairment, and find it difficult to use public transport. Harrow Council 
currently has approximately 2,990 members. 

 
1.3 The Taxicard enables members to book and make a journey either by a 

licensed cab or private hire vehicle.  The licensed cab or private hire 
vehicle must be part of the Taxicard Scheme. The user makes a 
contribution of £2.50 towards each individual trip and the Council 
subsidises the remainder of the journey up to a cap of £8.30. Therefore 
the total trip can cost up to £10.80 with the Taxicard holder paying any 
additional spend over £10.80 along with the first £2.50 (member 
contribution). An example of this would be if a trip was to cost £15 the 
member would pay the first £2.50, Harrow Council would pay the next 
£8.30 and the Taxicard holder would then pay the additional £4.20. 

 
   Taxi Trip Total cost    £15 
   Member Contribution    £2.50 
   Maximum Harrow Council Contribution  £8.30 
   Remaining Member Contribution   £4.20 
 
1.4 London Taxicard is not a statutory requirement but all London Councils 

currently participate in the scheme. However, each individual borough can 
decide on the levels of member contribution it requires and the total 
subsidy per taxi trip it will make.     

 
1.5 Each borough is also able to decide on how many taxi trips it allows its 

members to take each year. Harrow currently allows members, who do 
not have access to any other concessionary travel (Blue Badge or 
Freedom Pass), 104 trips per year whilst members who have been 
awarded another travel concession are awarded 52 trips.  

 
1.6 The Taxicard scheme is funded through London Councils by both the 

London Boroughs and by TfL.  TfL provides the majority of funding and 
would not agree for this contribution to be used locally for other Council 
transport schemes.  

 

239



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

4 

 

 
 
1.7 The Council consulted members of the Taxicard Scheme, residents and 

voluntary organisations on a number of options which will increase each 
members’ trip contribution, reduced the number of journeys permitted or is 
a combination of both. Each option is outlined below: 

 
1. Increase to £5 each individual members’ trip contribution (an 

increase of £2.50). Number of trips allocated would remain the 
same. 

2. Reduce all trips to 40 a year. 

3. A combination of the above 2: 

a, increase to £5 each individual members’ trip contribution for 
2013/14 but trips are unaffected. Then decrease to £4 per trip 
for 2014/15; and 

b, reduce all trips to 52 a year for 2014/15 
 

1.8 This remainder of this document outlines how the consultation was 
undertaken and reports the response to it. 

 
2. THE CONSULTATION PROCESS 
 
2.1 Prior to the consultation starting the Council discussed the proposed 

changes with a multi-agency Steering Group to get feedback on the 
proposals and ensure the consultation was inclusive.   The consultation 
was circulated to the Steering Group who also supported the Council to 
get feedback on the changes by holding consultation events/meetings.  

 
2.2 The consultation was publicised through a number of channels including 

mail-shot questionnaires, website responses and discussion groups and 
work shops.   

 
Taxicard Member Mail-shot 
 

2.3 All current Taxicard members (2,841 at the time of mailing) were sent a 
letter along with the consultation document and questionnaire to return. 
The questionnaire was also available to complete on the Council’s 
website and via the telephone with members discussing the questions 
with Harrow Council Officers.  

 
2.4 The total number of responses to the mail-shot through all of these 

channels was 887 and this equates to 31.2% of the total Taxicard 
membership. It should also be noted that the consultation was sent to a 
number of Taxicard holders who had either moved out of the borough or 
are now deceased and therefore the actual response rate is even higher 
than 31.2%.      

 

240



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

5 

 

Workshops and Discussion Groups 
 
2.5 Harrow Council Officers ran a number of workshops and discussion 

groups inviting all members to attend to discuss their views as well as 
attendance at community group meetings.  It is estimated that 
approximately 413 people attended and participated in this face to face 
activity.   

 
* it should be noted that many of the attendees at the workshops and 
discussion groups also completed questionnaires.    
 

 
3. CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
 Questionnaire Responses (including telephone and web responses) 
   
3.1 In total there were 887 responses to the questionnaire, the majority were 

hand written returned copies from the Taxicard mail-shot. There were 96 
responses submitted through the Council’s website and these are included 
within the 887.  Where telephone responses were received feedback was 
input directly on to the web and therefore the numbers of returns on the 
web include those forms completed over the telephone. 

 
3.2 Question 1: Please tick the option you feel we should take forward to make 

savings to the scheme. 
 

The table below shows the response from each respondent (where a 
choice was made-see footnote of table). 

 
Figure 1: Consultation Response: 

 

Option 1  
Increase to £5 

Members' 
contributions 

 
 
 

Option 2  
Reduce all 

members to 40 
trips per year 

 
 
 
 

Option 3  
Increase to £5 

Members' 
contributions 
2013/14 then 
reduce to £4 

and  
52 trips 
2014/15 

Responde
nts* 

184 487 198 

Percentag
e 

21.2% 56.0% 22.8% 

 
* 26 respondents chose more than one option. In these cases a ‘choice’ 
for the option NOT selected has been deducted. 
 
44 respondents (5% of the total respondents) chose no option at all 

241



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

6 

 

 
 
3.3 Question 2: What do you think the effect of these changes will be for 

members of the Taxicard scheme? 
 
3.4 The comments received in response to this question were mainly focused 

on members concerns with the financial impacts of the changes, proposed 
in Options 1 and 3, rather than the reduction in trips proposed in Option 2. 
There were also a reasonable proportion of comments stating that the 
Taxicard scheme would be both prohibitively expensive and also become 
uneconomic or ‘not worth it’ should the member contribution rise to £5 with 
many members stating they only make short trips.   

 
3.5 Many members expressed a concern that the changes would impact 

greatly on social exclusion, general health and well-being and create 
greater isolation. Hospital and doctor appointments would become harder 
to attend and members would not be able to go out as often.   

 
3.6 A sample of respondent comments have been extracted below: 

 
“There will be an increase in loneliness and there a 
decrease in health and well being. It will be difficult to 
maintain practicalities of life.” 
 
“It will mean less trips out for shopping and hospital 
appointments. It will mean we will be isolated and therefore 
more lonely.” 
 
“For disabled people, especially those like me who use 
electric wheelchair- Black taxi are only way to get around. If 
our trips are reduced then it will mean not going out and in 
some instances not being able to get to doctors/ dentist 
app.” 
“Any increase due to subsidy being reduced would make 
system too expensive to use other than urgent journeys.” 
 
“I feel that changes to this scheme will mean that people 
who rely on this service will start to lose their independence 
- I am fortunate to have a family who will take me where I 
need to go but not everyone has this.” 
 
“The higher charges will make it impossible for members to 
use the scheme and so severely limit their ability to get 
around. At least with the reduced number of trips that 
option, albeit much reduced, is still available.” 
 
“I find the Taxicard a wonderful scheme for me a necessity. 
The changes proposed might effect some people 

242



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

7 

 

adversely, but of necessity many will accept the changes 
reluctantly.” 
 

3.7 As all three options represented a reduction to members for the Taxicard 
scheme, either in trips or subsidy provided by the Council, it was inevitable 
that a large number of comments and responses were not supportive of 
any. However, the majority of respondents commented that to increase the 
member contribution would make the scheme either unaffordable or 
uneconomic for the shorter trips and therefore the reduction in trip 
allocation per year whilst maintaining the current £2.50 member 
contribution was more preferable. 

 
3.8 The option for the reduction in trips is also supported when considering the 

majority of Taxicard holders make fewer than 40 trips per year and this 
again was evident in respondents’ feedback. However, it should be noted 
that a small number of Taxicard holders stated they are heavily reliant on 
the Taxicard, making many more than 40 trips per year, and this is 
supported by both the analysis of Taxicard trip usage (supplied by London 
Councils) and by many of the comments and feedback provided.   

 
3.9 Question 4: Are you a member of any other concessionary Travel 

Schemes? 
 

The graph below shows what other Concessionary Travel Schemes the 
respondents are members of.  
 
Figure 2: Membership of Concessionary Travel Schemes: 

88.4

15.4

56.659.2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Blue Badge Older Persons

Freedom Pass 

Disabled

Freedom Pass 

Taxicard

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 
 
 
 

243



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

8 

 

3.10 Question 5: If you are a member of the Taxicard Scheme… what activities 
do you use it for 

 
The graph below shows what activities the Taxicard members use their 
Taxicard to attend or undertake. 
  
Figure 3: What Members use their Taxicard for: 

24.3

13.1

47.5

28.4

66.7 72.3

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Shopping Recreational

Use

Doctors

Appointment

Hospital /

Clinic

Appointment

Day Centre

Visit

Other

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

244



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

9 

 

Figure 4: Respondents Comments and Impacts: 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Changes to £5

will become

Uaffordable /

Expensive or

Uneconomic

Members will not

be able to go out

as often / travel

less

Members will be

unable to make

hospital /

medical trips

Will Increase

Isolation of

Vulnerable

People

Will Impact

negatively on

Health and Well-

being (inc social

exclusion)

Recognition that

the changes are

necessary to

ensure the

scheme conitinue

Will struggle with

less trips

Members will use

the schem less

and need to

prioritise trips or

only use in an

emergency

No options are

suitable - scheme

should stay as it

is

Will make life

harder to many /

Have a negative

impact on quality

of Life

Limited or No

Impact

No Comment

Stated

 
Respondents to the consultation questionnaire were also asked what they thought the effects of the changes to the Taxicard 
scheme would be and if they had any further comments.  These have been recorded and categorised according to the main 
aspect or concern of the comment, presented in the above graph. It should be noted that this is not a scientific poll, however 
an officer’s interpretation of the comments received. A full list of the comments can be seen in Appendix B.  
 
Ignoring where respondent have made no comment the majority of concerns were regarding the financial or expense impact of 
raising the member contribution to £5. Following this a large number of respondents’ expressed concerns that many Taxicard 
holders would not be able to go out as much, attend hospital or medical trips and the changes would have a negative impact 

245



 

Changes to the Taxicard Scheme in Harrow 

 

Consultation Report – June 2013 

10 

 

on isolation and social exclusion. A small but significant number of comments recognised the changes are necessary to ensure 
the scheme continues and are grateful for the scheme.    

246



 

 

 

11 

 

 
Workshop and Discussion Groups 
 

3.11 As well as the questionnaire a total of 12 workshops and discussions 
groups were held with various groups during both April and May 2013. 
This included meetings in the Neighbourhood Resource Centres with 
users of the service with physical disabilities, learning disabilities and older 
people.  Meetings were also held with community groups and consultation 
workshops held at Hatch End Library, Wealdstone Library and Gayton 
Library as well as workshops at the Members Lounge at Harrow Civic 
Centre. 

 
3.12 It is estimated that, over the course of all these workshops and discussion 

groups, at least 413 people were involved in discussions on the proposed 
changes. 

 
3.13 Through both the questionnaire and workshop and discussion groups 

members reported a large amount of feedback regarding the service levels 
experienced when using the Taxicard scheme, including driver conduct, 
charging, routes etc… Harrow Officers have agreed to collate all of these 
and feed this back to London Councils and this feedback has been 
summarised in section 6 of this report.   

 
3.14 The outcome and general feedback on the consultation is summarised 

below; 
 

3.14.1 Members expressed concern that by changing the scheme, 
disabled and elderly people would become more isolated and will 
not be able to go out as much. 

3.14.2 Members wanted to know why the Taxicard scheme was being 
cut when there was so much waste going on in other areas of the 
Council. This sentiment was expressed again another session 
and a member stated they would be requesting a Freedom of 
Information report in to council spend. 

3.14.3 Many members stated they would not be able to attend as many 
activities, clinic appointments, sports centres and other social 
activities with the reduced trips. 

3.14.4 The number of people attending Day Centres has already 
dropped due to previous changes to the Taxicard scheme and 
implementing any further changes would only reduce Day Centre 
numbers further. 

3.14.5 A number of respondents claimed that the consultation process 
was simply a PR exercise and that the Council had already 
decided on what option it was going to take. 

3.14.6 Members thought Harrow Council should not be cutting services 
from the most vulnerable in society. 

3.14.7 Many of the members who attended the workshops and 
discussions are vey reliant on their Taxicard for their 

247



 

 

 

12 

 

independence and quite distressed at the prospect of not being 
able to use it as often, or the rise in member contribution. 

3.14.8 Taxicard gives some independence and that is being taken away. 

 
Formal Response – Harrow Association of Disabled People 

 
3.15 A formal responses was received from Harrow Association of Disabled 

(below): 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to this taxicards 
consultation.   
 
We are deeply concerned with the intention to reduce 
taxicard entitlements further, and cannot agree that this 
should happen in any way.  We are unable, therefore to 
select an option from those offered, for the following 
reasons. 
 
When the taxicards were cut last year, unfortunately most 
people were so much more concerned about the other 
aspects of that consultation that most disabled people didn’t 
even comment on the taxicards issue.  As the reduction in 
journeys has taken effect, they have realised the full effect of 
this, and the impacts on their lives.  
 
In all my time at HAD, I can’t recall disabled people ever 
saying anything good about the taxicard service.  It is 
generally incompetent, condescending, discriminatory 
towards disabled users, unreliable, and expensive (even with 
all the subsidies) to the end user.  The cabs usually charge 
people for the time it takes to drive to their home, for the time 
it takes to get a ramp out, and then they have to pay the first 
£5 towards their trip.  This means that a trip can cost the 
client £9 or £10 just to go a couple of miles, with the London 
and Harrow Council subsidy providing additional funds to the 
companies on top of that.   
 
The majority of local mini cab firms do not cater for people 
who cannot transfer into a vehicle, or rely on heavy or 
cumbersome equipment such as power chairs.  Public 
transport is accessible for some journeys, but by no means 
all, in fact there are still more routes into and across London 
which are not accessible than which are.  Local buses are 
theoretically accessible but for many reasons, significantly 
around attitudes of drivers and fellow travellers, this is not 
the case in practice.  And even when the buses themselves 
are accessible, the route between the person’s home and 
bus stop is often not.  Many people do not have cars, and 
even when people do, they may be reliant on someone else 

248



 

 

 

13 

 

who is not always available, to drive for them, or may not be 
able to park close enough to their destination to be able to 
use a car.  The taxicab scheme, because it uses accessible 
vehicles which can go to the required destination.  Black 
cabs in theory, do resolve all those issues, for many people 
in many circumstances.  The real issues are the quality and 
cost of the service.  Transport is one of the great concerns 
for disabled people, and poor transport is one of the biggest 
barriers they face.   
 
However, I believe the scheme needs to be preserved with 
no further cuts until a better option is found.  The service is 
necessary, and the fact that people use it at all indicates this, 
as few people would use such a poor value, poor quality, 
routinely discriminatory service if they had other options.   
 
What I would like is for us to campaign for London Councils 
to release their share of the funding to be used locally, 
where I think organisations like Harrow Community 
Transport, about which I’ve only ever heard positive 
feedback, can develop and increase their variety of transport 
options vastly, with such good funding.   
 
But in the meantime, HAD believes that the council should: 
• Leave the scheme with no further reductions 
• Support us to have the funding released from London 
Councils to be used locally for a much better quality and 
more appropriate service. 

 
 

249



 

 

 

14 

 

 
Monitoring Information 

 
3.16 Do you consider yourself to have a disability according to the terms given 

in the Equality Act 2010? 
 

The Equality Act 2010 defines someone has a disability if: 
 

“they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial 
and long term effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day 
activities which would include things like using a telephone, reading a 
book or using public transport.” 

 
Figure 5: Do members consider to have a disability: 

   

Yes

89%

Prefer not to 

say

7%

No

4%

 
3.17 Of those respondents who answered yes the majority of which specified 

mobility as their main disability, although many respondents selected more 
than one category of disability. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

250



 

 

 

15 

 

Figure 6: What disability members consider to have:  

81
57 50 45

151

362

182

646

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Com
m

unic
at

io
n

M
obili

ty

Hearin
g

Phys
ic

al

Le
ar

nin
g

Visu
al

M
enta

l H
ealth

O
th

er

 

 

 

3.18 The graph below shows the age range of the respondents to the 
questionnaire. As can be seen the majority of respondents are 65 or 
above. 

 
Figure 7: Age Range of Respondents to Consultation 

4 2
30

9
49 51 47

694

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

0-15 16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+ Prefer not to

say / Not

Stated

Age Range

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 
 
3.19 The chart below now shows the actual age demographics of the total 

Taxicard membership in Harrow and 75% of all members are 65 or above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

251



 

 

 

16 

 

Figure 8: Age Range of Harrow Taxicard Membership 
1%2% 2%

4%

6%

10%

75%

0-15

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65+

 
  

 Gender 
3.20 Of the 887 responses to the consultation 63% were from females, 23% 

males and 14% did not say. Of the full Taxicard membership 69.7% are 
female and 30.3% male. 

 
 
 
 
 
3.21 Figure 9: What is you Marital Status: 

3 1
13

167
186

334

181

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Single Married Civil

partnership

Co-habiting Divorced Widow /

Widower

Prefer not to

Say

 
 
 
 
 
 

252



 

 

 

17 

 

3.22 Gender Identity 
 
Figure 10 Is your gender identity the same as the gender you were 
assigned at birth? 

7 58
84

198

540

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Female, same as

birth

Male, same as

birth

Same as birth (sex

unspecified)

Changed from birth Prefer Not to Say /

Blank

 
 

 

 

 

3.23 Figure 11: What is you Sexual Orientation: 

263

9
28

576

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Heterosexual Bisexual Other Prefer Not to Say / Blank
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

253



 

 

 

18 

 

3.24 Figure 12 What are your religion / beliefs: 

9 8 7

82
97

35385

368

7

181

7
32

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

No R
elig

io
n

Agn
ost

ic

Bah
a'

l

Buddhism

Chris
tia

nity

H
in

duism

H
um

ani
st

Isl
am

Ja
in

ism

Ju
dai

sm

Ras
ta

fa
ria

n

Si
kh

is
m

Zo
ro

ast
ria

n

Pre
fe

r n
ot t

o sa
y 

/ N
ot s

ta
te

d

O
th

er

 
 
 
 

3.25 Figure 13: what is your ethnic group 

0

50

100

150

200

250

A
si

a
n

 o
r 

A
si

a
n

 B
ri

ti
sh

A
fg

h
a

n

B
a

n
g

la
d

e
sh

i

In
d

ia
n

P
a

k
a

st
a

n
i

S
in

h
a

le
se

S
ri

 L
a

n
k

e
n

 T
a

m
il

A
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
A

si
a

n

B
la

c
k

, 
B

la
c

k
 B

ri
ti

sh

A
fr

ic
a

n

C
a

ri
b

b
e

a
n

S
o

m
a

li

A
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p

O
th

e
r 

E
th

n
ic

 G
ro

u
p

A
ra

b

C
h

in
e

se

Ir
a

n
ia

n

Ir
a

q
i

K
u

rd
is

h

Le
b

a
n

e
se

A
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p

M
ix

e
d

W
h

it
e

 a
n

d
 B

la
c

k
 A

fr
ic

a
n

W
h

it
e

 a
n

d
 B

la
c

k

W
h

it
e

 a
n

d
 A

si
a

n

A
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
M

ix
e

d

W
h

it
e

A
lb

a
n

ia
n

B
ri

ti
sh

E
n

g
li

sh

G
y

p
sy

/R
o

m
a

 T
ra

v
e

ll
e

r

Ir
is

h

Ir
is

h
 T

ra
v

e
ll

e
r

P
o

li
sh

R
o

m
a

n
ia

n

S
c

o
tt

is
h

S
e

rb
ia

n

W
e

ls
h

P
re

fe
r 

n
o

t 
to

 s
a

y
 /

 B
la

n
k

A
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
W

h
it

e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

254



 

 

 

19 

 

 
 

3.26 Figure 14: Do you have any caring responsibilities for other: 

98

583

4 96

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Yes No Someone Cares for

me

Prefer Not to Say /

Blank

 
 
 

4. SUMMARY 
 
4.1 The overall response to the consultation was extensive with 887 written 

responses and over 400 reached through workshop and discussion 
groups. It is our view that it can therefore be assured the responses and 
themes are a fair reflection of the membership’s views. 

 
4.2 When respondents were asked for the option Harrow Council should take 

forward to make savings to the scheme 56% preferred Option 2 – 
reducing all members to 40 trips per year. The remainder of responses 
was split almost equally between Option 1 – increasing member 
contribution to £5 (21.2% of respondents) and Option 3 – increasing  to 
£5 then reducing to £4 in 13-14 and 52 trips (22.8% of respondents). 

 
4.3 A small proportion of respondents (5%) did not choose any option at all. 
 
4.4 The preference for Option 2 was also widely supported in the comments 

and impacts respondents stated in their return.  As can be seen in Figure 
4 the largest number of comments was in relation to the impact or 
additional expense that raising the member contribution to £5 would 
bring. However, there were a large number of comments regarding 
members not being able to make as many trips, missing hospital 
appointments, becoming more isolated and/or socially excluded and 
those who will struggle with fewer trips. 

 

255



 

 

 

20 

 

4.5 A small proportion of comments stated Taxicard members would need to 
prioritise the trips they took whilst some recognised that changes are 
necessary to ensure the scheme can continue. 

 
4.6 The impact of both Option 1 and Option 3 would be 100% as the increase 

in members’ contribution would affect all Taxicard holders. However, 
based on recent analysis of London Council’s trip data, the impact of 
Option 2 would only be on only 433 members or approximately 15% of 
the Taxicard members who currently take more than 40 trips. 

 
4.7 Figure 3 identifies the purposes members are using their Taxicard trips 

for and the highest use is for attendance to hospital and clinic 
appointments (72.3% of members) and doctors appointments (66.7% of 
members). Originally the Taxicard scheme was introduced for social 
purposes such as going shopping, visiting friends and family and going to 
events. There are no restrictions on what the Taxicard can be used for 
however the advice of London Councils is that the scheme is not suitable 
for time specific appointments as it is not a guaranteed, and therefore it is 
not recommended to be used for hospital trips. 

 
4.8 It is not practical to impose any restrictions on the use of Taxicard for 

certain trips as these would be very difficult to police. However it is 
suggested that all members are written to inform them of the intended 
purpose of the scheme and also to inform them of alternative NHS 
Patient Transport available should they need it.  

 
 
5. COMMENTS ON LONDON TAXICARD SCHEME (for London 

Councils) 
 
5.1 The Harrow Taxicard members raised a number of issues regarding the 

Taxicard scheme through the consultation process and Harrow Council 
has agreed to record these issues and raise them with both London 
Councils and ComCab, the taxis service provider. 

 
5.2 The issues recorded below refer to general issues raised by more than 

one member. 
 

5.3 Running the Meter: Many members stated that the taxi drivers have the 
meter running for a long time before they have even got to in to the taxi. 
This is a particular issue for members that have severe mobility problems 
(majority of members) who are slower at leaving the house with some 
even stating they wait outside their house on the pavement for the taxi to 
arrive so they can get in to it quicker.  

 
5.4 Different Charging / Taxi-trip Costs for the same journey: Members 

raised concerns over the variation in costs charged for the same journey 
taken on different days and with different drivers. Members are aware 
that the charge will vary depending on the traffic conditions but do 

256



 

 

 

21 

 

experience a wide range in costs for the same journey with some 
journeys costing double what they usually would on occasions. 

 
5.5  Taking Longer Routes: Members stated taxi drivers often take 

elongated or obviously longer routes than necessary in order to increase 
the cost to the user. 

 
5.6 General Unhelpfulness: Many members reported that taxi drivers often 

appeared unwilling to assist members with mobility difficulties in to and 
out of the taxi and unwilling or unable to operate their wheelchair ramps. 
Some members reported taxi drivers to often be rude or intimidating 
when it came to charging at the end of the journey.   

 
5.7 The official feed back from HAD regarding the scheme is extracted 

below: 
 

“… I can’t recall disabled people ever saying anything good 
about the taxicard service.  It is generally incompetent, 
condescending, discriminatory towards disabled users, 
unreliable, and expensive (even with all the subsidies) to the 
end user.  The cabs usually charge people for the time it 
takes to drive to their home, for the time it takes to get a ramp 
out, ...”   

 
5.8 It should be noted, regarding HAD’s last comment, that taxi drivers are 

allowed to charge an initial £2.40 on arrival at the pick up point (which is 
the standard tariff for all London Taxi journeys and not specific to 
Taxicard). The meter can then legitimately be left running for any time 
spent helping someone to, or into, the vehicle before departure.  

  

257



258

This page is intentionally left blank



 
1

 

T
E

M
P

L
A

T
E

 2
 -

 F
u

ll
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
(E

q
IA

) 
 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

th
is

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t,

 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
th

a
t 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 E

q
IA

 E
-l
e
a

rn
in

g
 M

o
d

u
le

 a
n
d

 r
e

a
d

 t
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 o

n
 

E
q
IA

s
. 

P
le

a
s
e

 r
e
fe

r 
to

 t
h

e
s
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
y
o

u
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 f
o

rm
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

W
h
a
t 
a

re
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
?

 (
N

o
te

: 
‘p

ro
p
o

s
a

l’ 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
e

w
 p

o
lic

y
, 

p
o

lic
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
, 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
) 

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

s
 

 

W
h
ic

h
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 /
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

is
?

 

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

 

N
a

m
e

 a
n
d

 j
o

b
 t

it
le

 o
f 

le
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

F
e

rn
 S

ilv
e

ri
o

, 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

, 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

N
a

m
e

 &
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

E
q
IA

: 

B
e

rn
ie

 B
e

c
k
e

tt
, 

C
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

r 

T
e

l:
  

0
2
0

 8
4

2
4

 7
6

4
0

  
  

  
E

m
a

il:
  

b
e

rn
ie

.b
e

c
k
e

tt
@

h
a

rr
o

w
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 E
Q

IA
, 

a
ll 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u

lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 w

e
re

 g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 t
h

e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 o

n
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

g
ro

u
p

 
a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n
d
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 
T

h
e

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 

o
f 

th
e

 
A

d
u

lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

S
te

e
ri
n

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

 H
a

rr
o

w
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 P

e
o

p
le

 

(H
A

D
),

 H
a

rr
o

w
 M

e
n

c
a

p
, 

M
in

d
 i

n
 H

a
rr

o
w

, 
A

g
e

 U
K

 H
a

rr
o

w
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 C

a
re

rs
, 

U
n

io
n

s
, 

C
N

W
L
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 
H

e
a

lt
h

w
a

tc
h

, 
C

ro
s
s
ro

a
d

s
 
C

a
re

, 
N

H
S

 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
C

a
re

rs
 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

B
o

a
rd

, 
a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 U
s
e

r 
C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
. 

  

D
a

te
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t:
 

T
h

is
 E

Q
IA

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
m

o
n

th
s
, 

s
o

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
d

a
te

 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

t 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 s

ta
g
e

s
: 

• 
V

e
rs

io
n

 1
 -

 D
ra

ft
 I
n

it
ia

l 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
–

 8
.1

.1
3

  

• 
V

e
rs

io
n

 2
 -

 U
p

d
a

te
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 –

 1
3

.6
.1

3
 

• 
V

e
rs

io
n

 3
 -

 U
p

d
a

te
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 –
 1

7
.6

.1
3

 

• 
V

e
rs

io
n

 4
 –

 U
p
d

a
te

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

• 
V

e
rs

io
n

 5
 –

 U
p

d
a
te

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 T
ri
p

s
 a

t 
A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 A

 (
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 

259



 
2

 

w
it
h

in
 E

q
IA

 –
 n

o
t 

s
e

p
a
ra

te
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t)

 

• 
V

e
rs

io
n

 6
 –

 U
p
d

a
te

 w
it
h

 c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 H

A
D

 

• 
V

e
rs

io
n

 7
 –

 U
p
d

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
B

ri
e
fi
n

g
 –

 2
.7

.1
3
 

 

S
ta

g
e

 1
: 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

1
. 
W

h
a

t 
a

re
 t
h

e
 a

im
s
, 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
, 

a
n
d

 
d

e
s
ir
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
?

 
 (E

x
p

la
in

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 e

.g
. 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 /
 

re
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

d
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
ts

, 
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 e
tc

) 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 i
s
 a

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

u
b

s
id

is
e
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 i
n

 u
s
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 h
o

ld
e

rs
 m

a
k
e

 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
 i
n

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 t
a

x
is

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 

h
ir
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
, 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 a

p
p

lie
s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 e

a
c
h

 t
ri
p

. 
 T

h
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r 
o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n
d

 H
a

rr
o

w
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

  
T

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 (

T
fL

),
 i
s
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

 r
a

ta
 b

a
s
is

 d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g
 o

n
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
h

ig
h

e
r 

ra
te

 r
e

c
ip

ie
n

ts
 o

f 
D

L
A

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
6

5
. 

 F
o

r 
2

0
1
3

/1
4

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t
o

 H
a

rr
o

w
 i
s
 £

2
5

8
k
. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
o

u
tt
u

rn
 (

b
a

s
e

d
 

o
n

 5
 m

o
n

th
s
) 

is
 £

4
5

0
k
. 
  

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

to
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 t
o

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

e
re

 
ta

k
e

n
 t

o
 s

a
v
e

 £
4

0
7

k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
m

o
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t
o

 b
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e
d

 o
n

ly
 b

y
 T

fL
 g

ra
n

t,
 

a
n

d
 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 F

u
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
. 

 

A
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

o
n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

a
n
d

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
a

s
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

t 
th

e
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
  

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
tr

ip
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
e
n

ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 

- 
B

a
n

d
 A

 A
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
 w

h
o

 h
o

ld
 e

it
h
e

r 
a

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a

s
s
 o

r 
a
 B

lu
e

 B
a
d

g
e

 o
r 

b
o

th
, 
w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
ti
tl
e
d

 t
o

 a
 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 w
it
h

 a
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

5
2

 t
ri
p
s
 a

n
n
u

a
lly

. 

- 
B

a
n

d
 B

 A
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
 w

h
o

 d
o
 n

o
t 

h
o

ld
 a

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a

s
s
 o

r 
B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 e
n

ti
tl
e
d

 t
o

 a
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 
w

it
h

 a
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 a
llo

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1
0

4
 t

ri
p

s
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
. 

- 
A

p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

o
ld

 a
 D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 F

re
e

d
o

m
 P

a
s
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 e

n
ti
tl
e
d

 t
o

 a
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

. 

- 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 F

re
e

d
o
m

 P
a

s
s
 /

 T
a

x
i 
c
a

rd
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 a
n
d

 h
a

v
e

 
q
u

a
lif

ie
d
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 c

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 c

h
o

ic
e

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 o
n
e

 t
h
e
y
 w

is
h

 t
o

 r
e

ta
in

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
u

n
w

a
n

te
d

 c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
 t
o

 b
e
 c

a
n

c
e

lle
d

 b
y
 3

1
/3

/2
0

1
2

. 

T
h
e

 E
q
IA

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
s
 e

n
c
lo

s
e

d
 a

t 
A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 B

 a
n

d
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 S
ta

g
e

 2
, 
S

e
c
ti
o
n

 

260



 
3

 

6
. 

 T
h
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

c
h
e

m
e

 w
e

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

 f
o

r 
n
e

w
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 i
n

 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2

 f
o

r 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  

T
h
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 f
o

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 i
s
 p

re
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 b
y
 T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n

d
o
n

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 d
e

c
id

e
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 i
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

tr
ip

s
 

th
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b

s
id

is
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 t

h
re

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 a
ll 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

lly
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
: 

1
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
ta

x
i 
tr

ip
s
 t

o
 £

5
.0

0
 p

e
r 

tr
ip

 (
a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

£
2

.5
0

) 

2
. 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
u

s
e

rs
 t

o
 4

0
  

3
. 

A
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

 &
 2

 a
b

o
v
e

: 

a
. 

 I
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

ri
p

s
 t

o
 £

5
.0

0
 f
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

n
 d

e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

o
 

£
4

.0
0

 f
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

b
. 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

ll 
tr

ip
s
 t
o

 5
2
 a

 y
e

a
r.

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a
n
g
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 f
e

d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 E
q
IA

. 

2
. 
W

h
a

t 
fa

c
to

rs
 /

 f
o

rc
e
s
 c

o
u

ld
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

y
o

u
 f

ro
m

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e

 a
im

s
, 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
?

 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
c
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
  
 

3
. 
W

h
o

 a
re

 t
h

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
?

 W
h
o

 w
ill

 
b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l?
 F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
h
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l/
in

te
rn

a
l 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 e

tc
. 

U
s
e

rs
 o

f 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

s
  

 F
u

tu
re

 u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

s
 

 T
a

x
i 
fi
rm

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 i
f 

im
p
a

c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 u

s
a

g
e

  

 

261



 
4

 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 
it
 
w

a
s
 
ra

is
e

d
 
th

a
t 

D
a

y
 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 
m

a
y
 
b

e
 
im

p
a

c
te

d
 
a

s
 
s
o
m

e
 
o

f 
th

e
 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
to

 a
n
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 l
ia

is
in

g
 w

it
h

 A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a

re
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 o
n

 t
ra

v
e

l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 a

s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 h
a

v
e

 

a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 r

a
is

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

  
 

4
. 

Is
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t,
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
?

 I
f 

s
o

: 
 

• 
W

h
o
 a

re
 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
?
 

• 
W

h
o
 h

a
s
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

?
 

 

T
h
e

 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
th

e
 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o

f 
th

e
 
s
c
h
e

m
e

 
w

it
h

in
 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 
th

e
 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
 
a

n
d
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

  

 T
h
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 

 W
o
rk

in
g
 

c
lo

s
e

ly
 

w
it
h

 
A

d
u

lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

S
te

e
ri
n

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

a
s
 

th
is

 
g
ro

u
p

 
w

e
re

 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
 

in
 

th
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

to
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
th

a
t 

w
e

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 2
0

1
1

. 
 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 
w

ill
 

m
a

k
e

 
th

e
 

fi
n
a

l 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 
o
n

 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 

a
re

 
ta

k
e

n
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
a

n
d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
. 

4
a

. 
H

o
w

 a
re

/w
ill

 t
h

e
y
 b

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t?
 

T
h
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
. 

  
F

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 

fe
d

 i
n
to

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

to
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

. 
 

 T
h
e

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 w

e
re

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 s

h
a
p

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

. 
 A

ll 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 

w
e

re
 
g
iv

e
n

 
th

e
 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 
to

 
g
iv

e
 
th

e
ir
 
v
ie

w
 
o

n
 
th

e
 
im

p
a

c
ts

 
o
f 

th
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 
a

s
 
p
a

rt
 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
g
a

in
 a

n
d

 w
e

re
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 b

e
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 

Im
p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 b

e
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 a

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 

th
e

 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

im
p

a
c
ts

 
o
f 

th
e

 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 
a

n
d
 
p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 
b

e
in

g
 
p
u

t 
to

 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 
fo

r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

. 
 

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 C
o
u

n
c
ils

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 w

e
re

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 a
n

y
 f

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
re

la
te

s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 V
a

ri
o

u
s
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a

is
e

d
 

re
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

re
fo

re
 a

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 w

it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 

C
o

u
n

c
ils

 t
o

 g
o

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

. 

262



 
5

 

S
ta

g
e

 2
: 

M
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 /

 C
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 /
 D

a
ta

 

5
. 
W

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
?

 I
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d

a
ta

, 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

u
ll 

re
fe

re
n

c
e

s
) 

 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n
 e

a
c
h
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
).

 T
h

is
 c

a
n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
tr

a
c
k
e

r,
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
, 

fo
c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

s
, 

s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 p
ro

fi
le

s
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 p

ro
fi
le

s
, 

lo
c
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
, 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 e

tc
 

(W
h
e

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
a
ta

 o
n

 t
h

e
 n

in
e

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 
W

h
e
re

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 g
a

p
s
, 
y
o

u
 m

a
y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

is
 a

s
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

) 

A
g
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
/o

ld
e

r 

p
e

o
p

le
) 

T
h
e

 a
g
e

 r
a
n

g
e

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

0
-1

5
=

1
.1

%
, 

1
6

-2
4

=
1

.7
%

, 
2

5
-3

4
=

2
.4

%
, 

3
5

-4
4
=

3
.6

%
, 

4
5

-5
4

%
=

6
.1

%
,5

5
-6

4
=

9
.6

%
, 
6

5
+

=
7

5
.5

%
 

A
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 m
a

k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
y
 w

e
re

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

 T
h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 a

g
e

 a
s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 

0
-1

5
=

1
%

, 
1

6
-2

4
=

2
%

, 
2

5
-3

4
=

2
%

, 
3

5
-4

4
=

4
%

, 
4

5
-5

4
=

6
%

, 
5
5

-6
4

=
1

0
%

,6
5

+
=

7
5

%
. 

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
o

v
e

rl
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 a
b
o

v
e

 r
a

n
g
e

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 g
iv

e
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

im
p

a
c
t.

 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 

p
e

o
p

le
) 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 a

ll 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 a

u
to

m
a
ti
c
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri

te
ri

a
 i
s
: 

- 
In

 r
e

c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

H
ig

h
e

r 
R

a
te

 M
o

b
ili

ty
 C

o
m

p
o

n
e
n

t 
o
f 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 L
iv

in
g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 

- 
R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 a

s
 S

e
v
e

re
ly

 S
ig

h
t 

Im
p

a
ir
e

d
/B

lin
d
 

263



 
6

 

- 
In

 r
e

c
e

ip
t 

o
f 
W

a
r 

P
e
n

s
io

n
 M

o
b

ili
ty

 S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n
t 

If
 t

h
e

 p
e

rs
o

n
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

th
e

 a
u

to
m

a
ti
c
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 t
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 
a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
ta

n
t 

a
n
d

 c
a

u
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n

t 
to

 w
a

lk
 o

n
ly

 w
it
h

 e
x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 l
a

b
o

u
r 

a
n
d

 
a

t 
a
n

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 s
lo

w
 p

a
c
e

 o
r 

w
it
h

 e
x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 p

a
in

 a
t 

a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
. 
  

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 C
M

S
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e

 b
re

a
k
d
o

w
n

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

A
g
e

=
0

.2
%

, 
H

R
 A

A
 (

In
d

e
fi
n

it
e

)=
0

.9
%

, 
H

R
 A

A
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 (
F

ix
e

d
)=

0
.1

%
, 

H
R

 M
o

b
ili

ty
 (

F
ix

e
d

)=
1

.4
%

, 
H

R
 

M
o

b
ili

ty
 (

In
d

e
fi
n

it
e

)=
1

2
.1

%
, 

M
o
b

ili
ty

 –
 D

e
s
k
=

5
4

.3
%

, 
M

o
b

ili
ty

-F
u

n
c
ti
o

n
a

l=
4

%
, 

S
e

v
e

re
ly

 V
is

u
a

lly
 

Im
p
a

ir
e

d
=

2
6

.6
%

, 
W

a
r 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 M

o
b

ili
ty

=
0

.1
%

, 
U

n
k
n

o
w

n
=

0
.3

%
 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e

y
 

w
e

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  
T

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

8
9

%
=

C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

4
%

=
N

o
 

7
%

=
P

re
fe

r 
n
o

t 
to

 s
a

y
 

G
e

n
d
e

r 
R

e
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

d
a

ta
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
. 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e

y
 

w
e

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  
T

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 g

e
n

d
e

r 
id

e
n

ti
ty

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

6
1

%
=

fe
m

a
le

, 
s
a
m

e
 a

s
 b

ir
th

, 
2
2

%
=

m
a

le
, 

s
a
m

e
 a

s
 b

ir
th

, 
1
0

%
=

s
a
m

e
 a

s
 b

ir
th

 u
n

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
, 

1
%

=
c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 f

ro
m

 
b

ir
th

, 
7

%
=

p
re

fe
r 

n
o

t 
to

 s
a

y
. 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 /
 C

iv
il 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

d
a

ta
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e

y
 

w
e

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  
T

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 m

a
rr

ia
g
e

/c
iv

il 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 

2
1

%
=

s
in

g
le

, 
3

8
%

=
m

a
rr

ie
d

, 
0

.5
%

=
c
iv

il 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

0
.1

%
=

c
o

-h
a
b

it
in

g
,1

.5
=

d
iv

o
rc

e
d

, 
2

1
%

=
W

id
o

w
/W

id
o

w
e

r,
 

264



 
7

 

1
9

%
=

p
re

fe
r 

n
o

t 
to

 s
a

y
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 M
a

te
rn

it
y
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

d
a

ta
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e

y
 

w
e

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  
T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 n
o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
fi
g
u

re
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

R
a

c
e

  

T
h
e

 u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

W
h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h

=
2

5
.5

%
, 
W

h
it
e
 I

ri
s
h

=
1

.9
%

, 
W

h
it
e

 O
th

e
r=

1
.2

%
, 
A

s
ia

n
/A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 B
a

n
g
la

d
e

s
h

i=
0

.0
%

, 
A

s
ia

n
/A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 I
n

d
ia

n
=

1
9

.3
%

, 
A

s
ia

n
/A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 P
a

k
is

ta
n

i=
5

.5
%

, 
A

s
ia

n
 o

th
e

r 
=

2
.9

%
, 
B

la
c
k
/B

la
c
k
 

B
ri
ti
s
h

 A
fr

ic
a

n
 =

 0
.9

%
, 
B

la
c
k
/B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 C
a

ri
b

b
e

a
n

=
0

.3
%

, 
B

la
c
k
/B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 o
th

e
r=

0
.2

%
, 

M
ix

e
d

 
W

h
it
e
/B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b
b

e
a
n
=

0
.3

%
, 

M
ix

e
d

 W
h

it
e

/B
la

c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n

=
0
.0

%
, 

M
ix

e
d

 W
h
it
e
 a

n
d

 A
s
ia

n
=

0
.1

%
, 

M
ix

e
d

 
o

th
e

r=
0

.1
%

, 
O

th
e

r=
3

.7
%

, 
A

ra
b

=
0

.1
%

, 
d

o
 n

o
t 
w

is
h

 t
o

 s
a

y
=

3
6

.8
%

 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e

y
 

w
e

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  
T

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
/B

ri
ti
s
h

=
1

.4
%

, 
A

fg
h

a
n

=
0

.1
%

, 
In

d
ia

n
=

2
2

.2
%

, 
P

a
k
is

ta
n

i=
1

%
,S

ri
 L

a
n

k
e

n
 T

a
m

il=
2

%
,A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
=

0
.9

%
, 

B
la

c
k
, 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
=

0
.1

%
, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

=
0

.5
%

,C
a

ri
b

b
e

a
n

=
1

.7
%

,S
o
m

a
li=

0
.2

%
,A

n
y
 

o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

=
0

.5
%

,A
ra

b
-0

.1
%

, 
Ir

a
n

ia
n

=
0

.1
%

,W
h
it
e

 a
n

d
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n

=
0

.2
%

, 
W

h
it
e

 a
n

d
 B

la
c
k
 

C
a

ri
b

b
e

a
n

=
0

.2
%

,W
h
it
e

 a
n
d

 A
s
ia

n
=

0
.2

%
, 

B
ri
ti
s
h

=
2

0
.1

%
,E

n
g
lis

h
=

2
5

.3
%

,W
e

ls
h

=
0

.6
%

, 
P

re
fe

r 
n

o
t 
to

 
s
a

y
=

1
8

.8
%

, 
A

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
w

h
it
e

 b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
=

3
.7

%
 

R
e

lig
io

n
 a

n
d

 B
e

lie
f 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

d
a

ta
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
. 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e

y
 

w
e

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  
T

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
lig

io
n

/b
e

lie
f 

a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
 

4
%

=
n

o
 r

e
lig

io
n

, 
1

%
=

A
g
n

o
s
ti
c
, 

1
%

-B
u
d

d
h

is
m

, 
4

2
%

=
C

h
ri
s
ti
a

n
it
y
, 

2
1
%

=
H

in
d

u
is

m
, 
1

%
=

H
u

m
a

n
is

t,
 

4
%

=
Is

la
m

, 
4

%
=

J
a

in
is

m
, 
1

1
%

=
J
u

d
a

is
m

, 
1

%
-R

a
s
ta

fa
ri
a
n

, 
1

%
=

S
ik

h
is

m
,9

%
=

p
re

fe
r 

n
o

t 
to

 s
a

y
, 

1
%

=
o

th
e

r 

S
e

x
 /

 G
e

n
d

e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

d
a

ta
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
. 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e

y
 

265



 
8

 

w
e

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  
T

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 s

e
x
/g

e
n

d
e

r 
a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
 

F
e

m
a

le
=

6
3

%
 

M
a

le
=

2
3

%
 

P
re

fe
r 

n
o

t 
to

 s
a

y
 =

1
4

%
 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

d
a

ta
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
. 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 8

8
.4

%
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e

y
 

w
e

re
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

  
T

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
 

6
5

%
=

H
e

te
ro

s
e

x
u

a
l,
 3

%
=

B
is

e
x
u

a
l,
 1

%
=

o
th

e
r,

 3
0

%
=

p
re

fe
r 

n
o

t 
to

 s
a
y
 

6
. 

Is
 t
h

e
re

 a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
(l
o

c
a

l,
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l,
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
, 
re

p
o

rt
s
, 

m
e

d
ia

) 
d

a
ta

 s
o
u

rc
e

s
 t
h
a

t 
c
a
n

 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

is
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t?

 

In
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

is
 d

a
ta

 (
fa

c
ts

, 
fi
g
u

re
s
, 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
, 

k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
) 

in
 t

h
is

 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
. 

 N
o

n
e

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n

 S
ta

g
e

 1
, 

th
e

 E
q
IA

 f
o

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
1
 t

o
 2

0
1

2
 i
s
 a

tt
a
c
h

e
d

 a
t 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

 t
o
 t
h

is
 E

q
IA

. 

7
. 

H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
?
  

(t
h

is
 m

a
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
, 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

u
n

io
n

s
, 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 /

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 g
ro

u
p

s
, 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
) 

Y
e

s
 

x
 

N
o

 
 

N
O

T
E

: 
If
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 y

e
t,

 y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

y
o
u

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

if
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
a

ta
/i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
 a

re
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t,

 y
o

u
 m

a
y
 w

a
n

t 
to

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

m
 o

n
 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

s
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 a

ff
e

c
t 
th

e
m

. 
A

n
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
e

fo
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 E
q
IA

. 
 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e
 o

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

/
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
to

o
lk

it
 c

a
n

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 l

in
k
 b

e
lo

w
 

h
tt
p
:/
/h
a
rr
o
w
h
u
b
/i
n
fo
/2
0
0
1
9
5
/c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
/1
6
9
/c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
_
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t_
to
o
lk
it

 

W
h
o
 w

a
s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
W

h
a
t 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 

w
e

re
 u

s
e

d
?

 
W

h
a
t 
d
o

 t
h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 s

h
o

w
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
n

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
)?

 

W
h
a
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 a

re
 y

o
u

 g
o

in
g
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
?

  
T

h
is

 m
a

y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
e

v
is

in
g
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
, 

s
te

p
s
 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 a
n

y
 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t.

 

266



 
9

 

(A
ls

o
 I

n
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
s
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e

 5
) 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

w
a

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p

s
: 

- 
A

ll 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 

- 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

- 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

G
ro

u
p

s
, 

- 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 

 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 b

o
o

k
le

t 
a
n

d
 

s
u

rv
e

y
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 w
id

e
ly

 
a

n
d

 s
e

n
t 
to

 a
ll 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 u
s
e

rs
 (

2
,8

4
1

 a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 o

f 
m

a
ili

n
g
) 

w
it
h

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
fr

e
e

p
o

s
t/

te
le

p
h
o

n
e

/e
m

a
il 

a
n

d
 w

e
b

  
- 

7
9

4
 f
o

rm
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
t 

D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 w

e
b

 p
a

g
e

s
 

- 
9

7
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
lin

e
 

F
a

c
e

 t
o
 f

a
c
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 h
e

ld
 

w
it
h

 u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
c
a

re
rs

 a
n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

F
a

c
e

 t
o
 f

a
c
e

 –
 o

v
e

r 
4

0
0

 
p

e
o
p

le
 s

p
o

k
e

n
 t

o
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 s
h

a
p

e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h
e

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
is

 a
tt

a
c
h

e
d
 a

s
 A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 A

 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

R
e
p
o

rt
. 

  
 T

h
e

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

  
  

  
 

 F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
u

rv
e

y
 a

n
d

 w
e

b
 s

u
rv

e
y
  

 
 

- 
T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 c

h
o

s
e
 O

p
ti
o

n
 2

 
–

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 a
ll 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
tr

ip
s
 t

o
 4

0
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

- 
T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 m
a
n

y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
ts

 i
f 

e
it
h

e
r 

O
p

ti
o

n
 1

 o
r 

O
p

ti
o

n
 3

 w
e

re
 t

a
k
e

n
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
- 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
g
re

a
tl
y
 o

n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 
w

o
u

ld
 c

re
a

te
 i
s
o

la
ti
o

n
 

- 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 t

h
o

s
e

 i
n

 
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 o
n

ly
 a

b
le

 t
o

 g
o

 o
u

t 
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 w
e

re
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 

g
o

 t
o

 h
e

a
lt
h
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

ts
 

- 
C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 r
e

g
a
rd

in
g
 o

v
e

rr
u

n
n

in
g
 t

a
x
i 
m

e
te

rs
, 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
h
a

rg
in

g
/c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
/l
o

n
g
e

r 
ro

u
te

s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
/g

e
n
e

ra
l 
u

n
h

e
lp

fu
ln

e
s
s
 

- 
S

o
m

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 v
e

ry
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
  

 F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 f
a
c

e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e

 a
c

ti
v
it

y
 

 
- 

M
ix

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n

s
 p

u
t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 

S
o

m
e

, 
w

h
o

 w
e

re
 m

o
re

 a
b

le
, 
fe

lt
 t
h

e
 t

ri
p

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

d
ra

m
a
ti
c
a

lly
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e

ir
 

A
ll 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

w
h

o
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a

, 
w

ill
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 t
h

is
 

c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

. 
  

 A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

th
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 

to
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 

th
a

t 
O

p
ti
o
n

 2
 –

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 a

ll 
tr

ip
s
 

to
 4

0
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

a
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 
fr

o
m

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 
  

 T
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
ri
p

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 
w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
u

s
e

 
o
f 

a
ll 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 u
s
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 

in
c
lu

d
e

: 
 - 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 S
e

c
to

r 
to

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

m
a

d
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 N
H

S
 

a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

s
 f

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 t
o
 a

tt
e

n
d
 G

P
, 
C

lin
ic

 

267



 
1
0

 

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 g
o

 o
u

t.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
m

a
n

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 l
e

s
s
 

m
o

b
ile

 (
o
ft

e
n

 i
n

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir
s
),

 a
n
d

 h
a
d

 n
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

e
lt
 s

tr
o

n
g
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
ri
p

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e

 t
o
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
s
 i
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

- 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

e
re

 v
e

ry
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 

re
s
u

lt
 i
n

 i
s
o

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

n
 i
n

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 g
o

 o
u

t 
- 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
d

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 d

ro
p
p

e
d

 a
t 

D
a

y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
f 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
h

e
n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

a
b

le
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

- 
C

o
n

c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 h

it
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

n
d

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 

- 
S

o
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 v

e
ry

 d
is

tr
e

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
p

ro
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

lo
s
in

g
 

th
e

ir
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

c
e

. 
- 

A
g
a

in
 m

a
n

y
 c

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 

  F
o

rm
a

l 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e

 f
ro

m
 H

A
D

 
 T

h
e

 f
u

ll 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 i
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
in

 
re

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 t
h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 H

A
D

 i
s
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 

 
- 

D
o

 n
o

t 
a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 

- 
A

s
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 n
o

w
 r

e
a

lis
in

g
 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

s
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n

 
th

e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
 

- 
Is

s
u

e
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 
- 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 c
a

rs
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y
 d

o
 t
h

e
y
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n

 o
th

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
e

e
d
 t

h
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 

o
r 

H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

p
p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 

d
e

s
p

it
e

 t
h
e

 c
le

a
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 g

iv
e

n
 

b
y
 b

o
th

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 

a
n

d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

th
a

t 
th

is
 

c
a

rd
 i
s
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 

a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e

 u
s
e
d

 f
o

r 
ti
m

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
. 

 
 - 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 a

ls
o

 c
a

rr
y
in

g
 

o
u

t 
a

 S
p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
is

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 f

e
e

d
 i
n

 t
o
. 

 

- 
L

ia
is

e
 w

it
h

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 a

 j
o

in
e

d
 u

p
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 
to

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
  

 
 

- 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d
e

 w
it
h

 
D

ia
l-
a

-R
id

e
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 
h

o
w

 w
e

 c
a

n
 m

a
k
e

 b
e

s
t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 

- 
N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 C

lin
ic

a
l 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 

b
id

 t
o
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

H
e

a
lt
h

 f
o

r 
p

io
n

e
e

r 
s
ta

tu
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 l
o

o
k
s
 a

t 
a
 w

h
o

le
 s

y
s
te

m
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

c
a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
. 

 T
h
e

 
C

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

w
ill

 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 

268



 
1
1

 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 

- 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
 i
s
s
u

e
s
  

- 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 
p

o
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e
 b

ig
g
e

s
t 

b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

h
e

y
 f

a
c
e

 
- 

“S
c
h

e
m

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

re
s
e

rv
e

d
 w

it
h

 n
o

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
c
u

ts
 

u
n

ti
l 
a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
o
p

ti
o

n
 i
s
 f
o

u
n
d

. 
 T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
e
 i
t 

a
t 
a

ll 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h

is
, 

a
s
 

fe
w

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

o
u

ld
 u

s
e

 s
u

c
h

 a
 p

o
o

r 
v
a

lu
e

, 
p
o

o
r 

q
u

a
lit

y
, 

ro
u

ti
n

e
ly

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
f 

th
e

y
 h

a
d

 o
th

e
r 

o
p

ti
o
n

s
 

 

a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

u
p

d
a

te
d
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
b

id
.  

- 
T

o
 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 

th
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 - 
T

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t
o

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 a
n

d
 v

ia
 o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

 b
o
th

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

s
e

c
to

r 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 N

H
S

. 
  

S
ta

g
e

 3
: 

A
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 I

m
p

a
c
t 
a

n
d
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 

8
. 
W

h
a

t 
d

o
e

s
 y

o
u

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 t
e

ll 
y
o

u
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
?

 C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 s
h
o
w

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t,
 

if
 s

o
 s

ta
te

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t?

 H
o

w
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
s
 t

h
is

 t
o
 h

a
p

p
e

n
?

 H
o

w
 y

o
u

 w
ill

 m
it
ig

a
te

/r
e

m
o

v
e

 a
n

y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t?

  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 

C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 

A
d

v
e

rs
e

 
E

x
p

la
in

 w
h

a
t 

th
is

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

is
, 

h
o

w
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
t 

is
 t

o
 

h
a

p
p

e
n

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 
o
f 

im
p

a
c
t 

if
 i
t 

w
a

s
 t

o
 o

c
c
u

r.
 

W
h
a
t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 c

a
n

 y
o

u
 t

a
k
e

 t
o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 o
r 

re
d

u
c
e

 
th

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t(

s
)?

 E
.g

. 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

, 
re

s
e
a

rc
h

, 
im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 e

tc
 (

A
ls

o
 I
n

c
lu

d
e

 
th

e
s
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e

 5
) 

A
g
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
/o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o
p

le
) 

 
x
 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

o
n

c
e

s
s

io
n

a
ry

 T
ra

v
e

l 
P

o
li

c
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 
o

u
t 

in
 2

0
1
1

 –
 T

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 w
e

re
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

 a
tt
a

c
h
e

d
 a

t 
A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 A

 
th

a
t 

re
la

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 ‘
a

g
e

’ 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
: 

 

- 
Y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 f
o

r 
s
o

c
ia

lis
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

fo
r 

g
o

in
g
 t

o
 l
u

n
c
h

 c
lu

b
s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

A
ll 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

w
h

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 
c
ri
te

ri
a

, 
w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 t
h

is
 c

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

. 
  

 A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 

to
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 t

h
a

t 
O

p
ti
o

n
 2

 –
 r

e
d
u

c
in

g
 a

ll 
tr

ip
s
 t

o
 4

0
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

a
re

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

. 
  

 T
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
ri
p

s
 t

h
e

 

269



 
1
2

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
a
y
. 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

li
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
2

–
 T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 a
p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

5
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
 i
n

 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2

. 
 T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 
fr

o
m

 e
ld

e
rl
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 l
im

it
e
d

 m
o

b
ili

ty
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
u

n
h
a

p
p

y
 a

t 
th

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
 t

o
 5

2
 a

 
y
e

a
r.

  
F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
ri
p

s
 s

to
p

s
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

r 
fr

o
m

 b
e

in
g
 

a
b

le
 t
o

 g
o

 o
u

t 
m

a
in

ly
 t
o

 e
it
h
e

r 
d

o
 s

h
o
p

p
in

g
 o

r 
to

 
a

tt
e
n

d
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 o

n
 

th
e

 d
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ri
p

s
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

re
 

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
, 
a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 d

o
 s

h
o

p
p

in
g
, 

lo
s
in

g
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e

, 
u
n

a
b

le
 t
o

 g
o

 o
u

t 
a
n

d
 d

e
tr

im
e

n
ta

l 
to

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
. 

P
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

th
e

 u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 –
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 
2

,9
0
0

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
, 

th
e

 l
a

rg
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 b
e

in
g
 o

v
e

r 
6

0
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 i
t 

is
 t
h

e
 o

ld
e

r 
a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 t
h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

m
o

s
t 

im
p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
. 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 2

0
1
3

 –
 T

h
is

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 k

e
y
 

im
p

a
c
ts

: 

–
 

T
h
e

re
 w

a
s
 m

u
c
h

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e
 

ra
is

in
g
 o

f 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 c
h

o
s
e
 t

h
e

 
o

p
ti
o
n

 w
h

e
re

 t
h
e

 t
ri
p

s
 w

e
re

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
. 
  

–
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

e
re

 v
e

ry
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

tr
a

n
s
p
o
rt

 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 - 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 S

e
c
to

r 
to

 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 t

h
e

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
N

H
S

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 a

s
 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
o

 a
tt
e

n
d

 G
P

, 
C

lin
ic

 o
r 

H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 d

e
s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 c

le
a

r 
a

d
v
ic

e
 g

iv
e

n
 b

y
 b

o
th

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

n
d

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

th
a

t 
th

is
 c

a
rd

 i
s
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 u
s
e

d
 f
o

r 
ti
m

e
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
. 
 

 - 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 a

ls
o

 c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 

a
 S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 

fe
e

d
 i
n

 t
o

. 
  

 

- 
L

ia
is

e
 w

it
h

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p

 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 D

a
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
  

 
 

- 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d
e

 w
it
h

 D
ia

l-
a

-R
id

e
 t

o
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
o
w

 
w

e
 c

a
n

 m
a

k
e

 b
e

s
t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 

- 
N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

id
 t
o

 
th

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

H
e

a
lt
h

 f
o

r 
p

io
n

e
e

r 
s
ta

tu
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 l
o

o
k
s
 a

t 
a
 w

h
o

le
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 t

h
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

c
a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
 T

h
e

 
C

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 

270



 
1
3

 

re
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 i
s
o

la
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 i
n

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 g
o

 o
u

t.
  

–
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 d

ro
p

 i
n

 D
a

y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
f 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
tt

e
n
d

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 4

3
2

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 4
0

 t
ri
p

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 
(7

7
%

) 
a

re
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h
e

 a
g
e

 o
f 

6
5

. 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

u
p

d
a

te
d
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 b
id

. 
 

- 
T

o
 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e
 

is
s
u

e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 T
o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 t
h

ro
u
g
h

 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t
o

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 
a

n
d

 v
ia

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d
 

th
e

 N
H

S
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 

o
f 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 
p

e
o
p

le
) 

 
x
 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

o
n

c
e

s
s

io
n

a
ry

 T
ra

v
e

l 
P

o
li

c
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 
o

u
t 

in
 2

0
1
1

 –
 T

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 w
e

re
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

 a
tt
a

c
h
e

d
 a

t 
A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 A

 
th

a
t 

re
la

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 ‘
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
’ 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
: 

 

- 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

d
ri
v
e

 o
r 

w
h

o
 a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 

to
 u

s
e

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
o

r 
ill

n
e

s
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
; 

  

- 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e

 
B

lu
e

 B
a

d
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
u

ll 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
a

re
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 c

a
re

rs
 d

ri
v
in

g
 m

a
y
 

b
e

 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
. 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 2

0
1

3
 –

 T
h
e

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 a
g
e

 a
n
d

 i
n

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 m

u
c
h

 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a

d
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir
s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 g
o

 
o

u
t 

to
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 m
a

y
 a

ls
o

 a
ff
e

c
t 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 ‘
A

g
e

’ 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

271



 
1
4

 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

 o
th

e
r 

k
in

d
s
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g
 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n

. 
 P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 c

a
n
n

o
t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
in

to
 a

 
m

in
ic

a
b
, 

o
r 

a
 c

a
r,

 o
r 

w
h

o
 u

s
e

 a
 h

e
a

v
y
 p

o
w

e
r 

c
h

a
ir
 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
. 

W
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 f

a
c
e

 t
o
 f

a
c
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
d

 
d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 n

o
 o

th
e

r 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 w

e
re

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 v
e

ry
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

 t
o
 g

e
t 

o
u
t.

  
  

T
h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 f

e
e
lin

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 h
it
ti
n

g
 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
. 
  

T
h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 

lo
s
e

 t
h
e

ir
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

. 
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 4

3
3

 p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
in

g
 o

v
e

r 
4

0
 t

ri
p

s
 a

n
d
 

m
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

h
a

v
e

 1
0

2
 t

ri
p

s
 a

 y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 s

o
m

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

m
e

c
h
a

n
is

m
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 f
e

e
l 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 o

th
e

rs
. 

 T
h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 

c
a

n
n
o

t 
b
e

 b
ro

k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
a

ta
 o

n
 t
h

e
 u

s
a

g
e

 o
f 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
 i
s
 

a
tt

a
c
h

e
d
 a

t 
A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 A

. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
ra

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 i
n

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
, 
a

s
 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

s
t 
w

a
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 t
o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
m

a
y
 b

e
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

o
n

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

th
e
m

 a
n

d
 a

n
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d
e

n
t 
d

ri
v
e

r.
  

T
h

is
 w

ill
 a

ff
e

c
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 (

u
s
u
a

lly
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

a
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
),

 a
n

d
 i
f 

g
o

in
g
 o

u
t 

is
 a

 w
a

y
 o

f 
h
e

lp
in

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 t
o

 m
a

n
a
g
e

 
th

e
ir
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r,

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n

 m
a

y
 

b
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
ra

l 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
, 

272



 
1
5

 

c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
 u

n
s
a
fe

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 a
n
d

 
o

th
e

rs
 w

h
o

 s
h
a

re
 t
h

e
ir
 l
iv

in
g
 s

p
a

c
e

. 

C
a

re
rs

 w
h

o
 d

ri
v
e

 f
o

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

/c
h

ild
re

n
/p

a
re

n
ts

 
w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
y
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 t
h

e
 o

n
ly

 s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 
b

e
s
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

 T
h

is
 m

a
y
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

ff
e

c
t 

c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

s
e

 
lif

e
s
ty

le
s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
, 
e

.g
. 

if
 a

 p
a

re
n

t 
h

a
s
 t
o

 b
e

 f
re

e
 t

o
 p

ic
k
 u

p
 

th
e

ir
 c

h
ild

 f
ro

m
 a

 n
ig

h
t 
c
lu

b
, 

b
u

t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
w

a
n

t 
to

 
s
ta

y
 u

p
 l
a

te
 t

h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
. 

 I
f 

th
e

y
 c

a
n
n

o
t 
d

o
 t
h

is
 

th
e

ir
 c

h
ild

 m
a

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
lif

e
. 

G
e

n
d
e

r 
R

e
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
x
 

 
N

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 a
n

d
 

C
iv

il 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

x
 

 
N

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 
M

a
te

rn
it
y
 

x
 

 
N

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 

R
a

c
e

 
 

x
 

 
N

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 

R
e

lig
io

n
 o

r 
B

e
lie

f 
 

x
 

 
N

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 

S
e

x
 

 
x
 

 
N

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 

S
e

x
u

a
l 

O
ri
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 

x
 

 
N

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
ta

te
) 

x
 

 
N

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 

9
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

–
 A

re
 y

o
u

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n
y
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t?

 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 
w

h
e

n
 c

o
n

d
u

c
ti
n

g
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 

m
e

a
n

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h
e

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
. 
 

E
x

a
m

p
le

: 

A
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 S
ta

g
e

 1
.1

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 w
e

re
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

e
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
2

. 
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

o
s
e

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 4

0
 t

ri
p

s
 a

 y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 

s
h

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 4

3
3

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
h

a
t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 u

s
e

 m
o

re
 

273



 
1
6

 

A
 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

o
 f

o
u

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
p

o
lic

ie
s
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 
a

re
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
, 
d

a
y
 c

a
re

, 
a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

it
e

 f
o

r 
c
a

re
rs

 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
. 

S
m

a
ll 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 

m
a

y
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 c

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 
p

e
o
p

le
’s

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
u
b

lic
 l
if
e

. 
T

h
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
e
ff

e
c
t 
o

n
 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
, 

a
n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
, 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

in
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 t
h

is
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 
p

e
o
p

le
, 

h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 o
r 

w
id

e
n

. 
T

h
is

 m
a
y
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o
 s

p
re

a
d

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

lic
y
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
 t

o
 l
e

s
s
e

n
 t
h
e

 c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
n

y
 o

n
e

 a
re

a
. 

th
a

n
 4

0
 t

ri
p

s
 a

 y
e

a
r.

  
  
 

 S
o

m
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

W
e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 t
h

ro
u
g
h

 l
o

s
s
 

o
f 

B
e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 L

iv
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 (
D

L
A

) 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
In

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 (

P
IP

).
  
N

u
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
m

e
a

n
s
 t
e

s
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

re
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
. 

 
 T

h
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 f
o

r 
m

o
b

ili
ty

 p
a

y
m

e
n
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 w

h
e

n
 D

L
A

 b
e

c
o
m

e
s
 

P
IP

, 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 
2

5
%

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

D
L

A
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 w
ill

 
b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 a
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 t

ra
v
e

l 
b

e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
a

n
d
 y

e
t 

m
a
n

y
 o

f 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

n
o

t 
b
e

 m
o

b
ile

 e
n
o

u
g
h

 t
o
 u

s
e

 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
o

r 
fo

r 
m

a
n

y
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
. 

 W
it
h

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
ll 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
 g

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
s
o

la
te

d
 i
f 

th
e

y
 a

ls
o

 l
o

s
e

 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

s
. 

 F
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
h
o

m
e

s
, 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 m

u
c
h

 
w

o
rs

e
, 

a
s
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
s
o

la
te

d
 w

it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 t
h

e
y
 d

id
 n

o
t 

c
h

o
o

s
e

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 w

it
h

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
fa

m
ily

. 
 T

h
e

re
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 l
e

s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

y
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 o

r 
e

n
ti
re

ly
 

re
lia

n
t 

o
n

 f
a
m

ily
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
L

iv
in

g
 

F
u

n
d

 (
IL

F
) 

to
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
. 

  
 

1
0

. 
H

o
w

 d
o

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 (
P

S
E

D
),

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 h

a
v
e

 d
u

e
 

re
g
a

rd
 t

o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a

ti
o
n

, 
a
d
v
a

n
c
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
o

s
te

r 
g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
. 

 (I
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
ll 

th
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
, 
fo

r 
e

x
a
m

p
le

 l
it
e

ra
tu

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 l
a

rg
e

 p
ri
n

t,
 B

ra
ill

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
, 

fl
e

x
ib

le
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 h

o
u

rs
 f

o
r 

p
a

re
n

ts
/c

a
re

rs
, 
IT

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 D

D
A

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
e

tc
) 

E
lim

in
a

te
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

n
d
u

c
t 
p

ro
h

ib
it
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

 

A
d

v
a

n
c
e

 e
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

F
o

s
te

r 
g
o

o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

A
re

 t
h
e

re
 a

n
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 y

o
u

 c
a
n

 t
a

k
e

 
to

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 P

S
E

D
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
?

 
(L

is
t 

th
e

s
e

 h
e

re
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
m

  
in

 t
h

e
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
t 

274



 
1
7

 

S
ta

g
e

 5
) 

 

T
h
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 i
s
 a

 
d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

o
n

ly
 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n
. 

 A
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
m

e
e
t 

th
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
d

e
fi
c
it
. 

 W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
 t
o

 w
it
h

d
ra

w
 i
t’
s
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 

to
 t

h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

a
n

d
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
is

h
 t

o
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
u

n
 t

h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 

to
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
s
 a

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

u
p

o
n
 t

h
e

ir
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 
T

h
is

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h

e
m

e
. 

T
h
e

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

c
ri
te

ri
a

 i
s
 p

re
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 b
y
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 s

e
v
e

re
 

m
o

b
ili

ty
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 A
ll 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
f 

th
e

y
 m

e
e
t 

th
e

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a

. 

E
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n
d

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
b

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
a

c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 i
n

te
rp

re
te

rs
 e

tc
. 

  
 In

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 

e
n

s
u

re
d

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 a
re

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
n
d

 
a

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

T
h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

S
ta

g
e

 5
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 

1
1

. 
Is

 t
h
e

re
 a

n
y
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
r 

c
o
n

c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 m

a
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 g

ro
u
p

 b
e
in

g
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 (

p
le

a
s
e

 r
e
fe

r 
to

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 f

o
r 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

 d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

, 
h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
h

ib
it
e

d
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 E
q
u
a

lit
y
 A

c
t)

?
 

 
A

g
e

 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a

re
rs

) 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a

re
rs

) 

G
e

n
d
e

r 
R

e
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 
a

n
d

 C
iv

il 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 
M

a
te

rn
it
y
 

R
a

c
e

 
R

e
lig

io
n

 a
n

d
 

B
e

lie
f 

S
e

x
 

S
e

x
u

a
l 

O
ri
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 

Y
e

s
 

x
 

x
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
o

 
 

 
x
 

x
 

x
 

x
 

x
 

x
 

x
 

If
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

s
w

e
re

d
 "

y
e

s
" 

to
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
s
e

t 
o

u
t 

w
h

a
t 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 t
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

 Q
1
2

a
 b

e
lo

w
 -

 l
in

k
 t

h
is

 t
o
 t

h
e

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
a

n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 d
is

a
d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 a
im

s
. 
 (

Y
o

u
 a

re
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

k
 l
e

g
a

l 
a

d
v
ic

e
, 

if
 y

o
u

 a
re

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
e
d

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
m

a
y
 b

re
a

c
h

 t
h

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 o

r 
y
o

u
 a

re
 u

n
s
u

re
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
re

 i
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 j
u

s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l)
 

 If
 t

h
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

r 
d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 (
o

r 
p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

) 
b
u

t 
y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
ju

s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

is
, 

th
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
fo

r 
a

 f
in

a
l 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 d

is
a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 i
s
 

275



 
1
8

 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
  

 If
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 e
ff
e

c
ts

 t
h
a

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

ju
s
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
n
o

t 
b

e
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
, 

y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l.
  

(s
e

le
c
t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 4

) 
If

 t
h
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
c
o
n

d
u

c
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o
n

, 
y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 (

s
e

le
c
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 4

) 

S
ta

g
e

 4
: 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

1
2

. 
P

le
a

s
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 w
h

ic
h

 o
f 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

ts
 b

e
s
t 
d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

E
q
IA

 (
 ü üüü

 t
ic

k
 o

n
e

 b
o

x
 o

n
ly

) 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
 –

 N
o

 c
h

a
n
g
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
: 

w
h

e
n

 t
h
e

 E
q
IA

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
u
n

la
w

fu
l 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
o

r 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d
 a

ll 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
h

a
n
c
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

. 
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 2
 –

 M
in

o
r 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t
o

 r
e
m

o
v
e

 /
 m

it
ig

a
te

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
r 

e
n
h

a
n

c
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 E
q
IA

. 
L

is
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 y

o
u

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

 t
o
 t

a
k
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 i
n
 t

h
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
t 

S
ta

g
e
 5

 
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 3
 –

 C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 d

e
s
p

it
e

 h
a

v
in

g
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
r 

m
is

s
e

d
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e
 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
. 

In
 t

h
is

 c
a

s
e

, 
th

e
 j
u

s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 E
q
IA

 a
n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

S
E

D
 t
o

 h
a
v
e

 ‘
d

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
’.
 I

n
 

s
o

m
e
 c

a
s
e

s
, 

c
o
m

p
e

lli
n

g
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
e
d
e

d
. 

Y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

re
 a

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

n
s
 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

/o
r 

p
la

n
s
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.
  

(e
x

p
la

in
 t

h
is

 i
n

 1
2

a
 b

e
lo

w
) 

 

ü üüü
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 4
 –

 S
to

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

th
in

k
: 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
r 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 t
o
 o

n
e

 o
r 

m
o
re

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

 (
Y

o
u

 a
re

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

k
 L

e
g
a

l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
u
n

la
w

fu
l 
c
o

n
d
u

c
t 

u
n
d

e
r 

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
) 

 

1
2

a
. 
If

 y
o

u
r 

E
q
IA

 i
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 3

 o
r 

h
a

v
e

 t
ic

k
e

d
 

‘y
e

s
’ 

in
 Q

1
1

, 
e

x
p

la
in

 y
o

u
r 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 f
u

ll 
re

a
s
o

n
in

g
 t
o

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
. 

  

Im
p
a

c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 
to

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

 

S
ta

g
e

 5
: 
M

a
k
in

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 (

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

) 

1
3

. 
L

is
t 

b
e

lo
w

 a
n

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 y

o
u

 p
la

n
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t.

 T
h

is
 s

h
o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 E

q
IA

. 
 

A
re

a
 o

f 
p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
.g

. 
R

a
c
e

, 
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

D
e

s
ir
e

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
D

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

276



 
1
9

 

A
g
e

 –
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
im

p
a

c
te

d
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 ‘
a

g
e

’ 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 

a
s
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 

   

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

F
e

rn
 S

ilv
e

ri
o

 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

e
d
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 

S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

F
e

rn
 S

ilv
e

ri
o

 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

e
d
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 

S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 –
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
u
s
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 s

e
v
e

re
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 
is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 m
e
e

t 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

 
c
ri
te

ri
a

 t
o

 b
e

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

th
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 a

ll 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 

u
s
e

rs
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 t
h

a
t 

a
ff

e
c
ts

 
th

e
ir
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 
       

A
ll 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

w
h

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 
c
ri
te

ri
a

, 
w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 

re
c
e

iv
e

 t
h

is
 c

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

. 
  

 A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 

to
 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 t
h

a
t 
O

p
ti
o

n
 2

 
–

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

ll 
tr

ip
s
 t

o
 4

0
 

p
e

r 
y
e

a
r 

a
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

fr
o
m

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 
  

 T
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
ri
p

s
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 

w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 

b
e

s
t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

tr
a
n

s
p
o

rt
 

o
p

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 

u
s
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 - 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 S

e
c
to

r 
to

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
m

a
d
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 N
H

S
 

a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

s
 f

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

T
h
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
u

s
e

rs
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 
ta

x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
. 

 B
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 
o

th
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 
to

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
m

e
a
n

s
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
 

 
 

 

277



 
2
0

 

s
h

o
w

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

s
e

 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
o

 a
tt
e

n
d

 
G

P
, 

C
lin

ic
 o

r 
H

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a

p
p
o

in
tm

e
n
ts

 d
e

s
p

it
e
 

th
e

 c
le

a
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 g

iv
e

n
 

b
y
 b

o
th

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 a
n
d

 H
a

rr
o

w
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

th
a

t 
th

is
 c

a
rd

 i
s
 

fo
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
p
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
ti
m

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
a

p
p
o

in
tm

e
n
ts

. 
 

 - 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 a

ls
o

 
c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 

a
 S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 

th
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 f

e
e
d

 i
n

 
to

. 
   

- 
L

ia
is

e
 w

it
h

 A
d

u
lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 
jo

in
e

d
 u

p
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
  

 
 

- 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d
e

 
w

it
h

 D
ia

l-
a

-R
id

e
 t

o
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

w
e

 c
a

n
 m

a
k
e

 b
e

s
t 
u

s
e

 
o
f 

th
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 

278



 
2
1

 

S
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 

- 
N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 

C
lin

ic
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 

b
id

 t
o
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

H
e

a
lt
h

 f
o

r 
p

io
n

e
e

r 
s
ta

tu
s
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o

o
k
s
 a

t 
a
 

w
h

o
le

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 
to

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
c
a

re
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
 T

h
e

 
C

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

u
p

d
a

te
d
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 b

id
. 

 

- 
T

o
 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 

C
o

u
n

c
ils

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e
 

is
s
u

e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 T
o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t
o

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 
a

n
d

 v
ia

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

 

279



 
2
2

 

b
o

th
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 N

H
S

. 

 

S
ta

g
e

 6
 -

 M
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
  

T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

y
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 k
n
o

w
n

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 

it
 i
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t.

  

1
4

. 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 y
o

u
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 o

n
c
e

 t
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
?

 H
o

w
 o

ft
e

n
 w

ill
 y

o
u

 d
o

 t
h

is
?

 (
A

ls
o

 I
n

c
lu

d
e

 i
n
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
t 

S
ta

g
e

 5
) 

T
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d
 o

n
 a

 s
ix

 m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 

1
5

. 
D

o
 y

o
u

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

is
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 /

 s
e
rv

ic
e

?
 D

o
 y

o
u

 k
n
o

w
 w

h
o

 
y
o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

re
?

 
Y

e
s
 

x
 

N
o

 
 

1
6

. 
W

h
a
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
?
 (

A
ls

o
 I

n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
a

t 
S

ta
g

e
 5

) 

A
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 m
a

d
e

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

1
7

. 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
a
n

y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 b

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
, 

re
p
o

rt
e

d
 a

n
d

 
p

u
b

lic
is

e
d
?

 (
A

ls
o

 I
n

c
lu

d
e

 i
n

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
t 

S
ta

g
e
 5

) 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 

G
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 

1
8

. 
H

a
v
e

 y
o

u
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 o
r 

c
o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e

 p
o

lic
y
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t 

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
?

 I
f 

s
o

, 
p

ro
v
id

e
 

d
e

ta
ils

. 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

li
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
2
–

 T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

5
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
. 

 T
h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

s
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 f
ro

m
 e

ld
e

rl
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 l
im

it
e

d
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

u
n

h
a

p
p

y
 a

t 
th

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 T
a

x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p

s
 t

o
 5

2
 a

 y
e

a
r.

  
F

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 s
ta

te
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n

 t
ri
p

s
 s

to
p

s
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

r 
fr

o
m

 b
e

in
g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 g

o
 o

u
t 
m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 e

it
h

e
r 

d
o

 s
h

o
p
p

in
g
 o

r 
to

 a
tt
e

n
d
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

ts
. 
 T

h
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ri
p

s
 i
s
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 s
u
ff

e
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
, 
a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 d

o
 s

h
o

p
p

in
g
, 

lo
s
in

g
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e
, 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 

g
o

 o
u

t 
a

n
d
 d

e
tr

im
e

n
ta

l 
to

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
. 

T
h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 n
o

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
fo

rm
a

l 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 g

iv
e

n
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
is

 i
s
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

is
 E

q
IA

. 

280



 
2
3

 

S
ta

g
e

 7
 –

 R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 
T

h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 E

q
IA

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 a
tt
a

c
h
e

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 a
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
m

. 
 

 E
q
IA

’s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 p
u
b

lic
 o

n
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t.

 

281



 
2
4

 

1
9

. 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
 

 N
O

T
E

: 
T

h
is

 s
e

c
ti
o
n

 c
a
n

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

re
p

o
rt

s
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
y
o

u
 m

u
s
t 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 f

u
ll 

E
q
IA

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

s
 a

 b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 p

a
p
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 
m

a
k
e

rs
 (

C
a
b

in
e

t,
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
, 

C
S

B
 e

tc
) 

 Ø
 

W
h
a
t 
a

re
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 b

o
th

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 a
n

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
?

 
Ø

 
A

re
 t

h
e

re
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 o
th

e
rs

?
 

Ø
 

D
o

 y
o

u
 s

u
g
g
e

s
t 

p
ro

c
e
e

d
in

g
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 a
n

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

?
 I
f 

y
e

s
, 

w
h

a
t 

a
re

 y
o

u
r 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

is
?

 
Ø

 
W

h
a
t 
c
o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n

 a
re

 y
o

u
 a

d
v
is

in
g
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 E

q
IA

?
 

T
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 a

 d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
a
t 
o
n
ly

 o
p
e
ra

te
s
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

o
n

ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 u

s
in

g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 T

fL
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a

t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 v
a
lu

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 A
n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
: 
  

 
- 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 
fe

lt
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
th

e
ir
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 
 

  
T

h
e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

y
 b

o
th

 
u
s
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 H

A
D

 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 ‘
a
g

e
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
’ 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 
  
T

h
e
 k

e
y
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
: 

 
- 

If
 o

p
ti
o
n
 1

 (
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 £

5
 f
ro

m
 £

2
.5

0
) 

th
e
n
 

th
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 

v
ia

b
le

 a
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

o
o
 g

re
a
t.

 
- 

L
im

it
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 g

o
 o

u
t 
(s

h
o
p
p
in

g
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

, 
d
a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
) 

- 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
 

- 
F

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
im

it
e
d
 m

o
b
ili

ty
, 

n
o
 o

th
e
r 

s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

re
lia

n
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 g

o
 o

u
t 
a
s
 o

ft
e
n
. 
 

- 
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 l
o
ts

 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
  
 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
O

p
ti
o
n
 2

 
(r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
ri
p
s
 t

o
 4

0
) 

is
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
/o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 
w

h
o
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

  

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
ill

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r.
  

 
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 T

fL
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

 

282



 
2
5

 

2
0

. 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

b
e

 
p

u
b

lic
is

e
d
?

 E
.g

. 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
e

b
s
it
e

, 
in

tr
a

n
e

t,
 f

o
ru

m
s
, 
g
ro

u
p
s
 e

tc
 

T
h
e

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

. 

S
ta

g
e

 8
 -

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s

ig
n

 O
ff

 (
to

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ta

l 
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
 T

a
s

k
 G

ro
u

p
) 

T
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 E
q

IA
 n

e
e

d
s

 t
o

 b
e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

ir
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 T
a

s
k

 G
ro

u
p

 (
D

E
T

G
) 

to
 b

e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

. 

2
1

. 
W

h
ic

h
 g

ro
u

p
 o

r 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
, 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
d

 t
h

e
 

E
q
IA

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
?

  

 

 S
ig

n
e

d
: 

(L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 E

q
IA

) 
 

F
e

rn
 S

ilv
e

ri
o

 
S

ig
n

e
d

: 
(C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
D

E
T

G
) 

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

 

 D
a

te
: 

 
2

.7
.1

3
 

D
a

te
: 

0
4

.0
7

.1
3

 

 

283



284

This page is intentionally left blank



  
  
F

u
ll
 E

q
u

a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
(E

q
IA

) 
T

e
m

p
la

te
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 F
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
is

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 i
t 
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

 E
-l
e
a
rn

in
g
 M

o
d
u
le

 a
n
d
 r

e
a
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 o

n
 

E
q

IA
s
. 

P
le

a
s
e

 r
e

fe
r 

to
 t

h
e

s
e

 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
y
o

u
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 f
o

rm
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

W
h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 b
e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
?

(N
o

te
:

‘p
ro

p
o
s
a
l’

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 p
o
lic

y
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

, 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
) 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

o
li

c
y

fo
r 

C
o

n
c

e
s

s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v

e
l 

W
h
ic

h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 /
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
is

?
 

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 -

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 

N
a
m

e
 a

n
d
 j
o
b
 t

it
le

 o
f 

le
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

F
e
rn

 S
ilv

e
ri
o
 

N
a
m

e
 &

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
(s

) 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

th
e

 E
q

IA
: 

B
e
rn

ie
 B

e
c
k
e
tt
, 

A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
  

0
2
0
 8

4
2
0
 9

2
5
2
  

  
 E

m
a
il:

b
e
rn

ie
.b

e
c
k
e
tt
@

h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o
v
.u

k

A
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 

th
e
 
A

d
u
lt
 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 
S

te
e
ri
n

g
 
G

ro
u
p

 
w

h
ic

h
 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 
u
s
e
rs

, 
c
a
re

rs
, 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

N
H

S
, 

U
n
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 C

N
W

L
 

D
a

te
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t:
 

4
.4

.1
1
  

 –
 D

ra
ft
 I

n
it
ia

l 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

1
4
.6

.1
1
 –

 R
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

2
9
.7

.1
1
 –

 R
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

2
3
.8

.1
1
 –

 R
e
v
ie

w
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
fu

ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

1
9
.9

.1
1
 –

 R
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k

7
. 

1
0
.1

1
 -

 R
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

: 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

1
. 

W
h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h
e
 a

im
s
, 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ir
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

?
 

(A
ls

o
 e

x
p
la

in
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 e
.g

. 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

/ 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

d
e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p

o
s
ts

, 
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 e
tc

) 

T
h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
n
d
 f

a
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 P

o
lic

y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 p

o
lic

y
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
e

n
ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

ty
p
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l.
 

T
E

M
P

L
A

T
E

 2
 

 
1
 

285



C
h
a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

lo
s
t/
d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 F

re
e
d
o
m

 P
a

s
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

to
le

n
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

2
. 

W
h
a
t 

fa
c
to

rs
 /

 f
o
rc

e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

y
o
u
 f

ro
m

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

im
s
, 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
 

 
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
te

e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 

 
N

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 f
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

 
Id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

lly
 

3
. 

H
o

w
 d

o
e

s
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
?

P
ro

te
c
ti
n
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 

4
.

W
h
o
 a

re
 t

h
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

?
W

h
o
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l?

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l/
in

te
rn

a
l

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 e
tc

.

U
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
, 

T
a
x
ic

a
rd

 a
n
d
 F

re
e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
. 

5
. 

Is
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
?
 I

f 
s
o
:

 
W

h
o
 a

re
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

?
 

 
W

h
o
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

?

N
o
 b

u
t 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 
a
re

 s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 w
ill

 m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n

o
n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

5
A

. 
H

o
w

 a
re

/w
ill

 t
h
e
y
 b

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d

 i
n
 

th
is

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t?

A
 
S

te
e
ri
n
g
 
G

ro
u
p
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 
fr

o
m

 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

u
s
e
rs

,

c
a
re

rs
, 

N
H

S
, 

U
n
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 C

N
W

L
 w

h
ic

h
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
.

L
o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 o
f 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 p

o
lic

ie
s

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l.

S
ta

g
e
 2

: 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 /

 C
o

ll
e
c
ti

n
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 /

 D
a
ta

 

6
.

W
h
a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 (
in

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d
a
ta

, 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
)?

 L
is

t 
th

e
 m

a
in

 s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
d

a
ta

, 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 o

f 
e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

u
ll 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
) 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 e

a
c
h
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
).

 T
h
is

 c
a
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f

ro
m

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

tr
a
c
k
e
r,

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 

fo
c
u
s
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 

 
2
 

286



in
te

rv
ie

w
s
, 

s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 p
ro

fi
le

s
, 

lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
, 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 e

tc

(W
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 t

h
e
 n

in
e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 

W
h
e
re

 y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 g

a
p
s
, 

y
o
u
 m

a
y
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
is

 a
s
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
) 

A
g
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
/o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

)

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

P
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

th
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

is
a
b
le

d
 p

a
s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

 d
a
ta

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p
le

)

M
IN

D
 a

n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

 s
u
rv

e
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 c

o
u
ld

 l
o
s
e
 t

h
e
 

d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
ld

 a
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
t 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
.

G
e
n
d
e
r 

R
e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 /
 C

iv
il 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 M

a
te

rn
it
y
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 

R
a
c
e

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

P
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

th
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

is
a
b
le

d
 p

a
s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

 d
a
ta

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

R
e
lig

io
n
 a

n
d
 B

e
lie

f 
A

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 
3
 

287



S
e
x
 /

 G
e
n
d
e
r 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

S
e
x
u
a
l 
O

ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

7
. 

D
o
 y

o
u
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
lle

c
t 

a
n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
?

N
o

8
. 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l/
re

g
io

n
a
l/
n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
d
a

ta
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

if
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

d
a
ta

 o
n
 a

n
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
?

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

9
. 

H
a
v
e
 y

o
u
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

?
  

(t
h
is

 m
a
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

,
u
n
io

n
s
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 /

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

, 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

) 
Y

e
s

x
N

o

W
h
o
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
?
 

W
h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 w

e
re

 
u
s
e
d
?

W
h
a
t 

d
id

 y
o
u
 l
e
a
rn

 f
ro

m
 y

o
u
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?

W
h
a
t 

d
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o
w

 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

e
q

u
a
lit

y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

(p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
)?

 

P
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

, 
U

s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

C
a
re

rs
, 

N
H

S
, 

U
n
io

n
s
, 

S
ta

ff

P
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 I

P
S

O
S

 
M

o
ri
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
a
ll 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

c
a
re

rs
 a

p
p
ro

x
 7

0
0
0
 

F
a
c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

7
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 
P

re
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

s
e
n
t 

to
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
0
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 f

e
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f

o
rm

, 
e
m

a
il,

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 

a
n
d
 f

re
e
p
o
s
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 

F
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 

c
ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 f

u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

ra
ft
 F

a
ir
e
r 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

s
 P

o
lic

y
 t

o
 o

v
e
r 

S
o
m

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 a

n
d
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 w
ill

 
n
o
t 

b
e
 e

lig
ib

le
 i
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 i
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

h
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 
F

re
e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 e

lig
ib

le
 i
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 A

u
ti
s
m

 a
n
d
 A

s
p
e
rg

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
w

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 w

ill
 l
im

it
 

th
e
ir
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

d
ri
v
e
 o

r 
w

h
o
 a

re
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 u

s
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
ill

n
e
s
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

T
a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p
s
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

lis
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
o
r 

g
o
in

g
 t

o
 l
u
n
c
h
 c

lu
b
s
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 d

a
y

 
4
 

288



1
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 

fe
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fo
rm

s
, 

e
m

a
ils

, 
te

le
p
h
o
n
e
 a

n
d
 

fr
e

e
p

o
s
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
.

E
a
s
y
 r

e
a
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

 D
V

D
 

w
e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 i
n
 

tr
a
n
s
la

te
d
 f

o
rm

a
ts

 a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

F
a
c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 7

0
0
+

 
p
e
o
p
le

M
e
a
ls

 o
n
 W

h
e
e
ls

 S
u
rv

e
y
 

F
a
c
e
 t

o
 F

a
c
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 

m
e
a
ls

 o
n
 w

h
e
e
ls

 u
s
e
rs

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 f
o

r 
lo

s
t/

d
a

m
a

g
e

d
 F

re
e

d
o

m
 P

a
s
s
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 M

IN
D

 

in
 H

a
rr

o
w

M
IN

D
 a

n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

 s
u
rv

e
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 

c
o
u
ld

 l
o
s
e
 t

h
e
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 

F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
ld

 a
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
t 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 

w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
.

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 i
s
 a

s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
a
s
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

d
a
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
rw

h
e
lm

in
g
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

re
-c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 1

2
 w

e
e
k
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri
o
d

s
. 

W
it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
e
v
a
s
ta

ti
n
g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 

w
h
o
 u

s
e
 i
t 

a
s
 a

 l
if
e
lin

e
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

a
c
u
te

 i
s
o
la

ti
o
n
.

M
in

d
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 U
s
e
r 

G
ro

u
p
 (

H
U

G
) 

h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

 
s
u
rv

e
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 o

n
 e

a
c
h
 a

s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

d
ra

ft
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a

. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 1

3
7
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
. 

 I
n
 

s
u
m

m
a
ry

, 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
: 

 
A

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
9
0
%

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 P

a
s
s
 

w
o
u
ld

 ‘
M

a
k
e
 i
t 

m
o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
’ 
o
r

‘M
a

k
e

 i
t 

im
p
o
s
s
ib

le
’ 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 t
o

 
p
u
rs

u
e
 t

h
e
ra

p
e
u
ti
c
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
(e

g
 “

T
o
 p

u
rs

u
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

T
o

 t
a

k
e
 u

p
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d
/o

r 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

T
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 w
it
h
 f

ri
e
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ily
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

”)
 

 
O

f 
th

o
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

d
id

 n
o
t 

re
p
o
rt

 a
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t,
 4

%
 d

id
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

 
D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 P
a
s
s
 a

n
d
 3

 o
th

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 

m
is

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t

h
is

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t
h
e
ir
 o

th
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 a
n
 

 
5
 

289



n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t,
 f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 “
It

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 h

a
v
e

 a
 f

re
e

d
o

m
p
a
s
s
 t

o
 g

e
t 

o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
fe

e
l 
is

o
la

te
d

.”
D

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 

 
9
9
%

 s
e
lf
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 ‘
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

’ 

 
5

6
%

 f
e

m
a

le
, 

4
4

%
 m

a
le

 
6
1
%

 W
h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
, 

2
9
%

 A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h
, 

8
%

 B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
, 

2
%

 M
ix

e
d
 p

a
re

n
ta

g
e
 

 
9
%

 2
1
-3

5
, 

4
2
%

 3
5
-5

0
, 

3
7
%

 5
1
-6

5
, 

1
0
%

 6
6
+

 

N
O

T
E

: 
If
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 y

e
t,
 y

o
u
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

if
 y

o
u
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
n
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
if
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

d
a
ta

/i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
n
y
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
 a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t,
 y

o
u
 m

a
y
 w

a
n
t 

to
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
m

 o
n
 y

o
u
r

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 a

ff
e
c
t 

th
e
m

. 
A

n
y
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
e
fo

re
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 E

q
IA

.
G

u
id

a
n

c
e
 o

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

/c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i

n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
to

o
lk

it
 c

a
n

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 l

in
k
 b

e
lo

w
h
tt
p
:/
/h

a
rr

o
w

h
u
b
/i
n
fo

/2
0
0
1
9
5
/c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
/1

6
9
/c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
_
in

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t_

to
o
lk

it

1
0
. 

If
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
y
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
x
p
la

in
 w

h
y
?
 

N
/A

S
ta

g
e
 3

: 
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

a
n

d
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

1
1
. 

W
h
a
t 

d
o
e
s
 y

o
u
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
ll 

y
o
u
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
?
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l

im
p
a
c
t,
 i
f 

s
o
 s

ta
te

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 o

r 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t?

 H
o
w

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
s
 t

h
is

 t
o
 h

a
p
p
e
n
?
 H

o
w

 y
o
u
 w

ill
 m

it
ig

a
te

/r
e
m

o
v
e
 a

n
y
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t?

 

H
o
w

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
s
 t

h
is

 t
o
 h

a
p
p
e
n
?
 H

o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 m

it
ig

a
te

/r
e

m
o

v
e

 a
n

y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t?

P
ro

te
c
te

d
C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c

P
o
s
it
iv

e
A

d
v
e
rs

e
E

x
p
la

in
 w

h
a
t 

th
is

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

is
, 

h
o
w

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
t 

is
 t

o
 

h
a
p
p
e
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

im
p

a
c
t 

if
 i
t 

w
a

s
 t

o
 o

c
c
u

r.
W

h
a
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 c

a
n
 y

o
u
 t

a
k
e
 t

o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 o
r 

re
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t(

s
)?

 E
.g

.
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
, 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

e
q
u
a
lit

y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 e

tc
 (

A
ls

o
 I

n
c
lu

d
e
 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e
 5

)

A
g
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
/o

ld
e

r
p
e
o
p
le

)

x

U
s
e
rs

 o
f 

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
e
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
a
b
le

 a
g
e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 i
f 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 E

lig
ib

ili
ty

 C
ri
te

ri
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 M

IN
D

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 A
c
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri

o
d
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 m

o
s
t 

n
e
e
d
 a

re
 

e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 

 
6
 

290



Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

lis
in

g
 i
n
 

th
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
o
r 

g
o
in

g
 t

o
 l
u
n
c
h
 

c
lu

b
s
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

a
x
ic

a
rd

 u
s
a
g
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 m

o
re

 t
ri
p
s
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 

o
f 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p
le

)

x

U
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
e
s
 w

h
o
 

d
o
 n

o
t 

fa
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 P

a
s
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 i
f 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

e
lig

ib
le

.

P
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e
 B

lu
e
 

B
a
d
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 f

u
ll 

T
a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
re

 r
e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 c

a
re

rs
 d

ri
v
in

g
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p
s
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 E

lig
ib

ili
ty

 C
ri
te

ri
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 M

IN
D

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 A
c
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri

o
d
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 m

o
s
t 

n
e
e
d
 a

re
 

e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

ls
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
B

lu
e
 B

a
d
g
e
 o

r 
F

re
e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 

G
e
n
d
e
r

R
e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t

M
a
rr

ia
g
e
 a

n
d
 

C
iv

il 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

M
a

te
rn

it
y

R
a
c
e

R
e

lig
io

n
 o

r 
B

e
lie

f 

S
e

x

S
e
x
u
a
l

O
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 
7
 

291



O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e
 

s
ta

te
)

X
x
x

  
  

x
 

  
  

x
 

P
e
o
p

le
w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

h
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

h
a
v
e
 a

 D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 P
a
s
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

fa
ll 

w
it
h
in

 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

 

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 P
a
s
s
 i
n

 t
h
e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

P
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 A

u
ti
s
m

 a
n
d
 A

s
p
e
rg

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

th
a
t 

n
e
w

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 w

ill
 l
im

it
 t

h
e
ir
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 o
p
ti
o
n
 

C
h
a
rg

in
g
 f

o
r 

lo
s
t/
d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 f

re
e
d
o
m

 p
a
s
s
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 

im
p
a
c
t 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
w

 

in
c
o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 P
a
s
s
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o

t 

fa
ll

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 p

rp
o

s
e
d

 c
re

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 E

lig
ib

ili
ty

 C
ri
te

ri
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 M

IN
D

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 A
c
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri

o
d
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 m

o
s
t 

n
e
e
d
 a

re
 

e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h

 A
u
ti
s
m

 a
n
d
 A

s
p
e
rg

e
rs

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

fo
r 

a
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

re
e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 

1
2
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

–
 A

re
 y

o
u
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
n
y
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t?

 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
w

h
e
n
 c

o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 
m

e
a
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d
 t

h
e

 c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
.

E
x
a
m

p
le

:
A

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 f

o
u
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

p
o
lic

ie
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e

a
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

, 
d
a
y
 c

a
re

, 
re

s
p
it
e
 f

o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
S

m
a
ll 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 m

a
y
 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
b
u
t 

th
e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 c

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

e
ff
e
c
t 

o
n
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 l
if
e
. 

T
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
e
ff
e
c
t 

o
n
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
o
f 

a
ll 

th
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

, 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
, 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

to
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

in
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 t

h
is

 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

r 
w

id
e
n
. 

T
h
is

 m
a
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
 s

p
re

a
d
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 t
o
 l
e
s
s
e
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

n
y
 o

n
e
 a

re
a
. 

A
d

u
lt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i

s
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

a
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 P

o
li
c
y
, 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
, 

C
o

n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

M
e
a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e
ls

.

F
o

r 
u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 o
n

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
re

 m
a
y
 w

e
ll
 b

e
 a

 c
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c

t 
i.

e
. 

if
 s

o
m

e
b

o
d

y
 a

tt
e

n
d

s
 a

 d
a
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
, 

u
s
e
s
 a

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

F
re

e
d

o
m

 P
a
s
s
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
a
c
k
a
g

e
, 

fo
ll
o

w
in

g
 a

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
th

e
y
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
a
t 

c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g

e
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e
rg

o
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

F
re

e
d

o
m

 P
a

s
s

.

T
h

e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

c
o

u
ld

 a
ff

e
c
t 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 f

ro
m

 a
ll

 C
li
e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
s
 u

s
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
 C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
:

P
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

E
ld

e
rl

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 

 
8
 

292



T
h

e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 C

o
n

c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 T
ra

v
e

l 
c

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 a
ff

e
c

t 
n

o
n

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

A
d

u
lt

 C
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 m

e
n

ta
l

h
e
a
lt

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 T
a
x
ic

a
rd

. 

1
3
. 

H
o
w

 d
o
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 (
P

S
E

D
),

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 h

a
v
e
 d

u
e
 

re
g
a
rd

 t
o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o
o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g

ro
u

p
s
.

(I
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
th

e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 l
a
rg

e
 p

ri
n
t,
 B

ra
ill

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
, 

fl
e
x
ib

le
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
, 

IT
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 D

D
A

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

e
tc

) 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 G
ro

u
p

 
E

lim
in

a
te

 u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

, 
h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

p
ro

h
ib

it
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0
1
0

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 
fr

o
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s

F
o
s
te

r 
g
o
o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 

b
e

tw
e
e
n
 p

e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s

W
h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
 y

o
u
 t

a
k
e
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

?
 (

A
ls

o
in

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e
 5

)

A
g
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
/o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

)

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

T
a
x
i 
c
a
rd

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 
tr

a
v
e
l 
o
n
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 b

a
s
is

 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

h
a
s
 a

llo
w

e
d
 u

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n
 

th
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 t

h
e
ir
 

v
ie

w
s

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

re
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

h
o
w

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
a
s
s
e
s

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
c
a
re

rs
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
p
e
o
p
le

)

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 
tr

a
v
e
l 
o
n
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 b

a
s
is

 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

h
a
s
 a

llo
w

e
d
 u

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n
 

th
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 t

h
e
ir
 

v
ie

w
s

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

re
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

h
o
w

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
a
s
s
e
s
. 

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

 
9
 

293



m
a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

fo
rm

a
ts

.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 n

e
w

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
rm

 
fo

r 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 

M
IN

D
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
c
ti
o
n
 

g
ro

u
p

.

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 t

ra
in

e
d
 i
n
 

h
o
w

 t
o
 u

s
e
 n

e
w

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

fo
rm

 a
n
d
 a

p
p
ly

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 

T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 a
p
p
ly

 t
o
 b

o
th

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
. 

G
e
n
d
e
r

R
e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 k

e
p
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

M
a
rr

ia
g
e
 a

n
d
 C

iv
il 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 k

e
p
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

M
a

te
rn

it
y

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 k

e
p
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

R
a
c
e

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

re
 

 
1
0
 

294



a
w

a
re

 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

h
o
w

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
a
s
s
e
s
. 

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

fo
rm

a
ts

R
e

lig
io

n
 o

r 
B

e
lie

f 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 t

o
 

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

S
e

x

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 t

o
 

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

S
e
x
u
a
l 
O

ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 k

e
p
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

1
4
. 

Is
 t

h
e
re

 a
n
y
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
r 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 t

h
a

t 
d

ir
e
c
t 

o
r 

in
d

ir
e
c
t 

d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 m
a
y
 o

c
c
u
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 a

n
ti
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
?

D
ir

e
c

t 
d

is
c

r
im

in
a

ti
o

n
 -

 o
c
c
u
rs

 w
h
e
n
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
 i
s
 t

re
a
te

d
 l
e
s
s
 f

a
v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 t
h
a
n
 o

th
e
rs

 o
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

g
e
, 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
, 

g
e
n
d
e
r,

 r
a
c
e
, 

re
lig

io
n
 o

r 
b

e
lie

f,
 o

r 
s
e
x
u

a
l 
o
ri
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
. 

R
e
fe

r 
to

 m
a
in

 g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

o
lk

it
 f

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
d

ir
e

c
t 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
.

In
d

ir
e

c
t 

d
is

c
r
im

in
a

ti
o

n
 -

 o
c
c
u
rs

 w
h
e
n
 a

 r
u
le

, 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

r 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p
lie

s
 e

q
u
a
lly

 t
o
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e
, 

h
a
s
 a

 d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 g

ro
u
p
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

u
le

. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 m
a
in

 g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
o
lk

it
 f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 

in
d
ir
e
c
t 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
. A

g
e

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
D

is
a
b

ili
ty

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
G

e
n

d
e

r
R

e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
M

a
rr

ia
g
e

a
n
d
 C

iv
il

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y

a
n
d

R
a
c
e

R
e
lig

io
n
 a

n
d
 

B
e
lie

f
S

e
x

S
e

x
u
a
l

O
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 
1
1
 

295



c
a

re
rs

)
c
a

re
rs

)
n
t

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

M
a

te
rn

it
y

Y
e
s

D
ir
e

c
t

N
o

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

Y
e
s

x
x

In
d

ir
e

c
t

N
o

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

If
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 ‘
y
e
s
’ 
to

 a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 y

o
u
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 s

to
p
 a

n
d
 r

e
th

in
k
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

p
ro

c
e
e
d
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

. 
(Y

o
u
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 s

e
e
k
 L

e
g
a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
)

S
ta

g
e
 4

: 
D

e
c
is

io
n

 

1
5
.

P
le

a
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 w
h
ic

h
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 b
e
s
t 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

E
q
IA

(
 

 t
ic

k
 o

n
e
 b

o
x
 o

n
ly

)

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 1

 –
 N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
:

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t

a
n
d
 a

ll 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
.

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 2

 –
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
b
y
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

 o
r 

to
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 

L
is

t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 y

o
u
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 i
n

 t
h
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e
 5

x

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 3

 –
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 d
e
s
p
it
e
 h

a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
r 

m
is

s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
. 

In
 t

h
is

 c
a

s
e

, 
th

e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

q
IA

 a
n
d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 P

S
E

D
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e

re
g
a
rd

’.
 I

n
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
, 

c
o
m

p
e
lli

n
g
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e
d
. 

Y
o
u
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e

th
e
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
/o

r 
p
la

n
s

to
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

(e
x
p
la

in
 t

h
is

 i
n
 1

5
A

 b
e
lo

w
)

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 4

 –
 S

to
p
 a

n
d
 r

e
th

in
k
: 

w
h
e
n
 y

o
u
r 

E
q
IA

 s
h
o
w

s
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
.

(Y
o
u
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 

s
e
e
k
 L

e
g
a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
)

1
5
A

. 
If

 y
o

u
r 

E
q

IA
 i
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 3

, 
e

x
p
la

in
 y

o
u
r 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h
 f

u
ll 

re
a
s
o
n
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

?
 

Im
p
a
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g

p
ro

c
e
s
s

S
ta

g
e
 5

: 
M

a
k
in

g
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 (

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
) 

1
6
. 

L
is

t 
b
e
lo

w
 a

n
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 y

o
u
 p

la
n
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 E

q
IA

.

A
re

a
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

a
d

v
e
rs

e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

e
.g

. 
R

a
c

e
, 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
A

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
im

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
P

ro
g

re
s
s

 
1
2
 

296



If
 t

h
e
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 i
s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 r

e
d
u
c
e
. 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 

A
u
ti
s
m

 a
n
d
 A

s
p
e
rg

e
rs

 w
h
o
 

a
re

 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 d

e
n
ie

d
 a

 
D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 
P

a
s
s
.

T
h
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
, 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
, 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
, 

in
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
to

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 t

h
e
 

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 
P

a
s
s
 w

it
h
d

ra
w

n
.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 n

e
w

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

fo
rm

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
tr

a
v
e
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 M

IN
D

 a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
c
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 

tr
a
in

e
d
 i
n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 u

s
e
 n

e
w

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
rm

 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ly

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 

T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 a
p
p
ly

 t
o
 b

o
th

 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
.

F
e
rn

 S
ilv

e
ri
o
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

p
 t
o
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 b
u
t 
a
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 o
f 
1
/1

1
/1

1
 i
s
 

b
e

in
g

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 f
o

r 
n

e
w

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
 d

a
te

 
o
f 
1
/4

/1
2
 f
o
r 

c
a
n
c
e
lli

n
g
 

a
n

y
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

a
s
e
s
 t
h

a
t 

d
o

 n
o

t 
q

u
a

lif
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

n
e

w
p
o
lic

y
 c

ri
te

ri
a

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 l
o
n
g

 l
e

a
d

 i
n

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 a
n

d
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
a

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 
in

fo
rm

 a
ll 

a
ff
e
c
te

d

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 b

y
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

t 
a

 c
o

s
t 
o

f
a

p
p

ro
x
 £

3
0
k

W
o

u
ld

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n
c
e

a
s
a
p

 p
o
s
t 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e
r

T
h
e
 t

a
x
ic

a
rd

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
.

F
e
rn

 S
ilv

e
ri
o
 

T
o
 e

ff
e
c
t 

n
e
w

 t
ri
p
 

b
a
n
d
s
 b

y
 1

/4
/2

0
1
1
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 a
llo

w

A
c
c
e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
ta

ff
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
W

o
u
ld

 n
e
e

d
 t

o
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 a

s
a
p
 p

o
s
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
n
 

 
1
3
 

297



y
o
u
n
g
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 a

re
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 

th
e

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ta
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

b
y
 u

s
e

rs
. 

T
h
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 t

o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 a
ll 

a
ff

e
c
te

d

W
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

c
ro

s
s
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

ll 
h
o
ld

e
rs

 o
f 

ta
x
i 
c
a
rd

s
 

w
it
h
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 o
f 

D
F

P
 

s
o

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

n
 

d
e
c
id

e
 w

h
ic

h
 o

n
e
 

th
e
y
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 k

e
e
p
 

fr
o
m

 1
/4

/2
0
1

2
 

O
c
to

b
e

r

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 u

s
e
rs

 
A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 b
e

 p
u

t 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
s
 

F
e
rn

 S
ilv

e
ri
o
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 –

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

K
e
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
c
o
m

m
s
 

a
n
d
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
re

 t
a

x
i 
c
a

rd
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

W
o
u
ld

 n
e
e

d
 t

o
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 a

s
a
p
 p

o
s
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e

r

S
ta

g
e

 6
 -

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

T
h
e
 f

u
ll 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
y
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 

it
 i
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

1
7
. 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 o
n
c
e
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
?
 H

o
w

 o
ft

e
n
 w

ill
 y

o
u

 d
o
 

th
is

?

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 w

h
o
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 m

e
e
t 

o
n
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

. 
A

ls
o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
, 

A
H

, 
w

o
u
ld

 

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

fe
e
d

b
a
c
k
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 

P
re

s
s
 a

rt
ic

le
s
 a

n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 o

n
 a

n
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

1
8
. 

W
h

a
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
a

s
u
re

s
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
?
 (

A
ls

o
 I

n
c
lu

d
e
 

in
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

t 
S

ta
g
e
 5

)

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
e
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 v
ie

w
s
 v

ia
 

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
, 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
o
 a

 m
o
re

 w
h
o
lis

ti
c
 v

ie
w

 i
s
 c

a
p
tu

re
d
 

1
9
.

H
o
w

 w
ill

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
a
n
y
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 b

e
 a

n
a
ly

s
e

d
, 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
lic

is
e
d
?

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 b

u
t 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

te
rr

in
g

 g
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
 t

o
 r

e
fe

r 
m

a
tt

e
r 

b
a

c
k
 t

o
 

C
S

B
 &

 c
a
b

in
e
t

 
1
4
 

298



2
0
. 

H
a
v
e
 y

o
u
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
o
r 

c
o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t 

o
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

b
e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
?
 I

f 
s
o
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
ta

ils
.

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 f

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

S
ta

g
e
 7

 –
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 E

q
IA

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
m

.

E
q
IA

’s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 o
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t.
 

 
1
5
 

299



2
1
.

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

N
O

T
E

:
T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 y

o
u

r 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
re

p
o

rt
s
 e

tc
 b

u
t 

y
o

u
 m

u
s
t 

A
L
S

O
 a

tt
a

c
h

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll 

E
q

IA
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 b

o
th

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
?
 

 
W

h
a
t 

c
o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

re
 y

o
u
 a

d
v
is

in
g
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 E

q
IA

?
 

 
A

re
 t

h
e
re

 a
n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

th
e
rs

?
 

 
D

o
 y

o
u
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

to
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
lt
h
o

u
g
h
 a

n
 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
?
 

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

re
: 

 
S

o
m

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

u
s
e
rs

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 e

lig
ib

le
 i
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 i
s
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

h
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 
F

re
e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 e

lig
ib

le
 i
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 A

u
ti
s
m

 a
n
d
 A

s
p
e
rg

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
w

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 

w
ill

 l
im

it
 t

h
e
ir
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

d
ri
v
e
 o

r 
w

h
o
 a

re
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 o

r 
w

h
o
 a

re
 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 u

s
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
ill

n
e
s
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p
s
 

 
Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 c

lu
b
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
o
 g

o
 t

o
 l
u
n
c
h
 c

lu
b
s
 e

tc
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 
tr

ip
s

 
C

h
a
rg

in
g

 f
o
r 

lo
s
t/
d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 f

re
e
d
o
m

 p
a
s
s
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 T

a
x
ic

a
rd

 t
ri
p
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
a
s
s
 a

n
d
 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d
g
e
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
. 

 T
h
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 o

p
e
ra

te
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 m

o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 r

o
le

. 

2
2
. 

H
o

w
 w

ill
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

b
e
 

p
u
b
lic

is
e
d
?
 E

.g
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
,

in
tr

a
n

e
t,

 f
o

ru
m

s
, 

g
ro

u
p
s
 e

tc
 

T
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 p

u
b
lic

is
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 i
n
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
. 

S
ta

g
e
 8

 -
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
s
ig

n
 O

ff
 (

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 

E
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
)

T
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 E
q

IA
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
ir

 o
f 

y
o

u
r

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 
E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 (

D
E

T
G

) 
to

 b
e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

. 

 
1
6
 

300



2
3
. 

W
h

ic
h

 g
ro

u
p

 o
r 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
, 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
e
 

E
q
IA

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
?

T
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
s
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 w

e
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e

 E
q
IA

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

S
ig

n
e

d
: 

(L
e

a
d

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
c
o

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 
E

q
IA

)
C

a
ro

l 
Y

a
rd

e
S

ig
n

e
d

: 
(C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
D

E
T

G
)

1
4
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

D
a

te
:

C
a
ro

l 
Y

a
rd

e
D

a
te

:
1
4
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

 
1
7
 

301



302

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Protocol for the Operation of the Call-In Sub-Committee
	6 Call-In of Cabinet Decision (18 July 2013) - Transformation of Day Opportunities in Harrow
	Draft extract for Call-in - Day Opportunities
	Day Op - Main report
	DayServicescover - App A
	DayServices - App A - App1
	DayServices -  App A - Apps23
	DayServices - App A - EqIADayCentreGroups
	Day Opp - App B - TransformationConsultation
	Day Opp - App C
	Day Opp - App D - EqIA
	Day Opp - App E - Map

	7 Call-in of Cabinet Decision (18 July 2013) - Concessionary Travel - Changes to the Taxicard Scheme
	Draft extract for Call-in - Taxicard
	Concessionary Travel - Main Report
	CT - Appendix A - Taxicard Consultation
	CT - Appendix B - Taxicard Changes EqIA
	CT - Appendix B to EqIA


